VC GroOuprP
2 E E

Value Convergence Holdings Limited

2 2 ERKRABR-ZTF
A Hong Kong listed company with stock code: 821
EBLEHRATARENRSE : 821

N/
il

www.vcgroup.com.hk

\Q‘\m o

| *“‘-Iellverlng

%ence

51 4
%’%E\ =)

20 2 1 Annual Report



?_-’ré This Annual Report is printed on environmentally friendly paper.

FERRARFREDH -



39

45

94

118

150

160

162

164

167

170

356

CONTENTS H#%

Corp\orate Information
NEIEH

Chairman’s Statement
FEHRESE

Management Discussion and Analysis
ERENRED

Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management

EENSREREZRERE

Environment, Social and Governance Report
R HeRERRSE

Corporate Governance Report
PEEBRE

Directors’ Report

EEeREE

Independent Auditor’'s Report
18 3 A% BRI

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income
meBmkEMmEEKRAR

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
RE IR R

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GEY: £ 1IES

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
RAERERER

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMIBEHRME

Five Years’ Financial Summary

hEFEZHHRE




CORPORATE INFORMATION A 31&%}

Executive Directors

Mr. FU Yiu Man, Peter (Chairman)
Mr. LIN Hoi Kwong, Aristo

Ms. LI Cindy Chen

Mr. ZHANG Nu

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. WONG Chung Kin, Quentin

Mr. WONG Kam Choi, Kerry, MH

Mr. SIU Miu Man, Simon, MH

Executive Committee

Mr. FU Yiu Man, Peter (Chairman)
Mr. LIN Hoi Kwong, Aristo

Mr. LAI Yick Fung?

Audit Committee

Mr. WONG Chung Kin, Quentin (Chairman)
Mr. WONG Kam Choi, Kerry, MH

Mr. SIU Miu Man, Simon, MH

Remuneration Committee

Mr. WONG Kam Choi, Kerry, MmH (Chairman)
Mr. WONG Chung Kin, Quentin

Mr. SIU Miu Man, Simon, MH

Nomination Committee

Mr. SIU Miu Man, Simon, mH (Chairman)
Mr. WONG Chung Kin, Quentin
Mr. WONG Kam Choi, Kerry, MH

4 non-voting co-opted member

VALUE CONVERGENCE HOLDINGS LIMITED EZRIZRER AT

Annual Report 2021 &£}

HITES
B EE (ZE)
EgIEE
FRUL
RESLL

BYHHTES
EINER L
HIRBI A - MH
B LA - MH

HITEES
BB EE(EFE)
EETEAE
FE 2 B 5 A0

EREEE
BHIRNBREE (FE)
mIBA LA - MH
RY X LA - vH

FMEES

=B LAE  MH(E/E)
EE/N=

RY LA - vH

REZES
WY S E  vH(EE)
HINER L
=BT E - MH

CEIREREKE



VALUE CONVERGENCE HOLDINGS LIMITED ERZRERA A
Annual Report 2021 &£}

CORPORATE INFORMATION 2 3]&#}

Authorised Representatives RREAX

Mr. FU Yiu Man, Peter R A&

Mr. LAI Yick Fung FEm 2 A

Company Secretary NEAWE

Mr. LAI Yick Fung bl i

Registered Office/Principal Place of Business EMBERTEEE M
6th Floor, Centre Point BAEELT

181-185 Gloucester Road & T 9T38181-1855%

Wanchai, Hong Kong PIEE R A E6E

Auditor =B Em

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited XM (EE) G EBKABR AR
Principal Bankers FEARET

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited FETRIRT (EM) BRAA
Hang Seng Bank Limited BARITAERRAR

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited PEIRTT (HE) BR QA
Share Registrar and Transfer Officer RDBFERLE

Tricor Abacus Limited BERRHERADF

Level 54, Hopewell Centre B

183 Queen's Road Fast 2R ANBR1835

Hong Kong B L5418

Stock Code IR A7 1K 5%

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited: 821 ERBMERHMAERRDTA : 821
Company Website ACIE N

http://www.vcgroup.com.hk http://www.vcgroup.com.hk



with the roll-out of Coronavirus Disease 2019

In 2021,

("COVID-19" or “"pandemic”) vaccination schemes around the

world, coupled with the strong fiscal and monetary support,
the global economy witnessed a strong rebound. However,
inflationary pressures and the emergence of new variants
hampered economic recovery in certain countries, resulting in

an uneven recovery across regions.

In respect of Hong Kong's economy, the city saw a relatively
stable pandemic situation starting in May, with both the
employment rate and income conditions continuously
improving throughout the year. The local economy recovered
further and expanded notably by 6.4% year-on-year in 2021.
However, given the hampered investor sentiment due to
tightened regulations on various China's sectors, namely
e-commerce, videogames, gambling and after-school tutoring,
and worries over the health of China's property market, Hang
Seng Index slumped 14% over the year, making Hong Kong
one of the worst-performing equity markets among major

markets.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT EJEiR&EE

Thanks to the government's continued efforts that effectively
contained the COVID-19 pandemic, China's manufacturing
industry has returned to normal to a great extent, supported
the rapid economic recovery. During the year, China beat
market expectations with a strong GDP growth at 8.1%.
Despite multiple headwinds facing the domestic economy
during the year, especially the Omicron variants and the
distressed real estate sector, the domestic capital market
expanded with the establishment of Beijing Stock Exchange

and the roll-out of vaccines.

Looking forward to 2022, the global economy is expected to
be undermined with uncertainties brought by the COVID-19
variants, spillover effects caused by the continuous loosening
fiscal and monetary policies of the U.S. and other developed
economies, as well as heightened geopolitical risks and
political conflicts across countries. As for the economy in Hong
Kong, concerns of the resurgence of COVID-19 have been
escalating since the start of 2022, hampering the overall
markets’ performance which is expected to dampen economic
growth momentum in the first quarter of 2022. However, a
series of relief measures, including new consumption voucher
scheme and tax deduction for domestic rental expenses
announced in the budget address, may alleviate the burden of
residents and underpin the post-pandemic recovery,
accommodating the medium to long-term development of

Hong Kong economy.
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Looking ahead, the Group will continue to adopt its dual-track
business strategy to bolster a stable development of its
financial operations in Hong Kong and steadily expand digital
assets and internet gaming business in China, with a view to
enhancing flexibility of our business, broadening our revenue
streams and bringing new impetus for sustainable growth of
the Group. To strengthen our competence in the ever-changing
and highly competitive market, the Group will spare no effort
to enhance service quality and provide stable financial services

to its customers.

I would like to express my heartfelt appreciation to all
shareholders, customers, suppliers and business partners for
their continuous support and contributions to the Group's
healthy development. Leveraging our deep customer
knowledge and comprehensive portfolio of financial products
and services, the Group will fully unleash our strengths as a
professional financial service provider and continue to move
forward towards our strategic goal of building a professional,
market-oriented and international investment platform, so as

to bring long-term returns for our shareholders.

Fu Yiu Man, Peter

Chairman & Executive Director

Hong Kong
31 March 2022
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VC Group is an established financial services group committed
to delivering premier financial services and products that fulfill
various investment and wealth management needs of clients
in the Greater China region, and extended into digital assets
industry in year 2021. The Group's expertise includes (i)
provision of financial services comprising securities, futures
and options brokering and dealing, financing services,
corporate finance and other advisory services, asset
management and insurance brokerage; (i) proprietary trading;
and (iii) sales and marketing of digital assets. During the year,
the sales and distribution of healthcare products business was

disposed.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EHEEsTs/ &9

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW
In 2021, while the continuing waves of COVID-19 pandemic

in the early months across regions deepened the global health
crisis, accelerated vaccine rollouts and major stimulus
packages in many economies provided a beacon of hope.
However, the ferocious surge of COVID-19 cases driven by the
emergence of new variants in the second half of the year led
to trade and supply chain disruptions, creating a major barrier

to a full return of global economic activities.

Despite multiple headwinds that threatened to derail recovery
from the COVID-19, China's economy continued its strong
rebound in 202 1. According to National Bureau of Statistics of
China, the country’s economy recorded the fastest expansion
in nearly a decade at 8.1% in 2021, exceeding the
government's target of above 6%. Regarding the domestic
financial market, foreign capital flow to China’s equity markets
reached a record high in 2021, as the country further opened
its financial market and regulatory changes directed offshore
investors to the mainland stock markets. Net volume of capital

flows almost doubled from the level of 2020.

Although the COVID-19 pandemic is still raging in much of the
world, the stock market turned in a solid performance in
2021. In the U.S., the S&P 500 gained 26.9% and notched
70 all-time highs; while the Dow Jones Industrial Average and
the Nasdag Composite jumped 18.7% and 21.4%,

respectively.
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In Hong Kong, economic performance in 2021 gave cause for
optimism. Alongside a robust export performance and the
improved private consumption, Hong Kong's real GDP
expanded notably by 6.4%, reversing the declines in the
previous two years. Unfortunately, the city's promising
economic performance did not prevent Hong Kong stock
market from taking a battering in 2021. In particular, the
technology and internet sector dragged the Hang Seng Index
down 14.1%, and the Hang Seng Technology Index fell
34.8%. Regulatory crackdowns on sectors such as
e-commerce, videogames, gambling and after-school tutoring
raised investors’ concern and triggered sell-off of stocks of
China's real estate developers and tech giants. On the initial
public offering (“IPO") front, Hong Kong remained one of the
world’s most active IPO fundraising hubs, with 99 new IPOs
and over HK$318.9 billion raised in 2021. In addition, the
China concept stocks raised a total of HK$100.3 billion during
the year. According to PwC's report, the surge of biotech IPOs
made Hong Kong the largest biotech fundraising hub in Asia
in 2021. Meanwhile, Hong Kong's securities market remained
vibrant, with total funds raised and average daily turnover in
2021 reaching HK$770.7 billion and HK$166.7 billion,
representing year-on-year increases of 3.0% and 29.0%,
respectively, according to Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing

Limited.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year, under the backdrop of the recurrence of
COVID-19 outbreak and intensely competitive Hong Kong
financial market, the Group continued to capitalize on its core
competitiveness and solid experience in financial service
sector to maintain a strong performance in its financial
businesses, which resulted in a steady increase in the Group's

total revenue.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EHEEsTs/ &9

While focusing on the development of existing businesses, the
Group is also actively seeking different business development
opportunities. During the year, the Group has identified a
market opportunity and launched the business of sales and
marketing of digital assets to actively enter the internet
generation Z market, closely following the internet
development trend represented by digital assets and
developing related businesses, with an aim to diversify the

business and expand the Group's income base.

Establishment of a joint venture securities company
in Guangxi

In July 2016, the Company announced that VC Brokerage
Limited (“VC Brokerage”), an indirectly wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a joint venture
agreement (the "Joint Venture Agreement”) with three
independent third parties to establish a joint venture securities
company in Guangxi, the PRC (the "PRC JV Company").
Subject to the approval by China Securities Regulatory
Commission (the “CSRC"), the PRC JV Company is expected
to be a full-licensed securities company permitted to provide
securities brokerage, trading and investment advisory,
underwriting, sponsorship and asset management services in
the PRC. Pursuant to the Joint Venture Agreement, VC
Brokerage will contribute RMB445 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$545 million), representing 44.5%
shareholding in the PRC JV Company.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EHEEsTisi RO

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Company and VC
Brokerage have not yet obtained the approval and
authorisation from the CSRC for establishment of the PRC JV
Company. Details of the transaction please refer to the
Company's announcements dated 24 July 2016, 20
September 2016, 26 October 2016, 18 November 2016, 17
January 2017, 29 March 2017, 28 June 2017, 20 September
2017, 12 October 2017, 12 January 2018, 27 March 2018,
27 June 2018, 20 July 2018, 28 August 2018, 6 September
2018, 28 November 2018 and 21 February 2019; and the
Company's circulars dated 26 September 2016, 27 February
2017, 22 September 2017, 23 February 2018, 3 August
2018 and 31 January 2019.

Disposal of entire holding of 30% equity interest in
Telebox Technology Holdings Limited

On 20 March 2020, Initial Honour Limited (“Initial Honour"),
an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a sale and purchase agreement with Mr. Chen Yu Zhen
("Mr. Chen"), an independent third party, to dispose its entire
holding of 30% equity interest in Telebox Technology
Holdings Limited, at a cash consideration of HK$5,000,000.
The disposal was completed on 17 December 2021, and the

consideration balance was fully settled.

RAFHBH  NABFERE S M ALK
VYHBEAERARETEELEREE -F
BRI ZHARELHARABYP/-_F—RX

F+tAZ+WE - ZE-R"EFALA=-T+H "
:%—/\iﬂ—ﬂ +/\E| = ﬂi"f’_
A+NAR- —t+F—-—A++HB-
—ti:ﬂ:+ﬂ5~:%—t¢ﬁ
“+NB -ZZE—tFNLAZF+H =%
*t¢+ﬂ+:E~:%*A¢*H+:
H ZE—-N\F=A=++HB" —N\F
RNAZ++EHB - —N\F+LHA= +E
Z—-N\ENAH :+J\El CZE-NEFERAR

B - —Z—-NF+—A=-+tN \HEKZZ—A
FZAZ+—BHZRAMH UERARFIBEA

—E-RNFNAZF+ARH —ZZE—+F—H
“++tB-ZFE—+FhLAZF+=ZH - =Z
—N\FZA=-+=H -ZE—N\FNA=H

—NF-A=1T—HZEX

i & M Telebox Technology Holdings
Limited Z 2 #3008 £

RZZT_TF=R_+B AREIZHER
& [} B 22 Alinitial Honour Limited ([ Initial
Honour]) BBV E =R BB %k & ([R5
E1)FTL—HE&E W& WU Einitial
HonouriTelebox Technology Holdings
LimitedZ 2 #8300 1 » FT¥ R 2 R &R (B
#35,000,0008 T - EREEEE R T = —
FTA+THHTX  WEHEBEE2HREL



12

VALUE CONVERGENCE HOLDINGS LIMITED EZRIZRER AT

Annual Report 2021 &£}

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EHEEsTs/ &9

Acquisition of 32% equity interest in China Bloom
International Limited

On 7 May 2020, VC Capital Management Limited ("VCCML"),
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
memorandum of understanding with Mr. Chan Leung (“Mr.
Chan"), an independent third party, to acquire 16% equity
interest in China Bloom International Limited (“China Bloom")
at a cash consideration of HK$9,800,000. The principal asset
of China Bloom consisted of a residential property in Hong
Kong with market value of approximately HK$68,000,000. A
deposit of HK$7,000,000 had been paid.

On 26 August 2020, VCCML entered into another
memorandum of understanding with Mr. Chan to acquire
further 16% equity interest in China Bloom at a cash
consideration of HK$9,800,000. A deposit of HK$4,000,000
had been paid.

On 30 November 2020, 31 May 2021 and 31 December
2021, VCCML entered into the third, the fourth and the fifth
memorandum of understanding with Mr. Chan to further
extend the long stop date of completion of the aggregate
329% equity interest in China Bloom and the latest long stop
date being 30 June 2022.

On 21 March 2022, Mr. Chan entered into a loan agreement
with VC Finance Limited (“VC Finance”), an indirectly wholly
owned subsidiary, in the amount of HK$16,700,000, out of
which HK$11,000,000 was applied to refund the above
aggregate deposit to VCCML and the remaining HK$5,700,000
was applied to repay Mr. Chan's existing indebtedness to VC
Finance. By virtue of a deed of settlement entered into on the
same date between Mr. Chan and VCCML, the series of
memorandum of understanding shall have null effect and the
acquisition of 320 equity interest in China Bloom shall not

proceed.
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Deed of settlement

On 25 June 2021, CVP Financial Group Limited (“CVP"), the
Company, VC Finance and Mr. Ding Lu (“Mr. Ding") entered
into a deed of settlement pursuant to which an outstanding
convertible bond amount (the “Outstanding CB Amount”) due
from the Company to CVP in the amount of HK$18,000,000
would be applied to offset partially the indebtedness due from
Mr. Ding to VC Finance (the “Offset”). The Offset was
completed on the same date, immediately after which the
Outstanding CB Amount was fully settled and Mr. Ding is still
indebted to VC Finance in the amount of approximately
HK$8.3 million.

Disclosable transaction - acquisitions of HG
Semiconductor Limited's shares

The Company conducted a series of acquisitions in the open
market from 22 July 2021 to 7 October 2021 and acquired a
total of 5,158,000 HG Semiconductor Limited (Stock Code:
6908) (“HG Semiconductor”) shares for an aggregate
consideration of approximately HK$38.3 million (excluding
stamp duty and related expenses), which was financed by the
Group's internal resources. The average price (excluding stamp
duty and related expenses) for the acquisitions of each HG
Semiconductor share was approximately HK$7.42. The
acquired shares represented approximately 0.94% of the total
HG Semiconductor shares in issue on 7 October 2021. Since
then up to 31 December 2021, a further 3,407,000 shares of

HG Semiconductor were acquired.
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Disposal of entire holding of 100% equity interest in
VC Global Investments Limited

On 9 December 2021, the Company as vendor entered into a
sale and purchase agreement with the Ms. Su Miaojuan (“Ms.
Su") as purchaser, pursuant to which the Company has agreed
to sell to Ms. Su, and Ms. Su has agreed to purchase from the
Company, the entire holding of 100% equity interest in VC
Global Investments Limited (“VC Global”) and the Company
has agreed to assign to Ms. Su, and Ms. Su has agreed to
receive the assignment of, the shareholder’s loan at an

aggregate consideration of HK$7,000,000.

VC Global is principally engaged in investment holding, and
has three subsidiaries which are principally engaged in sales
and distribution of healthcare products. As a result of the
disposal, the Group discontinued the healthcare business. Loss
on disposal of approximately HK$107,000 was recorded in the

consolidated financial statements.

The disposal was completed on 24 December 2021. For
details of the transaction, please refer to the Company's
announcements dated 9 December 2021 and 24 December

2021, respectively.

Entering into a business cooperation agreement with
E-Home Entertainment

On 13 December 2021, Shenzhen Qianhai Value
Convergence Technology Power Co. Ltd. (“Qianhai VCT"), an
indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and being a
wholly foreign-owned enterprise legally established and
subsisting in Shenzhen under the laws of the PRC with limited
liabilities, entered into a business cooperation agreement with
E-Home Entertainment Development Company Ltd. (“E-Home

Entertainment”).
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Pursuant to the business cooperation agreement, Qianhai VCT
and E-Home Entertainment agreed to commence in-depth
cooperation in the internet industry and jointly carry out
integrated market development in various areas including
Chinese console games market, expansion of domestic games
into overseas markets and digital marketing to gain
competitive advantages in the market. Meanwhile, both parties
shall coordinate their resources, channels and market
advantages to develop long-term cooperation throughout the
entire business process, and shall adjust the scope of
cooperation depending on actual market conditions. Last but
not least, both parties shall provide each other with adequate
commercial and technical support, establish a close and
efficient information sharing mechanism and communicate
regularly to share resources and promote each other's
products and services.

Formation of a joint venture in relation to digital
products

On 24 December 2021, Qianhai VCT has established a
subsidiary, namely Shenzhen Huiwei Duoying Technology Co.
Ltd. (the “Subsidiary”), with Shenzhen Yiyun Information
Electronic Co. Ltd. (“Shenzhen Yiyun Information”) and Ms. Li
Xiaowen as other shareholders. The equity interests of the
Subsidiary are held as to 51%, 25% and 24% by Qianhai
VCT, Shenzhen Yiyun Information and Ms. Li Xiaowen,
respectively. The Subsidiary is principally engaged in the sales
and marketing of digital assets and has made plans with
regard to, including but not limited to, the business of sales
and marketing of digital products of Tencent with an
expectation to obtain exclusive sales rights from digital product
distributors of Tencent. The digital products of Tencent range
from Tencent Games, QQ, video and music. The sales and
marketing of digital assets business of the Group generated a
gross merchandise volume (GMV) of approximately RMB0.98
million in 2021 and approximately RMB13 million from
January to February 2022.

Details of the Group’s business performance of each operating
segment for the year ended 31 December 2021, together
with the comparative figures of the corresponding period in
2020, are given in the section “FINANCIAL REVIEW" below.
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OUTLOOK

The recovery of global economy is set to decelerate markedly
amid continued COVID-19 flare-ups, intensifying geopolitical
tensions, and lingering supply bottlenecks. The world economy
is, as the World Bank described, simultaneously facing
COVID-19, inflation, and policy uncertainties, with government
spending and monetary policies in uncharted territory. Despite
the negative factors, the global economy is on track to grow
by 4.1% in 2022, according to the World Bank. As the world's
second-largest economy, China has unveiled a 5.5%
economic growth target for 2022 at the opening of the annual
parliament meeting. It is expected that China’s sound
fundamentals along with ample room for policy manoeuvres

will support its steady economic growth.

In respect of Hong Kong economy, uncertainties clouded by
the escalating threat of the Covid variant continue to erode
the city's consumer confidence. However, with the supportive
fiscal measures launched by the Hong Kong government, a
better performance is expected in the second half of the year,
contributing to an estimated 2.0% to 3.5% economic growth
in real terms for the whole year. Although the geopolitical
issues have triggered the risk-off sentiment in Hong Kong's
stock market, Hong Kong, being China’s most internationalized
city with the free flow of capital, ample liquidity, and an ability
to innovate and reform to embrace change, is certain to
remain the most preferred overseas listing destination for

Chinese companies.

With the rapid development of the digital economy and the
ever-growing blockchain technology, the market size of digital
assets continues to grow, coupled with the corresponding
extension and breakthrough in the mode of application and
regulatory policies. Digital assets such as digital currencies and
non-fungible token (NFT), which are interoperable to a certain
extent with the real world, have also been gaining attention
from the market. It is expected that the digital economy will
grow exponentially in the future and that digital assets
transactions will act as a bridge between traditional assets and

digital assets.
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Looking ahead, the Group remains optimistic about the
development of its financial services business. On the other
hand, capitalizing on the strategic partnership and in-depth
business collaboration between the Group and its partners,
namely E-Home Entertainment and Shenzhen Yiyun
Information, the Group plans to allocate more resources to
further develop the sales and marketing of digital assets
business in every aspects, with a view to developing the digital
assets market through digital assets marketing, IP collaboration
and marketing cooperation, in order to promote the
development of the internet business which is spearheaded
by digital assets. The Group remains cautiously optimistic
about the prospects of new business, which is expected to

start contributing to the Group's revenue in this financial year.

LONG-TERM BUSINESS STRATEGY

The Group strives to enlarge the revenue base through
fostering core businesses, and tapping into new emerging
markets with expanded business initiatives. While applying our
excellent operational capabilities to serve our clients, the
Group will devote increased resources to business
diversification and acquisition when opportunities arise, with
the view to strengthening our all-round business position in
Hong Kong and beyond. The Group will continue to explore
the business opportunities in the PRC market. At the same
time, the Group also seeks to identify investment
opportunities in key sectors of the market, and to keep a grasp
on the business opportunities with comparably positive growth
and return in the local financial market and more resources

will then be devoted.

The Group intends to further its presence in the digital assets
industry with a view to capturing the potential growth in the
era of digital assets and driving synergies between the internet
business represented by digital assets and other business
segments of the Group to enhance the Group's profitability

and market share in the digital assets industry.
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The Group maintains competitive advantage through its long
term support from customers accumulated over the vyears;
excellent and diversified services that meet the needs of its
customers; competitive fees; and a proactive and professional
team that is willing to innovate and explore new markets. The
Group also looks into integrating into the newly developed
digital assets sector to upgrade its financial services to digital
assets trading services approved for implementation by local
regulatory authorities, in order to achieve greater returns for

investors and shareholders.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group's

consolidated revenue from continuing operations was
approximately HK$90.6 million, which increased by about
32% as compared with the same period in 2020 of
approximately HK$68.4 million. The Group recorded a
consolidated profit attributable to shareholders amounted to
approximately HK$15.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2021 against a loss of approximately HK$31.7

million for the same period in 2020.

The improvement in the Group’s consolidated result
attributable to shareholders in 2021 was mainly attributable to
(i) increase in revenue of approximately HK$22.2 million; (ii)
increase in net realised and unrealised result on financial
assets held for trading of approximately HK$19.6 million; (iii)
reduction of impairment loss on accounts receivable of
approximately HK$23.7 million; but (iv) partially offset by
turnaround from profit to loss incurred in the discontinued

healthcare business of approximately HK$16.1 million.
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To facilitate the review, the Group's revenue and segment ABFREE EBGAVBEHRRMTINEZ
information shown in Notes 3 and 4 to the consolidated AREBWREEDBER EFHEIBES ML :

financial statements is reproduced below after some

rearrangements:
Revenue Analysis W 2 2
2021 2020
—EB-—fF —E T
Proportion Proportion
of total of total Increase
revenue revenue  (decrease)
EB WS Rl Zm
£ Bl £ Bl CA )
HK$'000 % HK$'000 % %
TERT TET
Revenue from continuing REUNTHERE
operations: EY ¢
Brokerage and Financing ST Y- 3 82,824 92% 59,167 86% 40%
Brokerage commission and grefesk
other related fees Hi &R 13,587 15% 13,795 20% (2%)
Underwriting, sub- B DBH -
underwriting, placing and RERDESE
sub-placing commission ik 15,529 17% 1,620 2% 859%
Interest income from REBLEBE
brokerage clients F 2z M B A 16,017 18% 12,990 19% 23%
Interest income from money KB MEEXBE
lending clients P2z M B A 37,691 42% 30,762 45% 23%
Corporate Finance and Other (¥4 & H b EE
Advisory Services el AR 75 5 7% 7,430 8% 9,203 14% (19%)
Asset Management BEEEBRER - - - - -
Insurance Brokerage REBELRE 10 0% - - 100%
Proprietary Trading BEEEEK 284 0% - - 100%
Sales and marketing of digital BB EEHE M
assets i3 6 0% - - 100%

Total revenue Pl 90,554 100% 68,370 100% 32%
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Segment Analysis

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FTHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET
(Restated)
(18 &7%1)
Segment results: DEBEAE -
Brokerage and Financing R L mEEB 50,889 17,624
Corporate Finance and Other Advisory 1R E N H B AR 75 22 75
Services 455 (414)
Asset Management BETBER (1,629) (1,372)
Insurance Brokerage S (746) (659)
Proprietary Trading BEEEEEK 31,695 10,696
Sales and marketing of digital assets HGEEHERKEE (3,174) -
Group segment profit EE 5 & 77,490 25,875
Gain on acquisition of financial assets at WL A FEHIR R EBRE
fair value through profit or loss BRIE 7 MR EE 2 W - 3,979
Fair value change on financial assets BRAVEIEREEREREEL
at fair value through profit or loss MBEEL ATEES 299 (2,130)
Loss on redemption of financial assets fEER AT EINERERERERE
at fair value through profit or loss BREZMBEEEZER - (3,358)
Loss on disposal of financial assets HERQAFEIEIERRR
at fair value through profit or loss RIBZMBEEZEE = (8,413)
Unallocated administrative costs AOBITBUK A (38,351) (50,224)
Share of profit of associate DIEEEE R F 2 194 127
Profit (loss) before taxation BB AT A (B 18D 39,632 (34,144)
Income tax expenses Frsfif < (10,859) (1,616)
Profit (loss) for the year from continuing 5 48 & & ¥ 7% 2 4 Z % 7
operations (E18) 28,773 (35,760)
(Loss) profit for the year from ERIEKEEB 2 FE (EE)
discontinued operation i (21,979) 3,439
Profit (loss) for the year FEEMN (EE) 6,794 (32,321)
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Brokerage and Financing

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company,
through its indirect wholly owned subsidiaries, namely, VC
Brokerage and VC Futures Limited, provides securities, futures
and options brokering and dealing, margin financing, and
placing and underwriting services. It also through another
indirect wholly owned subsidiary, VC Finance, provides money
lending services. For the year ended 31 December 2021, the
brokerage and financing businesses recorded total revenue of
approximately HK$82.8 million as compared with
approximately HK$59.2 million for the same period last year,
representing an increase of about 40%, and accounted for

about 92% of the Group's total revenue.

The Group's one of the major revenue streams, namely,
brokerage commission and other related fees from dealing in
securities, futures and options contracts for the year ended 31
December 2021 amounted to approximately HK$13.6 million,
which was about 2% lower than that of 2020 of
approximately HK$13.8 million, and accounted for about 15%
of the Group's total revenue. The average daily turnover of the
Group's brokerage transactions decreased by about 22% as
compared to that of 2020.

Meanwhile, the Group's total interest income from financing
for the year ended 31 December 2021 increased by about
23% to approximately HK$53.7 million from approximately
HK$43.8 million for the same period last year, and accounted
for about 60% of the Group's total revenue. The revenue
included the interest income derived from both the brokerage

business and the money lending business.
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Brokerage clients financing

Among the above, the Group's interest income from our
brokerage clients recorded approximately HK$16.0 million for
the year ended 31 December 2021, representing an increase
of about 23% as compared to approximately HK$13.0 million
for the same period last year. The increase was mainly
attributable to the increase of average loan portfolio of our
brokerage clients by about 24% for the year ended 31
December 2021 as compared with the same period last year.
For the year ended 31 December 2021, there was a reversal
of impairment loss of approximately HK$16.7 million on
brokerage client receivables (2020: impairment loss of HK$1.8
million) in accordance with the Group's credit control policies
and procedures and requirements of relevant financial
reporting standard. The average interest rate for brokerage
clients is approximately 12%. Almost all brokerage client

receivables are pledged with securities held by the clients.

Money lending clients financing

The Group also provides money lending services to our
clients. The Group's interest income generated from the
money lending services was approximately HK$37.7 million for
the year ended 31 December 2021, representing an increase
of about 23% as compared to approximately HK$30.8 million
for the same period last year. The increase was mainly
contributed by an increase of average loan portfolio of the
money lending business by 41% in 2021 as compared with
the same period last year. For the year ended 31 December
2021, there was an additional impairment loss of
approximately HK$19.4 million on client receivables from
money lending client receivables (2020: HK$19.7 million) in
accordance with the Group’s credit control policies and
procedures and requirements of relevant financial reporting
standard. The additional impairment loss during the year was
due to drop in value of certain collaterals provided by clients
and were properly reflected in the financial statements. The

average interest rate for money lending clients is
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approximately 13.8%. As at 31 December 2021 gross
amounts advanced to corporate borrowers and individual
borrowers are in approximate ratio of 35% versus 65%.
Approximately 30% of money lending client receivables were
covered by collaterals including legal charges on properties
and securities owned by the borrowers or their associates. The
amounts indebted by the largest and largest five borrowers
accounts for approximately 42% and 37% of the entire gross

loan amount of the money lending clients, respectively.

The Group has put efforts on implementing our credit control
policies and procedures to review our clients’ creditworthiness
and credit limits from time to time so as to minimize our
credit risk exposure. The Group's credit control policies and
procedures are principally based on the doubtful unsecured
exposure having assessed the fair value of the clients’
collaterals held, the evaluation of collectability and aging
analysis of the client accounts. The Group will take all
necessary legal actions against the relevant clients to follow up
the settlement of the outstanding loans. Details of the
impairment loss on the client receivables had been disclosed

in Note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

Meanwhile, the Group offers placing and underwriting services
to our clients, and acts as placing agent and underwriter for
Hong Kong listed companies’ fund-raising activities. For the
year ended 31 December 2021, the Group's placing and
underwriting commission was approximately HK$15.5 million
as compared with approximately HK$1.6 million for the same
period last year. The Group will continue to put efforts to
capture the opportunities towards the local initial public

offerings and other fund-raising exercises.
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Overall, the brokerage and financing businesses recorded an
operating profit after tax of approximately HK$9.5 million for
the year ended 31 December 2021 as compared with a profit
of approximately HK$3.1 million for the same period last year.
The substantial improvement of the operating performance in
2021 was mainly due to the Group being successfully secured
certain placing and underwriting transactions from the capital

market.

Corporate Finance and Other Advisory Services

The Company through its indirect wholly owned subsidiary, VC
Capital Limited (“VC Capital”), provides corporate finance
advisory services to its clients. In 2021, VC Capital was
appointed as the financial adviser of certain Hong Kong listed
companies for a number of corporate transactions. The
Company through its another indirect wholly owned subsidiary,
VC Corporate Services Limited, provides corporate services,
including company secretarial services, registered office and

business services, etc,, to listed and private companies.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company’s
corporate finance and other advisory services recorded
revenue and operating profit after tax of approximately HK$7.4
million and HK$0.5 million as compared with approximately
HK$9.2 million and loss of HK$0.4 million for the same period

last year, respectively.

Asset Management

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company's asset
management business, through its indirect wholly owned
subsidiary, VC Asset Management Limited, recorded an
operating loss after tax of approximately HK$1.6 million as
compared with a loss of approximately HK$1.4 million for the
same period last year, which mainly included the general

operating expenses such as staff costs and professional costs.
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The Group continues to pursue new business opportunities
and resources to develop its asset management business so
as to enhance our products and services offerings to cater for
the diverse and growing needs of our clients. In the past few
years, the local capital market was volatile and full of
uncertainties, which made the development of our asset
management business still difficult. Nevertheless, the Group
has continued to put efforts in approaching the potential
clients so as to gain understanding of their needs, establish
long-term business relationship with them and finally provide
the personalised investment and wealth management services

which can create greater value to them.

Insurance Brokerage

The Group, through Experts Management Limited (“Experts
Management”), an indirect wholly owned subsidiary, was
engaged in the provision for insurance brokerage service.
Experts Management owns insurance broker company licence
and is entitled to conduct long term insurance business.
During the year, Experts Management first recorded revenue
of approximately HK$10,000 (2020: Nil) with an operating
loss of approximately HK$746,000 (2020: HK$659,000). With
the establishment of sales team and penetration through
different sales channels, the Group is optimistic in the future

performance of this business segment.

Proprietary Trading

As at 31 December 2021, the Group held equity securities
listed in Hong Kong of approximately HK$423.5 million (31
December 2020: HK$247.3 million) as financial assets held
for trading, which was stated at market value. The fair value of
these listed equity securities represents about 42% of the
Group's total assets as at 31 December 2021 (31 December
2020: 27%). This segment had improved following the
rebound of the Hong Kong capital market towards the end of

the year.

AEBEBRBSREDINREEERER
ZHERNEER  BUARAASEMREHRZ
EmEREKE  RBEEFHBZ TR
HAERCBR -BERF  NEEAMS
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BEREANE -RENU  AEBEHES
BHERABEETP HBUTBEREZFE
BYRHMEBRE SKRARFRERHIAE
ABEZRENMEEERY  /ARFAIE

EAREE-

REBEZBREEZENB A fExperts

Management Limited ([ Experts

Management J) ft S 2 R b & 42 PR 7% -

Experts Management# B R & &€ 42 A 7 h2
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Experts Management&k {5 Uz 910,0007%8 7T

(ZE-ZF  8|) REEBHELN746,000%8
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ﬁ EE%Z%
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The Group invests mainly through purchases in the secondary
market. The management follows strictly the internal securities
investment policy and seeks the approval from the Board,
when necessary, so as to enhance the financial returns to the
shareholders and limit the risk exposure associated therewith.
During the year ended 31 December 2021, there was net
purchase in securities investment of approximately HK$186.3
million (2020: HK$66.4 million).

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recorded
revenue of approximately HK$284,000 (2020: Nil) from the
proprietary trading business. Meanwhile, the Group recognised
a net gain of approximately HK$32.9 million (including a
realised loss of approximately HK$16.7 million and an
unrealised gain of approximately HK$49.6 million) on the
trading investments for the year ended 31 December 2021 as
compared with a net gain of approximately HK$13.3 million
(including a realised loss of approximately HK$12.2 million
and an unrealised gain of approximately HK$25.5 million) for

the same period in 2020.

m’ilzx%ﬁ“ﬁé FE_MSEEMELE
B BTHEEBRRETADIFREBR
EBAﬁﬂﬁgﬂT%Tmnﬁ§$§ﬁt& kiR A
P& 3R Bt 75 (20 R & (] BF 7T PR o6 EC AR A /LB o 0
BE-_ T F+_-_A=+—RHILEFE &
FIE 7 FEETL /186,300,000 7T (=
T T4 : 66,400,000 T) °

BE_ - F+-A=+—HIEE K
SEEEEEEBERGKREH284,000% T
(ZEZZTF E) - Z—FHH  AEERE
BT F+-_A=+—BUEFEMREE

BEERE MR F 532,900,000/ 7T (£
FEE @3 E518416,700,0007%8 7T 2 A & IR UK
% #)49,600,0008 L) MR T _ZF [
HA B 8715 W ax )F B8 4913,300,0007 7T (B2 3E
B8 IR E184912,200,0008 7T & & & 3R Mk %5
#725,500,000/8 7T ) °
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Below is an analysis of the financial assets held for trading

AEER -_ZE-_—F+-_A=1+—HFHEE

held by the Group as at 31 December 2021: BZUBEESTAOT :

Unrealised

gain (loss)

Market value for the

as at  Percentage to year ended

31 December the Group's 31 December

Industries 7% 2021 total assets 2021
BZE

—E-—F

t=ZA=t+—H

R-B-—% HAEE IEFEZ

+=BA=+—H BEE REBR WS

ZWE [Epi)4 (B1])

HK$'million HK$'million

BEBTT BEABT

Energy EEVH 89.1 8.9% 19.5
Information technology BRHR 195.4 19.6% 9.1
Consumer goods and services HE i K AR T 41.0 4.1% 32.3
Materials R 5.1 0.5% (0.7)
Financials ' 32.6 3.3% (10.2)
Industrials T 60.3 6.0% (0.4)
423.5 42.4% 49.6

While the performance of different industries did vary, the
Group cautiously monitors the investment portfolio and shall
be determined to make any strategic moves. After sustaining
years of loss, the proprietary trading segment recorded a
turnaround in year 2021 capturing the gradually optimistic
sentiment in the Hong Kong capital market towards end of
2021. Overall, the Group’s proprietary trading business
recorded an operating profit after tax of approximately
HK$31.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2021
(2020: HK$10.7 million).

FETRMTENRRLE  EAEEFHER
BIREEE  UFREEDEMIRMBEE -
KBZEER BEBEEEBYHIEEINE
BEAMSGR T _—FFREANZESEE
BE RTE_—FEHELAR -BEEMS -
AEB s BEEEEBRBE_Z_—F
TZA=+—RILFEHFH31,700,000/%8
TZBRBEREERFN (ZE T F :
10,700,000 7T ) °
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Sales and Marketing of Digital Assets

The Group commenced the sales and marketing of digital
assets business in December 2021. As disclosed in the
Company's announcement dated 28 December 2021, a joint
venture was formed and has made plans with regard to,
including but not limited to, the business of sales and
marketing of digital products of Tencent with an expectation to
obtain exclusive sales rights from digital product distributors of
Tencent. The digital products of Tencent range from Tencent
Games, QQ, video and music. During the period, the Group
recorded a GMV of approximately HK$1.3 million, represented
by the gross amount of digital assets sold to its customers.

The Group acts as an agent in the relevant transactions.

Healthcare Products (discontinued operation)

On 24 December 2021, the Group completed the disposal of
the healthcare business. As disclosed in the Company's
announcement dated 24 July 2020, a joint venture was
established to carry on and conduct the business of relevant
commercial application of an invention (the “Invention”). The
Invention is in relation to a formula for a dietary supplement
for composition and methods for treating COVID-19. With the
mass production of the vaccines combating COVID-19 are
rapidly applied around the globe, there has been a significant
impact on the business of the Group's healthcare business
which leads to a drastic drop in the revenue and drastic
increase in the financial loss from the financial year 2020 to
2021. Taking into account of the financial performance and
the net deficit, the business and operation status of the
healthcare business, the management of the Company is not
optimistic about the business and its prospects of the
healthcare business. As such, the Directors believe that the
disposal represents a good opportunity for the Group to
realise its investments in the healthcare business and to avoid

further losses.
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Unallocated administrative costs

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the unallocated
administrative costs amounted to approximately HK$38.4
million as compared with approximately HK$50.2 million for
the same period last year, which mainly included the
unallocated corporate operating expenses. The decrease in the
unallocated administrative costs of approximately HK$11.8
million in 2021 was mainly attributable to the decrease in net

intra-group loan expense.

Income tax expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recognized
an income tax expense of approximately HK$10.9 million
(2020: income tax expense of HK$1.6 million) which included
current tax expense of approximately HK$5.3 million (2020:
HK$2.2 million) and deferred tax expense of approximately
HK$5.6 million (2020: deferred tax credit of HK$0.6 million).
The current tax expense was made for the provision of Hong
Kong Profits Tax charge in relation to the profitability
generated from the brokerage and financing businesses. The
deferred tax expense was recognised mainly in relation to the
convertible bonds issued by the Company and unrealised gain
on financial assets held for trading for the proprietary trading

business.

Finance costs

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the finance costs of
the Group amounted to approximately HK$2.3 million (2020:
HK$2.8 million), out of which approximately HK$1.4 million
(2020: HK$2.4 million) was incurred pursuant to the effective
interest expense of convertible bonds issued by the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2021, together with
some finance costs incurred in relation to the Group's
brokerage and financing businesses and interest expenses on

lease liabilities.

RO EATHR A
HE-_T-_—F+-_A=+—HLEFE X
A EEATBUK 2 49 £38,400,00078 7T M & F
7] HA Al £ 550,200,000 70 * EBBEXRD
FC¥CERY T —F2RPEITR
FAR D 4911,800,0008 78 © F BRAEE
RRAREZERRAIZRD -

M x
HE_T-_—F+_A=+—HLEFE XK
& B # RSB X £910,900,000% 7T (=
T_TF : FRHHX1,600,0008 ) &
H B 3% B ER A T8 7 52 495,300,000 7T (=&

T4 2,200,000 70) RIELER ERA L4
5,600,000;%m(:§:;¢ DR IEE R
600,000/ 7T) - BNEAR T B 2 Th 7 L 45 42
RREEBESRAMIEL 2 BEFEH
XX B REBBERI D EZRA QA
FBTARRESFREEEBEXBLHEE
B EE 2 AR R
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Headcount and employee information

As at 31 December 2021, the Group employed a total of 69
employees (31 December 2020: 64), which excluded 15 self-
employed account executives for brokerage services (31
December 2020: 15), and 67 and 2 were located in Hong
Kong and the PRC respectively (31 December 2020: 62 and
2 were located in Hong Kong and the USA respectively).
Salaries and staff benefit costs (including the Directors’
emoluments) and staff commission amounted to
approximately HK$36.4 million and HK$3.1 million
respectively for the year ended 31 December 2021 as
compared with approximately HK$41.6 million and HK$3.0
million respectively for the same period last year. The
decrease in the salaries and staff benefits costs of
approximately HK$5.2 million in 2021 was mainly attributable
to no recognition of equity-settled share option expense

during the vyear.

The Group’s employees are selected, remunerated and
promoted based on their performance and qualifications. In
addition to basic salaries and participation in Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme, the Group also provides medical
coverage, sales commission, discretionary and performance
related bonus, discretionary share options and share awards to
its employees. Meanwhile, employees are provided or funded
to attend training and development programs which are

relevant to their works.

Liquidity and financial resources/capital structure

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group financed
its business operations and investments with internal
resources, cash revenue generated from operating activities,

convertible bonds and margin financing.
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The Group adopts a prudent treasury policy. As at 31
December 2021, bank balances and cash were denominated
in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi as to approximately
HK$66.7 million and HK$7.8 million, respectively. The Group
intends to maintain minimum exposure to foreign exchange
risks and those Renminbi is mainly for the PRC's operation
need. All the bank balances and cash were put in saving
deposits and current accounts as at 31 December 2021.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group obtained margin
financing facilities from certain brokerage firms in the amount
of approximately HK$20.1 million and margin loans obtained
amounted to approximately HK$15.3 million. As at 31
December 2020, the Group did not hold any margin financing

facilities.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group did not hold
any banking facilities.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's bank balances and
cash, net current assets and shareholders’ equity (other than
clients’ segregated accounts) amounted to approximately
HK$74.5 million (31 December 2020: HK$64.2 million),
HK$890.7 million (31 December 2020: HK$788.6 million)
and HK$926.9 million (31 December 2020: HK$838.7
million) respectively, representing an increase of about 16%,
an increase of 13% and an increase of 11% respectively as
compared with that of 31 December 2020. Current ratio,
expressed as current assets over current liabilities, remained
robust at about 17 times as at 31 December 2021 (31
December 2020: 10 times). These showed that the Group
still maintained a solid financial position as at 31 December
2021.

As at 31 December 2021, the total numbers of issued
ordinary shares of the Company were 2,078,601,598 (31

December 2020: 1,705,051,598).
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Placing of new shares under general mandate

On 27 July 2021, the Company successfully completed the
placing of 341,150,000 new shares of the Company at issue
price of HK$0.205 per share through Anli Securities Limited as
the placing agent (the “2021 Share Placing”). The
341,150,000 placing shares represent (i) approximately
19.81% of the aggregated number of the Company's issued
shares immediately before the completion; and (ii)
approximately 16.54% of the aggregated number of the
Company's issued shares as enlarged by the allotment and
issue of the 341,150,000 placing shares. The gross and net
proceed of the placing amounted to approximately HK$69.9
million and HK$68.8 million, respectively. Further details of

the placing are set out in the Company's announcements

dated 2 July 2021 and 27 July 2021.

The net proceeds from 2021 Share Placing were used as

follows:

BE-REEREHRHG
RZZEZ—FtAZ++tH XRAIEBRL
BEEFAERAMEREERE  KINEER
0.205# 7T 2 E1TB T A BL &34 1,150,000
HRH([—E- —ERHEE]) -
341,150,000 ic & &9 1B E R E # T K
AIARRIEEITRG B EA19.81% + (i)
4R 2% [z %% 77341,150,0008% B & % 19 1M 3%
RZARREEBHITRD L EH16.54% ° P
& P15 SRIE 4250 R 8 5 711 8969,900,0007%
7T %.68,800,000% 7T © B AL & 2 #E — £ &
BERARRASHA-_TE-_—F+tA-HE
TEC—FLAF+ERZAH

—E - FRMES ZAEFRIEFES RN
T

Expected
Actual use of Remaining timeline for
proceeds up to balance of utilizing the
Intended use 31 December utilized net  unutilized net
Period under review Purpose of usage of proceed 2021 proceeds proceeds
Bz
—B--F AEA
+T=ZR=t-H EEA RERELZ
= /& 57 8 Rz REpALE ERDALE FERERE RAYHARE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEL FHET FHET
Since completion of the 2021 Provision of margin loans 15,000 15,000 - N/A
Share Placing on 27 July REREBELER TEn
2021 up to and including Money lending business 15,000 15,000 - N/A
31 December 2021 WEXH TEH
BE-E-—FROHEKE General working capital 20,000 20,000 - N/A
RZZ-—FtA-t+tH —REEES TER
THREEZZEZ—F+-F Potential investment 18,800 18,800 - N/A
=+—-B(BEZA) opportunities TER
BREREKS
68,800 68,800 -
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Use of proceeds of previous fund-raising

The net proceeds from the share placing completed on 25
August 2020 (the “2020 Share Placing”) were used as

follows:

Period under review

BB

Since completion of the 2020
Share Placing up to and
including 31 December 2021

B-E_ZFRNEE KL

BT+ ZA
=t—-R(BEZRA) L

BEREZRE

BT

SREFHABR
RZTE-_FEFENA-_+HRHERZRHEES
([ZE-_ZFRHEES]) ZERIBFES

Actual use of Remaining
proceeds up to balance of
Intended use 31 December utilized net
Purpose of usage of proceed 2021 proceeds
Bz
—E--F
+=A=t+-H EEA
R# REpAtE ERDHALE FHEBRERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT TET
Operating expenses 10,000 10,000 -
BER%
Provision of margin loans 11,200 11,200 -
RERESER
Money lending business 12,000 12,000 -
MEXTH
In relation to the joint venture 15,000 15,000 -
agreement as disclosed in
the Company's
announcement dated
24 July 2020
BREEHE(RARTF
HER-Z_TF
tAZTEBEZ R
REE)
48,200 48,200 -

Expected
timeline for
utilizing the

unutilized net

proceeds

A
FrEMEZ
BABRKE

N/A
TEH
N/A
il
N/A
TEM
N/A
TEM
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The net proceeds from the convertible bonds placing

completed on 6 November 2020 (the “Convertible Bonds

Placing”) were used as follows:

Period under review

EESE

Since completion of the Convertible

Bonds Placing up to and including

31 December 2021
ETAREALERKEE

ZEI-ETZA=t-H

(B#EZA) L

Purpose of usage

Rz

Provision of margin loans

RERELEN

Money lending business

HEZH

In relation to the joint venture
agreement as disclosed in the
Company's announcement
dated 24 July 2020

ERAERE (RARTRHA
“ECRELACTMAY
RMERRE)
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R-Z-TF+—ARNATRZAIBRKRES

& ((AIRRERFRE]) 2B HRIBEFRE
BAWMT
Reclassified
pursuant to
change in use
of proceed as
disclosed in the
Company's Expected
Actual use of  announcement Remaining  timeline for
proceeds up to dated balance of utilizing the
Intended use of 31 December 24 December utilized net  unutilized net
proceed 2021 2021 proceeds proceeds
REAREH
A2
tZA=tEA
BE 2OMAEE
“RC-F mEAFE ABA
tZR=t-B RERBHKZ 28A FigREL
ReBReE ERBRALE ENINEEE FENEHE REDARE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TERL TEL
11,200 11,200 - - N/A
AR
24,000 24,000 - - N/A
AR
15,000 5100 9,900 - N/A
TER
50,2200 40300 9,900 -




VALUE CONVERGENCE HOLDINGS LIMITED ERZRERA A
Annual Report 2021 &£}

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EHEEsTisi RO

Pursuant to the Company’s announcement dated 24
December 2021, following the disposal of the healthcare
business, approximately HK$9.9 million of the above
unutilized proceeds can no longer be used for such purpose.
The Board resolved to change the use of such proceeds to
general working capital for operating expenses of the
Company including but not limited to rental and salary

expenses. Details of the changed use of proceeds were as

follows:
Intended use of
Period under review Purpose of usage proceed
EEHE Rz BREgREH
HK$'000
TAT
Since the change in use of Operating expenses 9,900

proceeds from 24 December &M%
2021 up to and including 31
December 2021

B-F--%1-A
ZTNHEERAERE
RpRE_Z-—F
+ZA=+-H
(BFEZA) I

BEARNABAHE - T -_—F+_-A =+
Bz HEBREREERKE LKD)
A FT 15 5K TE 99,900,000 T B A B 1R B #
AgEA EFGCEARZEMEREZ
AR REEEAS  UAXNEARARLE
X BEETEAESRTMHAS - B4
ERABERERRZFREET

Expected
Actual use of Remaining timeline for
proceeds up to balance of utilizing the
31 December utilized net  unutilized net
2021 proceeds proceeds
Bz
—B--F ABA
+=B=t-H E8A FRERELZ
ERGALE FERERE RUDHARE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET
9,900 - N/A
TEm
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Charges on group assets

As at 31 December 2021, trading securities with fair value of
approximately HK$106.4 million were pledged with certain
brokerage firms to obtain margin financing. As at 31

December 2020, the Group did not charge any of its assets.

Foreign exchange exposure

It is the Group's policy for all operating entities to use
corresponding local currency as much as possible so as to
minimize exchange related risks. For the year ended 31
December 2021, majority of the Group's principal businesses
were conducted and recorded in Hong Kong dollars with the
growing digital assets business in the PRC. Impact from foreign
exchange exposure mainly Renminbi was thus immaterial and
no hedging against foreign currency exposure had been
necessary. In view of the operational needs, the Group will
continue to monitor the foreign currency exposure from time
to time and take necessary action to minimise the exchange

related risks.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, the Group

did not have any significant contingent liabilities.

Save as the legal actions taken by the Group as mentioned in
the section “Brokerage and Financing” above, so far as known
to the Directors, there was no other litigation or claim of
material importance in which the Group is engaged or pending

or which was threatened against the Group.

Gearing ratio

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's gearing ratio,
expressed as total borrowings (being the margin loans, lease
liabilities and liability portion of convertible bonds) over
shareholders' equity, was approximately 4% (31 December
2020: 3%).
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Significant investments held, their performance and
future prospects

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group's held the

following significant investments:

Financial assets held-for-trading

Included in the financial assets held-for-trading as at 31
December 2021 was the Group's investment in 50,398,000
shares or approximately 9.15% of IBO Technology Company
Limited (Stock Code: 2708) (“IBO Technology”) with fair value
of approximately HK$125.5 million, which amounts to
approximately 13% of the Group's total assets. IBO
Technology and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in sale
of Radio Frequency ldentification (“RFID") equipment and
electronic products (collectively the “intelligent terminal
products”), provision of system maintenance services,
development of customised softwares and provision of
coordination, management and installation services of smart
cities. The investment cost was approximately HK$83.0
million. During the year ended 31 December 2021, its share
price has increased by approximately 13% and the Group
recorded unrealized gain of approximately HK$42.5 million,
and no dividend was received from it. The Group was
optimistic about the future prospect of IBO Technology's RFID
equipment and smart terminal products under the gradual
development of 5G environment, and intends to hold the

investment with an aim for long term capital growth.

Also included in the financial assets held-for-trading as at 31
December 2021 was the Group's investment in 8,565,000
shares or approximately 1.52% of HG Semiconductor Limited
(Stock Code: 6908) (“HG Semiconductor”) with fair value of
approximately HK$62.4 million, which amounts to
approximately 7% of the Group’s total assets. HG
Semiconductor and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in
the design, development, manufacturing, subcontracting
service and sales of light-emitting diode (“LED") beads and
LED lighting products in the PRC. The investment cost was
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approximately HK$62.7 million. During the period from 25
February 2021 (the date immediately preceding the Group's
first purchase) to 31 December 2021, its share price has
increased shapely by approximately 573% and the Group
recorded unrealized gain of approximately HK$226,000, and
no dividend was received from it. As disclosed in HG
Semiconductor’'s announcements dated 25 February 2021, 29
April 2021 and 7 May 2021, it completed the acquisition of a
target group engaging in the research and development of fast
charging solutions for battery system mainly for use by electric
vehicles. The Group is fully aware of the development and
widespread adoption of electric vehicles as one of the
solutions for environment protection and intends to hold its

investment in HG Semiconductor for long term capital growth.

Material acquisitions and disposal of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures

Save as transactions disclosed above in this Management
Discussion and Analysis section, during the year ended 31
December 2021, the Group's did not have any material
acquisition or disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint

ventures.

Future plans for material investments or capital
assets and their expected sources of funding in the
coming year

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no other known
plans with regard to material investments or capital assets and

their expected sources of funding in the coming year.

Meanwhile, as at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have
any significant commitments contracted but not provided for

in respect of purchase of property and equipment.

Significant events after the reporting period

As of the date of this Annual Report, there was no significant

event affecting the Group after 31 December 2021.
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DIRECTORS
FU Yiu Man, Peter
Chairman & Executive Director

Mr. Fu, aged 66, joined the Group in July 2016 and has been
appointed as the Chairman and Executive Director in March
2018. Currently, Mr. Fu is the chairman of the Executive
Committee and a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. Fu was an independent non-executive director
of Beijing North Star Company Limited (Stock Code: 588), a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong, from May 2015 to May 2021.

Mr. Fu obtained a bachelor's degree from Wharton Business
School of the University of Pennsylvania in the U.S. He has
served in various senior positions in BNP Paribas, Peregrine,
Baring Securities, UBS, Citigroup Inc., CCB International and
CCB International (China), etc. He served as the vice-president
of GCL-Poly Group since November 2013. For the period from
March 2014 to June 2016, Mr. Fu had been re-designated as
the vice-president of GCL Oil and Gas Company. He was
responsible for overseas finance and M&A business for the oil
and gas projects of the company. Mr. Fu has almost 40 years

of experience in financial management, securities business.

LIN Hoi Kwong, Aristo

Executive Director

Mr. Lin, aged 51, joined the Group in January 2014 and has
been appointed as the Executive Director in April 2015.
Currently, he is a member of the Executive Committee and a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Lin is the
Honorary Secretary of Hong Kong Skating Union Limited (the
associate member of the Sports Federation and Olympic
Committee of Hong Kong) and the Honorary President of the

Building Healthy Kowloon City Association.
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Mr. Lin holds a Bachelor Degree in Business Administration
and a Master of Science Degree in Marketing. The Institute of
Crisis and Risk Management awarded Mr. Lin as Fellow of
Certified Risk Planner in November 2019. He has over 20
years' experience in corporate development and business

strategy.

LI Cindy Chen
Executive Director

Ms. Li, aged 52, has been appointed as the Executive Director
in September 2021. Ms. Li graduated from the Shenzhen
University, majored in Chinese Literature, in 1989 and
obtained International MBA from Shanghai University of
Finance and Economics and MBA from Webster University in
1999. Ms. Li had held senior position in a variety of
companies including Shenzhen China Motion Telecom,
Shenzhen Hongbo Communication Co. Ltd.,, Newman &
Associate Consulting Ltd.,, Wuhan Shun Qi Investment Ltd.,
Faye Consulting Ltd. and Shenzhen Han Hua Investment Co.
Ltd. Ms. Li has extensive experience in business operations
and has extensive business connections and industry
resources in communications industry, internet technology,

internet financial technology and new payment industry.

BERAEREIREREE LB LMIZEEE
BEEM IR -_F-AF+-AEBERE
R EBE R TRREREIE - RREE
EREEGRETEAHEBE - TF&R% -

zE

HITES

LT 52 RZE-Z—FNAEZTA
BITESE - FRTR—NANANFEERRY
KRB FEFEXE  R—ANANNERE L
B ERBHBE I ERET REBEZE
FRABIHERBETS2MUEE T ER
ZRAFPNESE - BFERIELBEE R
NEEBEEEBR DT - Newman &
Associate Consulting Ltd. ~ BUZEHE R E H
BR A & * Faye Consulting Ltd.J& /R Y % 2
BREERAR - FHRTHEBELENLEEE
KB ERETE EBMANK EHAS
BB RSN FRETERELESENG
BARMITEEIR °



VALUE CONVERGENCE HOLDINGS LIMITED EZRZRER A 7

Annual Report 2021 &£}

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT EE N SR EHEE ZEBE

ZHANG Nu
Executive Director

Mr. Zhang, aged 40, obtained bachelor degree of International
Business and Trade from Si Chuan Normal University majored
in 2004 and master degree in Software Engineering from East
China Normal University in 2016. Mr. Zhang had held senior
position in a variety of companies including but not limited to
sales director of South China of Shenzhen Digital China Co.,
Limited, general manager of Shenzhen Lan Yu Bo Chuang
Technology Co., Limited, vice president of Fujian Jiu Ze Culture
and Broadcasting Co., Limited and vice president of Beijing
E-Sports Culture & Technology Co., Limited. Mr. Zhang has
over 10 years' experience in sales management of the
Mainland and overseas well-known brands’ electronic
consumer products and internet related products, and is
familiar with channel sales and major customers’

development.

WONG Chung Kin, Quentin
Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Wong, aged 50, joined the Group as Independent Non-
executive Director in March 2012. Mr. Wong is the chairman
of the Audit Committee and a member of the Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company.
He has set up his own practice, Quentin Wong & Co. Certified
Public Accountants (Practising) since 1 January 2005, and set
up Quentin Wong & Co. CPA Limited in 2020. Mr. Wong was
an independent non-executive director of China Trends
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8171), a company listed on
the GEM of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong, from
November 2016 to August 2021 and Creative Enterprises
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 3992), a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong, from
November 2018 to October 2021.

RE

BTES

RAEL - 4058 0 R _ZTMFEGE T E
AREFAREZFELBLN RN T —RFRF
ERMBABYHMTRELRM - RELEE
RERRBHESE - 2FRETRRFIIE
MEBRXEARAFEDREBEEAE R
TEFTBAMKARIRBLE  BMZE
XAEEEAR AR BIAE M REH R
RERRAREEE -RELFBEEBTFR
Wi R FINBmE 2 ETFHE MR BBE
HEAERETHEEE KR YAXRE
HERTEEPME -

ENE
BIYFHTES
=HAE S0 RZE—ZZF - ANMBEAE
BHEEBFRATEST - BXERARAE
REEGXTRUKREZESRTMZER
KB - BR_ZTTRF—A—HAIRFNE
HESHMELH YR T -_TFKIE
MBEMEEMERDF c EAEELTRZ
%—ﬁ¢+—ﬁif$:—iﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ
BRACEMEM AR FRBEERAERA
(Hﬁ%fkﬁrs171)&%:=—;—)\¢+—ﬁ
BT F+RAEABEBRAERLT
RIEIRIERBR A A (RER : 3992)
BYUIFHITES -

N

/N
Z

41



42

VALUE CONVERGENCE HOLDINGS LIMITED EZRIZRER AT

Annual Report 2021 &£}

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT EE N SR EHEEZEBFE

Mr. Wong is a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, The Taxation Institute of Hong
Kong, Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and The
Society of Chinese Accountants & Auditors. Meanwhile, he is a
member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
& Wales. Mr. Wong holds a bachelor of Arts degree in
Accounting and Financial Management from University of
Essex and a master degree of Science in Internal Auditing and
Management from The City University, London. He has over
15 years working experience in audit and accounting gained
from a sizeable international firm and has had over 10 years

of practicing experience.

WONG Kam Choi, Kerry, MH
Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Wong, aged 55, joined the Group as Independent Non-
executive Director in May 2013. Mr. Wong is the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company.
Currently, Mr. Wong is a substantial shareholder and a director
of a design and printing company. He has over 20 vyears'
experience in design and printing industry. Mr. Wong was the
executive director and chairman of the board of China Fortune
Financial Group Limited (Stock Code: 290), a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong, from
November 2015 to January 2017.

Mr. Wong has been dedicating to wide range of community
services in Hong Kong and Southern China. He is the
chairman/vice chairman of a number of non-profit
organizations and was the director of Sik Sik Yuen and the
committee member of Chinese People's Political Consultative

Conference of Guangzhou.
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SIU Miu Man, Simon, MH
Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Siu, aged 64, joined the Group as Independent Non-
executive Director in October 2016. He is the chairman of the
Nomination Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company.
Currently, Mr. Siu is an independent non-executive director of
Excalibur Global Financial Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
8350), a company listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong. He is also a director of DBG Technology Co.,
Ltd. (Stock Code: 300735), a company listed on Shenzhen
Stock Exchange. Meanwhile, Mr. Siu is also a director of a
consultancy firm and engineering firm. He was an
independent non-executive director, and later on re-
designated as an executive director, of Asia Energy Logistics
Group Limited (Stock Code: 351), from August 2016 to
March 2018 and from March 2018 to November 2018,
respectively. Mr. Siu was also an independent non-executive
director of Sheung Yue Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
1633) from October 2016 to January 2019. Both companies
above are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He
had served in many public listed companies as senior
management and has over 25 years of managerial experience
in general management, commerce, banking, finance, real

estate development and construction business.

Mr. Siu is actively participating in public affairs and charitable
activities. He is the vice president of the Association of Hong
Kong Professionals and the Hong Kong Real Property
Federation, the honorary president of the Hong Kong Kowloon
City Industry and Commerce Association and the chairman of

the Building Healthy Kowloon City Association.
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Mr. Siu graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
with a Polytechnic Associateship in Building Technology and
Management and a Master of Science in Electronic
Commerce. He is a corporate member of the Hong Kong
Institution of Engineers, Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors
(General Practice Stream), Royal Institution of Chartered
Surveyors (General Practice Stream) and Chartered Institute of
Arbitrator. Mr. Siu is an Authorized Person under the Hong
Kong Building Ordinance of the Government of the HKSAR. He
is also a Registered Professional Engineer (Building Stream)
and a Registered Professional Surveyor (General Practice

Stream).

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
LAI Yick Fung
Chief Financial Officer & Company Secretary

Mr. Lai, aged 51, joined the Group as chief financial officer in
April 2018. He has been appointed as the Company Secretary
of the Company in May 2018. Mr. Lai obtained a Master of
Science Degree in Financial Management in the University of
London and a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Accountancy in The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is an associate member
of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a
fellow member of The Chartered Governance Institute in the
United Kingdom and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries. Mr. Lai was an executive director of China Eco-
Farming Limited (Stock Code: 8166), company listed on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong, from July 2015 to
March 2018. Mr. Lai had worked for an international
accounting firm and a number of listed companies in Hong
Kong and the United States as senior management and has
over 20 years of experience in auditing, accounting, financial

management and company secretarial practice.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

Value Convergence Holdings Limited (the “Company”),
together with its subsidiaries (the “Group”), is pleased to
present this Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the
“Report”) to provide an overview of the Group's management
of significant issues affecting the operation, including
environmental, social and governance issues. This Report is
prepared by the Group with the professional assistance of
APAC Compliance Consultancy and Internal Control Services
Limited.

PREPARATION BASIS AND SCOPE

This Report is prepared in accordance with Appendix 27 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the
“Listing Rules”) — "Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide” and has complied with “comply or explain”

provision in the Listing Rules.

This Report summarises the performance of the Group in
respect of corporate environmental and social responsibility
covering its operating activities which are considered as
material by the Group — (i) provision of financial services
comprising securities, futures and options brokering and
dealing, financing services, corporate finance and other
advisory services, asset management and insurance brokerage
in Hong Kong; (ii) proprietary trading in Hong Kong; and (iii)
sales and marketing of digital assets. With the aim to optimise
and improve the disclosure requirements in the Report, the
Group has taken initiative to formulate policies, record relevant
data as well as implement and monitor measures. This Report
shall be published both in Chinese and English on the website
of Stock Exchange. Should there be any discrepancy between
the Chinese and the English versions, the English version shall

prevail.
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REPORTING PERIOD

This Report demonstrates our sustainability initiatives during
the reporting period from 1 January 2021 to 31 December
2021.

CONTACT INFORMATION

The Group welcomes your feedback on this Report for our
sustainability initiatives. Please contact us by email to

info@vcgroup.com.hk.

INTRODUCTION

The Group is an established financial services group
committed to delivering premier financial services and
products that fulfill various investment and wealth
management needs of clients in the Greater China region. The
core businesses of the Group are provision of financial
services comprising securities, futures and options brokering
and dealing, financing services, corporate finance and other
advisory services, asset management and insurance brokerage;
proprietary trading; and sales and marketing of digital assets.
The sales and distribution of healthcare products business

were disposed in year 2021.

Sustainable development is an integral part of the Group's
business strategy in order to achieve business excellence and
enhance capabilities for long-term competitiveness. The Group
is committed to maintaining its operation in a responsible and
value-optimising manner for stakeholders and community by
incorporating environmental, social and governance
considerations into its operation. The sustainability strategy of
the Group is based on the compliance with the applicable
legal requirements, principle of sustainability and opinions
from stakeholders. The Group has established and
implemented various policies to manage and monitor the risks
related to the environment, employment, operating practices
and community. Details of the management approaches to
sustainable development of different areas are illustrated in

this Report.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group understands the success of the Group's business
depends on the support from its key stakeholders, who (a)
have invested or will invest in the Group; (b) have the ability
to influence the outcomes within the Group; and (c) are
interested in or affected by or have the potential to be
affected by the impact of the Group’s activities, products,
services and relationships. It allows the Group to understand
risks and opportunities. The Group will continue to ensure
effective communication and maintain good relationship with

each of its key stakeholders.

Stakeholders are prioritised from time to time in view of the
Group's roles and duties, strategic plan and business
initiatives. The Group engages with its stakeholders to develop
mutually beneficial relationships and to seek their views on its
business proposals and initiatives as well as to promote
sustainability in the marketplace, workplace, community and

environment.

The Group acknowledges the importance of intelligence
gained from the stakeholders’ insights, inquiries and
continuous interest in the Group's business activities. The
Group has identified key stakeholders that are important to
our business and established various channels for
communication. The following table provides an overview of
the Group's key stakeholders, and various platforms and
methods of communication are used to reach, listen and

respond.

KHhESR
AEEHAAASERNELEEENEE
ROENIF ZERNELBQER
KERERAEENAL: O)BFENF
AEEEHHEROAL  ROUAEENE
BoEm RERBEESEFENSAZEY
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HERREZIESNHEANEBRRFR
WFREIR o
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Key Stakeholders

FEHGE
Government

B

Expectations
iR
«  Compliance with the laws and
regulations
BPEDI KRB
. Proper tax payment
EEMHH
+  Community participation
flm 2

Engagement Channels

SERE

«  On-site inspections and checks
ERERE

. Research and discussion

through work conferences,
work reports preparation and
submission for approval
FEIEg® THERSHEER
e 22 A8 B U BDPT | HE A

EIT T KA R

«  Annual and interim reports
FERPE®RE

«  Website
Ak

Shareholders and Investors

BRERREESE

+  Return on the investment
K& [

+  Information disclosure and
transparency
BABERBRE

+  Protection of interests and fair
treatment of shareholders
RERRER R A FHEFRE

+  Annual general meeting and
other shareholder meetings

BERBFERE RHEAMBERAK

PN

(Sr)

=

«  Annual and interim reports,
announcements
FERFEHRERAM

+  Meeting with investors and
analysts, when necessary
REFEREREERIN
fhem

Employees

’E

«  Protection of the rights and
interests
IREERER e Fl 2

«  Career development opportunities
EXURES

+  Self-actualisation
BRER

+  Health and safety
BERLZZ

«  Training, seminars, briefing
sessions
| I - A

. Intranet and emails

Bt 48 70 B
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Key Stakeholders

Expectations

Engagement Channels

TEHNE HE BHERE
Customers «  Safe and high-quality services «  Website
®F ZERkEEE8R% GEN
«  Stable relationship «  Annual and interim reports
1B E R FERPHRE
« Information transparency «  Email and customer service
BHBERE hotline
+  Business integrity and conduct EBREPREAK
M B
«  Data privacy
BHALE
Suppliers and Partners «  Long-term partnership +  Business meetings, supplier
HERR B REIRZ IR conferences, phone calls,
. Honest cooperation interviews
HBAE ¥ves HEREHKSE

Fairness and openness

NS SRVNE

Information resources sharing
AMtE

Risk reduction

& AEC L B

BEBRE TR
Regular meeting
THEem

Review and assessment

i M REh

Financial Institution

Compliance with the laws and

Information disclosure

Communication with media
H{EEE R

SEBEE regulations B R
PR B AR 51 «  Reports
+  Information disclosure mE
B E
Media «  Transparent information «  Websites of the Company and
i BHBERE the Stock Exchange

A A) N B AR P A U

Public and Communities
DNBATRHEE

Career opportunities
EHE

Community involvement
HES

Environmental responsibilities
REAME

Social responsibilities

HEEME

Volunteering

5T

Charity and social investment
RENHERE

Annual and interim reports

FERPHRSE

49



50

VALUE CONVERGENCE HOLDINGS LIMITED EZRIZRER AT

Annual Report 2021 &£}

ENVIRONMENT, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT IRiE - & RESRE

Through general communication with stakeholders, the Group
understands the expectations and concerns from stakeholders.
The feedbacks obtained allow the Group to make more
informed decisions, and to better assess and manage the

resulting impact.

The Group has adopted the principle of materiality in the ESG
reporting by understanding the key ESG issues that are
important to the business of the Group. All the key ESG issues
and key performance indicators (KPIs) are reported in the
Report according to recommendations of the ESG Reporting
Guide (Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules) and the GRI

Guidelines.

The Group has evaluated the materiality and importance in

ESG aspects through the following steps:

Step 1: Identification — Industry Benchmarking

+  Relevant ESG areas were identified through the review of
relevant ESG reports of the local and international

industry peers.

«  The materiality of each ESG areas was determined based
on the important of each ESG area to the Group through
internal discussion of the management and the
recommendation of ESG Reporting Guide (Appendix 27
of the Listing Rules).

Step 2: Prioritization — Stakeholder Engagement
«  The Group discussed with key stakeholders on key ESG
areas identified above to ensure all the key aspects were

covered.

BREBSNELETERNER AEETHY
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BEENEEMERBEAME

BB -SETEREE
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HERERWE  BAIERAERE &
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RERHEHES (EMRAME -1+ 1)
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Step 3: Validation — Determining Material Issues

« Based on the discussion with key stakeholders and
internal discussion among the management, the Group's
management ensured that all the key and material ESG
areas, which were important to the business
development, were reported and in compliance with ESG
Reporting Guide.

As a result of this process carried out in 2021, those

important ESG areas to the Group were discussed in this

Report.

ESG GOVERNANCE
Board'’s oversight of ESG issues

Board'’s overall vision and strategy in managing ESG
issues

The board of directors ("Board”) has a primary role in
overseeing the management of the Group's sustainability
issues. During the year, the Board and the ESG Committee
spent significant time in evaluating the impact of ESG-related
risks on our operation and formulating relevant policy in
dealing with the risks. The oversight of the Board is to ensure
the management to have all the right tools and resources to
oversee the ESG issues in the context of strategy and long-

term value creation.

ESG Committee

To demonstrate our commitment to transparency and
accountability, our Group has established an ESG Committee,
which has clear terms of reference that set out the powers
delegated to it by the Board. We highly value the opinions of
each stakeholder and treat them as the cornerstone for the
development of the Group. During the reporting period, the
ESG Committee consisted of an Executive Director, Chief
Financial Officer, Head of Legal and Compliance and Head of

Human Resources and Administration.

s HEREGRE

SR BRA-BEETEERE

- REERIZHNENGSHEEEENA
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BERMEBEENERLEERE
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The ESG Committee is primarily responsible for reviewing and
supervising the ESG process, and risk management of the
Group. Different ESG issues are reviewed by the ESG
Committee at the meetings, which holds annually. During the
reporting period, the ESG Committee and the management

reviewed the ESG governance and different ESG issues.

Board's ESG management approach and strategy for
material ESG-related issues

In order to better understand the opinions and expectations of
different stakeholders on our ESG issues, materiality
assessment is conducted each year. We ensure various
platforms and channels of communication are used to reach,
listen and respond to our key stakeholders. Through general
communication with stakeholders, the Group understands the
expectations and concerns from stakeholders. The feedbacks
obtained allow the Group to make more informed decisions,

and to better assess and manage the resulting impact.

The Group has evaluated the materiality and importance in
ESG aspects through the steps: (1) material ESG area
identification by industry benchmarking; (2) key ESG area
prioritization with stakeholder engagement; and (3) validation
and determining material ESG issues based on results of

communication among stakeholders and the management.

Hence, this can enhance understanding of their degree and
change of attention to each significant ESG issue, and can
enable us to more comprehensively plan our sustainable
development work in the future. Those important and material
ESG areas identified during our material assessment were

discussed in this Report.
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Board review progress against ESG-related goals and
targets

The progress of target implementation and the performance of
the goals and targets should be closely reviewed from time to
time. Rectification may be needed if the progress falls short of
expectation. Effective communication about the goals and
target process with key stakeholders such as employees is
essential, as this enables them to be engaged in the
implementation process, and to feel they are part of the

change that the company aspires to achieve.

Setting strategic goals for the coming three to five years
enables the Group to develop a realistic roadmap and focus

on results in achieving the visions.

Setting targets requires the ESG Committee to carefully
examine the attainability of the targets which should be
weighed against the company’s ambitions and goals. During

the year, our Group set targets on an absolute basis.

A. ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS

As a financial services provider and healthcare products
sale and distributor, the principal business activities of the
Group do not have significant impact on the environment
and natural resources. In spite of this, we are committed
to continuously improving the environmental
sustainability of its business by establishing relevant
emission reduction and energy saving initiatives to

manage its emissions and maintain green operation.

During the reporting period, the Group was not aware of
any specific laws and regulations that had significant
impact on the Group related to air and greenhouse gas
emissions, discharges into water and land, generation of

hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
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A1. EMISSIONS
Air Pollutant Emissions

Regarding the business nature of the Group, the amount
of air pollutant emissions is insignificant. The air
pollutants emitted by the Group are mainly generated
from the company vehicles. The increase in air pollutant
emissions in 2021 was mainly attributable to the more
frequent vehicle use resulting from the increase in
business operation during the year. Furthermore, the
Group targets to reduce the GHG emission by 5% by
2025.

The detail of air pollutant emissions of the Group during

the reporting period was as follows:

Type of air pollutants

Al. BERY

ZR5 R Y B

ERAEEYEBME RS LWHE
MBEE D AEBFHERZ RS2
MEBRAATRE - RBE-—F%
RSRAMBBEMEE AR AEES
B B M AN - BUE IR B N A T A
Moot AEBMBEER-_Z=-H
o B IS IB = BE HEE R K 5% -

A B9 B B 2 2 S R BB
BT

ERSRYER

Nitrogen oxides (NO,) Kg

REALP(NO) NIy 11.37 10.41
Sulphur dioxide (SO,) Kg

— &1L (SO,) NI 0.33 0.30
Particulate matter (PM) Kg

$)F KL (PM) NI 0.84 0.77

Greenhouse Gas (“GHG") Emissions BERB(BERED K

GHG is considered as one of the major contributors to
the climate change and global warming. The Group
recognises that climate change is gradually concerned by
the community as it affects our daily life and poses a risk
to its business. Hence, the Group is committed to
mitigating the effects of climate change and protecting

the health of employees.

BERBRESEXNRKREL R ERE

EMEBZRRZ — - AKEEHE - &
RREZCFERFNBEEFALEE

BREAE R - S 2 &R X 2 R
E o B AR BB R E R IR E R
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Regarding the GHG emissions of the Group, direct
emissions (scope 1) and indirect emissions (scope 2)
are mainly resulted from combustion of fuels in vehicles
and purchased electricity respectively. Giving the majority
of the GHG emissions of the Group come from energy
consumption, the Group tackles the carbon footprint by
lowering the energy consumption in our business

operations.

We place great emphasis on improving energy efficiency
and reducing energy consumption so as to reduce GHG
emissions. We have adopted energy saving initiatives
mentioned in the section “Use of Resources” of this

Report.

The Group continues to explore other business and
investment opportunities in the PRC in order to
strengthen the revenue base of the Group. Hence,
employees may be required to travel to the PRC on
business trips. We strive to reduce the GHG emissions
associated with business air travels and encouraging
employees to conduct video conferences when
practicable to reduce the number of required business air
travels. The increase in GHG emissions in 2021 was
mainly attributable to the more frequent vehicle use
resulting from the increase in business operation during
the year. Furthermore, the Group targets to reduce the
GHG emission by 5% by 2025.
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The detail of GHG emissions of the Group during the

reporting period was as follow:

Type of GHG emission

R = R B8 BF BOE R

AEBERRERA B EREENFE

mF :

Scope 1! tonnes of CO,-e 59.78 54.38
HE AW —EIREE

Scope 2? tonnes of CO,-e 64.48 64.66
#[E22 AP —ALREE

Total GHG emission tonnes of CO,-e 124.26 119.04
BEREEHNRE AE-F{BREE

GHG emission intensity tonnes of CO,-e/area in sq. ft. 0.012 0.011
BERBHREE RP—_EtHEE/ FHREE

Hazardous and Non-hazardous Wastes EENREEERY

The Group recognises the importance of waste reduction.
Waste management measures have been introduced to
minimize the amount of waste generated and the impact
on environment. Under its business operation nature, no

hazardous waste was generated during the reporting

period.

REBRABREBENERMN - HA25IA
BN BREERIELERZRDH
BERHRENTE BARMAXBLE
MEE  RBESHALEELERNAE
BEEY -

! Scope 1: Direct emission from sources that are owned or !

controlled by the Group.

2 Scope 2: Indirect emissions from the generation of 2

purchased electricity consumed by the Group.

FET : REAKEES SIEFHRR
M EE R -

HED: REALEEMERIIEE N
HEBRAOREEER -
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During the Group's operation, paper waste accounts for a
major part of the non-hazardous wastes generated by the
Group. We take initiative to reduce waste by
implementing different measures. Generally, we have
engaged qualified recycling companies to collect and
handle the waste in accordance to the Waste Disposal
Ordinance (Cap. 354) in Hong Kong and the Resource
Conservation and Recovery Act (Title 42 of the United
States Code). We endeavour to minimise paper
consumption during operation and strengthen the
environmental awareness of employees in order to
mitigate paper waste. For the USA office, in light of the
work from home policy implemented for the COVID-19
pandemic during the year, the USA office did not record
the waste data accordingly as the Group considered that

the waste amount was immaterial.

As such, we have introduced various paper reduction
measures. Reports such as annual reports and interim
reports, and stationeries such as envelopes, letterheads
and business cards delivered to the shareholders of the
Group are printed on environmental-friendly paper.
Besides, default double-sided printing is set on printers to
maximise paper usage. We also promote electronic
communication to reduce paper consumption and engage
paper recycling companies to collect waste paper for

recycling.
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In addition to paper waste, used computer consumables
and obsolete computer equipment account for the non-
hazardous waste during the Group’s operation. The used
computer consumables such as ink and toner cartridges
are collected and recycled by recycling companies. The
obsolete computer equipment is either donated to
charities or recycled by recycling companies. The amount
of non-hazardous waste generated in 2021 remained
relatively stable when compared with 2020 as the Group
strived for finding ways to manage the office waste
effectively during the year. Furthermore, the Group targets

to reduce the non-hazardous waste by 5% by 2025.

The detail of non-hazardous waste generated by the

Group during the reporting period was as follow:

Type of waste
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BREHAN NEELEELNESTESR
MMBERATNERERR REZEEK
R o BKERK 2% A i ERKOHR
mERBEKABKELRR - ZESHE
wEAGREAEERIALRAQFME
W-BERAEERFABNSHRERE
BWRNEBEEYM R E —E_—FE
ENBREEEVHER_T_TFAL
HERE -t AEENEERRZ
ZE_RFR A EEEEYRIES% °

AEBRRERRNEL 2 BZEEDH
BT

BEZEYWER

Non-hazardous waste generated tonnes

BEEEEY L7 2.1 2.1
Non-hazardous waste generated intensity tonnes/employee

BEBEYTE W, B & 0.03 0.03
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A2. USE OF RESOURCES A2. EREH

The Group places great emphasis on ensuring efficient
use of energy and resources. We aim to promote
resources saving by adopting green office practices and
motivating our employees to participate in resources

conservation activities.

Energy consumption

The energy consumption of the Group comes from
purchased electricity for premises operation and fuel
used by vehicles. In view of the scarcity of energy, the
Group has advocated various energy conservation
strategies. Computer and other electrical appliances are
switched off when they are not in use. Lights and air-
conditioners are turned off when leaving the offices after
work. We also encourage our employees to switched off
non-essential lights during lunch break. Besides,
employees are encouraged to maintain the temperature
of air-conditioners at an energy-efficient level of 25
degrees Celsius. The increase in total energy
consumption in 2021 was mainly attributable to the
more frequent vehicle use resulting from the increase in
business operation during the year. The Group targets to

reduce the energy consumption by 5% by 2025.

The detail of energy consumption of the Group during

the reporting period was as follow:

Type of energy

AEE+HEGRERERERRER
BB BBERAZERIEEL MM
BEESMERRELE  REHOE
R BREEAMBEFREBETFERR
TRERA I AR B BEIR o

BE R OH #E
AEEGERERIERBEXESMER
MINBE N RTEEBARE - ERE
B AEERESBEREREHOR
B o B M EMERREETEARE
TR THHMARAEREREER
ZEHERG - HAIMEERE N TRERRE
BMIETCLENER - wtoh - HAIEE
BEREARARFTNRBRB/EETA
BERAM K - R-F - —FRRAE
HEERMEEDARAFELELRD
o HEREREINAFTE N - bt
Sh o REEMBRRR-_F_AFHZ
Al 75 BE IR H FE 2 RUE 5% o

REBRHwE A2 BERBFEFBIT -

AE R Bl

Purchased electricity MWh

SNBE KB 90.82 91.07
Petrol MWh

D KL s 199.77 178.50
Total energy consumption MWh

BERABHER KR 290.59 269.57
Energy consumption intensity MWh/area in sq. ft.

B RH R & JEEBS 7 REE 0.028 0.026
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A3.

A4.

Water consumption

The business of the Group is operated in leased office
premises where the water supply is solely controlled by
the building management company. In this case, it is not
feasible for us to provide water consumption data as
there is no separate sub-meter to record the water
consumption data for offices in both Hong Kong and the
USA. The water consumption mainly comes from the
personal consumption of employees for their personal

hygiene and it is not significant to the Group's business.

THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

Regarding the business nature of the Group, the Group is
not aware of any significant impact of its business
activities on the environment and natural resources. With
the aforementioned green office practices implemented
to reduce air pollutants and GHG emissions, waste
generation and resources consumption, the Group strives
to enhance environmental sustainability and minimise the

impacts on the environment.

CLIMATE CHANGE
Governance

Our group addresses climate-related risks based on the
nature of the risk to our operations. The physical impacts
of climate change, including extreme weather events, or
damage to facilities have immediate operational impacts
and are treated as operational risks. Long-term
challenges, such as emerging ESG issues and climate-
related risks and opportunities, may be discussed by the

Group's ESG Committee.

Supported by our ESG Committee, our Board oversees
climate-related issues and risks regularly during board
meetings and ensures that they are incorporated into our

strategy.
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To ensure our Board to keep up with the latest trend of
climate-related issues, climate competence training will
be provided to ensure it has the necessary expertise and
skills to oversee the management of climate-related
issues. Our Board also seeks professional advice from
external experts when necessary to better support the

decision-making process.

Our ESG Committee provides effective governance for
integrating and addressing ESG issues, including climate
change, within our business. The ESG Committee is
responsible for approving operational emissions targets
for the Group and commissioning an ESG benchmarking,
as well as gap analysis exercise to identify gaps in both
disclosure and policy relative to the best practice
standards. Moreover, the ESG Committee works closely
with the Group's different operation departments, with an
aim to develop consistent and enhanced approaches on
addressing ESG risk issues and report to the

management.

Strategy

Climate change risk forms part of our overall risk profile
through its role in increasing the frequency and intensity
of certain diseases, and the health and mortality impacts
resulting from natural disasters. We assess the overall
level of risk by taking into consideration a range of
diverse risk factors across the many categories in our
services range. This diversity of risk is combined with our
business strategy and broad geographic footprint helps us
mitigate risk and provide protection against the impacts

of short-term climate change effects.
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Our products and services continue to provide protection
for people in our communities against weather and heat-
related disease. Besides, we continue to explore
opportunities to engage our business partners and
encourage them to develop climate resilience and reduce
their operational carbon footprint by taking into
consideration of different climate-related scenarios,
including a "2°C or lower scenario” through the following

steps:

Step 1: Set Future Images Assuming Climate
Change Effects

As climate change measures proceeds, there is a
possibility that the industry will be exposed to substantial
changes, such as stricter policies including the
introduction of and increases in carbon pricing, as well as
advances in technology and changes in customer

awareness.

In light of these climate change effects, based on the
International Energy Agency (“IEA") scenarios and others,
we developed multiple future images as the external
environment that will surround our Group. With regard to
the IEA scenarios, we put focus on the 2°C scenario
(2DS) and pictured future images in case where climate
change measures do not progress and where such

measures progress further “Beyond 2°C scenario”.

Step 2: Consider the Impacts

We considered the impacts on our Group for each of the
future images developed in Step 1. We believe that in
such a society, it will be possible to expand carbon

dioxide reduction effects.
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With regard to effects on raw material procurement and
production, introduction of and increases in carbon
pricing is anticipated in accordance with the global
advance of climate change measures, leading to the
possibility of higher raw material procurement and

production costs.

On the other hand, in the case where climate change
measures are not adequate throughout society,
production interruptions and supply chain disruptions are
likely to increase as a result of higher frequency and

intensification of natural disasters such as flooding.

Step 3: Respond to the Strategies

Our Group will begin promoting the reduction of non-
renewable energy in our daily operation. This strategy will
allow for flexible and strategic responses to each demand
for the regions where the emission factors of purchased
electricity consumptions are high. By promoting real
carbon emissions reductions throughout the world
through comprehensive energy-saving policies and
introduction of renewable energy, we are working to

achieve zero carbon emission in our business.

We minimize carbon emissions through comprehensive
energy-saving and introduction of renewable energy. With
respect to renewable energy in particular, we have set a
new target, achieve a reduction rate for purchased

electricity in coming few years.

With regard to the ongoing confirmation of the suitability
and progress of the Group's strategies, we believe that
we will have opportunities for stable funding and
sustainable increases in corporate value through
appropriate information disclosure, dialogue with

institutional investors and other stakeholders.

s HEREGRE

ERARMHRBREEMEYNTZE
BEZIREIR 1‘%2%?&{[?5/@ B
Kal AR ERREE  ERREMARE
MAEBERAFE LT -

—FE - ELRETRITH ARSI
BT ORI - A
BANENEEAERENEES®
T A A B TR R A R G o BT £ 4
R -

CHR
ERABTEESEERBERHERER
“ﬁ%$ﬂ%$bﬁommWhmﬁ%
EREHNRERaENmE a5
B8R SKEEH ROR B It (E B -
EBEEME A ERE R B AR
A P 2 BRE R A F eI B -
W B (R HE TSR IR AR -

4>r i
[
i

IR 2 M N BE M 5l AR B A RE TR A
BABER MR - LEER BERR
FE - RACTLHOER - BRNRK
RBERDINEENNERAL XK -

RFERRAEERBNEERER
mE - RABEE EBEENEREKE
AR BB EE AR EYE
B ERESESEEES YERD
XEEMAREER-

63



VALUE CONVERGENCE HOLDINGS LIMITED EZRIZRER AT

Risk Management

Our Group identifies the climate change related risks or
to test the existing risk management strategies under
climate change with the aid of risk assessment. Hence,
the areas where new strategies are needed could be

identified.

The risk assessment takes a standard risk-based approach
using national data, local information and expert
knowledge, which can identify how climate change may
compound existing risks or create new ones. The risk

assessment is conducted through the following steps:

Step 1: Establish the context

. Objective/goal

«  Scale

«  Time frame

«  Climate change scenario for most climate variables

and sea level

Step 2: Identify existing risk (past and current)

«  Identify the record of occurrence of climatic hazard
in the past in the area

«  Risk management strategies in place to tackle future

occurrence of the hazard

Step 3: Identify future risk and opportunities

«  Explore climate change projections for the selected
time frame(s) and emission scenario(s)

« Identify potential hazards

«  Investigate whether any existing risk from Step 2
may get worse under future projected changes

« Identify new risks that can emerge under future

projected changes
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Step 4: Analyse and evaluate risk

« Identify a set of decision areas or systems (i.e.,
geographical areas, business operation, assets,
ecosystems, etc.) that has the potential to be at risk

in future

As outlined within the Governance section above, the
Group has robust risk management and business
planning processes that are overseen by the ESG
committee in order to identify, assess and manage
climate-related risks. The Group engages with
government and other appropriate organizations in order
to keep abreast of expected and potential regulatory and/

or fiscal changes.

We continue to raise awareness of climate change in
regard to monitoring of carbon and energy footprint in
our daily operation. However, there remains gaps in
understanding how such climate risks and opportunities
may impact our operations, assets and profits. Our Group
assesses how the business addresses climate change
risks and opportunities and takes the initiative to monitor

and reduce their environmental footprint.
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Significant Climate-related Issues

During the reporting period, the significant climate-related
physical risks and transition risks, which have impacted
and/or may impact our Group's business and strategy in
(i) operations, products and services, (ii) supply chain
and value chain, (iii) adaptation and mitigation activities,
(iv) investment in research and development, and (v)
financial planning, as well as the steps taken to manage

these risks, are as follows:

Climate-related risks description

Financial impact

EXRREREE

R|EHA - EO)EE - Em R RE -
(i resE M EEE - ()@ e R &E
(NRERHE  RO)RBKREETE
HAEEXBRRBEEL R, KA EE
ERENBEARKERERERKEE
R AR RERZSRERMRROE
HEE ST

Steps taken to manage

the risks

1% 18 B8 [ B Y = A R BT e
Physical Risk
ERER

REBRARTHRNNER

Acute physical risks
=MEEBER

— Increased severity and frequency
of extreme weather events such
as cyclones and floods may cause
staff injury. In addition, under the
extreme weather events, the
transportation and living cost
increase, which may lead to
financial loss.

18 3 K SRS 1 (AR BE 8 L Bt oK)
BB ERE RIAE ETF o o

R RR T - R REERX
T HABHREBEL -

Operating cost increases
EIB R ARG AN

Capital cost increases due
to the damage of facilities
B 3% e 18338 T 485 A A2 2R X
ZXIE AN

Planned to adopted
scenario analysis to
disclose an
organization’s planning
under future scenarios,
most notably one with
in a "2°C scenario”.
B EHMRAB RN
VA BB X A0 518 AR 2R
BIETERE - CEHR
[2°CIEHR T
Established a natural

disasters emergency
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Climate-related risks description Financial impact
1% 18 B8 [ B B = A R 32
Chronic physical risks
eEERRR

—  Prolonged hot weather may —  Revenue reduces from
increase the energy consumption. decreased operation
REIR B KRR AR S EREFE © capacity and the negative

—  Climate change brings impacts of workforce.
uncertainties to the environments HBN TR WD
of operation and sales. Although WHEBNTEREETE -

direct losses will not be incurred
by the company, this may still
affect and limit the product sales
and services significantly.
RIRECHEBREERTTK
TEEAR BETEHART
EREREBL BENAREY
B PR I E o 8H B MRS o

—  Prolonged climate change may
detriment the human’s health.
Continuation of temperature rise
can increase the fatality rates and
incidence rates of some diseases,
especially the one related to
cardiac and respiratory system;
the spread of some climate-
sensitive diseases such as malaria
and dengue fever may increase.
REIRIER (LA E AR -
FOBRE LIRS T X R ¥
IR RS R - R B0 B
R RAGHEBOKRE  BOR
1R B ) B IR IR B R AW
EREIRAI eI AN

Steps taken to manage

the risks
A S 2 3 b T SR EL AV 15 B

Planned
improvements,
retrofits, relocations, or
other changes to
facilities that may
reduce their
vulnerability to climate
impacts and increase
the climate resilience
in long term.

BT &I 8 R AT
B HE BEY
H o & - DURBR S
RIFZENMESS L
I & 3% N og e 1k I 2
5 o

Engagement with local
or national
governments and local
stakeholders on local
resilience.

HEEp i 75 ok B R
N A ¥5 10 B RS2
REES -
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Steps taken to manage

the risks
A B 2 3 b S E AV 18 B

Climate-related risks description

SR 1% N B e 9 o A 4

Financial impact

Transitional Risk

B = B

Policy risk
R 2

As a result of energy efficiency
requirements, carbon-pricing
mechanisms increase the price of
fossil fuels, or policies to
encourage sustainable land use,
hindering the area of expansion,
which increase the operation
cost.

BRERYEBRTE T ES
(AR AMEHER) B+
b AT F5 A8 A PR A B (RTRR I +
WEERER) DGR EBERA
FFe

Mandates on and regulation of
existing services as of the
tightened environmental and
safety laws and standards of ail.
We have to spend much
compliance cost to update or
maintain the equipment to fulfil
the new regulations.
BREZ2EIRAMEERE
TR A MRS NS TR HE b &
HOIRE - F A2 EINAERKAR
LA #r ek RE R iR T A #T AR B

—  Operating cost increases
due to increased insurance
premiums for the Group.
AEBAXNORRER
BINGEEER LGN o

—  Operational and

compliance cost increases.

R R AR AIB N

Planned to be involved
in carbon trading and
adoption of clean
energy in the
operations to reduce
the carbon emissions.
Bt 2T 5
MREETRABR
BEIR - DARRAKHRHE AR -
Monitor the updates of
the relevant climate-
related environmental
policies, to avoid the
unnecessary increase
in cost and expenditure
due to the violation of
the climate-related
environmental policies.
B SR ESR R A R IR
BUR A A & E A
LA i % R 38 R R AR
8 3R 52 IR 1T 38 0
VERARFX -
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Climate-related risks description

SR, 1% 1 B, e 9 o A 4

Financial impact

RS2

Steps taken to manage

the risks
A S 2 3 b T SR EL AV 15 B

Legal risk
EERR

Exposure to litigation. We have to
adapt the tightened law and
regulations issued by the
government due to climate
change, and they have the risk of
litigation once they failed to
obligate the new rules.

FEAREE - HIIRBRBFRR
1 B2 P 28 40 1) B BR ARV ) R R
Bl - —BREEEFHARA - AT
BEEEERFLRR -

Enhanced emissions-reporting
obligations. We may have to
spend much time on fulfilling the
report standards to comply the
new obligations.
HERUR & B E SRR T o BRI RE
FERETHEREEE LKA
BITHRELER -

Operating cost increases
for high compliance costs
and increased insurance
premiums for the Group.
BERRARAEEEAER
TrfRiRE AL - B
EIBRCAIE N o

—  Monitored the updates
of environmental laws
and regulations and
implemented GHG
emissions calculations
in advance.

BE IR IE A K AR

B ERFTEN A - AR AL
B iR =R B MG
BHE-

/




70

VALUE CONVERGENCE HOLDINGS LIMITED EZRIZRER AT

Annual Report 2021 £

ENVIRONMENT, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT 818 - HEREAHRE

Climate-related risks description

SR 1% N B e 9 o A 4

Financial impact

MBETE

Steps taken to manage
the risks
A B E by i RN A9 e

Technology risk
i =L

—  Developing the low carbon

energy-saving energy saving
technologies, the capital
investment and R&D expense
increase consequently.

PR EIRENRE M S BB K
W EE R S0 -

—  More green building strategies
with low-carbon, energy-saving
technologies are adopted by
industry peers. Lagging behind
may weaken our competitive
edges.
FANHFRATHRENBERRE
KARHRERBE il » BT R — B
B1& o mlRE ISR MM ERE D -

—  Capital investment in
technology development

increases.

KRNI B AR E AR

—  Planned to invest in
the innovations of
energy-saving
technologies or
facilities.
BB IR BN Al
£ B BT S AR 7 o

—  Examined the feasibility
and benefits of
applying the latest
low-carbon and
energy-saving
technologies into our
operation.

R RNEEPEAR
TR TR B B R T B AT
TR -
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Climate-related risks description
1% 18 B8 [ B B = A R

Market risk

3% 2

More customers are considering

climate-related risks and
opportunities, which may lead to
changes in customers’ demand
for products.

B R B F SR 1 AR A R B
Hid - AR B P IR IR T
B oo

Uncertainty in market signals.
“How environmentally friendly the
product is” becomes one of the
factors to affect the product
selling price.

MHERTHEE - EmORERIZ
ERRTEEREENES R
Increased cost of raw materials.
More environmentally-friendly raw
materials may be much
expensive, which may increase
the cost.

R EHER EA - BIRREOREM
KAl E SR8 - WA Re BB A
e

Financial impact

RS2

Revenue decreases for the
change in revenue mix and
sources.

Ui s 18 A e Ui s 2ROR B P
HE - SWERD -
Operating cost increases as
abrupt and unexpected
shifts in energy costs.
BERAR AR B R RAT
BoEERAREM -
Production cost increases
due to changing input
prices and output
requirements.
EERANERRELE
KA RS SHEERAN
E7te

Steps taken to manage
the risks
A S 2 3 b T SR EL AV 15 B

—  Tightened the control
of the environmental
hazardous materials in
our products and
studied the application
of recycled materials.
Y B2 8 2E o A RO R IR
BEMEEES - W
T 9% 40 fo] & FR A3 4
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Steps taken to manage

the risks
A B 2 3 b S E AV 18 B

Climate-related risks description

SR 1% N B e 9 o A 4

Financial impact

MBETE

Reputational risk
B

2\ Bz

Unable to fulfil the expectations
of the customers, damage the
Group's reputation and image.
REEMmEEPHE  cKEHER
RIEREAE -

Stigmatization of our business
sector, such as more stakeholder
concern or negative stakeholder
feedback on the product
designed in a less
environmentally-friendly way.
TEHTARL - PINEERRE
TIERRESMEBREZ RN
EERENAMATE -

—  Revenue decreases from
decreased demand for
goods and the decrease in
operation capacity.
HEmBRNEERENT
B SR e

—  Operating costs increases
from negative impacts on
workforce management
and planning.
LHERMNERENFEE
LEmFEMmMEYEEK
ZRIB N o

Supported the green
procurement.

IR EIRE o
Fulfilled the social
responsibility by
organizing more
activities or executing
actions to demonstrate
how we place
importance on climate
change.
EBBRRFLRB A
RREZTBRET
HEEE WEBRTHR
P8 RIREEETR -

During the reporting period, the primary climate-related

opportunities and the corresponding financial impacts

were as follows:

Detailed description of

climate-related opportunities

Financial Impact

RBEEHA - TEHREEERERE

BB B HEMT

ERERREERENF AL

Resource efficiency

BT E

BIRM =

—  Reduce more packaging material usage -
A ERBEDE

—  Reduce water usage and consumption

A oK

Operating cost reduces through efficiency gains

and cost reductions

38 3B 38 Y PR AN (0 B A A PR R
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Detailed description of

climate-related opportunities

EEAR RS METE

Financial Impact

Energy source

EEVAH

—  Use of lower-emission fuel sources
2 A EE B e IR

—  Use of new technologies

158 P 2 Bl

Operating cost reduces through use of lowest
cost abatement

i 38 55 FR S A A AN R B 5 B B AR PR IR
Returns on investment in low- emission

technology increases

BB P HE B &Y (] 3 U 25 38 AN

Business services

EBR%

—  Development of services which have
consider climate change adaptation
PiT 78 3 B AR 75 B SRR B2 (L B

—  Ability to diversify business activities

Research and development cost increases
through new solutions to adaptations needs

A B T e 7R B T T B R T B A AT B K AN 8 AN

BRENETIMRERED
Markets
mi5
—  Access to new markets Revenue increases through access to new and
AT 5 emerging markets
¥ LT 35 7 R MK R 18
Resilience
HEN

—  Participation in renewable energy programs
and adoption of energy-efficiency measures
S ERT] B A RE R AT B RERERGE R a5 HE e
—  Resource substitution or diversification

AEREBERAZTENER

Market valuation increases through resilience
planning, such as infrastructure, land and
buildings

FBEE AR EETIHEEL N - FInEEE
& T REFE

Reliability of supply chain and ability to operate
under various condition increases

HEREN A ERE RN TRRETEENEN
# N

Revenue increases through new products and
services related to ensuring resiliency
REREENMAZENFERRRBEKS -
9’_|_
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Metrics and Targets

Our Group adopts the key metrics to assess and manage
climate-related risks and opportunities. The energy
consumption and greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions
indicators are the key metrics used to assess and manage
relevant climate-related risks where we consider such
information is material and crucial for evaluating the
impact of our operation on global climate change during
the year. Our Group regularly tracks our energy
consumption and GHG emissions indicators to assess the
effectiveness of emission reduction initiatives, as well as
set targets to contribute our effort to have minimal

impact on global warming.

The details of time frames over which the target applies
and base year from which progress is measured are
described in the section A1: “Emissions” and section A2:
“Use of Resources” of this Report. Our Group adopts
absolute target to manage climate-related risks,

opportunities and performance.
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SOCIAL ASPECTS

. EMPLOYMENT

The Group believes that people are the most valuable
assets and resources to the continuing development and
success of the Group. As such, we aim to attract and
retain talents, maintain a safe and equal working
environment for its employees, provide development
opportunities and promote health and well-being of its
employees to ensure that our value of creating a
rewarding and vibrant work environment is live out. The
staff handbook covers our standard in respect of
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods and other benefits and

welfare.

During the reporting period, the Group was not aware of
any non-compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations that had significant impact on the Group
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination and other benefits and

welfare.

CHERE
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Anti-discrimination, Equal Opportunities and
Diversity

The Group strives to construct a diverse and inclusive
workplace where all its employees are treated with dignity
and respect. We are dedicated to providing equal
opportunity in all aspects of employment and maintaining
a workplace that is free from discrimination or
harassment against any individual on the basis of
seniority, nationality, gender, age, marital status, disability,
race, color, religion or sexual preference. The Group fully
complies with relevant laws and regulations, including but
not limited to the Sexual Discrimination Ordinance
(Chapter 480 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Family
Status Discrimination Ordinance (Chapter 527 of the
Laws of Hong Kong), the Disability Discrimination
Ordinance (Chapter 487 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the
Race Discrimination Ordinance (Chapter 602 of the Laws
of Hong Kong), and the Fair Labour Standard Act (Title
29 of the United States Code).

Remuneration and Promotion

Remuneration and promotion opportunities are crucial to
retain and motivate employees in achieving key
objectives of the Group. The Group provides
remuneration and promotion opportunities for its
employees according to their merits, qualifications,
performance and competence, and in accordance with
the Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) and the Minimum Wage Ordinance (Chapter
608 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Fair Labour Standard
Act (Title 29 of the United States Code).

Annual Report 2021 &£}
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We perform regular salary review by benchmarking jobs
with relative market positions to ensure our remuneration
practices are competitive and aligned with market rate.
For promotion of employees, we conduct performance
appraisal at least once annually to evaluate overall
performances of employees. The data collected is used

to serve as reference in considering promotion.

Other Benefits and Welfare

In order to motivate employees in the continued pursuit
of the Group’s goals and objectives, the Group has
adopted long-term incentive plan (share option scheme
and share incentive award scheme) and short-term
incentive plan (discretionary bonus). The share options,
share awards and discretionary bonus may be granted to
eligible employees depends on business performance of
the Group and individual work performance in
accomplishing objectives being laid out in the annual

performance appraisal of employees.

In addition to incentive plans, the Group provides
mandatory provident fund in accordance with the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter
485 of the Laws of Hong Kong), medical benefits with
Family and Medical Leave Act of the USA (Title 29 of the
United States Code), as well as sales commission to its
employees. Employees are also entitled to holidays and
leaves such as annual leave, marriage leave, maternity
leave, paternity leave and compassionate leave.
Recognising the importance of a work-life balance to a
motivated and productive workforce, the Administration
Department organises outdoor activities for employees to

relax and promote a healthy lifestyle.
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As at 31 December 2021, the employee compositions RZEBEZ—F+ZA=+—8 " &%
(in percentage of employees) by gender, age group, Bl - FHEEER - Hbig  BIEER NERS
geographical region, employment type and employment REHOZEIRRK (U hEEREZH
mode were as follows: DLLEH) TR

ployee compo O 0 020

By gender 1% 5l
«  Male 2% 539% 54%

+  Female Z% 47% 46%
By age group F R

o Age 30 or below 3073R 3 A T 20% 16%
. Age 31-40 31 F405% 25% 26%
° Age 41-50 41E505% 349% 36%
«  Age 51 or above 5153 A £ 21% 22%
By geographical region it

+  Hong Kong & & 92% 97%
. PRC A 8% =
« USA EH - 3%
By employment category {& & &

+  Senior management = 4% & 12 8 8% 8%
+  Middle management /4% & 12 [E 30% 28%
«  General staff =888 T 62% 64%

By employment mode E{E A =&
+  Full-time staff 2B 8 T 96% 96%
«  Part-time staff 388 T 4% 4%
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Below was the detailed breakdown of our employee AT RRREHAERMER - FERER XM
turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical HE D ZEERKEZFHMAMIBNR -

region during the reporting period:

Employee turnover rate

BERAE

By gender %5l

« Male B4 34% 35%
+  Female & 48% 53%

By age group F#E

«  Age 30 or below 30558 A T 85% 86%
. Age 31-40 31 F405% 449 67%
«  Age 41-50 41E505% 8% 17%
+  Age 51 or above 51583 A £ 13% 31%
By geographical region it 13
+  Hong Kong &% 31% 43%
+  PRCH - -
«  USA EH 100% 100%
Overall &8 32% 4300
B2. HEALTH AND SAFETY B2. BRERZZE
The Group places the highest priority on securing health REBBLSERRET —EEMNRE
and safety of all its employees. We are in strict Rz?  BHMERETHBEGRERD
compliance with the Law of the PRC on the Prevention BIE)  BAEEDIESIE(BELZ R R
and Control of Occupational Diseases, the Occupational RGO REBEAF29E(RER
Safety and Health Ordinance (Chapter 509 of the Laws % B i fz /%) (Occupational Safety and
of Hong Kong) and the Occupational Safety and Health Health Act) - BRESMNBERELL
Act (Title 29 of the United States Code) to ensure 2o AEEBNOREERERRER —E
occupational health and safety of its employees. We ZEBENIIERE  WREMMIE S
strive to provide and maintain a safe and healthy working AIEE -

environment for employees to protect them from work-

related injuries.
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The Group's Administration Department is responsible to
monitor the workplace and ensure any unsafe situation is
fixed promptly. We carry out cleaning of carpets so as to
provide hygiene environment for employees. Besides, the
air-conditioners are cleaned periodically to reduce the
dust level of indoor air and increase efficiency of the
ventilation system. To enhance the safety awareness of
employees, they are encouraged to participated in fire
drills organised by the office's property management
company to be prepared to respond in the event of

emergency.

In order to protect the safety of employees under
extreme weather, we have established special work

arrangements for typhoon and rainstorm warning.

During the reporting period, the Group was not aware of
any non-compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations that had significant impact on the Group in

providing a safe and healthy working environment.

The Group is committed to providing a healthy and safe
workplace for all its employees. We conduct risk
assessment in order to help our employee identify
potential hazard to health and safety. In 2021, no
concluded cases (2020: nil, 2019: nil) regarding health
and safety brought against the issuer or its employees

were noted.

During the year, there was no work injury case (2020:
nil, 2019: nil) and lost day due to work injury (2020: nil,
2019: nil) in our business operation. There was no work-
related fatality case (2020: nil, 2019: nil) during the year.
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B3. DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING B3. B & K35 H

The Group considers the skills and knowledge of its
employees as the key elements of the Group's continued
business growth and success. As such, we encourage our
employees to participate in training programs to enhance
their skills and competencies to meet the business needs
and personal growth. The Compliance Department of the
Group organises in-house training courses and provides
updates of compliance and regulatory requirements to all
employees, especially for the licensed persons who are

registered under the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

In addition to in-house training, the Group provides
training sponsorships for all full-time employees to act as
motivations for employees to attend external training
programs and obtain professional memberships.
Employees are encouraged to attend external training
programs offered by recognised and accredited institutes
to update their professional knowledge and awareness of

market trends.

The Group updates the financial knowledge of employees
by providing all full-time employees a daily market
summary about news of the local financial markets. It
helps not only finance-related employees to discharge
their duties, but also non-finance related employees to

familiarise with the Group's business.
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During the reporting period, the percentage of employees
received training by gender and employment category

was as follows:

RBEMARMER R EEBELEE ST
FE AT

Percentage o ployees Received g 0 020
= 3| 2 2 .

By gender £ Bl

« Male 3% 100% 90%
«  Female %t 100% 92%
By employment category {E @&

+  Senior management 1= & E 12 [E 100% 100%
+  Middle management H R & 12 [E 100% 75%
+  General staff =t 8 T 100% 100%
«  Contract/short term & %), /52 8 T - -
Overall 288 100% 91%

In addition, the composition of employees received
training by gender and employment category during the

reporting period was as follows:

s - R ERAIR MR R EFEEE
DHXINETHEANT :

omposition o bloyees Received g 0 020
By gender 1% 5l
«  Male 3% 63% 60%
«  Female % 37% 40%
By employment category {E{E 3B &
+  Senior management =% & 1 g 15% 17%
+  Middle management /4% & 12 8 25% 30%
+  General staff —ft 8 T 60% 53%
+  Contract/short term & 41,/ % 8T - -
Overall g8 100% 100%
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The average training hours by gender and employment

category during the reporting period was as follows:

Average Training Hours Received per Employee

BEESFIRIEH

ENVIRONMENT, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT IRiE « H ERESIRE

RBEMAIR MR REBEIE 5 HF

By gender 1% 5l

«  Male 3% 6.4 2.7
«  Female &t 8.1 1.7
By employment category fE{E B &

+  Senior management =A% B2 [E 8.3 6.6
+  Middle management F R EIE [E 10.4 2.6
+  General staff —% BT 5.4 1.5
«  Contract/short term &%),/ 8 T - -
Overall 28 7.1 0.8

B4. LABOUR STANDARDS

The Group is committed to supporting the effective
abolition of child labour and upholding the elimination of
all forms of forced and compulsory labour. We adhere to
the relevant laws and regulations, including the PRC's
"Provision on the Prohibition of Using Child Labour, the
Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), the Employment of Children Regulations (Chapter
57B of the Laws of Hong Kong), and the Fair Labor
Standards Act (Title 29 of the United States Code) and
strictly prohibits recruitment of child labour. During the
recruitment process, applicants are required to present
their identity documents to Human Resources
Department for age verification as prevention of engaging
child labour.

During the reporting period, the Group was not aware of
any non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations
related to recruitment of child labour or forced labour

practices.

B4. % T %8|
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B5.

B6.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The Group strives to maintain long-term and stable
relationships with suppliers who provide financial
information solutions. In selecting suppliers, we take into
considerations their prices, stabilities of trading platform,
customer services, capabilities and experiences, as well

as sustainability performance.

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

Service quality is always of the utmost concern in the
Group's operation. The Group continues to provide high-
quality services in order to meet the expectations of our

clients and enhance their satisfaction.

The Group believes the opinions from its clients are
valuable input for its continuous improvement and vital
to its pursuit for excellence. We welcome opinions from
customers by establishing designated channels such as
facsimile and email. Upon the receipt of disputes and
complaints, they are investigated and resolved promptly

by the Group according to internal procedures.

The Group is aware of the importance in handling
customer information. We strictly complied with the
Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance of Hong Kong and the
Privacy Act (Title 5 of the United States Code), and take
high precaution in ensuring their confidentiality to avoid
misuse or leakage of personal data. The trading
information of our clients is confidential and handled with
due care. We have incorporated its requirements into
staff handbook and require employees to abide by the
guidance on prohibiting any unauthorised disclosure of

confidential information.

B5.

B6.
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B7.

The Group has always attached great importance to the
protection of its intellectual property rights. We have
registered domain names and various trademarks
including “VC Group” in Hong Kong and Macau. Our
domain names and trademarks are constantly monitored

and renewed upon their expiration.

ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Group is committed to upholding the high standards
of business ethics and integrity. The Group strictly
complies with relevant laws and regulations, including but
not limited to the Criminal Law of the PRC, the
Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Chapter 201 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) enforced by the Independent
Commission Against Corruption and the Foreign Corrupt
Practices Act (Title 15 of the United States Code) to

prevent unethical pursuit.

Our whistle-blowing policy allows whistleblowers to report
any unlawful conduct, any incident of corruption,
avoidance of internal controls, incorrect or improper

financial or other reporting to the management.

In addition, all staff of the Group are provided with in-
house trainings on anti-money laundering activities. They
are required to fully abide by the internal guidelines for
customer screening and monitoring requirements, proper
records keeping requirements, and reporting suspicious
circumstances in accordance with the relevant laws,

codes and guidelines issued by the regulatory authorities.

B7.
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During the reporting period, the Group was not aware of RBERA - AEE T EEIREHRE
any non-compliance with the relevant laws and $R - MFFRKEES EA EA A ETE
regulations that have significant impact on the Group AP RROIMEAEREREATE
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering. ZIFMR e

In 2021, the detailed breakdown of the number of RIEBEZ—F REFRENESZRE
persons who received training for anti-corruption and the BRIALTEBERBREALTFARES
training hours per person for anti-corruption by BHIFR ZFMABROT

employment category was as follows:

Number of

employees received Number of

Anti-corruption Training training training hours

RESEI ZIETHE 1% 5 B B

By employment category & & 38 &
— Board members B E &K B 7 2 20.0 5.0
— Senior management = 4 & 12 [E 2 3 5.0 7.5
— Middle management / 4% & 12 /& 8 7 20.0 17.5
— General staff —f¢ 8 T 21 15 52.5 37.5
Total #5t+ 38 27 97.5 67.5
B8. COMMUNITY INVESTMENT BS. +tERE
As a socially responsible enterprise, the Group is ER—HMErEEEENGE  A5H
constantly aware of the community needs and strives to —ERIREBEMAE  THHORERER
bring a positive impact on community development. We TEE BB - BTk BiE B (i A
encourage our employees to dedicate their time and BEURRMERE =57 -

skills to supporting local communities.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

REPORTING INDEX

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and Key Performance

Indicators (KPls)

IRER -BEH —REBRERERER

A. Environmental BB 1E

A
i
s
1
¥
nﬂB
B
i
o

Section

B

A1: Emissions B4

FRAENIER A6

hazardous wastes are handled, reduction
initiatives and results achieved
HREEESRESEENNTE R
BELSNHEBRIMERR

Non-hazardous Wastes"

(- BEREZEEY

General Disclosure —f% 1% & “Emissions” [ BERR# ] 54
KPI'AT.1 The types of emissions and respective "Emissions — Air Pollutant 54
BEEMIER A1 emissions data Emissions”
PR R AR AR B U BUR [BER — 22 05 2 HE
KPI'AT.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total and, | “Emissions — Greenhouse Gas 56
HRENIEE A1.2 where appropriate, intensity Emissions”
BRERBLEHRER (WER)ZE [ BER ) — i = 5 B8 B A
KPI'A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and, Not applicable to the Group's N/A
BRENIERALS where appropriate, intensity business. TiEA
MELEEREMRER (WER)ZE | TEARAEERK -
KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and,| “Emissions — Hazardous and 58
BRERIEZ A4 where appropriate, intensity Non-hazardous Wastes"
MELERERENRER (WER)BE | (R -BSRESEEY]
KPI'A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate "Emissions — Greenhouse Gas 55
MR EMIER A1D emissions and results achieved Emissions”
RURE SR ERNERREKR [BER — R = R B R
KPI'AT1.6 Description of how hazardous and non- | “Emissions — Hazardous and 57-58
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and Key Performance

Indicators (KPIs) Section
ITEERE EH —REERBRENER 4: 1)
A2: Use of Resources & JR £
General Disclosure —f% 1% & "Use of Resources” [ & JR1E A | 59
KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption| “Use of Resources — Energy 59
B B B A2 by type in total and intensity Consumption”
RENESNERE R SBEERERE | [ERER-EREE]
EREE
KPI' A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity | Not feasible for the Group to obtain N/A
BERETIER A2.2 BREKERERE water consumption data. TEH
REEEERUGRKEE -
KPI'A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency “Use of Resources — Energy 59
MR EMIER A3 initiatives and results achieved Consumption”
R g2 IR AR T B R B RCR [ &R e A —BERH 7
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue | “Use of Resources — Water 60
BREMIER A2.4 in sourcing water that is fit for purpose, | Consumption”
water efficiency initiatives and results [BIREE R — K]
achieved
F 3 SR ERGE A KR £ R B AT - DA
RART KM at 8l R AT G R
KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished | Not applicable to the Group's N/A
BRETIER A2.5 products and, if applicable, with reference| business. TEA
to per unit produced THEBRAEEER -
HEmAAeEMHNEE R (WER)
BHEEBMEE
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and Key Performance

Indicators (KPls)

IRER -EEH -REBERBREANER

A3: The Environment and Natural Resources B8 &k X R & R

Section

B

FRENIER B1.2

group and geographical region
BIER - FRAN KRS DNESR
5t

General Disclosure — % # #& "The Environment and Natural 60
Resources” [IRIE R KAER]
KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of | No significant impact of activities on N/A
BEREMIER A3 activities on the environment and natural | the environment and natural NE A
resources and the actions taken to resources is noted.
manage them WEEFREBLHFHRERRA
HREBEHHRERRARERNEKR | BEREKNEATE -
TERECRDNEREBAYENTY
A4: Climate Change 1R %1t
General Disclosure —f& 1 % "Climate Change” [ /& &1t | 60-61
KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate- "Climate Change” [ 1& &1t | 61-74
B 5 4B U IRAL related issues which have impacted, and
those which may impact, the issuer, and
the actions taken to manage them
HEERAREHETAEETEN
BARKIEHEEE  REHTEH
B. Social # &
Employment and Labour Practices EfE R % T &
B1: Employment {E{&
General Disclosure —#& 4% 22 "Employment” [ {& 1% ] 75
KPI'B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment | — 78
R 48 B 1 B1.1 type, age group and geographical region
BRI EEER - FRAMNKMEE
DEEE B
KPI'B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age | - 79
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and Key Performance

Indicators (KPIs) Section
ITEERE EH —REERBRENER 4: 1)
B2: Health and safety @ER &2
General Disclosure — % #f % "Health and Safety” [{EFE k%2 | 79
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities| — 80
M2 4 IR IR B2.1 ETEBEMETHABRLEE
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury - 80
MR A NIRRT B2.2 AIGEAIERH
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and "Health and Safety” 80
B4R B RS 1E B3 safety measures adopted, how they are | [@E R % 2 |

implemented and monitored

RPN R T 2 0 DA

BREARTRERES A

B3: Development and Training % & K& 3% 3

General Disclosure — & 4 % “Development and Training” 81
[ R R
KPI B3.1 The percentage of employee trained by | “Development and Training" 82
B EMUETZ B3 gender and employee category [ R R3]
mHRIRERRAESNRIEERSD
id
KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per| “Development and Training” 83
MR EMIER B3.2 employee by gender and employee [%ERE
category
BUHRIREERFIE S BREETK
R A0 F 19 5 21
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and Key Performance

Indicators (KPls)

IRER -EEH -REBERBREANER

B4: Labour Standards % T % 8|

Section

B

BA S AR IR 1R BS.

region

i e D HEREE

General Disclosure —f2#% %& “Labour Standards” [ 4 T %8l | 83
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review “Labour Standards” [ % T %8| 83
R BE4E JUIBIZ B4 employment practices to avoid child and

forced labour

it BEEINEEASRETR

5855 T
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate - -
B MUIER B4.2 such practices when discovered

HAEERERBRSERABERLR

FREE) 2 B
Operating Practices & E1&fl
B5: Supply Chain Management f fE §# & &
General Disclosure "Supply Chain Management” 84
—RE [ fe 2 12 |
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical - -

KPI B5.2
BB AARIEIR B5.2

Description of practices relating to
engaging suppliers, number of suppliers
where the practices are being
implemented, how they are implemented
and monitored

WA REREEROEN  mERT
RRABHNMHERZE AREBEN
HBITRERENE
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EamE

Indicators (KPIs) Section
TEER EBEH  —REERERERER 4: 1)
B6: Product Responsibility 7 i & £
General Disclosure "Product Responsibility” 84
—RRE [EmEE]
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or - -
MR E IS TZ B6.1 shipped subject to recalls for safety and

health reasons

EERCEREMBHTALERER

BhfALKEE DT
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related | — -
RIS 4B 5 1R B6.2 complaints received and how they are

dealt with

BREBNEMmNIRGNIRFHE ARE

B9
KPI B6.3 Description and practices relating to "Product Responsibility” 84
BARBEBIEIZ B6.3 observing and protecting intellectual [EmE ]

property rights

it REENREANZEEEBNED
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process | — -
FIRE ISR B6.4 and recall procedures

HiEERTBRENERDWRERF
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection | “Product Responsibility” 84
BB MIE1E B6.5 and privacy policies, how they are [EREE]

implemented and monitored

HIEBEEERMRERLEBEE - AR

HERTRERDE
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and Key Performance

Indicators (KPls)

IRER -EEH -REBERBREANER

B7: Anti-corruption X &35

Section

B

—REE

[HEREE]

General Disclosure —f& 4 & "Anti-corruption” [ R &5 | 85
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases - -
BB BUEZ BT.1 regarding corrupt practices brought against

the issuer or its employees during the

reporting period and the outcomes of the

case

RERBAHETASIHEEERLIYE

BRENESHDRMNHE RFDER
KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and | “Anti-corruption” [ R &5 | 85
MR E IR IR BT.2 whistle-blowing procedures, how they are

implemented and monitored

By & i LB BIRT - A RAEBH

TREENE
KPI B7.3 Number of anti-corruption training "Anti-corruption” [ R &5 | 86
BB IR IZBRT .3 provided to directors and staff

HimESRE TRHEMNRETET
Community &
B8: Community Investment # B % &
General Disclosure “Community Investment” 86

KPI B8.1
AR AARIEIR BB

Focus areas of contribution (e.g.
education, environmental concerns, labour
needs, health, culture, sport)
ETEREE (WHE RESFHE ST
TR RBE X 8F)

KPI B8.2
BARARIEIR BB.2

Resources contributed (e.g. money or

time) to the focus area

EEINBEMPRER(MeERER)
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The board (the “Board") of directors (the “Directors”) of Value
Convergence Holdings Limited (the “Company”) believes that
good corporate governance provides a framework that is
essential for effective management, a healthy corporate
culture, successful business growth and enhancing
shareholders’ value. As such, the maintenance of a high
standard of corporate governance has been and remains a top
priority of the Group (the Company and its subsidiaries). The
Group is committed to promoting and maintaining the highest
standard of corporate governance, with the objectives of (i)
the maintenance of responsible decision making; (ii) the
improvement in transparency and disclosure of information to
shareholders; (iii) the continuance of respect for the rights of
shareholders and the recognition of the legitimate interests of
shareholders; and (iv) the improvement in management of

risk and the enhancement of performance by the Group.

Annual Report 2021 &£}
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COMPLIANCE OF THE CODE PROVISION OF THE
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has complied with the code provisions set out
in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code") contained
in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the "Stock Exchange”) throughout the financial year

ended 31 December 2021, except for the following deviation:

Code Provision A.4.1

Under the code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term and subject
to re-election. All the Non-executive Directors of the Company
are not appointed for specific term. However, under the Article
97 of the Articles of Association of the Company (the "Articles
of Association”), all Directors, including non-executive
Directors, are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
in the annual general meeting of the Company and each
Director is effectively appointed under an average term of
three years. The Company does not believe that arbitrary term
limits on directors’ service are appropriate given that directors
ought to be committed to representing the long-term interests
of the Company's shareholders, and the retirement and re-
election requirements of non-executive directors have given
the Company's shareholders the right to approve continuation

of non-executive directors’ offices.

ki

EEERTAZ TR ET

ARBREE_T-_—F+-_A=+—H1t
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS EEe

The Board is entrusted with the overall responsibility for EE&€BFREREIEADNAMNERES T -
promoting the success of the Company by the Director and EFBBEBARANEBELES  REN
supervision of the Company's business and affairs and the RRAEEX - MEEZCCRETERE ¥
ultimate responsibility for the day-to-day management of the AAFRIMNBEEEAERKEE SEEFY
Company, which is delegated to the management. Each BETUARBFIZABKFEERITSE -

Director has a duty to act in good faith in the interests of the

Company.

i. Board Composition i.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises
a total of 7 Directors, with 4 Executive Directors, namely,
Mr. Fu Yiu Man, Peter (Chairman), Mr. Lin Hoi Kwong,
Aristo, Ms. Li Cindy Chen and Mr. Zhang Nu; and 3
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Wong
Chung Kin, Quentin, Mr. Wong Kam Choi, Kerry, mH and

Mr. Siu Miu Man, Simon, MH.

The Board is well-balanced with the Directors having
sound industry knowledge, extensive corporate and
strategic planning experience and/or expertise relevant to
the business of the Group. The executive Directors and
the independent non-executive Directors bring a variety
of experience and expertise to the Company. The
biographical information of the Directors is set out in the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and

Senior Management” of this annual report.

To the best knowledge of the Company, there is no
financial, business or family relationship among the

current members of the Board.

Board meetings have been held from time to time to
discuss the business strategies of the Group; monitor
financial and operational performance; approve the
annual and interim results of the Group; and discuss the

corporate governance functions of the Board.

EEg2HER

RAFHRBEH EEghHt+tH2EF4A
B HPHEBRITES BB XX
E(EF)  EBIAE ZFTRZLIEE
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Biographical details of the retiring Directors have been set
out in a circular, which will be sent to shareholders
together with this Annual Report, to assist shareholders to

make an informed decision on their re-elections.

Independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors

The Independent Non-executive Directors, all of whom
are independent of the management of the Group's
businesses, are highly experienced professionals with
substantial experience in areas such as legal, accounting
and financial management. Their mix of skills and
business experience is a major contribution to the future
development of the Group. They ensure that matters are
fully debated and that no individual or group of
individuals dominates the Board's decision-making
processes. In addition, they facilitate the Board to
maintain a high standard of financial and other
mandatory reporting and provide adequate checks and
balances to safeguard the interests of shareholders and

the Company as a whole.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has
made an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules for the year ended 31
December 2021.

ki

BREIEFZEECHNBERANFHR—
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Consideration was given to the independence of Mr.
Wong Chung Kin, Quentin, who has served as
independent non-executive Director for more than 9
years and Mr. Wong Kam Choi, Kerry, MH, who has served
as independent non-executive Director for more than 8
years and will be turning into over 9 years at the date of
AGM.

Both Mr. Wong Chung Kin, Quentin and Mr. Wong Kam
Choi, Kerry, mH have never engaged in any executive
management of the Group. Taking into consideration the
independence nature of their roles and duties in the past
years, the Board considers both of them to be
independent under the Listing Rules despite their years

of services with the Company.

EEBUIFATEFTBBIFZHNE
THE UREEBIIEHNTTE FiEB B
FUBRRRBEASETERELE
HBEBIFZEBM AL  MAZ AZBL
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The nomination committee of the Company has assessed
their independence and is satisfied, and the Board is of
the view that each of Mr. Wong Chung Kin, Quentin and
Mr. Wong Kam Choi, Kerry, MH is independent.

The Company is of the view that all Independent Non-
executive Directors meet the independence guidelines
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are
independent in accordance with the terms of the

guidelines in 2021.

Securities Dealings by Directors and Relevant
Employees

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities dealings on terms as set out in the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules (the "Model Code"). Having made specific enquiry
of the Directors, all Directors have confirmed that they
have complied with the required standard of dealings and
code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
Directors as set out in the Model Code in 2021.

The Board has also established a “Code of Securities
Dealings by Relevant Employees” for relevant employees
of the Company to regulate their dealings in the
securities of the Company so as to comply with the
directors’ obligations under code provision A.6.4 of the
CG Code.

RARFIZREZEGENEAENERELE
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AEBRBIAT  MEESTRRIL—
e
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Continuous Professional Development

Every newly appointed Director receives a comprehensive,
formal and tailored induction package to ensure that he/
she has a proper understanding of the Company’s
operation and business as well as his/her duties and
responsibilities of directors under statutory regulations and
the Listing Rules. The Company Secretary also provides the
updates on the latest development and changes in the
Listing Rules and other relevant legal and regulatory

requirements to the Board from time to time.

Meanwhile, the Directors are provided with monthly
updates on the Group's financial performance, position
and prospects to enable the Board as a whole and each

Director to discharge their duties.

Directors are encouraged to participate in continuing
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. During the year, each Director had
participated in continuous professional development by
attending seminars/workshops/reading materials on the
following topics to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills and had provided the training records to the

Company.

Name of Directors BEEgE

Mr. Fu Yiu Man, Peter FFE A

Mr. Lin Hoi Kwong, Aristo HEETIRE

Ms. Li Cindy Chen FRLT
(appointed on 27 September 2021) (R=ZZ=

Mr. Zhang Nu REBEE
(appointed on 1 November 2021) (RZ=ZZT=——

Mr. Wong Chung Kin, Quentin \IRER 4

Mr. Wong Kam Choi, Kerry, MH
Mr. Siu Miu Man, Simon, MH

Note:

Topics on training covered (a) Regulatory and corporate
governance updates; and (b) Finance related issues.

IR A 0 MH
BY AL - vH
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v. Directors’ Insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance (“D&O Insurance”) coverage on
Directors’ and senior management's liabilities in respect
of legal actions against them arising out of corporate
activities of the Company. The D&O insurance will be

reviewed and renewed annually.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Board conducts at least four regular Board meetings a
year and additional meetings are held as and when required
to discuss significant events or important issues. At least 14
days notice is given for regular Board meetings to all Directors
enabling them to attend and reasonable notice will be given
in case of special board meetings. Agenda accompanying
board papers are sent to all Directors at least 3 days before
each regular board meeting. The Group ensures that
appropriate and sufficient information is provided to Board
members in a timely manner to keep them abreast of the
Group's latest developments thereby assisting them in

discharge of their duties.

The Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary of the
Company attended the board meetings to advise on statutory
compliance, accounting and financial matters of the Group. All
businesses transacted at the meetings were documented and
maintained in accordance with applicable laws and

regulations.

In 2021, the Board had held a total of 6 meetings. The details
of the attendance record of each member of the Board are
provided in the section “ATTENDANCE RECORD OF THE
DIRECTORS AT BOARD MEETINGS, BOARD COMMITTEE
MEETINGS AND GENERAL MEETINGS" below.
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PROCEDURE TO ENABLE DIRECTORS TO SEEK
INDEPENDENT PROFESSIONAL ADVICE

To assist the Directors to discharge their duties to the

Company, the Board has established written procedures to

enable the Directors, upon reasonable request, to seek

independent professional advice, at the Company's expense,

in appropriate circumstances. No request was made by any

Director for such independent professional advice in 2021.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

Management Functions

The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the Group
to the board committees and the management. Both the
Board and the management have clearly defined
authorities and responsibilities under various internal
control and check-and-balance mechanisms. The Board
has established in writing which issues require decision
of the full Board and which can be delegated by the

Board to the board committees or management.

Board Committees

To assist the Board in execution of its duties and to
facilitate effective management, certain functions of the
Board have been delegated by the Board to various
board committees, namely, executive committee, audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee. The committees review and make

recommendations to the Board on specific areas.

Each committee has its defined scope of duties and
terms of reference and the committee members are
empowered to make decisions on matters within the
terms of reference of each committee. The terms of
reference of the board committees are given at the
Company’'s website under the section “Corporate

Governance”.
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EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Executive Committee is made up of the Company's
Executive Directors, namely, Mr. Fu Yiu Man, Peter (Chairman)
and Mr. Lin Hoi Kwong, Aristo and the Company's senior

management (non-voting capacity), namely, Mr. Lai Yick Fung.

It oversees the implementation of the Company's strategic
objectives and risk management policies and the business and
operations of all of the business units of the Group.
Meanwhile, it is also responsible to develop, review and
monitor the Group's corporate governance policies and
practices. It holds meetings from time to time to discuss the
Group's financial and operational matters and other new
projects. Other details of the roles and functions of the
Executive Committee are given at the Company's website

under the section “Corporate Governance”.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee is made up of the Company's
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Wong
Chung Kin, Quentin (Chairman), Mr. Wong Kam Choi,
Kerry, MH and Mr. Siu Miu Man, Simon, MH. Mr. Wong Chung
Kin, Quentin is a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He has the appropriate
professional qualifications, accounting or related financial
management expertise, as requested by the Rule 3.10(2) of

the Listing Rules.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are (a) to review
the Group's financial statements and published reports; (b) to
provide advice and comments thereon to the Board; and (c)
to review and supervise the financial reporting process and
internal control procedures of the Group. Other details of the
roles and functions of the Audit Committee are given at the
Company’'s website under the section “Corporate

Governance”.
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In 2021 the Audit Committee had held a total of two
meetings, among other matters, to review the Group's final
results for the year ended 31 December 2020 and the interim
results for the six months ended 30 June 2021. The details of
the attendance record of each member of the Audit
Committee are provided in the section “ATTENDANCE
RECORD OF THE DIRECTORS AT BOARD MEETINGS, BOARD
COMMITTEE MEETINGS AND GENERAL MEETINGS" below.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee is made up of the Company's
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong Kam
Choi, Kerry, mH (Chairman), Mr. Wong Chung Kin, Quentin and

Mr. Siu Miu Man, Simon, MH.

The Remuneration Committee makes recommendations to the
Board on policies and structure for remuneration of directors
and senior management and on the establishment of a formal
and transparent procedure for developing policy on such
remuneration, determines the remuneration packages for
executive directors and senior management and makes
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-
executive directors. Other details of the role and function of
the Remuneration Committee are given at the Company's

website under the section “"Corporate Governance”.

In 2021, the Remuneration Committee had held one meeting,
among other matters, to review the remuneration package of
the Directors and senior management of the Group. The
details of the attendance record of each member of the
Remuneration Committee are provided in the section
"ATTENDANCE RECORD OF THE DIRECTORS AT BOARD
MEETINGS, BOARD COMMITTEE MEETINGS AND GENERAL
MEETINGS" below.
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Remuneration Policy

The formulation of the Group's remuneration strategy and
policy is based on the principles of equity and market
competitiveness so as to drive staff to work towards the
mission of the Group and to retain talents. As a long-term
incentive plan and with the aim of motivating Directors
and employees in the continued pursuit of the
Company's goal and objectives and to recognize their
contributions to the Group, the Company has adopted
the share option scheme under which the Company may
grant share options to the Directors/selected employees/
eligible persons to subscribe for the shares of the
Company and two share incentive award schemes,
namely, The VC Share Purchase Scheme Trust and The
VC Share Award Scheme Trust, under which the
Company may grant awarded shares to the Directors/
selected employees (Directors of the Company and its
subsidiaries are not allowed to participate in The VC
Share Award Scheme Trust).

Emoluments of Directors

The emoluments of the Directors are determined with
regard to the performance of individuals, the Company's
operating results and market standards. During the year
ended 31 December 2021, the Remuneration
Committee has (i) considered and reviewed the salary of
Directors and senior management of the Group; and (ii)
considered and reviewed the discretionary bonus
payments entitlement for Directors and senior

management of the Group.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee is made up of the Company's

Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Siu Miu

Man, Simon, mMH (Chairman), Mr. Wong Chung Kin, Quentin

and Mr. Wong Kam Choi, Kerry, MH.
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The Nomination Committee reviews the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience)
of the Board; identifies individuals suitably qualified to
become Board members and make recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorship; and makes recommendations to the Board on
relevant matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment

of directors and succession planning for directors.

Other details of the role and function of the Nomination
Committee are given at the Company's website under the

section “Corporate Governance”.

In 2021, the Nomination Committee had held one meeting,
among other matters, to review the structure, size and
composition of the Board of the Company. The Nomination
Committee also assessed and is satisfied with the
independence of Mr. Wong Chung Kin, Quentin and Mr. Wong
Kam Choi, Kerry, mH. The details of the attendance record of
each member of the Nomination Committee for 2021 are
provided in the section “ATTENDANCE RECORD OF THE
DIRECTORS AT BOARD MEETINGS, BOARD COMMITTEE
MEETINGS AND GENERAL MEETINGS” below.

Board Diversity Policy

The Nomination Committee has adopted a board diversity
policy in September 2013. The main purpose of the policy is
to achieve diversity on the Board. Based on the policy, the
selection of candidates for board membership will be based
on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited,
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
services. All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy,
and candidates will be considered against objective criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.
Details of the Board Diversity Policy are given at the
Company’'s website under the section “Corporate

Governance”.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD OF THE DIRECTORS AT e EEZEEESRENR
BOARD MEETINGS, BOARD COMMITTEE MEETINGS BEARECESEHEDHE
AND GENERAL MEETINGS
Attendance record of Directors in 2021
TEC-FESHERR
Audit Remuneration  Nomination
Board  Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee 2021 AGM/

Name of Directors EEpg Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting EGMs
—E--F
RRBF
BENZEE FMZEEe REZEE Ke/RR
Ezgen 83 =f = RAXE

Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Fu Yiu Man, Peter HRX kL 6/6  NATER  NATEE  NATER 1/1
Mr. Lin Hoi Kwong, Aristo EEIEAE 6/6  N/ATEFA N/ATiE B N/AT i 11
Ms. Li Cindy Chen’ FREL 11 NATMER  NANER NATER NATER
Mr. Zhang Nu? REEE? 11 NATER  NATER  NATER NATER
Mr. Tang Hao® BEELE 202 N/ATER O NATER NATER NATER
Mr. Cheng Tak Yiu, Simon? BEmEE 202 N/AMMER NATER NATER NATER

Independent Non-executive Directors B FEE17TE %

Mr. Wong Chung Kin, Quentin BRE L4 6/6 2/2 1/1 1/1 11

Mr. Wong Kam Choi, Kerry, MH AR L 6/6 2/2 1/1 1/1 1/1

Mr. Siu Miu Man, Simon, MH BYXFEAE - un 6/6 2/2 1/1 1/1 1/1

Notes: BT -

1. Ms. Li Cindy Chen was appointed as an Executive Director on 27 1. ZFRZINZZZ—FhLAZt+EBEEZRE
September 2021. RBITES -

2. Mr. Zhang Nu was appointed as an Executive Director on 1 2. REEAR-_Z-_—F+—A—HAEZEAR
November 2021. WITES -

3. Mr. Tang Hao resigned as an Executive Director on 24 May 3. EBEEER_T_—FHA_+HBEBEIHR
2021. TTEH -

4. Mr. Cheng Tak Yiu, Simon was appointed as an Executive 4. BEREEN T —F-A-T+HEZE
Director on 20 January 2021 and resigned on 24 May 2021. ROTES HEN_Z-_—FRA-+@H
HEHE -
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
ACCOUNTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements. The Company’s
consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance
with all relevant statutory requirements and applicable
accounting standards. The Directors are responsible for
ensuring that appropriate accounting policies have been
adopted and applied consistently, and that judgments and

estimates made are prudent and reasonable.

The Directors’ responsibilities for preparing the financial
statements and the reporting responsibilities of the external
auditor are set out on pages 155 to 159 of this Annual

Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
i. Responsibility
The Group has established Risk Management Policy to:

a. define the roles and responsibilities of the relevant

parties in the risk management process;

b. provide a practical framework to the management

for mitigating various risks; and

c.  promote risk awareness within the Group.

The Directors and the Board Committees have an
oversight role to determine that appropriate risk
management processes are in place and that these
processes are adequate and effective. The Directors
should determine the level of risk that the Board is willing
to accept in pursuit of its business objectives by
considering whether the risk against reward ratio is
appropriate. Management should be responsible for the
identification, assessment and mitigation of material risks

faced by the business unit(s)/group function(s) which
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they are responsible for. The management should also
regularly conduct review and monitoring of the Group's
compliance with the risk management process, system

and internal control.

The risk management and internal control systems are
designed to safeguard the Shareholders’ investments and
the Group's assets; to maintain proper accounting records
for the provision of reliable financial information; and to
ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations.
It aims to provide reasonable but not absolute assurance
against material misstatement, fraud or loss and to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to

achieve the Group's business objectives.

Management Supervision

The Board has assigned the Executive Committee to
oversee the implementation of the Group's internal
control and risk management and to monitor the

business and operations continuously.

The Executive Committee and management have defined
the organizational structure of the Group with clear
reporting lines and authorities. Competent personnel are
recruited to facilitate the establishment and maintenance

of the risk management.

System and procedures are in place to identify, control
and report on the major types of risks. The management
endorses policies, procedures, codes and guidelines to
mitigate significant inherent risks embedded in the
operational and financial activities. The “Code of Business
Conduct and Ethics” is formulated and communicated to
all staffs with the aim of cultivating high integrity and

ethical values within the Group.
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The Group operates multiple lines of defenses to effect a
robust control framework. At the first level, the operating
business and support units are responsible for the day-
to-day management of risks inherent in the various
business activities. The second line of defense sets the
policy and guidelines for managing specific risk areas,
provides advice and guidance in relation to the risk.
Internal audit function forms the third line of defense
which evaluates significant risk exposure and contributes
to the improvement of the risk management and control

systems.

Internal Audit Function

The Group has in place an internal audit function within
the Group as required under code provision C.2.5 of the
Corporate Governance Code. The annual internal audit
plan is reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee.
During the year under review, the Group has engaged an
independent professional adviser (“Internal Control
Adviser") to perform independent appraisal of the
adequacy and effectiveness of certain subsidiaries’ risk
management and internal control system for the year.
The Internal Control Adviser reports directly to the Audit
Committee. The Internal Control Adviser independently
reviews and assesses the design and the effectiveness of
the major subsidiaries’ system of internal control by
adopting a risk-based audit approach, focusing on major
processes and activities which are quantitatively or
qualitatively significant to the Group. The Internal Control
Adviser reports all significant internal control and risk

management matters to the Audit Committee.

S
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Audit Committee Supervision

The Board is responsible for maintaining and reviewing
the effectiveness of risk management and internal control
systems. The Audit Committee has been assigned by the
Board to review and supervise the financial reporting
process and internal control procedures of the Group.
The Board also, through the Audit Committee, has
conducted an annual review of the effectiveness of the
Group's system of risk management and internal control
covering all material controls, including financial,

operational and compliance controls.

The Audit Committee conducts regular meetings with
Senior Management, the Internal Control Adviser and
external auditor to review the financial statements and
auditor's reports on financial and internal control matters.
The Audit Committee reports to the Board on significant
internal control matters, suspected frauds or irregularities,
alleged infringement of laws and regulations, which come

to their attention.

The Audit Committee, through the Internal Control
Adviser, has conducted comprehensive risk assessments
and internal control reviews on the design and the
effectiveness of the Group's system of internal control for
the year ended 31 December 2021, which covers the
key controls for mitigating the major risks associated with
the significant processes. During the year under review,
no major issue but areas for improvement have been
identified.

The Audit Committee has considered that the risk
management and internal control systems are
appropriately designed and effective. The Audit
Committee has also assessed the adequacy of resources,
qualifications, experience, training programmes and
budget of staff of the Group’s Finance Department and

considered that it is adequate.
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v. Inside Information v

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the
handling and dissemination of inside information, the

Group:

a. has developed Inside Information Disclosure Policy
in relation to the disclosure of inside information
about the Group companies, its officers and
substantial shareholders. The disclosure can
communicate such information to investors for

investment decision on equal and informed basis;

b. has established Corporate Communications Policy
for responding to all media related inquiries,
interviews and conference on the corporate issues.
Authorized persons are assigned to act as
spokespersons to speak on behalf of the Group and

to respond to external enquiries; and

¢ has included in its Code of Business Conduct and
Ethics a strict prohibition for all employees of the
Group on the unauthorized use of confidential or

inside information.
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DIVIDEND POLICY IR B B X
The Board has considered the general principles that it ZBE&fEEZREKE (EREE)HFRK
currently intends to apply when recommending dividends for  EiR{E A HIR B85 - © & B H B A E R

approval by the shareholders or when declaring any interim 2 —fRR 8| - EES A et L — B EH B F
dividends. The actual dividend that the Board may EEHHFTERE BEERELEBTT
recommend or declare in respect of any particular financial R ENRBZBESRIERBZEANEMREMR
year will be subject to the factors outlined below as well as  EFR - BB A E BN L AP AR 3% -

any other factors deemed relevant by the Board. Dividend

may be distributed either in cash, or in the form of shares.
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The dividend policy is as follows:

« In determining the dividend payment ratio in respect of
any particular financial year, the Board will take into
account a desire to maintain and potentially increase
dividend levels within the overall objective of maximizing
shareholder's value over the longer term, and;

« If an annual dividend in respect of a financial year is to
be paid, the dividend would generally be paid in form of
an interim and a final dividend.

In considering the level of dividend payments, if any, upon

recommendation by the Board, various factors will be taken

into account, including:

«  the level of cash and retained earnings;

«  the expected financial performance;

« the projected levels of capital expenditure and other

investment plans;

«  the taxation consideration;

«  the possible effects on the Group's creditworthiness;

«  statutory and regulatory restrictions; and

« any other factors the Board may deem relevant.

There can be no assurance that the Company will be able to

declare or distribute any dividend in any financial year.
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AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION ZEET

For the year ended 31 December 2021, audit and non-audit #HE-ZZ=-_—F+-A=+—ALFE" K
services provided by the external auditor of the Company, are R RISMNEZEETFTIRH 2 B RIEBZERE

as below: R
SHINEWING (HK)
CPA Limited
BXRFHM(FE)
EhlES
FERALTA
HK$'000
FET
Audit services EZ R
Audit of the consolidated financial statements of the FEZAEBEHZ_T_—F+ = 1,300
Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 R=+—RIEFEZHEEVHR
and the review of the preliminary announcement REEBERHAERHEE T - —F
of the result of the Group for the year ended TZAZT—RILEFEZYHFE
31 December 2021 =W/Nii]
COMPANY SECRETARY NEAME

The Company Secretary is a full-time employee of the ARRMER/ARAZEZRES HARFZ
Company and has day-to-day knowledge of the Company's H&EEHEMRH 2R WEREZTSE
affairs. The Company Secretary reports to the Board and is ' WEEREFGRUELAEEIEHZE
responsible for advising the Board on governance matter. The R ° ABWEER BN _-_FT - —FOEX
Company Secretary has confirmed that he has taken no less TR 15/ 2 A F X EF -

than 15 hours of relevant professional training in 2021.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognizes the value of providing current and
quality information to its Shareholders, both individual and
institutional. It also recognizes the importance of maintaining
continuous communication with Shareholders and constantly
looks for ways to ensure the Group maintains an open and

ongoing dialogue with the existing and potential Shareholders.

i. Shareholders’ Communication Policy

The Company has adopted a shareholders’ communication
policy to ensure an effective ongoing dialogue with
Shareholders. Such policy shall be reviewed by the Board
on a regular basis to ensure its effectiveness. Details of the
Shareholders’ Communication Policy are given at the
Company’s website under the section “Corporate

Governance”.

ii. The Company’'s Website

The Company's website at www.vcgroup.com.hk provides
comprehensive and most updated information about the
Company, including financial results, announcements,
circulars, composition of the Board/Board committees
and their respective terms of reference, biographical
information of Directors and Senior Management, and
other corporate documents such as Atrticles of Association

and other policies adopted by the Company.

iii. Annual General Meeting

The Company regards the annual general meeting
("AGM™") an important event as it provides an opportunity
for the Board to communicate with the Shareholders.
Notice of AGM and related papers are sent to the
Shareholders at least 21 clear days before the meeting.
The Company supports the CG Code's principle to
encourage Shareholders’ participation. Questioning by the

Shareholders at the AGM is encouraged and welcomed.
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Enquiries

The Company Secretary responds to letters and
telephone enquiries from Shareholders/investors.
Shareholders and investors are welcome to raise
enquiries through the Company’s email contact
info@vcgroup.com.hk or by mail to our Company
Secretary at 6th Floor, Centre Point, 181-185 Gloucester
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Convening of General Meetings

Under Section 566 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of Laws of Hong Kong) (the “Companies
Ordinance”), Shareholders of the Company who
representing at least 5% of the total voting rights of all
members having a right to vote at general meetings of
the Company may request the Directors of the Company
to convene general meetings. The requisition must state
the general nature of business to be dealt with at the
meeting, and must be signed by the requisitionist(s) and
deposited at the registered office of the Company at 6th
Floor, Centre Point, 181-185 Gloucester Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong. Shareholders may include the text of a
resolution that may properly be moved and is intended

to be moved at the meeting.

The Directors must proceed to convene a general
meeting within 21 days from the date of receipt of the
requisition. Such meeting should be held on a date not
more than 28 days after the date on which the notice
convening the meeting is given. If the Directors fail to
convene the general meeting as aforesaid, the
requisitionist(s), or any of them representing more than
one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
themselves convene the meeting. Any meeting so
convened shall not be held after the expiration of three

months from the date of the deposit of the requisition.
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For more details, Shareholders may refer to the

requirements as set out in the Companies Ordinance.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meeting

Under Section 615 of the Companies Ordinance,
Shareholders representing at least 2.5% of the total
voting rights of all the members having a right to vote, or
at least 50 Shareholders who have a relevant right to
vote may (a) put forward proposal at general meeting;
and (b) circulate to other Shareholders written statement
with respect to matter to be dealt with or other business

to be dealt with at general meeting.

The requisition must be sent to the Company in hard
copy or in electronic form and must identify the
resolution of which notice is to be given. It must be
signed by the requisitionist(s) and be received by the
Company not less than six weeks before the annual
general meeting to which the request related, or, if later,

the time at which notice is given of that meeting.

For more details on the Shareholders’ qualifications, and
the procedures and timeline, in connection with the
above, Shareholders may refer to the Sections 580 and

615 of the Companies Ordinance.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There is no significant change in the constitutional documents

of the Company in 2021.

The consolidated version of the Company's Articles of

Association is given at the Company's website under the

section “Corporate Governance”.
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The Board (the “Board") of Directors (the “Directors”) of Value
Convergence Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is pleased to
present their annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “"Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2021, together with the audited comparative

figures for the year ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 43 to

the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group's business during the year including the
description of the Group’s business and its external
environment, business objectives and strategies, business
model and development and principal performance drivers are
provided in the Chairman’s Statement and the Management
Discussion and Analysis on pages 4 to 6 and pages 7 to 38

respectively of this Annual Report.

Further, the Management Discussion and Analysis also
contains the information about the Group's financial
performance analysis and financial position assessment,
number and remuneration of employees and remuneration
policies, particulars of important events affecting the Group
that had occurred since the year ended 31 December 2021

and the Group's likely future development in business.
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Environmental policies and performance

The Group encourages environment protection, complies with
environmental legislation and promotes awareness towards
environment protection to the employees. The careful use of
resources and adoption of the best practices across the
Group's business shows our commitment towards
environmental protection. The Group adheres to the principle
of Recycling and Reducing. Stationeries such as envelopes,
letterheads and business cards, as well as interim reports and
annual reports delivered to the shareholders are printed on
environmentally friendly paper. It also implements green office
practices such as encouraging double-sided printing and
copying. Obsolete computer equipments, after removal of data
storage devices, are either donated to charities or passed to
recyclers together with used computer consumables such as

ink and toner cartridges.

Compliance with laws and regulations in relation to
financial services business

The Group’s financial services business is mainly under the
supervision of Securities and Futures Commission (“SFC"),
including securities, futures and options brokering and dealing,
margin financing services, corporate finance services as well as
asset management, and other authorities for the insurance
brokerage and money lending services. As such, the Group
has to comply with the rules and regulations of SFC and other
related regulators and authorities. In order to comply with all
these rules and regulations, the Group’s Compliance
Department has tailored-made some specific operation
manuals and implemented the internal control procedures to
regulate the Group's daily business activities. Regular testing
are conducted on the Group's operations to minimize the risk
exposures and take appropriate remedial actions, when
necessary. Meanwhile, the Group will engage independent
professional bodies to provide advices and assistance on the

Group's compliance issues, when necessary.
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In addition, the Group has adopted a more targeted approach
to customer due diligence through the use of a sophisticated
software provided by a third party financial service provider.
This simplifies and accelerates the customer due diligence for
the entire customer base of the Group, which includes
screening for money laundering, sanctions and threat finance
and also enables detailed monitoring of politically exposed
person relationships and networks and is also customizable to
identify a variety of specific third party risks, when necessary.
All these measures are important in increasing the efficiency
and effectiveness in dealing with the regulatory and
operational burdens and risks the Group’s regulated

businesses are facing.

Relationships with customers and suppliers and
major customers and suppliers

The Group understands that it is important to maintain a good
relationship with its customers and suppliers. To do so, the
Group delivers its financial services and products in
professional attitude to procure clients’ trust, which help to
create new business opportunities to the Group. During the
year, there was no material and significant dispute between

the Group and its customers and/or suppliers.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the aggregate
revenue attributable to the Group's largest customer and five
largest customers combined are approximately 16% (2020:
99%) and 30% (2020: 28%) respectively, of the Group’s total
revenue. During the year, none of the Directors, their
associates or any shareholder of the Company (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) have an interest in any of the
Group's five largest customers. For 2021, all the five largest
customers have 1 year to 3 years of business relationship with
the Group and one of them is a listed company in Hong Kong.
Besides, the Group had no major supplier due to the nature

of principal activities of the Group.
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Relationships with employees HES ZBRF
(a) Emolument policy and employee benefits (@) FHHEKIESEF

The Group understands that employees are valuable
assets, therefore it provides competitive remuneration
package to attract and motivate the employees. The
emolument policy of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee of the Company. The Group's
employees are selected, remunerated and promoted on
the basis of their merit, qualifications, performance and
competence. Regular revision for each employee is
conducted annually. Meanwhile, the emoluments of the
Directors and senior management of the Group are
decided by the Remuneration Committee and/or the
Board, having regard to the performance of individuals,
the Group's operating results and comparable market

statistics.

Apart from the basic salaries and participation in
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme, the Group also
provides medical coverage, sales commission,
discretionary performance-based bonus, discretionary

share options and share awards to all employees.

As above-mentioned, the Company has a share option
scheme and share award schemes as an incentive to the
eligible persons of the schemes, whom including the
Directors, employees and others of the Group. Details of
the schemes and the movements of the share options
and awarded shares granted to the eligible persons
during the year are set out in the sections of
"DIRECTORS" INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES", “SHARE OPTION SCHEME"
and "SHARE AWARD SCHEMES" in this report.
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(b) Training and development

©

Employees of the Group are encouraged to attend
training and development courses so as to keep abreast
of their skills and knowledge. Our Compliance
Department organizes in-house training courses for all
employees of the Group, specifically for those are
licensed persons registered under the Hong Kong
Securities and Futures Ordinance, and provides ongoing
compliance updates and regulatory requirements to them.
The Group also funds the Directors to attend continuous
professional development training including updates on
regulatory requirements and corporate governance
practices. Relevant employees are also funded to attend

external training courses which are relevant to their work.

Health and safety

In order to provide a safe working environment, offices’
workstations are regularly checked and maintained by the
Administration Department of the Group. Besides,
cleaning of carpets and air-conditioning systems are
regularly carried out so as to provide hygienic working

conditions for the employees.
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Principal risks and uncertainties of the Group

The Group's core businesses are the provision of financial
services comprising securities, futures and options brokering
and dealing, financing services and corporate finance and
other advisory services, asset management and insurance
brokerage; proprietary trading; and sales and marketing of
digital assets. Due to the nature of the Group’s financial
services business and proprietary trading business, the Group
may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties
associated with its key financial services and products. It
mainly divided into two categories, namely operational risk
and financial risks. To ensure implementation of the
appropriate measures in managing and monitoring these risk
exposures on a timely and effective manner, policies and
procedures are established by the Group. Details of the key
risks and uncertainties identified by the Group and the ways

on how the Group encounters these are given as follows:

(a) Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from
inadequate or failed operational processes, people and
systems or from external events. In the other words, the
operational risk arises from non-compliance of policies
and procedures and lack of control. The Group has
established some operational policies and guidelines,
delegation of authorities and reporting requirements for
helping each employee of the Group to develop a set of
personal practices in performing their job to the highest
level. The operational policies provide detailed guidelines
for various functions of the Group in executing most of
the business transactions such as accounting and finance,
operations, legal and compliance, human resources,

information technology and administration.
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(b)

Meanwhile, detailed compliance and procedural manuals
and policies are designed for the major subsidiaries of
the Group which carried out the finance services
business. The internal policies and manuals aim to
ensure that the major subsidiaries of the Company
comply with all rules, regulations, codes and legislations
governing every aspect of the Group's regulated activities
at all times. All sales staff and/or investment
representatives are required at all times to fully
understand and follow the regulated requirements, which
will be updated from time to time in response to changes
of rules and regulations. Training programs and active
communications are continuously provided to promote
their awareness. Internal control procedures are applied
to monitor compliance of the Group’s policies and
guidelines. Appropriate disciplinary actions shall be taken
against the responsible staff, who is guilty of serious
misconduct. Further, for the proprietary trading business,
securities investment policy has been established
providing investment guidelines and reporting procedures

for the responsible persons to follow.

The Group’s Compliance Department and Internal Control
Adviser are responsible for identifying and monitoring the
key operational exposures and report regularly the
potential risk issues to the management and the Audit

Committee of the Group respectively.

Financial risks
In the course of business activities, the Group is exposed
to a variety of financial risks, including market, credit and

liquidity risks.

() Market risk
The Group's market risk primarily includes currency
risk (foreign exchange rate risk), interest rate risk

and equity price risk.

(b)
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Currency risk — It is the Group's policy for each
group entity to operate in local currencies as far
as possible to minimize currency risks. Most of
the Group's principal businesses are conducted
in Hong Kong dollars which is also the
functional currency of the Company, with a
rising proportion of business in the Mainland
China resulting in certain Renminbi exposure.
Since the impact of foreign exchange exposure
is still minimal, no hedging against foreign
currency exposure has been carried out by the
Group for the year. The Finance Department
will manage and monitor the relevant risk from

time to time.

Interest rate risk — The Group is exposed to fair
value interest rate risk in relation to fixed-rate
accounts receivable from money lending
business, in which the risk is considered to be
insignificant as the majority of the amount is
carried at amortised cost. The Group is also
exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable-rate accounts receivable
from brokerage and financing businesses such
as cash clients and margin clients, which is
mainly relating to the fluctuation of prime rate
or bank’s cost of funding arising from the
Group's interest-bearing financial instruments.
The Finance Department has prepared
sensitivity analysis on the exposure to cash flow
interest rates for the Group's interest-bearing
financial instruments on a semi-annually basis
and note that such exposure to the Group is

not significant.
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«  Equity price risk — The Group is exposed to
equity price risk arising from fluctuation in the
price through the Group's investment in listed
equity securities. Management regularly reviews
and monitors the Group's investment portfolio

so as to limit the risk exposure.

(i) Credit risk
The Group's credit risk is the risk of losses from a
borrower or counterparty defaulting on an obligation
which will result in financial loss to the Group. The
risk mainly arises from the following business

activities undertaken by the Group:

*  Financing from brokerage business — In relation
to the financing from brokerage business, the
credit risk arises on the margin portfolio and
clients’ trade settlement. When the market goes
downside, the possibility of doubtful debts will
arise. The clients may be unable or unwilling to
settle the sum owed. As such, credit
assessment and continuous management of
credit exposures are indispensable. The Group
has established the credit policies and
procedures setting out in details the structure
of the credit risk management, the credit
approval and monitoring mechanism, and the
issue for provision for doubtful receivables.
Meanwhile, the management of the Group has
delegated a team forming the credit committee
for setting the direction of the credit risk
management and to oversee the Group's
overall credit risk exposure. The credit
committee meets monthly to review the work
of the credit officer who is responsible for the
daily credit management activities, determine
and review the credit limits, credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts and receivables from the clients with
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shortfalls. Ad hoc discussions and meetings
may also be held by the credit committee
whenever necessary. Moreover, the Group
closely evaluates the borrower's credit rating,
financial background and repayment abilities.
The assessment is based on a closely
monitoring and evaluation of the collectability
of individual account and on management's
judgment from different aspects including the
current credit worthiness of the borrowers,
collateral value and the past collection history
of each individual borrower.

Money lending — All individual loans are
currently assessed and approved by the Group's
management. The Group closely evaluates the
borrowers’ credit rating, financial background,
repayment abilities and the value of securities
collateral. The assessment is based on a close
monitoring and evaluation of the collectability
of individual borrower and on management'’s
judgment from different aspects including the
current credit worthiness of the borrower,
collateral value and the past collection history
of each individual borrower. The management
of the Group has delegated a team forming the
credit committee for setting the direction of the
credit risk management and to oversee the
Group's overall credit risk exposure. The credit
committee meets monthly to review the status
of individual borrowers and determine if any
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts and receivables from the clients. The
Finance Department is responsible for the daily
monitoring of the borrowers including the
adequacy of the collateral value and any default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments
in accordance with the contractual terms, and
promptly report to the credit committee, when

necessary.
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Furthermore, the Group has monitored its concentration
of credit risk in different aspects. The Group's
concentration of credit risk by geographical locations is
mainly in Hong Kong. The Group has policies in
monitoring both client concentration risk and stock
concentration risk. The Group regularly performs stress
tests on stock concentration to evaluate the Group's
credit risk exposure and capital adequacy in the event of
abnormal and significant changes in market condition. As
at 31 December 2021, the Group has concentration of
credit risk on the accounts receivable as the aggregate
balances with the five largest clients representing
approximately 62% (2020: 849%) of total accounts
receivable. Four of these clients’ balances are within the
credit limits granted by the Group and meet the loan-to-
value ratio. Further, the fair values of the securities
collateral held by the Group for these four largest
customers are in excess of the relevant carrying amounts
or has no overdue amounts as at 31 December 2021.
Regarding the remaining one customer, demand letters
had been issued and other actions shall be followed
when necessary. Accordingly, the Directors consider that
the Group's credit risk is closely monitored. The Group

has no other significant concentration of credit risk.

(iii) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the potential that the Group will be
unable to meet its obligations when they fall due.
The Group's liquidity risk management includes
making available appropriate assets as collaterals to
obtain financing when necessary and diversifying the
funding sources. The Group's operations are mainly
financed by internal generated cash flow and margin
financing. In managing the liquidity risk, it is
important that the Group maintains an adequate
level of cash and credit facilities to finance the

Group's daily operations.
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Indeed, the Group’s major subsidiaries are regulated
by SFC, which are subject to SFC's liquid capital
requirements. Under the liquid capital requirements,
the regulated subsidiaries must maintain the
minimum liquid capital, which shall in excess of
HK$3 million or 5% of their total adjusted liabilities,
whichever the higher. The Finance Department
monitors the Group’s major funding positions on a
daily basis so as to ensure adequate financial
resources are available to meet the Group's financial
obligations as well as to comply with SFC
requirement. It is believed that the Group has
adequate working capital to meet its financial
obligations and the regulated subsidiaries have no
non-compliance with the liquid capital requirements

during the year.

(c) Occurrence of any natural disaster or outbreak of
contagious diseases such as COVID-19 could adversely
affect the Group’s business and operations. The Group
implements business continuity plans including “Work
from Home" and “Flexible Working Hours", and ensures
all safety measures as required by the Hong Kong

Government are fully implemented.

For more details about the principal risks and
uncertainties in which the Group are facing and also the
relevant risk management objectives and policies, please
refer to section “Financial Review” contained in the
Management Discussion and Analysis and notes 38 and
39 to the consolidated financial statements on pages
315 to 338 of this Annual Report.
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RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2021 and the Group's financial position at that date are set
out in the Group's consolidated financial statements on pages
160 to 355 of this Annual Report.

No interim dividend was paid to the Shareholders during the
year (2020: Nil). The Directors do not recommend the
payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31 December
2021 (2020: Nil).

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 20 to the

consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE OPTIONS AND SHARE
AWARDS

Details of the movements in share capital, share options and
share awards of the Company during the year are set out in
notes 35 and 36 respectively to the consolidated financial

statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Placing of new
shares under general mandate”, the Company has not entered
into any equity-linked agreement during the year ended 31
December 2021.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the
year ended 31 December 2021. Neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the

Company's shares during the year ended 31 December 2021.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2021, the Company has no reserves
available for distribution to shareholders (2020: Nil).

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable donations
amounting to approximately HK$100 (2020: HK$Nil).

FIVE YEARS' FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated results and of the consolidated
assets and liabilities of the Group of the past five financial
years as extracted from the audited consolidated financial
statements is set out on page 356 of this Annual Report. This
summary does not form part of the audited consolidated

financial statements.
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DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the

date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. FU Yiu Man, Peter, Chairman

Mr. LIN Hoi Kwong, Aristo

Ms. LI Cindy Chen (appointed on 27 September 2021)

Mr. ZHANG Nu (appointed on 1 November 2021)

Mr. TANG Hao (resigned on 24 May 2021)

Mr. CHENG Tak Yiu, Simon (appointed on 20 January 2021
and resigned on 24 May 2021)

Independence Non-executive Directors
Mr. WONG Chung Kin, Quentin

Mr. WONG Kam Choi, Kerry, MH

Mr. SIU Miu Man, Simon, MH

Pursuant to Article 88 of the Articles of Association of the
Company (“Articles of Association”), any Director so appointed
shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-
election at that meeting. In accordance with this article, Ms. Li
Cindy Chen and Mr. Zhang Nu shall retire, and being eligible,

offer themselves for re-election.
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Pursuant to Article 97 of the Articles of Association, one-third
of the Directors for the time being, or, if their number is not
three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to, but
not less than, one-third, shall retire from office. The Directors
to retire every year shall be those who have been longest in
office since their last election. In accordance with this article,
Mr. Wong Chung Kin, Quentin, Mr. Wong Kam Choi, Kerry, mMH
and Mr. Siu Miu Man, Simon, MH shall retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting, and being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election.

DIRECTORS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES

During the year and up to the date of this report, Mr. Fu Yiu
Man, Peter, Mr. Lin Hoi Kwong, Aristo, Ms. Li Cindy Chen, Mr.
Zhang Nu and Mr. Cheng Tak Yiu, Simon are also directors in
certain subsidiaries of the Company. Other directors of the
Company's subsidiaries during the year and up to the date of
this report include Mr. Leung Chi Ho, David, Mr. Leung Chi
Wai, Chris, Ms. Ho Wing Man, Ginny, Ms. Chan Tik Man, Mr.
Yeung Kwok Leung, Ms. Tsui Dick Yee, Daisy, Mr. Wong Chi
Ming, Mr. Chan Ming Leung, Terence, Mr. Ma Chi Keung, Mr.
Wang Edward Xu, Ms. Tong Suk Yin, Ellen, Ms. Jie Chao, Ms.
Zhong Ying. Mr. Sam Hon Fai, Mr. Zhang Peng and Ms. Li

Xiaowen.

STATUS OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received annual confirmation from each of
the Independent Non-executive Directors concerning their
independence to the Company pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Rules of Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). The Company considers all of the

Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS OF THE
COMPANY AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT OF THE
GROUP

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and
senior management of the Group as at the date of this report

are set out on pages 39 to 44 of this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Directors who are proposed for re-election at the AGM has
a service contract which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation (other than

statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Other than as disclosed in note 41 to the consolidated
financial statements, no contract of significance in relation to
the Group's business to which the Group was a party and in
which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time

during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITIES

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every Director shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company
against all losses or liabilities (to be fullest extent permitted by
the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)) which he/she may
sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his/
her office or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company has
arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance

coverage for the Directors and officers of the Group.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save for the share option scheme and share award schemes
disclosed in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements,
at no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body

corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESSES

During the year, none of the Director is interested in any
business apart from the Group's businesses, which competes
or is likely to complete, either directly or indirectly, with the
Group's businesses which is required to be disclosed pursuant
to the Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2021, the interests of the Directors and
their associates in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations,
as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFQO"), or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by the Directors of Listed Issuers (the

“Model Code"), were as follows:
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Long Positions in the Shares and Underlying Shares REATRGREBRGZIFE
of the Company

. 2
(a) Ordinary shares of the Company (@) ARAZHE
Number of shares
R EE
Personal Spouse Corporate Approximate%
interest interest interests Total of shareholdin
o O ERERA
5PN 5 EEEDE T E RS et [Epi)>4
Mr. Fu Yiu Man, Peter 20,000,000 - - 20,000,000 0.96%
Rt
Mr. Wong Chung Kin, Quentin 500,000 - - 500,000 0.02%
N
(b) Share options of the Company (b) A FlZBRE
Number of share options
BhRiEgs
Approximate
Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding at % of total
at 1 January during during during 31 December issued
Name of Director 2021 the year the year theyear _202 ordinary shares Date of grant Exercisable period  Exercise price
Hogs-# R 4ERf
-A-8 ) =i-8 LERAR ) .
B3 HATE  RERRE  RERGR  REAXN HARE  BKESL RHAH i MSE
AT
Mr. Fu Yiu Man, Peter 7,484,000 - - (7484000) - 0.00% 24 anuary 2018 anuaw 2018 23 January 2021 167
ARXiE “E-\E-A-TRA : [E—ﬁ#%ﬁi
7700000 - (1700000) - - 0.00% 27 Iy 2020 il ]\y’ 200026 by 2003 026
ZECRELACTHA ZECRELACTrAR
:27*@[}5} thA
15,184,000 - (7700000)  (7484000) - 0.00%
. Lin Hoi Kwong, Aristo 7,940,000 - - (7940000) - 0.00% 24 anﬁuary 2018 24 JanuawZOlS 23 anuar&ZON 167
BRIT -N\E-B= %
7700000 - - - 7700000 037% 27 1uly 200 7] ]\; 2620 % u\y 03 026
ZECRELAITHA ZECRECACTHAR
7T7 L2 e v
15,640,000 - - (7940000) 7700000 0.37%
Mr. Wong Chung Kin, 200,000 - - (200,000) - 0.00% 24 anuary 2018 24 JanuawZOls—B January 2021 167
Quentn ZE-)\E-A-THA —N\f-A-TREZ
ENEEE ’f’*ﬁfﬂ t=8
1,226,000 - - - 1,228,000 0.06% 27 July 2020 0.26
ZECRELACTHR
1,428,000 - - (200,000) 1,228,000 0.06%
Mr. Wong Kem Choi, 200,000 - - (200,000) - 0.00% 24 anuary 2018 24 JanuaryZOlS 23 January 2021 167
&Ker?, WH “E-\E-fAZ1RA “E-\E-A-tRAEE
ERAEE W ZEC-E-f-1E8
1,228,000 - - - 1,228,000 0.06% u\y 2020 n u\y 2000-26. July 2023 026
k3 R-tth 2_%¢ tRE
ZELAZTAR
1,428,000 - - (200,000) 1,228,000 0.06%
r Siu Miu Man, Simon, M~ 200,000 - - (200,000) - 0.00% 24 January 2018 % January2018 23 January 2021 167
BYTEE ZE-\E-ATEA fﬁ Az ‘WH
1,228,000 - - - 1,228,000 0.06% 27 July 2020 0.26
ZECREYACTHA
1,428,000 - - (200,000) 1,228,000 0.06%

Total &3 35,108,000 - (7700000) (16,024,000) 11,384,000 0.55%
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Notes: Hat -

1. As at 31 December 2021, the Company's total issued ordinary 1. RZZE
shares was 2,078,601,598. BITE

—F+-_A=+—H ARQRAZE
A% 48 21 52,078,601,5980% -

@l\

2. During the year, no share options disclosed above were 2. FR @ #E FXH#E 2 BIRERETHE -
cancelled.

3. Details of the Share Option Scheme are set out under the 3. EHERBEFEZFBIRAREEANTE
section of "SHARE OPTION SCHEME" in this report. Mt &l — &

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of B EXFIEBEEN R_ZET=-_—F+_- A
the Directors and their respective associates had any interests =+—H BEREEEH7HEALTRAE
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or RAINMEEBZEE (ZELELBHEKENE
debentures of the Company and its associated corporation +HEZEHE) 2K « HERD K E#E B
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which had been & - I EEH AR D AIRIE B L L HE K
entered in the register kept by the Company pursuant to fﬁlJ%3521|7KTE27§:.EH%WZEEH$%E\ 0%

Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the CHIRBERESTRIE BTG AR D A K
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model FﬁZTﬂET—HZE* S SOR B o
Code.
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN THE FERERAERQATARMODHD 2SS
SHARES OF THE COMPANY
Long positions in the shares/underlying shares of RAERATRG HERGZFR
the Company
Approximate
Number of % of total
Number of  underlying  Aggregate issued
Name Capacity/Nature of interest shares held ~ shares held interest  ordinary shares Notes
HERT
gzl LEREY
£ 9t/ ButE FrERfn#E RHG&A BRAE BHBEA it
Mr. Chung Chi Shing, Eric Beneﬂcial owner 368,352,000 1,228,000 369,580,000 17.78% 2
BEMLE ERBRA
Notes: /}/j E\z .
1. As at 31 December 2021, the Company's total issued ordinary . RIEZ—F+ZRA=+—H ARAZE
shares was 2,078,601,598. BITE B A BUR2,078,601,598f% °

2. The underlying shares represent the 1,228,000 share options 2. HEBRHEXEBARAAXIR T _-_TF+ A
granted by the Company to Mr. Chung Chi Shing, Eric on 27 July Tt RmEEK L AR E 21,228,000
2020. FRARTE -
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, the
Company had not been notified of any other interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
which had been recorded in the register to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 8 June 2009, the
Company adopted a share option scheme (the “2009 Share
Option Scheme”). On 14 June 2018, by passed an ordinary
resolution at the extraordinary general meeting, the Company
adopted another share option scheme (the “2018 Share
Option Scheme”). On the same date, the 2009 Share Option
Scheme was terminated. No further options shall be offered
under and/or pursuant to the 2009 Share Option Scheme but
in all other respects the provisions of the 2009 Share Option
Scheme shall remain in full force and effect and options
granted thereunder prior to such termination shall continue to
be valid and exercisable in accordance with their terms of

issue.

Summary of the principal terms of the 2009 Share Option
Scheme and the 2018 Share Options Scheme (collectively

known as the “Share Option Schemes") are listed below.
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Summary of the Share Option Schemes

(@)

(b)

©

Purpose of the Share Option Schemes

The purpose of the Share Option Schemes is to
recognize the contribution made by the participants to
the Group and also provide them an opportunity to have
a personal stake in the Company with the view to
motivating them to optimize their performance and
efficiency for the benefit of the Group and to attract and
retain or otherwise maintain ongoing business
relationship with them whose contributions are beneficial

to the long term growth of the Group.

Farticipants of the Share Option Schemes

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, the Board may, at
its discretion, to make an offer for the grant of share
options to the employees or directors of the Group or
such other persons who are eligible for participation in
the Share Option Schemes to subscribe for ordinary
shares in the Company subject to the terms and

conditions stipulated in the Share Option Schemes.

Total number of shares available for issue under
the Share Option Schemes

The maximum number of shares of the Company which
may be issued upon exercise of outstanding share
options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Schemes must not exceed 30% of the total
number of shares of the Company in issue from time to

time.

BRETESE
(a) BREEZHAY

BRESZANDIREELBERA
KSEMELZERER2EERHEA
HERRARMER I HE  HEIED
BE2EERNRATERBERE
RASETRER - RS RBE A
H o A E2EEHEXTHE
# ZE2REMELHZERAAKHE
ZREBRREHRES -

(b) BRENE 2 HEE

RIEERELS S EERTHBEAE
B EENEERA LIRS ABRMET
B HATIRS B ERE  ERR
B RIER R RR TREAAR
LR -

(o) RIZBIRIE & ] ZTTZRBH

RIEBEREFE RO ZHRITERR
BRITERA TERTZARA RN 2
B EETNFBBEARARTR2HEE
TI A7 230% °

139



VALUE CONVERGENCE HOLDINGS LIMITED EZRIZRER AT

DIRECTORS’ REPORT EXE R4 =

The total number of shares of the Company which may
be issued upon exercise of all share options to be
granted under the 2009 Share Option Schemes and the
2018 Share Option Scheme shall not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the total number of shares of the
Company in issue as at the date of approval of the Share
Option Schemes (i.e. 37,116,977 shares and
89,481,682 shares of the Company, which represented
approximately 10% of the total number of shares of the
Company in issue as at 8 June 2009 and 14 June 2018
respectively). The Company may seek approval of the
Company’s shareholders in a general meeting for
refreshing the 109% limit under the Share Option
Schemes save that the total number of shares of the
Company which may be issued upon the exercise of all
share options to be granted under the Share Option
Schemes under the limit as “refreshed” may not exceed
10% of the total number of shares of the Company in

issue as at the date of approval of the limit.

As at 31 December 2021, the total number of shares
available for issue under the 2018 Share Option Scheme
was 226,947,159, representing approximately 10.92% of
the total number of shares of the Company in issue at
that date.

(d) Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of the shares of the Company issued
and to be issued upon exercise of the share options
granted and to be granted to any participant (including
both exercised, cancelled and outstanding share options)
in any twelve months up to the date of the grant to such
participant shall not exceed 1% of the total number of
shares of the Company in issue. Any further grant of
share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting of the

Company.
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(e)

®

9)

Time of exercise of share option

Pursuant to the Share Option Schemes, any share option
may be exercised in accordance with its terms at any
time during a period to be determined and notified by
the Board to each grantee, save that no share option may
be exercised more than 10 years from the date on which
the share option is deemed to have been granted and
accepted in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Schemes. The Board may provide restrictions on

the exercise of a share option during the option period.

Payment on acceptance of share option

Pursuant to the Share Option Schemes, HK$1.00 is
payable by the grantee to the Company on acceptance of
the share option within 28 days (for 2009 Share Option
Scheme) and 7 days (for 2018 Share Option Scheme)

from the date of grant of the share option.

Basic of determining the subscription price of share
option

The exercise price per share option under the Share
Option Scheme shall be determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion, but in any event shall be at least the
highest of: (i) the closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily
quotations sheet on the date when share option is
offered; and (ii) the average closing prices of the shares
of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily
quotations sheets for the five business days immediately

preceding the date on which share option is offered.
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(h) Remaining life of the Share Option Scheme (h) FEREE 22 FerE R

The 2009 Share Option Scheme has no remaining life as
no further share options may be granted but the
provisions of the 2009 Share Option Scheme shall in all
other respects remain in full force and effect and share
options which are granted during the life of the 2009
Share Option Scheme may continue to exercisable in

accordance with their respectively terms of issue.

The 2018 Share Option Scheme will continue to be in
full force and effect for a period of 10 years commencing
on 14 June 2018 (save that the Company, by ordinary
resolutions in general meeting or the Board, may at any
time terminate the operation of the 2018 Share Option
Scheme). After termination, no further share options will
be granted but the provisions of the 2018 Share Option
Scheme shall in all other respects remain in full force and
effect and the share options which are granted during the
life of the 2018 Share Option Scheme may continue to
be exercisable in accordance with their respective terms

of issue.
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Movement of Share Options BRESS

As at 31 December 2021, 56,372,000 share options ofthe W -_ZT - —F+_-_/F=+—H #5HF
Company were outstanding. Details of the movements of the ~ 56,372,000{3 AN A & 2 & B 1 5 5 R 1718 »
share options during the year are as follows: BRERFRNZESHNT

Number of share options
fEhEse

Reclassified Erercised Lapsed  Outstanding at Share options
Outstanding at Granted during during duing 31 Decem%)er duration Exercise
Category of participants 1 January 2021 during the year the year the year the year 01 Date of grant (e)) price
R-g=-f
i t2BZt-B ,
SEERA -R-BHAGR  MEARE REREFAE  REROE  REARR HAGE il BREZER fikE
HKS
i
Directors 16,024,000 - - - (1602400) - 24 January 2018 24 January 2018 - 167
23 January 2021
£ B NE-ATER SR NE-ACfmRE
“EE-ArER
19,084,000 - - (7,700000) - 11,384,000 27 July 2020 27y 2020 - 0.26
26 Juy 2023
TRCRRLACTHR TRORELACTLAE
“EZEEACHRA
Substantial Shareholder 222 792,000 - - - (792,000) - 24 January 2018 24 January 2018 - 167
23 January 2021
TERR “E-N\E-A-TER “E-N\E-AZfmRE
ZEE-AIECE
1,228,000 - - - - 1,228,000 27 July 2020 27 July 2020 - 026
2 uly 2003

2 g CTRECACTHAE
EITEEACTAR

Employees 8,140,000 - - - (8,140,000) - 24 January 2018 24 January 2018 - 167
23 January 2021
& ZE-NE-AZTEA “2-)\E-A-t0AE
“5--E-f-1=R
60,860,000 - - (24700000) (100,000) 36,060,000 27 1uly 2020 27 luly 2020 - 026
26 uly 2003
“ERRERCTE CECRECACTLAR
ZBIZELACTAA
Other eligble persons 33,160,000 - - - (33160000) - 24 January 2018 24 January 2018 - 167
23 January 2021
EhegfAL T-\E-Ao1EA 3 )\E-AtmEE
5o-E-f17H
7700000 - - - - 700,000 27 July 2020 27 luly 2020 - 026
26 uly 2003
g SRECACTHAZ
ZEIZELACTAA
Tota 231 146,988,000 - - (2400000 (58218000) 56,372,000
Notes: Bt -

(1) Commencing from the date of grant up to the date fallingon 3 (1) REHEREABEEZHEE=F3HERD
years from the date of grant of the share options, all shares BIRRETR T 2P IR AT BERT T8 -

comprised in the share options can be exercised at any time.

(2) Being Mr. Chung Chi Shing, Eric. (2) BMEREMKEAE -
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Details of the grant of share options to the Directors of the
Company are disclosed in the sub-headed “Long Positions in
the Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company” under the
section of "DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES" above.

During the year, no share options were cancelled under the

Share Option Scheme.

SHARE AWARD SCHEMES
On 31 March 2008, the Company adopted two share

incentive award schemes, namely The VC Share Purchase
Scheme Trust (the “Share Purchase Scheme”) and The VC
Share Award Scheme Trust (the “Share Subscription Scheme”)
(the Share Purchase Scheme and the Share Subscription
Scheme collectively are referred to as the “Share Award
Schemes”). Summary of the principal terms of the Share

Award Schemes are listed below:

Summary of the Share Award Schemes

(a) Purpose of the Share Award Schemes
The purpose of Share Award Schemes is to attract skilled
and experienced personnel, to provide incentives for
them to remain with the Group and to motivate them to
strive for the future development and expansion of the
Group by providing them with the opportunity to acquire

equity interests in the Company.
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(b) Farticipants of the Share Award Schemes

©

(@

The Board may, subject to the rules relating to the Share
Award Schemes, from time to time at is absolute
discretion select any employee of the Company or its
subsidiaries to be a participant in the Share Award
Schemes. However, director of the Company or any
subsidiaries and any other connected person of the
Company are not allowed to participate in the Share

Subscription Scheme.

Duration of the Share Award Schemes

The Share Award Schemes have a term of 20 years from
the date of adoption, i.e. 31 March 2008. The Board may
by resolution terminate the operation of the Share Award
Schemes at any time provided that such termination shall
not affect any subsisting rights of any selected employee.
If, at the date of such termination, the trustee holds any
shares which has not vested, then the trustee shall within
21 business days of receiving notice of such termination
sell such shares and remit the proceeds of sale (after

deductions) to the Company.

Scheme Limit

The scheme limit of the Share Purchase Scheme and
Share Subscription Scheme is 2% and 1% of the total
number of shares of the Company in issue respectively
from time to time (excluding shares which have already

been transferred to employees on vesting).

(b) K7 Bt E 22 HEE

R R I BRAMRARRT - EF
SR E2ENBERERRRRENEB
RNEZEfER 2 E EE RS - A
- ARFEHEMMERARZEETREA
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(e) Grant of the Awarded Shares

For the Share Purchase Scheme, the Board or the trustee
of the scheme (as the case may be) shall either (1) set
aside a sum of money or (2) determine a number of
shares which it wishes to be the subject of a bonus or
award under the Share Purchase Scheme. Where a sum
of money has been set aside (or a number of shares has
been determined), it shall pay (or cause to be paid) that
amount or an amount sufficient to purchase that number
of shares to the trustee (or as it shall direct) from the
Group's resources as soon as practicable following such
funds being set aside. Within 15 business days of
receiving the amount sufficient to purchase that number
of shares, the trustee shall apply the same towards the

purchase of shares on the Stock Exchange.

For the Share Subscription Scheme, the Board or the
trustee of the scheme (as the case may be) shall at its
discretion either (i) determine a notional cash amount or
(i) determine a number of shares (the “Number of
Awarded Shares") which it wishes to be the subject of an
award under the Share Subscription Scheme. Where a
notional cash amount has been determined by the Board,
the Board shall determine the maximum number of
shares (the "Relevant Number of Shares”), rounded down
to the nearest whole number which could be purchased
with such notional cash amount on the Stock Exchange at
the market price prevailing on the date of the award. The
Company shall pay (or cause to be paid) an amount of
either (i) the Relevant Number of Shares (where the
Board has determined a notional cash amount) or (ii) the
Number of Awarded Shares (where the Board has
determined such number) to the trustee (or as it shall
direct) from the Group's resources as soon as practicable
in accordance with the rules relating to the Share

Subscription Scheme.
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No payment shall be made to the trustee of the Share
Award Schemes (the “Trustee”) and no instructions to
subscribe for shares shall be given to the Trustee under
the Share Award Schemes where any member of the
Board is in possession of the inside information in
relation to the Company or where dealings by Directors
are prohibited under the Model Code as set out in the
appendices to the Listing Rules or any applicable laws
and regulations or any internal code of conduct in
securities dealing adopted by the Company from time to

time.

Vesting of the Awarded Shares

Vesting of the shares will be conditional on the selected
employee remaining as an employee of the Company or
the subsidiary until the vesting date. The Board also has
the discretion to stipulate such other conditions in
respect of a particular employee which will apply to the
vesting of the shares. Any shares held by the Trustee on
behalf of the selected employee of the Share Award
Schemes shall vest in accordance with the timetable
determined by the Board at its discretion. An award will
lapse where the Company or the business division by
which the selected employee is employed ceases to be
part of the Group or in the event the selected employee
does not deliver the notice of exercise within the
prescribed time limit to the Trustee for the purpose of

exercising his rights to receive the vested shares.

Where shares which are referable to a selected employee
do not vest or are not acquired by selected employees in
accordance with the procedures abovementioned, the
Trustee shall hold such shares or any income deriving
therefrom exclusively for the benefit of all selected
employees of the Group as the Trustee determines in its
absolute discretion, after having taken into consideration

recommendations of the Board.
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(g) Trustee of the Schemes

The Company shall have the power exercisable by deed
to appoint or remove any person as a Trustee. The
minimum number of trustees shall be two individuals or
a body corporate. The Trustee has the power to exercise
at its discretion all voting rights attached to any shares
held. Pursuant to the scheme rules, the Trustee is
obligated to exercise its power with the objective of
maximizing the benefits of the participants of the Share
Award Schemes and shall not be subject to influence

from any party.

Outstanding Awarded Shares

During the year ended 31 December 2021, there were no
shares awarded by the Company to any employees of the
Company and/or its subsidiaries and outstanding under the

Share Award Schemes.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Significant related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2021 are disclosed in

note 41 to the consolidated financial statements.

None of the related party transactions fall under the definition
of “connected transaction” or “continuing connected

transaction” in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group's audited
consolidated financial statements and results for the year
ended 31 December 2021 and is satisfied that these have
been prepared in accordance with the applicable accounting
standards and fairly present the Group's financial positions

and results for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Information on the work of the Audit Committee and its
composition are set out in the “Corporate Governance Report”

on pages 103 to 104 of this Annual Report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Corporate Governance Report is set out on pages 94 to

117 of this Annual Report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
report, the Company has maintained a sufficient public float
under the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31
December 2021.

AUDITOR

The financial statements of the Company for the 3 years
ended 31 December 2021 have been audited by Messrs.
SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited. A resolution will be submitted
to the forthcoming annual general meeting to re-appoint
Messrs. SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited as auditor of the

Company.

On behalf of the Board of
Value Convergence Holdings Limited
Fu Yiu Man, Peter

Chairman & Executive Director

Hong Kong
31 March 2022
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..:.: SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited EXPA(ES) BHAEHAAERAT
LR 43/F., Lee Garden One, 33 Hysan Avenue EHEREFEBI3N
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong FE—H4318

TO THE MEMBERS OF VALUE CONVERGENCE
HOLDINGS LIMITED

ERZRERAD

(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Value Convergence Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as the
“Group”) set out on pages 160 to 355, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant

accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2021, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the "HKICPA") and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong

Kong Companies Ordinance.

BVALUE CONVERGENCE HOLDINGS
LIMITED
EREZRARAAZZEERE
(REBHEMALZ R F])

it

4

.-
RZHAE EZINENFEI608 £ £E3558
ERERERABR(TERAA]) REWBEAR
ﬁKuTwﬁﬂaxﬁbm@é%%ﬁ% it
AU BBRERBRER-_TE=_—F+=A
:+fam%éﬁﬁ#ﬁ%ﬁ@iaami
ERREBEa R Et2EABAR  FEeEE
ffffff BPRREERERER  URKRAVBR
KK RIEEESRERERME -

b

BMRE REVBERREREEEGHM
AE([EASHAMAE]) BHOCEBIME
WEEA (BB BREEYNDEERmA
TR EEER-_ZT=-_—F+=A
=+ —HNGREVBRAREBEZB LT
ENFaMBRAREGERERE 1B
RBCEBRAURIN L REE -



VALUE CONVERGENCE HOLDINGS LIMITED EZRIZRAR A T

Annual Report 2021 &£}

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT B EEfiR &

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”) and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Impairment allowance on accounts receivable from

money lending services

HRELSE(#)
B AR 75 Wi BR RKORL (B 22 18

Refer to note 27 to the consolidated financial statements and 2B G A BB ENI27IRE203BEE S

the accounting policies on pages 203 to 210.

The key audit matter
HRESSER

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had accounts
receivable from money lending services with carrying
amount of approximately HK$202,729,000. The
Group has identified loans based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.
R-TE-_—F+-A=+—H > EXEXERE
AR 75 2 & W Bk 3R 2 BR T {E 49 /3202,729,000/8 7T
EEEREE VS HERBERELO T RAZIE Nk
ERHERMEBER -

The assessment of impairment for accounts
receivable from money lending services involves
significant management judgements and estimates
on the amount of expected credit loss at the
reporting date.
FHERBRERSE 2 BEERZBER Y R EEE
HRERPEREEBESBEEL ERAE &G
it
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How the matter was addressed in our audit
EPNESTNMEEZEE

Our audit procedures were designed to assess the
assumptions and critical judgements of the Group's
forward-looking expected credit loss (“ECL") model used
to estimate the impairment loss.
BANEARTFEETER EEEARKARERER
FAAELEREEEE((RMEEBE]) EXAAN
R 3% Mo 1 o -

We obtained an understanding of the Group's credit risk
management, practices and key controls over the
application of the impairment methodology, and
assessed the Group's impairment provisioning policy in
accordance with the requirements of HKFRS 9, including
an evaluation of management judgement on i) the use
of reasonable and supportable credit risk information
that is available without undue cost or effort; and ii) the
staging criteria for determining if a significant increase in
credit risk has occurred.

BHMEEGY EXEEERRERE FHEAMRE
FEZEBLBERESOT®H Ui h EEERE
ERVBMELERNEORRTE L RERBRER - BT
HEREH)EABAMNE NS ERARLSE /B A E
BraBERAXKHNEERRER  Ki)EFTEEMR
fa B B ERE IR A 7 B BRARSE(E I 2 FIER -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

AREZEHE(H)

Impairment allowance on accounts receivable from 14 1 PR 7% PE W BR RO B 22 45 (&)

money lending services (continued)

The key audit matter
BRETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit
EMNESTNNERZESE

We tested the appropriateness of the Group's
determination of significant increase in credit risk and
the basis for classification of exposures into the three
stages. Our testing included the checking to loan
overdue information, and considering the stage
classification determined by the Group.

BAEAE EEEEECGEERARETBRIZFLZINK
RSB A-ERENEERSSHE - ZMVAR
BREBREERAREN TERE SEEEETHER

We have evaluated the Group's estimation methodology
of expected credit losses, and checked the parameters
to external data sources where available, including the
price volatility of selected underlying collateral, valuation
of the collateral and other sources of cash flows, and
developed a reasonable range of expected cash shortfall
for comparison with the Group's assessment;
BMEE ESENRBEEFBEMGFT L Ik
B RENIINBERRREE R ETEEER R
ZERES HBHEmtELRAESRENEMAR - I
HIESEHENTERE B NE SEENTMG
fELLE

We also assessed the financial statement disclosures
relating to the Group's exposure to credit risk.
ZMONETHEE ESEEYHEERBRNMBHRE
W -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT B EEfiR &

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Valuation of financial assets at fair value through

other comprehensive income

AREZEHE(H)

BAVEIGRREEMEZABRARERE
ZHMBEEZGE

Refer to note 24 to the consolidated financial statements and HE2HEA T BHRENT 4R F201E 2 S

the accounting policies on page 201.

The key audit matter
HRESSER

As at 31 December 2021, included in the financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income is an investment in unlisted equity securities
of approximately HK$23,173,000. Independent
valuer was engaged by the management for the fair
value estimations of the unlisted equity securities as
at 31 December 2021.

RZBZ—F+ZA=+—HB  RAFEIERERE
Hitv 2 EWARRIE Z MK EEBRENIELHIARA
EHZIREX23,173,000/8 7T - B E R I B LA
BRAFELTRABSFNR_ZE_—F+ZA=1—
B2z AFEELMEE -

We have identified the valuation of the investment
in unlisted equity securities included in the financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income as a key audit matter since significant
judgements and estimates, including use of
significant unobservable inputs, have been used in
the fair value estimations by the management and
the independent valuer at the end of the reporting
period.

BV ET AR D FED R R EHA 2 ERAREIE
ZHMBEEERNZIEETRAEBEFRE ZHEBZRN B
HRETEE AREEERE LMEMEMGR
BEPRZ A TFERRBEARAG LGN BRFEE
AR B R A& -

SR -

How the matter was addressed in our audit
EPNESTNMEEZEE

Our audit procedures were designed to challenge
management's estimation in determining the fair value
of the financial assets. We have also involved valuation
specialists to review the appropriateness of this fair
value.

BPNEAREFEEEATEEEETMBEEZR
FERNG -RMATERKREEERAFTRIULAF

BEEREE -

We also focused on the valuation methodologies and
assumptions of financial instruments that were classified
as level 3 in the fair value hierarchy.
BMTEPEIDEAZIRLAFEERLZZMERE
2B ERBR -

We have assessed the valuation methodology and
challenged the inputs and assumptions used in the
valuation and validated the observable inputs using
external market data.

BMEFEEBZHERE BARGEPAAZEH
ANBHE KRR - A A HNED T35 BUR R AZ B Al B R
AR -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form

of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to

report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY
AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors of the Company
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

H it &
BERAREFEHHMENBR - HMERE
EHERNFRANEN AL TBHEEEM

BHER LRI h R R B e RS -

BB EaBRERNERT TRERME
B BT EEEMENEREMEANZ
FHE o

ERMEREAVHREE  HANETR
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY
AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Audit Committee are responsible for overseeing the Group's

financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section
405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and our agreed
terms of engagements, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis

of these consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

« lIdentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal

control.

«  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Group's internal control.

«  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors of the

Company.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Company’s
directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to

continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group

audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among

other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and

significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies

in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,

related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this

independent auditor's report is Mr. Wong Chuen Fai.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wong Chuen Fai

Practising Certificate Number: P05589

Hong Kong
31 March 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Z48EEEREM2ERAR

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-_Z-_—F+-A=-t+—BLFE

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-EF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M iF FTEx FHT
(Restated)
(18 &%)
Continuing operations FREEEXER
Revenue Yo & 5 90,554 68,370
Other income H At U A 5 1,726 5,529
Other gains HAth U = 7 33,184 3,709
Impairment losses on accounts FEWBR R 2 R E &8
receivable, net HER 27 (3,324) (22,139)
Impairment losses on other receivables £ & U 85 7% 2 6l &
518 28 (129) (4,994)
Staff costs 8 TR 8 (39,475) (44,546)
Commission expenses HeMAX (5,704) (5,449)
Depreciation of property and equipment 1% M iREITE (2,539) (3,093)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CHAREEENE 22 (7,284) (6,497)
Finance costs BhE A AR 11 (2,275) (2,811)
Other operating expenses Hhaee (25,296) (22,350)
Share of profit of associate S E = R F) 2 A 194 127
Profit (loss) before tax B AR A (B E) 39,632 (34,144)
Income tax expenses P8R =2 12 (10,859) (1,616)
Profit (loss) for the year from SEICEEB 2FE
continuing operations s Al (E5148) 14 28,773 (35,760)
Discontinued operation BRIEREEK
(Loss) profit for the year from ERIEKEEB CFE
discontinued operation (EB1E) a7 13 (21,979) 3,439
Profit (loss) for the year FE=A (E8) 6,794 (32,321)
Other comprehensive expense for FEHEHM2EASL
the year
Item that will not be classified HEeETgrH2ERR
subsequently to profit or loss: ZIEE
Fair value change of financial assets BRATEYIERRERM
at fair value through other PHEHBAREE M
comprehensive income BEEZANFEE 24 (6,344) (17,537)
Total comprehensive income (expense) “EE2MEU A (FisZ)
for the year Rt 450 (49,858)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME & #EEREM2ERAR

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-_T-—F+-A=+—HLFE

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-EF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
lligza FTERT FHET
(Restated)
(&)
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to: LA~ A % FE{5 F fE 5% F
(EB8)
Owners of the Company RAGHEA A
- Continuing operations —REREER 28,779 (35,760)
— Discontinued operation —ERIEREERS (13,591) 4,073
15,188 (31,687)
Non-controlling interests FEFEIRE R
— Continuing operations —HEBREER (6) -
— Discontinued operation —BERIEREER (8,388) (634)
(8,394) (634)
6,794 (32,321)
Total comprehensive income (expense) LA~ A+ fE(E 2 E U A
for the year attributable to: (FA) M58 -
Owners of the Company RAGHER A
- Continuing operations —REREER 22,435 (53,297)
— Discontinued operation —ERIEREES (13,591) 4,073
8,844 (49,224)
Non-controlling interests FEIEIRE R
- Continuing operations —REREER (6) -
— Discontinued operation —BERIEREER (8,388) (634)
(8,394) (634)
450 (49,858)
Earnings (loss) per share (HK cents) F&F (EE) ) 16
From continuing and discontinued SEREKILEEETE
operations
— Basic —&ENR 0.81 (2.36)
— Diluted — g% 0.81 (2.36)
From continuing operations FELEER
— Basic —&ENR 1.54 (2.66)

— Diluted — 8 1.53 (2.66)
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2021 2020
—EZ—F —EEF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
ok FET FAT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Goodwill EES 17 2,016 2,016
Trading rights R 5 18 - -
Other intangible assets EMEpEE 19 1,246 1,246
Interest in associate REERRl 2w 23 681 487
Property and equipment EYSE L] 20 2,981 3,643
Statutory deposits EERE 21 3,063 4,181
Rental and utility deposits HERKERS 2,116 272
Right-of-use assets EREEE 22 15,830 6,330
Financial assets at fair value BAFEINEREER
through profit or loss R MG EE 25 - 8,665
Financial assets at fair value EAFEHRRELM
through other comprehensive EPEHBRAREIEZ
income WBEE 24 23,173 29,517
51,106 56,357
Current assets REBEE
Inventories & - 183
Accounts receivable JFE g BR X 27 382,291 442,842
Prepayments, deposits and other TERTFRIE - RE R AEAM
receivables & I BR 3R 28 58,663 108,678
Financial assets at fair value BAFEINEREER
through profit or loss FREBZMBEE 25 432,469 247,338
Derivatives financial assets PTHEMBEE 26 - 4,735
Bank balances and cash RITHEHEIRE 29 74,536 64,200
947,959 867,976
Asset classified as held-for-sale TRARBEHEZEE 33 - 4,926
947,959 872,902
Current liabilities RBas
Accounts payable B BR X 30 21,177 50,702
Accrued liabilities and other st E M EAmER
payables AR 30 6,698 8,392
Margin loan payable ERERER 30 15,321 -
Convertible bonds AR E S 32 - 17,302
Lease liabilities HEAE 22 6,983 5,495
Tax payable JE & 18 7,089 2,420
57,268 84,311
Net current assets REBEEFH 890,691 788,591
Total assets less current liabilities #®REERTBAE 941,797 844,948




VALUE CONVERGENCE HOLDINGS LIMITED EZRIZRAR A T

Annual Report 2021 &£}

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION Z& kR E

As at 31 December 2021
RZEZ—F+=ZA=+—H

2021 2020
—B-—F —EEF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M aF FERT FHET
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Convertible bonds Al A R% E 32 5,278 4,940
Deferred tax liabilities RERIEAE 31 202 424
Lease liabilities HEAE 22 9,423 880
14,903 6,244
Net assets EEZFE 926,894 838,704
Capital and reserves BEXRHE
Share capital [N 35 1,760,344 1,680,295
Reserves i (833,444) (841,037)
Equity attributable to owners ARBEEAEGERS
of the Company 926,900 839,258
Convertible bonds issued by MEBARBRTABRKRES
a subsidiary 32 - 80
Non-controlling interests FERER (6) (634)
Total equity EREHE 926,894 838,704

The consolidated financial statements on pages 160 to 355

were approved and authorised for issue by the board of

directors on 31 March 2022 and are signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Fu Yiu Man, Peter
Rk

Director

EF

FI60BEEFEISEMHA 2B MFHRERL
BEEeN _E-_—_F=-A=+—B#EEE

TiT TR TMIESFRERE

Mr. Lin Hoi Kwong, Aristo
EEILEE
Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY Z& xR

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-_T-_—F+-A=t—HLEFE
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Attrbutable to owners of the company

LGN
Convertible
Convertble  Investments Share bond issued Non-
Share Capital bonds  revaluation option Other  Accumulated by controlling
capitel resenve fesenve fesenve fesenve Teserve losses Total  asubsidiary interests Total
il P
TER R& RTER
Ba  EARE  BHER  EMEE  BRERR  HABE  EHER it B% FERER it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T Thn Thn ThT TR TR ThL T T T T
(note a) (note b) (note 32)
(Hsta) (&b (Ha32)
{1 anuay 2021 WoEo-E-B-R 16025 BT 104 (7817) 348 (6) @138 839258 ) 68 83870
Proft (lss) for the year SRR (BR) - - - - - - 15,188 15,188 - (8.394) 6,79
Other comprehensive expense — FEEB2EHR
for the year
Fair vl loss on financil assets A TEFIEREE
atfir vlue through oher REYNRREZEH
comprehensive income EEATERR
(note 24) (Ks) - - - (6:344) - - - (6344) - - (6:344)
Totel comprefensive ncome. S R2ENA () 88
(expense) for the year - - - (6344) - - 15188 8844 - (8394) 450
Issue of shares upon exercise of B EBREREIRG
share options (note 35¢) (Ht350) 11,162 - - - (2738) - - 8424 - - 8424
Reversa of convertble bonds —— RETRRERRE
fesene (note 32) (i) - - (103%) - - - 1039 - - - -
Release of deferred tax iabilties R AR E#EENHH
upon settement or cncellion ~ TAEERERERE
of convertible bonds - - 1487 - - - - 1487 - - 1487
Transerof share option resene~ REREXAMERER
upon lapse of share aptions E%ﬁ - - - - - 7314 - - - -
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 40)  HEMBAF (F340) - - - - - - - - - 9022 9022
Redemption of convertble bonds ~ EE? TE LA ﬁéﬂzﬂﬁ
isued by a subsicary 5 - - - - - - - - (%) - (%)
Release of defered tax [abllies ~ REETAREAMER
on redemption of comverthle ~~ ERRALEE
bonds B - - = - - - - 15 - 15
Issue of hares by top-up AHEERFFIEER
placement and subscription ZEMEARG
(noe 350) (i35h) 89936 - - - - - - % - 1
Transacton costs avbuable to ~ EEEMZARAFES
iste of shares by placement 2R BHA(3E35H)
(10 35 (1049) - - - - - S ) - S ()
At 31 December 2021 RZB-5127
Z4-7 1603 BT 1565 (B4d6) 479 (6 (788 S6800 - € 968
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY Z& X8 8K

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_T_—F+-A=1+—HLHFE

Attributable to owners of the company

RAREEAER
Convertible
Convertble  Investments Share bond issued Non-
Share Capital bonds  revaluation option Other  Accumulated by controlling
capitel fesenve fesenve Teserve Teserve reserve losses Total  asubsidiary interests Total
HEL
TER n& RTER
Ba  EARE  BRER  EMEE  BRERR  HABE  EHBR &3 §% FERER &3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TEn ThT TR THT ThT T T T Tin T
(note &) (note b) (note 32)
(Hfsta) (i) (Ha32)
A1 encay 2020 ROECEE-A-R O ISBZ0 B8 US% (60%0) 273 (6)  (@0669) 785863 - B T
Loss for the year FEEE - - - - - - (3168])  (31,687) - (634) (323
Other comprehensive expense — FEEB2EHR
for the year
Fair vl loss on financil assets &L TEFIEREE
atfai value through other RENNRREZHE
comprefiensive income BE/LTEER
(note 24) (Hiik4) - - - (115%) - - - (175) - - (1753)
Totel comprehenve expense for -~ FE2AE 48
th yea - - - (1) - - () - 68 (©89)
Recogniton of equiysetled share B2 RAE N 2 BBk E
opton expenses (note 36) A% (H336) - - - - 1517 - - 7517 - - 1517
Issue of shares upon exercise of R [EEREMZ /ARG
share options (note 35¢) (Hik3sc) 19 - - - (40) - - 156 - - 156
Recognition of equity component 37
of convertible bonds (note 32) - - 15,000 - - - - 15,000 % - 15,095
Deferred ta liiles on EauakES B
recognton of equiy component~ BAHEE 2ER
of convertble bonds HERE - - (2475) - - - - (2475) (19 - (2490)
Issue of shares upon conversion of - T AR B AR
converble bonds (note 352)  Jifp (KiE3sa) 45,664 - (13 - - - - 32540 - - 32540
Release of defered ta ablies AT AR EHERT
oncomversion of converible.—~ AEELHERE
bonds (note 352) (H335a) - - 2165 - - - - 2,165 - - 2,165
Reversal of convertble bonds A TARESRE
fesenve (note 32) (i) - - (8626) - - - 746 (1.480) - - (1.480)
Issue ofshares by top-up A G EEFAAEER
placement and subscrption ZEMEARD
(10e 350) (z33h) 15200 - - - - - ) - -
Transaction costs atibuteble o REEMEARAAEE
isse of shares by placement ~~ ZZBHE 4) - - - - - - @ : ; )
At 31 December 2020 RCBZZETZR
Z4-7 1680255 5T 104%6 (787) M U6 (%) 839258 8 66 88
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BE-T-_—F+-A=1+—HILFE
Notes:
(a) Capital reserve

(b)

Pursuant to a scheme of capital reorganisation, which became
effective on 28 May 2003, the High Court of Hong Kong had
approved the reduction of the capital of Value Convergence
Holdings Limited (the “"Company”) and the cancellation of the
Company's share premium account. The credit arising from the
reduction of the share capital account and cancellation of the
share premium account, after eliminated against the
accumulated losses, in the aggregate amount of
HK$123,758,200 was transferred to a capital reserve account of
the Company. Such capital reserve account will not be treated as
realised profits, and shall be treated as an undistributable
reserve of the Company until and unless the creditors of the
Company as at the date of the sanction are fully settled. In view
of the fact that the Company had already fully settled the
relevant debts due to the creditors, the Company is of the view

that the reserve is distributable to the Company's shareholders.

Other reserve

Other reserve represented the differences between the purchase
considerations and the amounts acquired from non-controlling
interests arising from acquisitions of the remaining equity
interests of 9.90% and 8.84% in VC Capital Limited and VC

Asset Management Limited respectively completed in year 2012.

Wit

(@

(b)

BN

BER-_ZZT=FRAA -+ N\BERZEAR
BAFE  BASFERIERRERER
BRAR(ARAR D BRARFHARRZK
1765 (B R o BB AR 7N BR J2 7 88 IR 19 Vi (B BR P
EECERBRITEBYHEEZHAER
123,758,200 7T ' B AR A A 2 & AN
B - ZEARBERT SRR BB EREF
MERARARZ A D IRER  AERR
FARARZESE R ZEMNEEESER
Bl ERAABEEBENEREEAZ
BRAEL WMARRRAE  LWEBEADIK
FADNBRE -

Ho At 7 5

HivREERmFEERERSD W EERRE
ERARKEREEEEBERATSTERT
29.90% [ 8.84%% A #E %5 2 g B (B B PR
WEZEzENEE ARRBER =2
——FEK -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS S8R RER

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-_T-_—F+-A=+—HLEFE

2021 2020
—EBC-—F ZEZEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FHET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEH
Profit (loss) before tax B BLRDE B (E18)
— Continuing operations —FHBEEER 39,632 (34,144)
— Discontinued operation (note 13) —ERIEEEETRE
(BF3E13) (21,964) 3,646
Adjustment for HEIEE
Interest income from authorised institutions KB RA A FE
ON (101) (538)
Interest income from convertible bonds AJ AR AR 5 F B A - (138)
Other interest income H Ao 7 2 A (477) (1,611)
Interest expense on the convertible bonds AIHR IR B 5B R X 1,447 2,441
Interest expense on margin loan payable ERESERAME
- 533 -
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEBGENEMX 320 370
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBARZERE 107 -
Gain on disposal of associate HEBENE 2 W (74) -
Share of profit of associate DAL E R B2 % A (194) (127)
Depreciation of property and equipment MERREINE 2,544 3,095
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CRREEERE 7,284 6,497
Fair value change on derivatives financial ITEEREBRZAT
instruments BEE 4,735 (4,735)
Unrealised gain on financial assets BIEEBVBEEZ
held-for-trading REIR W (63,913) (18,804)
Loss on redemption of financial assets fE R A T AR R
at fair value through profit or loss R REIE 2 M
BEZEE - 3,358
Fair value change on financial assets BRATEINRRER
at fair value through profit or loss mRRIB B EE
N EZ (299) 2,130
Gain on acquisition of financial assets Wk A AR R
at fair value through profit or loss R RERE 2 M
BEZ W - (3,979)
Loss on disposal of financial assets at fair HERQAFEIER
value through profit or loss R R 2 M
BEZBRE - 8,413
Impairment loss on accounts receivable, net JE W AR 3 2 R B B 18
F R 3,324 22,139
Impairment loss on other receivables, net E A E W BR 2 BB
BRFER 7,532 4,994
Loss (gain) on disposal of property and HEMERREBZE
equipment 18 () 47 (245)
Equity-settled share option expense VAR R 32 1+t 2 B P e
(note 36) 7% (MF5E36) - 7,517
(Reversal) provision for long service REBREEFBRE
payments/annual leave payments A (@) BB (104) 320
Operating cash flows before movements HEEEPAI L KLEH
in working capital e (19,621) 599
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BHE-_T-_—F+-A=t—HLEFE

2021 2020
—E-—F —EZEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Decrease (increase) in inventories BFERLD (Em) 96 (183)
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable FEUBR SR 2/ > (35 n) 36,832 (239,690)
Increase in financial assets at fair value BEAFEINEREER
through profit or loss BB EES
& (112,254) (66,396)
Decrease in prepayments, deposits and other TERFIE - ke REAM
receivables JFE Y BR 30 2 s 48,106 3,856
(Increase) decrease in rental and utility e kXKEBZES 2 (GM)
deposits Ve (1,844) 1,596
(Decrease) increase in accounts payable JETBR TR Z OBt 2>) 1 A (26,887) 34,471
Increase in margin loan payable B RBEEE R 2N 14,788 -
Increase in accrued liabilities and other FEEtBERE M EMR
payables oz Em 342 744
Cash used in operations BEMARS (60,442) (265,003)
Bank interest received B UBERTTH B 570 46
Income tax refund BR[O FT 1S - 3
Income tax paid BTSN (4,925) (295)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETBHMABRSTE (64,797) (265,249)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS S8R RER

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-_T-_—F+-A=+—HLEFE

2021 2020
—EBC-—F ZEZEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REED
Purchase of financial assets at fair value BERZATEIIER
through profit or loss R REIE 2 B 75
BE - (6,816)
Proceed from disposal of financial assets at HERQNFEIIER
fair value through profit or loss R REIE 2 W5
BEZPIEHRA - 172,800
Acquisition of interest in an associate -0 NI v o - (360)
Purchase of property and equipment BEMENEE (2,012) (828)
Proceeds from disposal of property and HEMERZRE T
equipment A 4 250
Proceeds from disposal of associate LB QT ZE
B 4,000 -
Proceeds from redemption of convertible fE B AT R E 5 2 P 1S
bonds redemption A - 10,000
Interest income from convertible bonds AT IR R 5 F B A - 138
Deposit paid for business acquisition WEXBzE ke
(note 28) (P 7%28) - (11,000)
Deposits received for disposal of asset HESBERFIEHELZ
classified as held-for-sale (note 33) BE2ENIES
(M13E33) - 1,000
Payment of statutory deposits EFERE MR (34) (1,633)
Refund of statutory deposits EEREER 1,152 440
Net cash inflow arising on disposal HEME AT MmESE
of subsidiaries ZEeRANFE 1,949 -
NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZHMBERESFE 5,059 163,991
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BMEED
Proceeds from exercise of share options TR ERE 2 TS RIA 8,424 156
Proceeds from issue of convertible bonds BT MRES 2 15
B - 52,311
Proceeds from issue of shares BTG 2 RSB 69,936 49,200
Payments for transaction costs attributable to SRSk i an)
issue of shares by placement FRESZ R HA (1,049) 4
Payment for the redemption of convertible XTI AT E S 2
bond HIE (255) -
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHEAE (6,982) (6,993)
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES METHRERLFE 70,074 94,670
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND ReRRESEEEEZ
CASH EQUIVALENTS B CRD) FE 10,336 (6,588)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FOAZRERREEE
AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR HH 64,200 70,788
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF FRZAERAELEE
THE YEAR HH 74,536 64,200
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BHE-_T-_—F+-A=t—HLEFE

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is a public limited company incorporated
in Hong Kong and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the

corporate information section to the annual report.

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set

out in note 43.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars, which is also the functional currency

of the Company.

—REH
ARBB—RRBEEMRIZARE
RAF] ERONEEB AR HAAR
NE(TBERET]) B o AR GEM =
BREBERME U NFRARF
BR8P ERE -

RRARZEBRBRIREER - B
NCIPAESE VTN R

Sl

REMBRRUABITINER - BT BA
B2 E® -

>

/

D
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Z &M iRRM =

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-_T-_—F+-A=+—HLEFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied, for its first
time, the Amendments to References to the Conceptual
Framework in Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") and the following amendments to HKFRSs
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the "HKICPA") which are effective for the

Group's financial year beginning 1 January 2021:

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions
Amendments to HKFRS 9,  Interest Rate Benchmark
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Reform — Phase 2

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material effect on the Group's
financial performance and positions for the current and
prior periods and/or on the disclosures set out in these

consolidated financial statements.

2. RAFEGREBITEBUE

BEEA(FEMBREED])

RAFEE  NEBEBERKARTENK
HEER ([FAEMBHREEL]) PP
Rl SRR Z BT ARATHEE
St Ae ((BAEGFMAE]) B
TAAEE _T_—F—F—HRKBZ
MBFREMZBET T HREE
Al :

BAMBREERE  COVID-19/8H
165% 2 18 5] e ER
ERVBMEERE  FIRELENE —
ot - BEGH LR FE_BR
E395 « BAMK
HREENETR &
B R EERES
SR BEBMB®RE
ERFE165 25T

RAFRERBEET BB RS EL
HAHEMBEHEAEE 2 HBRA
R BHRR R, A M HRERME 2
BREFRLEEATE -
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

2.

New and amendments to HKFRSs issued but not

yet effective

The Group had not early applied the following new and

amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are

not yet effective:

HKFRS 17

Amendments to
HKFRS 3

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKAS 1

Amendments to

HKAS 1 and HKFRS
Practice Statement 2

Amendments to
HKAS 8

Amendments to
HKAS 12

Amendments to
HKAS 16

Amendments to
HKAS 37

Amendment to
HKFRS 16

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Insurance Contracts and related
Amendments?

Reference to Conceptual
Framework?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and
the related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5
(2020) Presentation of
Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower
of a Term Loan that Contains
a Repayment on Demand
Clause?

Disclosure of Accounting
Policies®

Definition of Accounting
Estimates®

Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction®

Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended
Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract?

COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond 30 June
2021

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018-2020?

2. RAFEMR

RIETTERUH

BEEA(FEMBREED])

(&)

B MM E 1 R A 2 # M R R 5
AIEBMBEREER

NI e

RIER A AT E 8 M1 MR

R FE RS ER] E AT RS2

ay

BERBMEHRE IRB A& 4 & HE
AR E 175 (ERIE

BEAMBRE /*/F)SUE)EANI Sy
HERIEZHE 2 Efpu
1B%]

BB RS EEEHEBZE R
AR 1058 & Al A & HEH
BEBGEER ZEELEIE
F289 2 1E5] &

BB ER BEEIBEARE
15 2 1BF] HIERBANF

BREESR 2
Ml (2%
F)HFEREZ
25— fERAEET
BIREREEBK
Rz EHERE
TofE]

BEAGFER GETEER 2 # RS
FIHNEEY
B EERER
NEE2HR 2
EH

BB ER i HFT 2 EES
FE85E 2157

ERAGEER 15— RPGEEZ
F125 2185 BENBEEH

ZIEET IR
BEAGHER] PIE - WS KRR
F165 2 1EF] EZERBTERE
BRI A2
%-5% FHZER féﬁa H—-EITE
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HEAIE169% 2 =tH%ZZ
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-_T-_—F+-A=+—HLEFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs issued but not
yet effective (continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April

2021.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to

be determined.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the new and amendments to HKFRSs will
have no material impact on the results and the financial

position of the Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(“Listing Rules”) and the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial instruments that are measured at fair values at
the end of each reporting period, as explained in the

accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the

consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

2. RAFEGREBITEBUE

HEER((HBMBREERN])

(&)

EEFEERERZHEMRRLE

AIEBMBREER (&)

! RZZZ—FWOA—BHUEHRBZ
FEHBER -

> RIZEZZF-A—BHUERAKBZ
FEMBRER -

P ORZEZ=F—A—B=HUERBZ
FEBAMERR -

© RESTEAHKAEERZFE SR
R e

RRAREREY - KAHBEMLEEFT
BAEVHRELRUBAKEZE LY H
RRL EERTE -

FESHEEK
BARBRENEEEAGHNAGE
M2 BRI HREEAEY - B R
A BRABIIMTFES TR
(T LR BRI (BB D T ER) 85
ZERBEER -

I TN G E BRI - SR A M B HRER
TEBELRAEERR  EETERE
BhREREHRZAFEFE -

FEERA—REEERRBRRE M RR
BN zREZRTFE:-
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants in the principal
(or most advantageous) market at the measurement date
under current market conditions (i.e. an exit price)
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. Details of
fair value measurement are explained in the accounting

policies set out below.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is

achieved when the Company:

«  has power over the investee;

« is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

«  has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control

listed above.

EFEFBOR (&)

Q$E%%ﬁ§5%ﬁ%%/%mi
(XEBHN) MHLEZEFRXHH IR

Ml

THALEEEN KIS ERRES ﬁ
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27 E W S M 0 A
o ATEHEZHBER TN E
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)53

- AHERESERBEOUNZERD
3 o

WA EERIFABR Ll ZTHIEHIE R
EE-BERNLHRES AEESS
A ER DRI E T BB R -



VALUE CONVERGENCE HOLDINGS LIMITED EZRIZRAR A T

Annual Report 2021 &£}

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Z &M iRRM =

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-_T-_—F+-A=+—HLEFE

3,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control until the

date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling

interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting

policies into line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on

consolidation.

REEE (&)

BRI ZHEAARRARENGA M
MR 2 EEMS  WRAEE
REABAWMB AR ZEHIERK L - B
BMsE FAMKBRLEHNBLRZ
WARFAXBASERGZEEZB
HESAGEBRakEMmE2mEmKRARK
BEEASEIBEHERHMBLRR A
BB -

BEakEME2EBAZSEKRNTREB
RADEREE AR IFFERERD - HEQ
AlzzEBABREBRARREE A
NOEER g - Bt R e IR
BRELBALGR -

BLEN  BHWEA TS BEE L
B RS2 WA RERAEEY
SEHBE—H -

AEBEALRHEZMBEERAE #
@ WA RAXRBEAREKE ZH
RPNBRERE - —HREAEARKE
B Y o
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisition

Effective from 1 January 2020, the Group can elect to
apply an optional concentration test, a transaction-by-
transaction basis, that permits a simplified assessment of
whether an acquired set of activities and assets is not a
business. The concentration test is met if substantially all
of the fair value of the gross assets acquired is
concentrated in a single identifiable asset or group of
similar identifiable assets. The gross assets under
assessment exclude cash and cash equivalents, deferred
tax assets, and goodwill resulting from the effects of
deferred tax liabilities. If the concentration test is met, the
set of activities and assets is determined not to be a

business and no further assessment is needed.

Assets acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities
that do not constitute a business, the Group identifies
and recognises the individual identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price
first to financial assets and financial liabilities at the
respective fair values, the remaining balance of the
purchase price is then allocated to the other identifiable
assets and liabilities on the basis of their relative fair
values at the date of purchase. Such a transaction does

not give rise to goodwill or bargain purchase gain.

EFEFBOR (&)

EReHREEWEE
BE-Z-_TF-A—B& FEETH
BEXZEBTEREASHEANR - &
PEAADTEREETGRE S —
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BE AFEEREARAZER - #aT
HMZREETRIERe KRS EESE
B BEEHEAEURTEECHEEE
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EEWE
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3,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisition
(continued)

Business combinations

Businesses combinations are accounted for by applying
the acquisition method. The consideration transferred in
a business combination is measured at fair value, which
is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values
of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs incurred
to effect a business combination are recognised in profit

or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair

value, except that:

« deferred tax assets or liabilities arising from the
assets acquired and liabilities assumed in the
business combination are recognised and measured

in accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes;

« assets or liabilities related to the acquiree's
employee benefit arrangements are recognised and
measured in accordance with HKAS 19 Employee

Benefits;

« liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment transactions of the acquiree or the
replacement of the acquiree’s share-based payment
transactions with the share-based payment
transactions of the Group are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment at
the acquisition date (see the accounting policy

below);

3. TEEFBE(E)

EBEHREERE (H)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.

Business combinations or asset acquisition

(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held-for-sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations are measured in accordance with that

standard; and

lease liabilities are measured at the present value of
the remaining lease payments as if the acquired
lease was a new lease at the acquisition date,
except for leases for which (a) the lease term ends
within 12 months of the acquisition date; or (b) the
underlying asset is of low value. Right-of-use assets
are measured at an amount equal to the lease
liabilities, adjusted to reflect favourable or
unfavourable terms of the lease when compared

with market terms.
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3,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisition
(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the aggregate of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any
noncontrolling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value
of the Group’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment, the net of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the aggregate of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if
any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or

loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

Non-controlling interests, unless as required by another
standards, are measured at acquisition-date fair value
except for non-controlling interests that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the event
of liquidation are measured either at fair value or at the
present ownership instruments’ proportionate share in
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net

assets on a transaction-by-transaction basis.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising from a business combination is carried at

cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units
("CGU") (or groups of CGU) that is expected to benefit

from the synergies of the combination.

A CGU (or groups of CGU) to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently when there is indication that the unit may be
impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a
reporting period, the CGU (or groups of CGU) to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than its
carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the unit and then to the other assets of the unit on a pro
rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in
the CGU (or groups of CGU). Any impairment loss for
goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed

in subsequent periods.

The Group's policy for goodwill relating to an associate
that included in the carrying amount of the investment is

set out in “investment in associates” below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investment in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control of those

policies.

The Group's investment in associates are accounted for
in the consolidated financial statements using the equity
method, except for the investments classified as held-for-
sale in which case it is accounted for in accordance with
HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations. Under the equity method,
investment in an associate is initially recognised at cost.
The Group's share of the profit or loss and changes in
the other comprehensive income of the associate is
recognised in profit or loss and other comprehensive
income respectively after the date of acquisition. If the
Group's share of loss of an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in the associate, which determined using the
equity method together with any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group's net investment in
the associate, the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. Additional losses are provided for,
and a liability is recognised, only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or

made payments on behalf of the associate.

If an associate uses accounting policies other than those
of the Group for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances, adjustments are made to make the
associate’s accounting policies conform to those of the
Group when the associate’s financial statements are used

by the Group in applying the equity method.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investment in associates (continued)

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the
equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate. On acquisition of the investment,
any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the associate is recognised as goodwill and is

included in the carrying amount of the investment.

Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised in profit or

loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 36 Impairment of assets
issued by the HKICPA are applied to determine whether
it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with
respect to the Group's investment in an associate. When
necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of
value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its
carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised is not
allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that forms part
of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of
that impairment loss is recognised to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently

increases.

Gains and losses resulting from transactions between the
Group and its associates are recognised in consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of unrelated
investors' interests in the associate. The Group's share in
the associate’s gains or losses resulting from these

transactions is eliminated.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investment in associates (continued)

The Group applies HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments issued
by the HKICPA, including the impairment requirements,
to long-term interests in an associate to which the equity
method is not applied and which form part of the net
investment in the investee. In applying HKFRS 9 to long-
term interests, the Group does not take into account
adjustments to their carrying amount required by HKAS
28 — Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures issued
by the HKICPA (i.e. adjustments to the carrying amount
of long-term interests arising from the allocation of losses
of the investee or assessment of impairment in

accordance with HKAS 28).

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as
held-for-sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use. Such classification requires the asset or
the disposal group must be available for immediate sale
in its present condition subject only to terms that are
usual and customary for sales of such asset or disposal
group and its sale is highly probable. Management must
be committed to the sale, which should be expected to
qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one

year from the date of classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving
loss of control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary are classified as held-for-sale
when the criteria described above are met, regardless of
whether the Group will retain a non-controlling interest in

its former subsidiary after the sale.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Non-current assets held-for-sale (continued)

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving
disposal of an investment, or a portion of an investment,
in an associate or joint venture, the investment or the
portion of the investment that will be disposed of is
classified as held-for-sale when the criteria described
above are met, and the Group discontinues the use of
the equity method in relation to the portion that is
classified as held-for-sale from the time when the
investment (or a portion of the investment) is classified

as held-for-sale.

Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held-
for-sale are measured at the lower of their previous

carrying amount and fair value less costs of disposal.

Discontinued operation

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group's
business, the operations and cash flows of which can be
clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group and

which represents a separate major line of business.

When an operation is classified as discontinued, a single
amount is presented in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, which
comprises the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operation and the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the

measurement to fair value less costs to sell.
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3,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

Specifically, the Group uses a 5-step approach to revenue

recognition:

«  Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

«  Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

«  Step 3: Determine the transaction price

« Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

« Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity

satisfies a performance obligation

The Group recognised revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular

performance obligation is transferred to customers.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series

of distinct goods or services that are substantially same.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria is

met:

« The customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group's

performance as the Group performs;

«  The Group's performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the asset is

created or enhanced; or

«  The Group's performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance

completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct goods or

services.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration
specified in a contract with a customer, excludes amounts
collected on behalf of third parties, discounts and sales

related taxes.
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3,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset represents the Group's right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that the
Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in accordance
with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group's unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the
passage of time is required before payment of that

consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the
Group has received consideration from the customer. A
contract liability would also be recognised if the Group
has an unconditional right to receive consideration before
the Group recognises the related revenue. In such cases,

a corresponding receivable would also be recognised.

For a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented. For
multiple contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities

of unrelated contracts are not presented on a net basis.

The Group recognised revenue from the following major

sources:

«  Brokerage commission and other related fee from
dealing in securities and futures and options

contracts

«  Underwriting, sub-underwriting, placing and sub-

placing commission
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Contract assets and contract liabilities (continued)

. Arrangement, advisory, referral fee and other fee

income

. Interest income

. Dividend income from financial assets held-for-

trading

«  Sales and distribution of healthcare products

«  Sales and marketing of digital assets

Provision of services
Brokerage

The Group provides broking and dealing services for
securities, futures and options contracts. Commission
income is recognised at a point in time on the execution
date of the trades at a certain percentage of the
transaction value of the trades executed. The Group
provides custodian and handling services for securities,
futures and options customer accounts. Fee income is
recognised when the transaction is executed and service
is completed (i.e. at a point in time), except for custodian

service fee which is recognised over time.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Provision of services (continued)
Corporate finance and other advisory services

The Group provides underwriting, sub-underwriting,
placing and sub-placing services to customers for their
fund raising activities in equity and debt capital markets.
Revenue is recognised when the relevant underwriting
and placing are completed. Accordingly, the revenue is

recognised at a point in time.

The Group also provides corporate advisory services to
corporate clients for their corporate actions. The Group
considers that all the services promised in a particular
contract of being a corporate advisor are interdependent
and interrelated and should be therefore accounted for
as a single performance obligation. As there is
enforceable right to payment for the Group for the
performance of services completed up to date based on
the contracts with customers regarding corporate advisory
services, the revenue is recognised over time based on
the stage of completion of the contract, the services
transferred to customers up to date. The Group provides
corporate secretary services to customers. Revenue is
recognised over time or at a point in time with reference
to the detailed terms of transactions as stipulated in the
contracts entered into with its customers and

counterparties.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Provision of services (continued)
Asset management

The Group provides asset management services to
customers. The customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefit provided by the Group, hence the
revenue is recognised as a performance obligation
satisfied over time. Asset management fee income is
charged at a fixed percentage per month of the net asset
value of the managed accounts under management of

the Group.

The Group is also entitled to a performance fee when
there is a positive performance for the relevant
performance period and it is recognised at the end of the
relevant performance period, when it is highly probable
that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative
revenue recognised will not occur when the uncertainty
associated with the variable consideration is subsequently

resolved.

Sales and distribution of healthcare products

Revenue from sales and distribution of healthcare
products is recognised at the point when the control of
the goods is transferred to the customers (generally on

delivery of the healthcare products).

Sales and marketing of digital assets

Revenue from sales and marketing of digital assets is
recognised at the point when the control of the goods is
transferred to the customers. The Group acts as an agent
and revenue recognised is the sale proceeds from the
customers net of the corresponding purchase cost from

the suppliers.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leasing
Definition of a lease
A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys

a right to control the use of an identified asset for a

period of time in exchange for consideration.

The Group as lessee

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the
date of initial application, the Group assesses whether a
contract is or contains a lease, at inception of the
contract. The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease
arrangements in which it is the lessee, except for short-
term leases (defined as leases with a lease term of 12
months or less) and leases of low value assets. For these
leases, the Group recognises the lease payments as an
operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term
of the lease unless another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic

benefits from the leased assets are consumed.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date, the Group measures lease
liability at the present value of the lease payments that
are not paid at that date. The lease payments are
discounted by using the interest rate implicit in the lease.
If this rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses

its incremental borrowing rate.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leasing (continued)
Lease liabilities (continued)

Lease payments included in the measurement of the

lease liability comprise:

« fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed

payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

«  variable lease payments that depend on an index or
rate, initially measured using the index or rate at the

commencement date;

«  the amount expected to be payable by the lessee

under residual value guarantees;

«  the exercise price of purchase options if the lessee

is reasonably certain to exercise the options; and

«  payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if
the lease term reflects the Group exercising an

option to terminate the lease.

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the

consolidated statement of financial position.

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing
the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease
liability (using the effective interest method) and by
reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease

payments made.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leasing (continued)
Lease liabilities (continued)

Lease liability is remeasured (and with a corresponding

adjustment to the related right-of-use asset) whenever:

«  the lease term has changed or there is a significant
event or change in circumstances resulting in a
change in the assessment of exercise of a purchase
option, in which case the lease liability is
remeasured by discounting the revised lease

payments using revised discount rate.

« the lease payments change due to changes in an
index or rate or a change in expected payment
under a guaranteed residual value, in which cases
the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using the initial discount rate
(unless the lease payments change is due to a
change in a floating interest rate, in which case a

revised discount rate is used).

« a lease contract is modified and the lease
modification is not accounted for as a separate
lease, in which case the lease liability is remeasured
based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the effective date of the

modification.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leasing (continued)

Right-of-use assets

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement
of the corresponding lease liability, lease payments made
at or before the commencement date and any initial
direct costs, less lease incentives received. Whenever the
Group incurs an obligation for costs to dismantle and
remove a leased asset, restore the site on which it is
located or restore the underlying asset to the condition
required by the terms and conditions of the lease,
provision is recognised and measured under HKAS 37
"Provision, Contingent Liabilities and a Contingent Assets”.
The costs are included in the related right-of-use asset,

unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line

in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Right-of-use assets are subsequently measured at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
They are depreciated over the shorter period of lease
term and useful life of the underlying asset. The
depreciation starts at the commencement date of the

lease.

The Group applies HKAS 36 to determine whether a
right-of-use asset is impaired and accounts for any

identified impairment loss.
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3,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Property and equipment

Property and equipment is stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated

impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
items of property and equipment less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes

in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on disposal or retirement of an
item of property and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying

amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual

provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value, except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are initially
measured in accordance with HKFRS 15 Revenue from
contracts with customers issued by the HKICPA.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL")) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at

FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

A financial asset and a financial liability is offset and the
net amount presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position when, and only when the Group
currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts; and intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the

marketplace.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured
in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the financial assets.
Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI") and
FVTPL.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset's contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group's business model for

managing them.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

The Group measures financial assets subsequently at
amortised cost if both of the following conditions are

met:

«  the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to hold financial assets in order

to collect contractual cash flows; and

«  the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal

amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are

subject to impairment.
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3,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Amortised cost and effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating

interest income over the relevant period.

For financial assets other than purchased or originated
credit-impaired financial assets (i.e. assets that are credit-
impaired on initial recognition), the effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
excluding expected credit losses, through the expected
life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the gross carrying amount of the debt
instrument on initial recognition. For purchased or
originated credit-impaired financial assets, a credit-
adjusted effective interest rate is calculated by
discounting the estimated future cash flows, including
expected credit losses, to the amortised cost of the debt

instrument on initial recognition.

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at
which the financial asset is measured at initial recognition
minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative
amortisation using the effective interest method of any
difference between that initial amount and the maturity
amount, adjusted for any loss allowance. The gross
carrying amount of a financial asset is the amortised cost
of a financial asset before adjusting for any loss

allowance.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Amortised cost and effective interest method (continued)

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for debt instruments measured subsequently at
amortised cost and at FVTOCI. For financial assets other
than purchased or originated credit-impaired financial
assets, interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the
financial asset. If, in subsequent reporting periods, the
credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the

financial asset.

For purchased or originated credit-impaired financial
assets, the Group recognises interest income by applying
the credit-adjusted effective interest rate to the amortised
cost of the financial asset from initial recognition. The
calculation does not revert to the gross basis even if the
credit risk of the financial asset subsequently improves so

that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired.

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is

included in the "Other income” line item (note 5).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

On initial recognition, the Group may make an irrevocable
election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to
designate investments in equity instruments as at FVTOCI.
Designation at FVTOCI is not permitted if the equity
investment is held-for-trading or if it is contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business

combination.

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are initially
measured at fair value plus transaction costs.
Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains
and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve. The cumulative gain or
loss will not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of
the equity investments, instead, they will be transferred

to retained earnings.

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group's right to
receive the dividends is established, unless the dividends
clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of the
investment. Dividends are included in the "Revenue” line

item in profit or loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured at
FVTPL. Specifically:

« Investments in equity instruments are classified as at
FVTPL, unless the Group designates an equity
investment that is neither held-for-trading nor a
contingent consideration arising from a business

combination as at FVTOCI on initial recognition.

«  Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised
cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria are classified as at
FVTPL. In addition, debt instruments that meet either
the amortised cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria may
be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if
such designation eliminates or significantly reduces
a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would arise from measuring assets or liabilities or
recognising the gains and losses on them on
different bases. The Group has not designated any
debt instruments as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains
or losses recognised in profit or loss to the extent they
are not part of a designated hedging relationship. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any
dividend or interest earned on the financial asset. Fair

value is determined in the manner described in note 39.
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3,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (continued)

A financial asset is held-for-trading if:

« it has been acquired principally for the purpose of

selling it in the near term; or

< on initial recognition, it is part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has evidence of a recent

actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

« it is a derivative (except for a derivative that is a
financial guarantee contract or a designated and

effective hedging instrument).

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected
credit losses ("ECL") on accounts receivable, and financial
assets measured at amortised cost. The amount of ECL is
updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition of the respective

financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for accounts
receivable from dealing in securities transactions,
provision of corporate finance and other advisory services
and contract assets. The ECL on these financial assets are
estimated using a provision matrix based on the Group's
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that
are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current as well as the
forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date,

including time value of money where appropriate.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For all other financial instruments, the Group measures
the loss allowance equal to 12-month ECL, unless when
there has a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increase in the likelihood or risk of

a default occurring since initial recognition.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost

or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased

significantly since initial recognition:

« an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or

internal credit rating;

« existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor's ability

to meet its debt obligations;
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3,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

+ an actual or expected significant deterioration in the

operating results of the debtor;

+  significant increases in credit risk on other financial

instruments of the same debtor;

+ an actual or expected significant adverse change in
the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its

debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial asset
has increased significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due,
(except for term loans where a longer period of “past
due” has been applied by the directors of the Company
in view of the nature of the operation of the business
and practice in managing the credit risk), unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that

demonstrates otherwise.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a debt instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition if the debt instrument is
determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date.
A financial instrument is determined to have low credit
risk if i) the financial instrument has a low risk of default,
i) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term, and
(iii) adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its
contractual cash flow obligations. The Group considers a
debt instrument to have low credit risk when the asset
has external credit rating of “investment grade” in
accordance with the globally understood definition or if
an external rating is not available, the asset has an
internal rating of “performing”. Performing means that the
counterparty has a strong financial position and there is

no past due amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the

amount becomes past due.
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3,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an
event of default for internal credit risk management
purposes as historical experience indicates that
receivables that meet either of the following criteria are

generally not recoverable:

«  when there is a breach of financial covenants by the

debtor; or

« information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by
the Group).

The Group considers that default has occurred when a
financial asset is more than 90 days past due, (except for
term loans where a longer period of “past due” has been
applied by the directors of the Company in view of the
nature of the operation of the business and practice in
managing the credit risk) unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate

that a more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes

observable data about the following events:

+  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the

borrower;

. a breach of contract, such as a default or past due

event;

. the lender of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower's
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession that the lender would not otherwise

consider;

« it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

« the disappearance of an active market for that

financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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3,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, e.g. when the counterparty has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group's
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised

in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information as described above. As for the
exposure at default, for financial assets, this is
represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the

reporting date.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the
difference between all contractual cash flows that are due
to the Group in accordance with the contract and all the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted

at the original effective interest rate.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account, except for financial assets that are
measured at FVTOCI, for which the loss allowance is
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve, and
does not reduce the carrying amount of the financial

asset in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another party. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds

received.
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3,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss. In
addition, on derecognition of an investment in equity
instrument which the Group has elected on initial
recognition to measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or
loss previously accumulated in the investment revaluation
reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is

transferred to retained earnings.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability

and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a group
entity are recognised at the proceeds received, net of

direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale,
issue or cancellation of the Company’'s own equity

instruments.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(continued)

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method or at
FVTPL.

Financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial
asset does not qualify for derecognition or when the
continuing involvement approach applies are measured
in accordance with the specific accounting policies set

out below.

Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised

costs

Financial liabilities that are not 1) contingent
consideration of an acquirer in a business combination,
2) held-for-trading, or (3) designated as at FVTPL, are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the

effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the

amortised cost of a financial liability.
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3,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group's obligations are discharged,
cancelled or they expire. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and
the consideration paid and payable, including any non-
cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is

recognised in profit or loss.

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds contain liability and equity
components

Convertible bonds issued by the Group that contain both
the liability and conversion option components are
classified separately into respective items on initial
recognition in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument. Conversion
option that will be settled by the exchange of a fixed
amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of the Company's own equity instruments is

classified as an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using the prevailing market
interest of similar non-convertible debts. The difference
between the gross proceeds of the issue of the
convertible bonds and the fair value assigned to the
liability component, representing the conversion option
for the holder to convert the loan notes into equity, is

included in equity (convertible bonds reserve).
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Convertible bonds (continued)

Convertible bonds contain liability and equity
components (continued)

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible bonds is carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The equity component,
representing the option to convert the liability component
into ordinary shares of the Company, will remain in
convertible bonds reserve until the embedded option is
exercised. Where the option remains unexercised at the
expiry date, the balance stated in convertible bonds
reserve will be released to the accumulated losses. No
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss upon

conversion or expiration of the option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible bonds are allocated to the liability and equity
components in proportion to the allocation of the gross
proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the equity
component are charged directly to equity. Transaction
costs relating to the liability component are included in
the carrying amount of the liability portion and amortised
over the period of the convertible bonds using the

effective interest method.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax

currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income because of items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the

end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable

profit nor the accounting profit.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are

expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the assets to be

recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the year which the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax
rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount

of its assets and liabilities.
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3,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle current tax liabilities and

assets on a net basis.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to

the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies
HKAS 12 requirements to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities separately. Temporary differences relating to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are not recognised
at initial recognition and over the lease terms due to

application of the initial recognition exemption.

Current tax and deferred tax are recognised in profit or
loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case, the current tax and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in

equity respectively.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not

retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which they arise.
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3,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to directors, employees and other

eligible persons

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the fair

value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into
consideration all non-market vesting conditions is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
based on the Group's estimate of equity instruments that
will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in
equity (share option reserve). The Group measures the
recharge based on the fair value of the equity
instruments of the Company at the grant date and
allocates that recharge to each subsidiary based on the
proportion of services received. At the end of each
reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of the
number of equity instruments expected to vest based on
assessment of all relevant non-market vesting condition.
The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if
any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the
cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a

corresponding adjustment to the share option reserve.

For share options that vest immediately at the date of
grant, the fair value of the share options granted is
expensed immediately to profit or loss. When the share
options are exercised, the amount previously recognised
in the share option reserve will be transferred to share
capital. When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share option reserve

will be transferred to accumulated losses.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Share-based payment transactions (continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(continued)

Shares awarded to directors and employees

The fair value of services received determined by
reference to the fair value of shares awarded at the grant
date is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period, with a corresponding increase in equity (awarded

shares compensation reserve).

When The VC Share Purchase Scheme Trust (“Trust”)
purchases the Company's shares from the open market,
the consideration paid, including any directly attributable
incremental costs, is presented as shares held for share
purchase scheme and deducted from total equity. No
gain or loss is recognised on the transactions of the
Company's own shares. When the Trust transfers the
Company's shares to grantees upon vesting, the related
costs of the granted shares vested are reversed from
shares held for share purchase scheme. Accordingly, the
related expense of the granted shares vested is reversed
from awarded shares compensation reserve. The
difference arising from such transfer is debited/credited

to accumulated losses.

When the share awards are forfeited before the vesting
date, the amount previously recognised in awarded
shares compensation reserve will be reversed

immediately in profit or loss.
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3,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Fair value measurement

When measuring fair value except for the Group's share-
based payment transactions, leasing transactions, net
realisable value of inventories and value in use of
property and equipment for the purpose of impairment
assessment, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement
date.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that

would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs. Specifically, the Group categorised
the fair value measurements into three levels, based on

the characteristics of inputs, as follow:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active

markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly

observable.

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value

measurement is unobservable.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group determines
whether transfer occur between levels of the fair value
hierarchy for assets and liabilities which are measured at
fair value on recurring basis by reviewing their respective

fair value measurement.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be

received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the

grants are intended to compensate.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with
no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in

the period in which they become receivable.

Retirement benefits costs
Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
"MPF") are recognised as an expense when employees

have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.
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3,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Short-term and other long-term employee
benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense
unless another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion

of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries and annual leave) after

deducting any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term
employee benefits are measured at the present value of
the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made
by the Group in respect of services provided by
employees up to the reporting date. Any changes in the
liabilities" carrying amounts resulting from service cost,
interest and remeasurements are recognised in profit or
loss except to the extent that another HKFRS requires or

permits their inclusion in the cost of an asset.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment losses on property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible
assets (other than impairment of goodwill set
out in accounting policy of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property and equipment, right-of-
use assets to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
CGU, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of CGU for which a reasonable and consistent

allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually, and whenever there is an indication

that they may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates

of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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3,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment losses on property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible
assets (other than impairment of goodwill set
out in accounting policy of goodwill above)
(continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or the CGU) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. For corporate assets or portion of
corporate assets which cannot be allocated on a
reasonable and consistent basis to a CGU, the Group
compares the carrying amount of a group of CGUs,
including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets or
portion of corporate assets allocated to that group of
CGUs, with the recoverable amount of the group of
CGUs. In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets
on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit or the group of CGUs. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of
its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its
value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of
the impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other
assets of the unit or the group of CGUs. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless
the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under
another standard, in which case the impairment loss is

treated as a revaluation decrease under that standard.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment losses on property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible
assets (other than impairment of goodwill set
out in accounting policy of goodwill above)
(continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or the CGU) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or the
CGU) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is

recognised as income immediately.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are calculated using
the first-in, first-out method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less
all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to

make the sale.
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4,

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from

these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision

affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial

year.
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4,

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Estimated impairment of accounts receivable

The impairment provisions for accounts receivable are
based on assumptions about ECL. The Group uses
judgement in making these assumptions and selecting
the inputs to the impairment calculation, bases on the
number of days that an individual receivable is
outstanding as well as the Group's historical experience
and forward-looking information at the end of the
reporting period. Changes in these assumptions and
estimates could materially affect the result of the
assessment and it may be necessary to make additional
impairment charge to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income. As at 31
December 2021, the carrying amount of accounts
receivable from securities transactions, futures and
options contracts transactions, provision of corporate
finance and other advisory service, money lending
services and sales and distribution of healthcare products
approximately HK$177,316,000; HK$16,000;
HK$2,230,000; HK$202,729,000 and nil (2020:
HK$181,735,000, HK$17,000, HK$3,108,000,
HK$249,086,000 and HK$8,896,000) respectively, net of
accumulated impairment losses of approximately
HK$6,773,000; nil; HK$1,650,000; HK$70,545,000 and
nil (2020: HK$23,436,000, nil, HK$1,031,000,
HK$51,177,000 and nil) respectively.
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4,

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Income taxes

As at 31 December 2021, no deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of certain tax losses of approximately
HK$484,414,000 (2020: HK$448,093,000) and
deductible temporary difference of approximately
HK$6,175,000 (2020: HK$5,291,000) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. The realisable of
the deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether
sufficient future profits or taxable temporary differences
will be available in the future. In cases where the actual
future profits generated are less than expected, or
changes in facts and circumstances which result in
revision of future taxation profits estimation, a material
recognition of deferred tax assets may arise, which would
be recognised in profit or loss for the period in which

such a recognition takes place.

Estimated fair value of convertible bonds
investment, derivative financial asset and
financial assets at FVTOCI

As described in note 39, the directors of the Company
use their judgement in selecting an appropriate valuation
technique for financial instruments not quoted in an
active market. Valuation techniques commonly used by
market practitioners are applied. For convertible bonds
investment financial assets at FVTOCI and derivatives
financial assets, assumptions are made based on inputs
not quoted in an active market adjusted for specific
features of the instrument. If the inputs and estimates
applied in the model are different, the fair value of these

financial instruments may change.

4. A AEEM 2 EEZRR (A)

g st

R-—ZT-——&+-fA=+—8 " TEH
#9484,414,0008 T (Z T Z T F -
448,093,000 7T) < & THIEEE R
A $0 7 BR B Z 58 496,175,0008 L (=&
ZZF4 :5291,000% ) ERELERIE
BE - EFERAOR M RIREETEN - &
ERRIBEEN A ERMF ZERR KRR
EBAERAR K & 3R R =
B8 o W PTEE & 2 B R A I D R 18 HR
S B E AR b B S 2R R e
A pmAEE - BRI e BB R AR
ERBEEE  BRERABNIBRRRE

e

THREZRE TEUBEER
BEAFEIGRREHMBEZEEBAX
BECUBEEZfAT 2 FE
AN T3P - AARERERHH
Bl ENERTIEREZERERE
BEEZHERN  LEBTHRES
FRZEERM HRAIBRRESFK
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4,

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Estimated fair value of convertible bonds
investment, derivative financial asset and
financial assets at FVTOCI (continued)

The carrying amounts of the convertible bonds
investment, financial assets at FVTOCI and derivative
financial assets as at 31 December 2021 were
approximately HK$8,964,000 (2020: HK$8,665,000),
and HK$23,173,000 (2020: HK$29,517,000) and nil
(2020: HK$4,735,000). The directors of the Company
believe that the chosen valuation techniques and
assumptions are appropriate in determining the fair value

of these financial instruments.

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME

Revenue principally arises from the (i) financial services
which consists of the provision of securities, futures and
options brokering and dealing, provision of margin
financing and money lending services, provision of
placing and underwriting services, mergers and
acquisitions services, and other corporate finance related
advisory services; (ii) proprietary trading; (iii) insurance
brokerage service; and (iv) sales and marketing of digital

assets.

4.

EEFTREM 2 EEZRR (F)

AERESRE - TEMBEER
RAFEIERREHEMEZEBAR
BEzHMKEE 2 MDA TE (&)
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fh 2 HBRARRIE M B EERITEY
BEER-_ZT-_—F+=-R=+—8H2
R T {E 5 Bl 49 58,964,000 L (=T =
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L (ZZ=Z 4 129,517,000/ 0) &
—E T F 47350008 7C) © AR A
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5.

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME (continued)

5. WaERkEMUEA ()

231

Revenue Wz
2021 2020
—E-—F —ZEZEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
(Restated)
(#E5)
Continuing operations BEREXER
Revenue from contracts with customers &8 B 15 3% & % Al
within the scope of HKFRS 15 FISREERNEREFET
Y EHZWE
Disaggregated by major services lines BREEZRGE D
— Brokerage commission and other related —E&E&F% - Hi&E & HiE
fees from dealing in securities, futures BRMEREMAE R
and options contracts HiAmEE R 13,587 13,795
— Underwriting, sub-underwriting, placing and — 884 - D84 « iB& &
sub-placing commission PEEME 15,529 1,620
— Arrangement, referral, advisory and other —%3F - &1 « BB &
fee income Hth & A WA 7,430 9,203
— Insurance commission income —fREEAS KA 10 -
— Sales and marketing of digital assets — B EEHERIER 6 -
36,562 24,618
Revenue from other sources REEMRIRZ W E
— Interest income from clients - RERFPZFBIWA 53,708 43,752
— Dividend income from listed equity — KB BEAZRATET
securities classified as financial assets EREEREREEZ
at FVTPL MBEEZ WA
&7 2 BB A 284 -
53,992 43,752
90,554 68,370

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with

customers by timing of recognition

Timing of revenue recognition
At a point in time
Over time

Wy 35 T R B S
P — & 5 ]
R — B E A

2021
—E-—F
HK$'000
FHET

29,248
7,314

BEEFIVENMBNRE 2ER
SCE-e)

2020
—T_FTHF
HK$'000
FET
(Restated)
(&)

15,711
8,907

36,562

24,618
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F-— St A=t-ALEE
REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME (continued)

Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations

As at 31 December 2021, the aggregate amount of
transaction price allocated to the performance obligations
that are unsatisfied (or partially unsatisfied) is
approximately HK$2,677,000 (2020: HK$55,000). The
amount for 2021 represents revenue expected to be
recognised in future from sales and marketing of digital
assets. The amount for 2020 represents revenue expected
to be recognised in future from corporate finance advisory
service. The Group will recognise this revenue as the
service is provided, which is expected to occur over the
next 12 months (2020: nil). The above amounts do not
include variable consideration which is constrained.

W R E WA ()
BRXZEIRERGB2BENEE

Kféf—¢+ BA=+—8 5k
KRBT (B REIT) CBROEFEZ
R HEBREEL 52,677,000 T (ZF =
T4 550008 7L) cRZT = —F -
ZRERATEHNRRERCHEREE
HBEE2WE RZTEZEF %K
18 A TEHA R R R R 2 1b 2wt & BE R AR
2 e o AN S A R AR 5 B R R
e - EFEFT AR ARRI2ME A N E &
ZE-EF -\ LS BEIERER
B 2 AR E -

Other income Hug A
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
(Restated)
(&&ES)

Continuing operations FEREXYR

Interest income from authorised institutions 38 & 32 A ##% ~ FI 8 Uk A 101 538
Interest income from convertible bonds KB AR E S 2 F B U A - 138
Other interest income H b F B A 477 1,611
Total Interest income R B U A 4858 578 2,287
Government grants (note) B 6 B (M a2) 200 3,151
Sundry income FIBHA 948 91
1,726 5,529

Note: During the year 31 December 2021, the Group
recognised government grants of approximately
HK$200,000 (2020: HK$3,151,000) in respect of
COVID-19-related subsidies, of which amounted to
HK$110,000 related to Hong Kong Institute of Human
Resource Management Job Creation Scheme (2020:
HK$3,051,000 related to Employment Support Scheme)
provided by the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region under the Anti-Epidemic Fund.
There are no unfulfilled conditions and other
contingencies attached to the receipts of those
subsidies.

Wi BE-_ZT-_—F+-A=+—81
FE 0 AN B FCOVID-194H BF 7 B
& FE R BT #8 B) £9200,0005% 7T (=
T T4 3,151,000 L) He
110,000/ 7078 & & A 45 B 17 B[S 1K
FBzHEREESTZEBANE
RERESAERUTE (=%
1 3,051,000 7T 3% K B & i & &
ST ZMRBEIED) - ZSWH
maE - WERERZGEEREAMR
REBIE -
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6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group's operating businesses are organised and
managed separately, according to the nature of products
and services provided, with each segment representing a
strategic business unit that offers products and services
which are subject to risks and returns that are different

from those of the other operating segments.

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which

are organised by different business lines.

Information reported to the Group's Executive Committee,
being the chief operating decision maker ("“CODM"), for
the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment is prepared on this basis. The Group has
identified the following six (2020: five (restated))
reportable segments under HKFRS 8 Operating Segments

as follows:

(i) the brokerage and financing segment engages in
securities, futures and options brokering and dealing,
provision of margin financing and money lending,

and placing and underwriting services;

(i) the corporate finance and other advisory services
segment engages in provision of corporate financial

advisory services and company secretarial services;

(i) the asset management segment engages in provision

of asset management services;

(iv) the insurance brokerage segment engages in

provision of insurance brokerage services;

(v) the proprietary trading segment engages in trading
of equity securities, debt securities and other

financial products; and

(vi) the sales and marketing of digital assets segment

engages in trading of Q-coins in electronic platform.

7 #RE

AEBEEEEBHEARUER R
BrUEESRABRRER SHHA—
ERmE % AREZERRREAE
W2 ER R ER B RIR S

P aNEvi
‘=770

AEEAERBOBERR
IR D HR

ESE N AV

RAASEHITEES (AEBLERE
HFE(XELEBRRED)ERZERT
ARERD R ERATE Wik il E
BEE - AEEEREBEESVHRELE
R8s & D #E T3 E (=
Z_FF - AEKEES]))ETRED
IS N

() BREMBEXBHDBRERE
ENABELIER - TE@‘_H%_Ké
BERRE  UREERBHRS

(i) BEBRENMEMERREELDE
HERHEXREBM RS QA
WE RS

(i) BEETEEROBRBREHEEE
B R

(iv) RERELEBD BRERERRE
AR5

(v) BREBEBOERERAES
EEFLEMEREMES &

(i) BISEEHEREEER D BN E
ETFAaZQBEE -

233



234

VALUE CONVERGENCE HOLDINGS LIMITED EZRZRER AT

Annual Report 2021 &£}

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Z& MR RM

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-_T-_—F+-A=t—HLEFE

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Sales and marketing of digital assets were commenced

during the year ended 31 December 2021.

An operating segment regarding the sales and distribution
of healthcare products was discontinued in the current
year. The segment information reported on the next
pages does not include any amounts for this
discontinued operation, which are described in more

details in note 13.

7 HEM (F)
BEAEREREEEBRBE "
——f+-A=+-BLFERM-

HERDHBERERBERMZIEK DR
RERFRIEEE - ZTRBARMERZ
DEER T BEMLIAD KIS EBR
BEZEMSRE  MERWE13R EF
At -
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DHER (E)
The following tables presented revenue and results of TREIWNEE_ZE-_—FR-_ZT-FF
these reportable and operating segments for the years TZA=T—BLEFEZFATHRERE
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. B R EEER -
Year ended 31 December 2021 BE-_E--S+-A=+—-HLEE
Corporate
finance
Brokerage  and other
and  advisory Asset Insurance  Proprietary Digital  Segment
Continuing operations RREEEER financing ~ services management  brokerage trading assets total ~ Eliminations Total
i -

BER RAKER BE R h U]
BEXE  REXE EEERR  GERR  ERRR  H£ERR 2R bE] it
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS0OO  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK§000
tEn  TEr  TEx  TRR TR TEx TR TEr  TEX

Segment revene Aha 82824 7430 - 10 284 6 90,554 - 90,554

Intre-segment sales FHEHER - 333 - - - - 333 (3332) -

82,824 10,762 - 10 284 6 93,886 (33%2) 90,554

Segment profit (loss) AN (58 50,889 455 (1,629) (146) 31,695 (3174) 7749 - TI4%

Unallocated adminitrtive costs & A B 7BALA (38351)
Fair value change of financial ~ BRATEFERERA
assets at FVTPL BRENHEEL

1YE2S 2

Shae of profit of assocate ~~ AEBERE ZiEH 194

Profit before tax for the year ~~ EEBHAER|
(continuing operations) (5EEE%H) 3962
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6.

E-—F+ZA=1+—HILFE
SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEER (F)
Year ended 31 December 2021 (continued) BE-Z--—F+-A=+—HLFE@
Other segment information Hib o BMEHR
Corporate
finance
Brokerage  and other
and  advisory Asset  Insurance  Proprietary Digital  Segment
Continuing operations REEERK financing ~~ services management  brokerage trading assets total  Adjustments Total
bERE
S8R REHER &g B BE  HEEE
HERR  BERE  EERE  GER%  HERR B R B h
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR Tén Thn TR TR TEn Thn TR
(note)
()
Amounts included in the measwre B BBEEA
of segment proft or loss: L%
Net realsed and unredlised RIEEERBAEL
g on financial assets BERRAZRAE
helé-orading o - 20) - - (328%) - (328%) - (3856)
Interest income from Kaduggs
authorised insfitutions FEYION (100) - - - - - (100) () (101)
Staff costs ETHA 8,573 6,510 1,554 155 - 459 17,851 21,624 39,475
Commission expenses Refx 5,668 - - - 34 - 5,702 2 5,704
Deprecation of property nNERFRERE
and equipment 202 68 1 - - - m 2,268 2,539
Impaiment loss on accounts ERERZ
receivable, net HEEEEE 2,705 (39) - - - - 2307 1017 3,3
Finance costs BERT 33,787 - - - 1,634 - AN (33146) 2275
Amounts regularly provided to the  FERRA FAEE %im
Group's Bxecutive Commitiee ~ ZE &5 254
but not included in the measure ~ EEB LRI AZ
of segment profit or loss: 2E:
Addtions to non-curent assets  EFBEERE 49 1445 - - - 203 1697 17008 18705
Impairment loss on other A EUES
receivables HEEE - (1,016) - - - - (1,016) 1,145 129
Depreciation of rightof-use assets  FREEENE - - - - - - - 7284 7284
Interest expenses on lease HEaEY
lisbilites flIER% - - - - - - - 30 30
Income tax expenses fERER 9,594 - - - - - 9,594 1,265 10,859
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S
6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Year ended 31 December 2020 (Restated)

6. ’J}%Bﬁilﬁl(?fé)
BE_T_TF+_A=1+—HLFE

(%%%%?IJ)
Corporate
finance
Biokerage  and other
and advisory Asset  Insurance  Proprietary  Segment
Continuing operations REEEER financing senvices  management  brokerage tiading totel  Eliminations Total
PERE
gk REMER gE R B
ARk RBRR  EEER @Ex% EERR oEER By by
HK§'000 HK$'000 HK§ 000 HK$'000 Hk§'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThL T TiEn TR T TR TiEn TR
Segment revenue Als 59,167 9,203 - - - 68370 - 68370
Intra-segment sales APREES - 1672 - - - 1672 (1672) -
59,167 10,875 - - - 70,042 (1672) 68,370
Segment profit (loss) Aar(BE) 17624 @4 (30 (659)  106% 25875 - 25875
Unallocated administrative costs FRAROMAE (50224)
Gain on acquiston of financial assets ~ WERLATENERERAE
at FTPL REZBBRE N 3979
Loss on redemption of financid assets ~ EERATENEREBLE
at AL RELHKEE BB (3358)
Fair value change of financial assets RATENERERERRE
at ATPL LEBEELATEEY (2130)
Loss on disposel of financial assets HERATEIEREBRR
at ATPL RELHHEEER (8413)
Share of proft of associates MEBEDT R 127

Loss before tax for the year
(continuing operations)

(34,144)
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

BE—
6.

Year ended 31 December 2020 (Restated) (continued)

ﬁ%ﬂﬁﬂ(ﬁ)

BE_T-_TF+_A=+—HLFE

(,@EEJ) (&)

Other segment information Hit o BER
Corporate
finance
Buokerage  and other
and advisory Isurance ~ Proprietary Segment
Continuing operations BEMRER financing senvices brokerage trading fotel  Adustments Total
it}
gaR  REMES (R g
LS Egx% EE R A¥E EE th)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tin TEn TR Fin T TR T
(note)
(H3)
Amounts included n the measure of 3R BEHEHF A
segment proft or loss: LEE:
Net realised and unrealised (galn) ~ FEEEHHEEL
loss on financil asses BRRRARE (U&)
held-for-rading BEAE - - - (13302 (13300) - (13,302)
Interest income fom authorised ~— KERTERZFERA
institutions (487) (29) - - (537) (1) (538)
Staff costs ETfA 7,134 7,634 764 - 17542 27,004 44546
Commission expenses ReR% 5,449 | - 1573 7023 (1,574) 5,449
Depreciation of property and NERRENE
equipment 348 Ly - - 391 2,702 3,093
Impaiment loss on accounts BUEN AEEERE
recelvable, net 21,558 58] - - 2139 - 2139
Finance costs BEHA 18951 - - 2018 0069 (18158) 2811
Amounts reguarly provided tothe  EHREFAETNG
Group's Bxecutve Commitee bt~ ZE@EXEHPER
not included in the measure of BilATACER:
segment profit or loss:
Additions to non-current assets FROEETE - 40 - - 4 27% 2776
Impaiment loss on other receivebles  EfbERETZFEEE - - - - - 499 49%
Depreciation of rightof-use assets ~ FREEESE - - - - - 6,497 6497
Interest expenses on lease liabites & & E2H 8% - - - - - 370 370
Income tax expenses FEREY 2213 (37) - - 2176 (560) 1616
Interest income from comertble WA ER 2 HEMA
bonds - - - - - (138) (138)
Note: Adjustments include the unallocated administrative costs fat : ABRBREIVEHEES>EZENE(Z
that are not directly allocated to the six (2020: five TE-—=F HE(RET|)) &&E D
(restated)) operating segments and also represent the B

intra-group sales, finance costs and management fee

which are eliminated at consolidation.

e
S

il
Em
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6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are
the same as the Group's accounting policies described in
note 3. Segment profit or loss represents the profit
earned by/loss from each segment, before the deduction
of unallocated administrative costs, fair value change of
financial assets at FVTPL, gain on acquisition of financial
assets at FVTPL, loss on redemption of financial assets at
FVTPL, loss on disposal of financial assets at FVTPL, and
share of profit of associates. This is the measure reported
to the Group's Executive Committee for the purposes of

resource allocation and performance assessment.

One of the customers accounted for 10% or more of the
Group's revenue for the year ended 31 December 2021
and (2020: nil). The Group's operations are mainly
located in Hong Kong (place of domicile). The Group's
revenue from external customers is mainly derived from
Hong Kong for 2021. Almost all of its non-current assets
and other than financial instruments are attributed to the

operations in Hong Kong.

Segment assets and liabilities are not presented as they
are not regularly provided to the Group's Executive

Committee.

2 EBEFR (&)

BEREDH 2 BRRENZEIME Z
AREBEGHHE K- DHEREED
ERPABRER 2 A A 2 B5IE 0 AR
BRARDEITHARN - BAFEIIRRE
BaRRECHMBEEZAFERZS
WERAFEIRERERGREE 2/
BEEZWZ  BERATVEIERE
BaREECMBEECER HERK
NFEIEREEGREEZ MK EE
ZEBREDIEBERB N o tTm
AEEHTREEHREARDIEER R
AERBZEE-

Hﬁ\

lid

HE-_ZTZ-_—F+-A=+—HI#F
B Hp—BRPEAREEKEZ10%3k
lAHfszEﬂM REBEZ ¥
FTREE(FEHM) R —
¢ $%l%ﬂ%ﬁ2% TEEREE
B REBET2HERDEE (KBS
MEBINHEBEEEBERA -

HRAOHEERABILETERERTA
SEHRTEES  HUEBEINEMER -
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7. OTHER GAINS 7. Hitblzs
Continuing operations BEKEER
2021 2020
—E-—F —EZTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHET
(Restated)
(18 &5%1)
(Loss) gain on disposal of property and HEMERZHZ
equipment (E18) e (47) 245
Net exchange gain EH M F R 76 84
Gain on acquisition of financial assets at Wi 2 N PRI BR M
FVTPL EE=RERBZHBE
Bz W - 3,979
Loss on redemption of financial assets at ~ EEIIZ A F{EFIR M TR
FVTPL nREECMBEEEL
518 - (3,358)
Fair value change of financial assets at BATEINERERRE
FVTPL (note 25) BREZHBEE 2R
BEZ & (K:225) 299 (2,130)
Net realised and unrealised gain on BIEEBMBEEL
financial assets held for-trading BB RAREFR R
F R 32,856 13,302
Loss on disposal of financial assets at HERAFEIRRER
FVTPL anREEMBEEEL
EE - (8,413)

33,184

3,709
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8.

STAFF COSTS (INCLUDING DIRECTORS' 8. EIRK(BIEESIHE)
EMOLUMENTS)
Continuing operations BEKEXER
2021 2020
—E2-—F —E-%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
(Restated)
(Fe&E51)
Staff commission BETHe 3,118 2,965
Salaries and wages HEeRIE 32,542 29,564
Termination benefit RILEBEN® 59 128
Staff welfare ETEF 1,876 1,589
Recruitment costs AL AN 147 219
(Reversal) provision of long service REBREEFR
payment/annual leave benefits BF () B E (104) 320
Retirement benefits scheme contributions 3Rk #& |5t 2 4 5% 873 818
Discretionary and performance related BBERABERS N
incentive payments and provision of 20 B <2 A
gratuity 964 2,077
Equity-settled share option expense VA IR 32454 2 B SO =2
(note 36) (Ki5#36) - 6,866
39,475 44,546

The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) established under the

Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance in

December 2001. The assets of which are held in

separate trustee-administered funds.

Both the Group and the employees contribute a fixed

percentage of the relevant payroll to the MPF Scheme.

The contribution by the Group is capped at HK$1,500

per employee per month and is expensed as incurred.

AEBHTR _ZTTF+ - ARECGE
B ATEE A ENERG)) R Z R BIER

BasrE ([REEE]) - B E

ZEEREREEESOFAEE -

AEBENEEVEREBGF S ZEETE D
Lhm g & st 8l - NEE Z #H3k E
RAESREES A1,5008 T HATY

REERFIMERS ©
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9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 9. EEME
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 9 (2020: ENREMNRAR (ZTE_ZTF 7
7) directors of the Company were as follows: )ESEZMEMT

Year ended 31 December 2021
BE-E--5+-A=+-HLEE

Salaries  Retirement Equity-settled

and benefits share
other scheme option Total
Fees benefits  contribution expense  emoluments

R %

Fek RIER ft2BR
ne Hitn A HE L5 BHX “ame
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER THER

Executive Directors HTES
Fu Yiu Man, Peter FFEX - 2,040 18 - 2,058
Lin Hoi Kwong, Aristo EET - 960 18 - 978
Tang Hao (note 2) BE(Hi22) 474 - - - 474
Cheng Tak Yiu, Simon (note 3)  &34=18 (#7#3) 413 - - - 413
Li Cindy Chen (note 4) ZR(Mfit4) 313 - - - 313
Zhang Nu (note 5) RE (Hits5) 180 - - - 180
Independent Non-executive ~ BYFHTES
Directors

Wong Chung Kin, Quentin g/ 216 - - - 216
Wong Kam Choi, Kerry, M HIBH, MH 216 - - - 216
Siu Miu Man, Simon, MH Y, WH 216 - - - 216

2,028 3,000 36 - 5,064
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9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

9. EEME (&)
Year ended 31 December 2020
BE_T-_FFE+-A=1-HILEE

Salaries Retirement  Equity-settled

and benefits share
other scheme option Total
Fees benefits  contribution expense  emoluments

SBRAR

Hek EAREH 42 B
ik Ethiah sTEIH R R Be
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TR TET TET

Executive Directors BTES
Fu Yiu Man, Peter fTEX - 2,063 18 721 2,802
Tin Ka Pak, Timmy (note 1) xR - 763 13 721 1,497
Lin Hoi Kwong, Aristo BT - 953 18 721 1,692
Tang Hao EE 94 - - - 94
Independent Non-executive ~ BUFHTES
Directors

Wong Chung Kin, Quentin S 216 - - - 216
Wong Kam Choi, Kerry, mH EiR O, MH 216 - - - 216
Siu Miu Man, Simon, wH BYX, MH 216 - - - 216
742 3,779 49 2,163 6,733

Notes: B -

1. Mr. Tin Ka Pak, Timmy resigned with effect from 11 1. AXRMEANR-_ZE_ZTFEAA+—H
September 2020. REBHE ©

2. Mr. Tang Hao was appointed as Executive Director of the 2. BEEEAN-_T-_TFE+_A=Ai
Company with effect from 3 December 2020 and resigned EZTAARIRNTEETITIR-Z
as Executive Director of the Company with effect from 24 T —FRA-ZTUAHEEITARGHR
May 2021. TEF-

3. Mr. Cheng Tak Yiu, Simon was appointed as Executive 3. HEREER-_T=—F—HA=+H
Director of the Company with effect from 20 January 2021 REZERARATNTEFIN_Z
and resigned with effective from 24 May 2021. Z—FRAZTMAREEIT-

4. Ms. Li Cindy Chen was appointed as Executive Director of 4, ZRZLITW -_ZE-_—FNAA-_++H
the Company with effect from 27 September 2021. REZERRRAMITES -

5. Mr. Zhang Nu was appointed as Executive Director of the 5, RBEANR-_T-_—F+—F—-Hit

Company with effect from 1 November 2021.

BEZERAAFRITES -
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9. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS (continued)

9. EEME (&)

Aggregate emoluments paid

Aggregate emoluments paid to or receivable by directors
to or receivable by directors in respect of their other
in respect of their services as services in connection with
directors, whether of the the management of affairs
Company or its subsidiaries of the Company or its
undertaking subsidiaries undertaking Total

EERAREERARTDER
ESRARECESRSE EBEREZHMRE (FTWRER

(FHREREADARENERR) KARREMBEAR)
BXARERZHMEEE EXNRERZHMEEEE Mt
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
—E=-—F —E_FTF —B=- —E_EF =—E=- —T_FTF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET FERx FHET FERT FHET
2,028 742 3,036 5,991 5,064 6,733

For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, no
ordinary shares were awarded to the directors of the
Company under share incentive award schemes in
respect of their services provided to the Group. Further

details of which are set out in note 36.

BHE_ZT-_—GR-_FT_FF+ A
=T+—HIEFEA - BEBERG ZE
FEIMARREETAAEBRE 2R
M EREEBER GE#E—SFEH
FABFE36 ©
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10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES' AND SENIOR 10 AN ESHEERSREERE
MANAGEMENT'S EMOLUMENTS [
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in AEBRAUGESHFMALTH  —F (=
the Group, one (2020: three) was the director of the Z_TF =) RARAIESE - A
Company whose emoluments are included in the SEBHERMFEI - B THBA(ZTE=F
disclosures in note 9. The emoluments of the remaining F:MmB) AT ZBEeEIOT -

four individuals (2020: two) were as follows:

2021 2020

—E-—F —E-FTF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FEx FHET

Salaries and other benefits e kHAEN 6,443 3,240
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RRBRET SR 72 36
Equity-settled share option expense VARR AN 32 A5F 2 B AR R A =2 - 615

6,515 3,891
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10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’'S EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Their emoluments fell within the following bands:

10. AN G EHFEERSREERE

< (&)
BEZME N FTIIERE :

Number of individuals

A
2021 2020
—E-—F —EFTF
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,0017% 7T £2,000,0007% 7T 4 1

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000

2,000,0017% 7T 22,500,000 7T -

—_

Other than the emoluments of directors disclosed in note
9, the emoluments of the senior management fell within

the following bands:

B REEE S SRE
BEZMENFTI&EE :

Number of individuals

A
2021 2020
—E-—F —EEF
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001/ 7T £2,000,000/% 7T 1 1

The senior management represents key management
personnel of the Group, other than directors of the
Company whose emoluments are included in note 9. The
emoluments of the key management personnel are

included in note 41.

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020,
no emoluments were paid or payable by the Group to
the directors of the Company or the five highest paid
individuals of the Group as inducements to join or upon

joining the Group or as a compensation for loss of office.

RREREEASEZEEEEAS COF
BREARAES HEZHEERHF
IOFWE) FEEEABZHMEER
BisEan -

BE_Z-_—GR_ZT_ZFF+_H
=E+—RIEFEARA ARBEEAARD
AEEFALEERANRSHALTIMNH
JERHERBN S - YER IR ZARE E SN
By BESEABEREE -
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11. FINANCE COSTS 11. MERA
Continuing operations BEKEEL
2021 2020
—B-—F —EFF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FAET
Interests on: IATEREZHE
Convertible bonds issued (note 32) EETABRKRES (WWiE32) 1,422 2,441
Lease liabilities (note 22) HMEBE(HF22) 320 370
Margin loan payables e RER E R 533 -
2,275 2,811
12. INCOME TAX EXPENSES 12. FRGE BB
2021 2020
—E-—F —ZEZEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAERT
Continuing operations FELEET
Current tax: BVEAR I
Hong Kong Profits Tax EENEH 5,371 2,213
Under (over) provision in prior year BEFERETT (BEEE)
Hong Kong Profits Tax EENEHR 4,223 (37)
Deferred tax (note 31) EERITE (K aE31) 1,265 (560)
10,859 1,616
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12. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued)

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill
2017 (the "Bill") which introduces the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28
March 2018 and was gazetted on the following day.
Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first
HK$2 million of profits of qualifying corporation will be
taxed at 8.25% and profits above HK$2 million will be
taxed at 16.5%. For the year ended 31 December 2021,
Hong Kong Profits Tax of the qualified entity of the Group
is calculated in accordance with the two-tiered profits tax

rates regime.

Pursuant to the rules and regulation of the British Virgin
Islands (“BVI"), the Group is not subject to any income

tax in this jurisdiction.

Annual Report 2021 &£}

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Z& MR RM

12. Fr 5 %iBA > ()

RZE-NE=A=-+—8 FBLE
FRB(ZT—LFHRBK (B (B75H)
BOIER) (MEHFIEZR]) - S| ARG
M ZEPIERR_T—NF=A
“THNBEEERREE  UREBAT
BoRBANGEHMRH  cEREEE
2,000,000/ 7T i M 2 B & %8.25% -
ifl #2 ##2,000,0007% 7T 2 @ M & X &
165% HEZETE-_—F+-A=+—
HIEFE RXEEETEERERBCZE
BAERENEHMAREGTH -

RERBREZES ((RBRXEHS])
RAIRRG - A& B BARMMN L RAE
B2 AR FTFTR o
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12. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued)

The tax expense can be reconciled to the profit (loss)

12. RSB (8)
HERTHGEABEREMEZEmBRAR
BB ANRF (B1E) HERMT

before tax per the consolidated statement of profit (loss)

and other comprehensive income as follows:

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
(Restated)
(r8&51)

Continuing operations SE i
Profit (loss) before tax B AT A (B8) 39,632 (34,144)
Calculated at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of 12 & B FI 1S H i £ 16.5%

16.5% (2020: 16.5%) —T -5 16.5%)

AtE 6,539 (5,634)
Tax effect of share of profit of associates AEEE RFEN 2
ki3 (32) @n

Tax effect of income not taxable for tax MBIEM S BAMBIUA

purpose ZRBTE (8,539) (4,752)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for BBIET 5 A AR X

tax purpose 2GR E 2,694 9,467
Under (Over) provision in respect of prior ~ BLBEFEEET T

year (HBRERE) 4,223 (37)
Tax effect of deductible temporary REER 2 AT HIT By = 58

difference not recognised BT E 146 873
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax B AERER CHIEEE

losses (5,959) (2,715)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERVIBEBE 2 BHGEE 11,952 4,600
Effect of two-tiered profits tax rates regime  FI{S & M AR Hl 2 & (165) (165)
Tax expense for the year FEBBERI 10,859 1,616
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13. DISCONTINUED OPERATION

On 9 December 2021, the Company has entered into a
sales and purchase agreement with an independent third
party to dispose its wholly owned subsidiary, VC Gloabl
Investments Limited (“VC Global”). Through this disposal,
51% directly held subsidiary by VC Global and its 51%
indirectly held subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Disposal Group”) were also disposed accordingly, at a
cash consideration of HK$7,000,000. The Disposal Group
carried out all of the Group's sales and distribution of
healthcare products segment which represented a
separate major line of business of the Group. As a result,
it has been presented as a discontinued operation in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020. The disposal was completed
on 24 December 2021, on which date control of the

Disposal Group was passed to the acquirer.

The (loss) profit for the period from the discontinued

operation is analysed as follows:

13. BRI REXEK

RZEZ—F+ZANA AN FH
NE=ZFINEE RS LAﬁ’é,Hé\éf
Bt & A alVC Global Investments Limited
(TVC Global |) ° @@t % - VC Globa
EERAS 1R B AR REBE
BAESIVEm WMB AR (BB ILE
SEDTAHEEE - PRERBRERERE
7,000,000/ 7T - A B Z $HE k7 #H
BERREMOB2HHALEEEL
g HAEAEE BB UIEIEER
BeoAERKL HERBE-ZT=-—F
RZZ_TFF+_A=+—HLFEZ
HABRREMEERARZINABELR

2K BEALER_T - —F
TZAZTHARK  MEEEE 2%
SRR BEBEEWES -

BRIEGEEER ZHRN (BB 255
Mo

1/1/2021 - 17/7/2020 —
24/12/2021 31/12/2020
—B-—F —F-FHF
—B—HZ +tAt+ttAZE
—EZ—F —E-EF
t=ZA=t+tWmA +-A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FHT
(Loss) profit of sales and distribution of 46 & 9 $4 88 B (R i
healthcare products for the period Emz B8R (EE) & T (21,872) 3,439
Loss on disposal of sales and HEHERDHE
distribution of healthcare products REEmH 2 EE
segment (note 40) (H5t40) (107) -

(21,979) 3,439
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13. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued) 13.

The results of the sales and distribution of healthcare
products for the period from 1 January 2021 to 24

December 2021 were as follows:

ERIEREXEK (&)
RZEZ—F—HA—HBEZZT=—%
FTZAZ TR BHEBEE RS HERR
HERZEENT :

1/1/2021 - 17/7/2020 -

24/12/2021 31/12/2020

—E-—F —ETF

—-B—HBZ +AttAZ

—E-—F —EZTF

+=—A=+mA +=-—A=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FET

Revenue Y& 53 9,539

Cost of sales FER= DN (53) (6,605)

Gross profit EX - 2,934

Other income H A 99 -

Impairment on other receivables H th R YRR 2 RUE (7,403) -

Other operating expenses Hih i &M (9,793) (4,023)
Fair value change of derivatives financial T BEE 2 AFE

assets (note 26) 28 (Hit26) (4,735) 4,735

Finance costs (note 32) BhE KA (A iE32) (25) -

(Loss) profit before taxation B AT (BHE) % A (21,857) 3,646

Income tax expenses FTSBiF X (15) (207)

(Loss) profit for the period A (B18) (21,872) 3,439
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13. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued) 13. ERUERE XK (&)
Loss for the period from discontinued operation has been ERIEREXRB 2 MABERLHER T
arrived at after charging: BIERIE
1/1/2021 - 17/7/2020 —
24/12/2021 31/12/2020
—E-—F —E_TF
—B—HBZ +tAttAZE
—E- —T T
+t=ZA=tWmBE +-A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Amount of inventories recognised as BREAXZFESRHRE
an expense 53 6,605
Staff costs — salaries, allowances, ETITMA—%% 8-
other benefits and contributions to H fth 12 7 AR KRR A&t
retirement benefits scheme E N 2,884 2,114

Depreciation of plant and equipment WEREETE 5 2
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13. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued)

The information on cash flows incurred by the

discontinued operation is as follows:

13. BERIEEERE (F)
BHERLEEEBHREE RORE
ZARIT

1/1/2021 - 17/7/2020 —

24/12/2021 31/12/2020

—E-—F —E T

—HA—H%Z +tAt+tAZE

—E- B -FF

t=ZA=+tWAE +-A=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHERT FHET

Net cash used in operating activities KEFRBAARE FE (8,253) (7,890)
Net cash used in investing activities REETHMAR S FE (53) (16)
Net cash from financing activities MEEHMEREFE 5516 10,747

No tax deduction arose on loss on disposal of the

discontinued operation.

The carrying amounts of the total assets and liabilities of
the discontinued operation at the date of disposal are

disclosed in note 40.

HEDRIEREXRH 2 BRY B KM
THHOR,

ERIREEBRHERMZREER
BEEZREERHF40PHE -

253



254

VALUE CONVERGENCE HOLDINGS LIMITED ERZRERAA
Annual Report 2021 &£}

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Z& MR RM

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_T_—F+-A=1+—HLHFE

14.

15.

PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 14. FE&HH (B1E)
Profit (loss) for the year has been arrived at after FEHEMNEE) &K T FEE
charging: B
Continuing operations BEKEER
2021 2020
—EB-—F —ETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Included in other operating expenses: BEREMRERX
Auditor's remuneration Z SN & 1,300 1,150
Depreciation of property and equipment MEREBHITE 2,539 3,093
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE 7,284 6,497
Entertainment and travel expenses (mainly JEBNZ RS (X B gt %
incurred for business development) BEEMES) 6,095 4,629
DIVIDENDS 15. B2
No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended VRS E T -_—F+-_A=+—H
31 December 2021, nor has any dividend been IEFFEXNKEREMBKRE - TEB®
proposed since the end of the reporting period (2020: EHREREZTARE(ZE_ZF:

nil). ") -
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16. EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE 16. BRBF (BE)
From continuing and discontinued operations BERCRILEREXER
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings (loss) RARIHEBEAREFBEREDRIEEEE
per share from continuing and discontinued operations BrzeREARBERN (FE) LR
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on BUATEEE

the following data:

2021 2020
—E-_—F —E-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FHET
(Restated)
(F &%)
Earnings (loss) B (F58)
Earnings (loss) for the purpose of basic M EERERR#ES
and diluted earnings (loss) per share BN (EE) mAZ
an(E’R) 15,188 (31,687)
2021 2020
—B-—F —EB-TF
'000 ‘000
TR’ T A%
Number of shares igvig= g
Weighted average number of ordinary e EEREAREN (BE)
shares for the purpose of basic PR Z & @Ak i
earnings (loss) per share T2 1,867,704 1,343,054
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares:  BfE# EE @R 2 FE
— Share options — B E 17,512 -
Weighted average number of ordinary atEEREERM (FiE)
shares for the purpose of P A 2 & Ak hn g

diluted earnings (loss) per share g 1,885,216 1,343,054
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16. EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE (continued)
From continuing operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings (loss)
per share from continuing operations attributable to the

owners of the Company is based on the following data:

Earnings figures are calculated as follows:

16. BRBA (F1R) (&)
BEREEL
ADREBAREHBELEEB 2SR
EARBERT (BR) DREATH
I

BNBFEENT

2021 2020
e —E-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
(Restated)
(Fe&E51)
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to the ~ ANQ R A A FE(5 FE
owners of the Company i F (E518) 15,188 (31,687)
Add: Loss (profit) for the year from m:ERIERERE 2
discontinued operation FREEECEHN) 13,591 (4,073)
Earnings (loss) for the purpose of basic and BRETEHBEKEEBK 2 &
diluted earnings (loss) per share from RERREERT (FE)
continuing operations FrA z B A (&) 28,779 (35,760)

The denominators used are the same as those detailed
above for both basic and diluted earnings (loss) per

share.

From discontinued operation

Basic earnings (loss) for the discontinued operation is
HK$0.73 cents per share (2020: earnings HK$0.30 cents
per share) and diluted loss per share for the discontinued
operation is HK$0.72 cents per share (2020: earnings
HK$0.30 cents per share), based on the loss for the year
from the discontinued operation of approximately
HK$13,591,000 (2020: profit approximately
HK$4,073,000) and the denominators detailed above for

both basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share.

BREANETRN (BE) AR
B8 FAAER o

CRIEREER
RERIEKEEB2FREBEY
13,591,0008 T (ZZEZFF : H MK
4,073,000/ 70) & B AR E A I 858 & 7
(BE)FFAz LS EE - BRIEL
BEBZEREART (BB RER
0.738 I (ZZE_ZF : KA F0.30
B - MEBRIESEXEB 2 BREE
BIEAASRO72EIW (ZTE = F
FRAEF0.3081) -
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16.

17.

EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE (continued)
From discontinued operation (continued)

The computation of diluted loss per share does not
assume the conversion of the Company's outstanding
convertible bonds since their exercise would result in an
increase in earnings per share (2020: decrease in loss
per share) for the year ended 31 December 2021. And
the computation of diluted loss per share does not
assume the conversion of the Company's options under
the share option scheme granted in 2020 since their
exercise would result in decrease in loss per share for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

GOODWILL
Carrying value REE
As at 1 January and 31 December R—A—Bx&
+=ZA=+—H

16. FREBF (FR) (&)

ERIEREER (F)
EEREEEBERITERRARRR
E@T%k1ﬁaﬁk RHiTEreE
BHE-_T-_—F+-A=+—HLHF
EzERBFEM(ZZE_ZF: 8K
BERD) T EEREEEBRIE
BEARABR S FIREERET
EREcEREDRE  A1TEREESE
BEE_T_ZF+-_A=1+—HLF
EzEREBRD -

17. 88

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
2,016 2,016

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill set out
above has been allocated to one CGU, comprising a
subsidiary in the provision of insurance brokerage

services.

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020,
management of the Company determines that there is no

impairment on goodwill.

AETHENS  LAmEEEE—
18 By — P 4 AR B 48 42 AR 7% 2 BT /BB 2 )
AR zBReELBU ((ZREELE
A e

REBE_Z_—FR_Z_ZF+_H
E+—E¢¢§'$ﬁﬂﬁﬁgﬁﬁﬁ
BIWEFE -
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18. TRADING RIGHTS 18. R 5 #&
HK$'000
FHT
Cost DN
1 January 2020, 31 December 2020, R-E-_FTF—H—H -
1 January 2021 and 31 December 2021 —E-FTF+_A=+—80"
2 -F%—-fF—Hk
—E-—F+-_HA=+—H 5,066
Amortisation i
At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020, RZE-ZFF—H—H -
1 January 2021 and 31 December 2021 —EEFE+A=+—8"
T —H—-HA—Ak
—E-—F+-"A=1+—H 5,066

Carrying values
At 31 December 2020 and
31 December 2021

IREE
RZEZZFF+_A=+—HBK
—E-—F+=-A=+—H

Trading rights are amortised over 10 years from 6 March

2000, the effective date of the merger of the Stock

RHEA_TETF=ANE (BRAH -

BEHZMEEATREZEER QA

Exchange, HKFE and Hong Kong Securities Clearing (IBEEE])AMER) Y +FH#H -

Company Limited ("HKSCC").
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19. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19. Htt L& E
HK$'000
FHET
Cost DN
At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020, R-E-_FTF—H—H -
1 January 2021 and 31 December 2021 —ETFE+_HA=+—8"
—T-—%—-A—-HkK
—E-—®+-"HF=+—H 1,538
Accumulated impairment Z5FHRE
At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020, RZE-_FF—H—H -
1 January 2021 and 31 December 2021 —TEFE+-_A=+—H8"
e =D
—F-_—f%+-A=+—H 292
Carrying values FREE
At 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2021 RZZBEZTF+_A=+—HK
T —%+-A=+—H 1,246
Other intangible assets represent club memberships with H\LEERABRRERIERAFHY
indefinite useful lives and are tested for impairment EREHE WARTFEREERNRNAE
annually by comparing their carrying amounts with their HERF R HARE(E & A P Y[l & &8 A
recoverable amounts based on fair value less costs to ETRENR - A FERBABENT
sell. The fair value is determined using an observable {Ei HHERHERETE  REBEEC
market price or recent market transaction price and no R ZZE_TF+-_A=+—H
indication of impairment was noted during the years tifgﬁqﬂz?ﬂiﬂjfﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁ °

ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.
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20. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 20. MENRFZE
Furniture, Computer
Leasehold fixtures and equipment Motor
improvements equipment  and software vehicles Total
B KER  EERBR
BENELE £ B4 RE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TR TATL TR TATL

Cost KA
At 1 January 2020 RZZB_ZF-A—-H 5714 4,650 7,934 1,761 20,059
Additions AE - 33 67 728 828
Write-off fiss (26) - - (578) (604)
Disposal HE - (5) (700) - (705)
At 31 December 2020 RZEZZF
T-A=+-8 5,688 4678 7,301 1911 19,578
Additions "E 195 175 253 1389 2,012
Write-off A - (1,072) (1732) - (2,804)
Disposal HE - (363) (25) - (388)
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR - - (86) - (86)
At 31 December 2021 i
+-A=1+-H 5,883 3418 5,711 3,300 18,312
Depreciation ik
At 1 January 2020 e s = 2,031 3613 7,301 1,199 14,144
Charge for the year ERRX 2,009 317 398 371 3,095
Write-off B (26) - - (578) (604)
Disposal HE - 3) (697) - (700)
At 31 December 2020 RZE-TF
T-A=+-8 4014 3,927 7,002 992 15,935
Charge for the year ERNRX 1723 304 200 317 2,544
Write-off M - (1072) (1,732) - (2,804)
Disposal HE - (325) (12) - (337)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAT - - ) - @
At 31 December 2021 WZZE-ZF
T-A=1-8 5,737 2,834 5,451 1,309 15,331
Carrying values EEE
At 31 December 2021 WZE-—F%
T-A=+-8R 146 584 260 1991 2,981
At 31 December 2020 WZE-ZTF
T-A=+-8R 1674 751 299 919 3,643
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20. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 20. MERFHE (IB)
The above items of property and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates FRGHETE
per annum:

Leasehold improvements

Over the lease term not THE YR

W

exceeding three years

Furniture, fixtures and 20%
equipment

Computer equipment and 33%
software

Motor vehicles 20%

21. STATUTORY DEPOSITS

B R M R E 339%

RE 20%

21. A E®RE

LR RREBEE DABRERIAT

TEB=F2
TH 5]
B RERRE 20%

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
The Stock Exchange B 22 P
— Compensation fund deposit -EEEeERS 200 200
— Fidelity fund deposit —-ERESE® 200 200
HKSCC BEEHE
— Guarantee fund deposit —-REESES 200 1,318
— Admission fee deposit —2WEBRS 200 200
— Stamp duty deposit —HIER RS 75 75
Hong Kong Futures Exchange Clearing BEREHEHEERBR AT
Corporation Limited (“HKFECC") (BB EEED
— Reserve fund deposit —fHEEEES 1,500 1,500
China Securities Depository and Clearing TREZBESELEE
Corporation Limited EREFERAF 688 688
3,063 4,181
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22. LEASES
(i) Right-of-use assets

Leased properties HEWME

22. &

iy EAREEE
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FAT
15,830 6,330

The Group has lease arrangements for its office
premises, staff quarters and car parking spaces. The
lease terms are generally ranged from one to two

years.

Additions to the right-of-use assets for the year
ended 31 December 2021 amounted to
HK$16,693,000 (2020: HK$1,948,000), due to

new leases of properties.

(ii) Lease liabilities

Non-current ERB

Current mE

AEBEERSFEYE BIEBES
NMOREM AT HEREE - HEI—K
R—EMF -

ERWEZHELN BE-_T=—
F+—A=+—HILFEZFERAE
BENE £16,693,0008 T (ZF
—Z4F 1,948,000/ 7C) ©

(i) HEAE
2021 2020
—B=-—F —T-THF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEx FHT
9,423 880
6,983 5,495

16,406 6,375




VALUE CONVERGENCE HOLDINGS LIMITED ERZRERA A
Annual Report 2021 &£}

263

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Z &M iRRM =

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-_T-_—F+-A=+—HLEFE
22. LEASES (continued) 22. HHE (&)

(i) HERE (&)

(ii) Lease liabilities (continued)

2021 2020
—E-—F —ZEZTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET
Within one year —F R 6,983 5,495
After one year but within two years —FEREMEA 5,897 880
After two years but within five years MERERLFA 3,526 -
16,406 6,375

Less: Amount due for settlement within B 1218 A RBEE

12 months (shown under 2 HRIE (BB

current liabilities) MENBET) (6,983) (5,495)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months 121 B1&7E455 2 k1A 9,423 880
During the year ended 31 December 2021, the HE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—H1t

Group had entered into two (2020: one) new lease FE AEEREEDEITIMA
—IH)EEHE
I fER A B B 18 416,693,000/ 7T

HK$16,693,000 (2020: HK$1,948,000). —E= © 1,948,000/ 7T) ©

—7—7

agreements in respect of renting properties and —E-EF

recognised lease liabilities of approximately

(iii) Amounts due recognised in profit or loss

(i) RIEZRER 2 EIRE

2021 2020
—EB-—F —ECFF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET THETT
Continuing operations BFEREXEK
Depreciation expense on right-of-use FRRBREEZ
assets TERX
— Office premises o N ES 4,720 4,808
— Staff quarters -BIW& 2,564 1,689
Expense relating to short-term leases HISHHER R
Z X 474 371
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEBBZMBRX
(note 11) (Kiat11) 320 370
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22. LEASES (continued) 22. HHE (&)
(iv) Others (iv) Hfb
During the year ended 31 December 2021, the total HE_Z-—F+-_A=+—H1
cash outflow for leases amount to approximately FE MHEMELAZBBRESREN
HK$7,456,000 (2020: HK$7,364,000). /57,456,000 T (ZF T F:

7,364,000/ 7T) ©

23. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATE 23. REERT 2 ER

2021 2020

—E-—F —E-TF

HK$'000 HK$'000

THERT FET

Cost of investment in associate NN D = I N 360 360
Share of post-acquisition profit and 4k W 18 4 A1 K2

other comprehensive income HA2E KA 321 127

681 487
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23. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATE (continued) 23. R E ARl 2w ()
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the details of the RZEZ—FR_FTE_FF+=A
Group's associate is as follows: =+—HB - FAEEZBERRFIEHT
R

Proportion of ownership

Country of Principal place ~ Class of interests held Proportion of
Name of entity Form of entity incorporation of operation  shares held by the Group voting power held  Principal activities
iE iR AEEfE
ERZH ERpA  ERALIER EXuE £5 ERERRLH FEREELA  TEXH
2021 2020 2021 2020

ZE--F -3-%F CEC-f -ECEE

Speedy Billion Holdings Incorporated  Hong Kong ~ HongKong ~ Ordinary 20% 20% 20% 20%  Operation of catering business
Limited
RESEERAT T AT B 2R Beghsn
24. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 24. MAFEIEREHMAZE I
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ARBECZHBEE

2021 2020

—E-—F —E-FF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FER THETT

Unlisted equity securities designated as 155 &% A FEHI I &

at FVTOCI (notes a & b) EEMEEBRARERE 2
FE LR ATE Z (B italib) 23,173 29,517
Analysed for reporting purpose as EmEBHDNIE

non-current assets ERBEE 23,173 29,517
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HEZS

——Ft-A=t—RAILEE

24. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (continued)

Notes:

(@

(b)

©

On 8 June 2018, the Company issued convertible bonds
with 2% coupon rate at a total principal value of
HK$160,000,000 to an independent third party, CVP
Financial Group Limited, as the consideration of the
acquisition of 189% of the equity securities issued by
Hackett Enterprises Limited, a private entity incorporated in
the Republic of Seychelles, which, together with its
subsidiaries, is engaged in the business of provision of loan
financing and financial consultancy services in the PRC and

the provision of money lending services in Hong Kong.

According to the valuation as at 31 December 2021
performed by an independent professional valuer, the fair
value of these securities acquired was approximately
HK$23,173,000 (2020: HK$29,517,000), a fair value loss
of HK$6,344,000 (2020: HK$17,537,000) was recognised

in other comprehensive income.

The amount also includes the Group's investments in 5%
and 5% of the unlisted equity securities issued by two
private entities incorporated in Hong Kong and the British
Virgin Islands respectively. Their principal activities are
investment holding in the PRC and operation of restaurants
in Hong Kong respectively. The fair value of both
investments were approximately to nil as at 31 December
2021 and 31 December 2020.

The investment in equity instrument is not held for trading.
Instead, it is held for medium to long-term strategic
purposes. Accordingly, the directors of the Company have
elected to designate these investments in equity
instrument as at FVTOCI as they believe that recognising
short-term fluctuations in these investments' fair value in
profit or loss would not be consistent with the Group's
strategy of holding these investments for long-term
purposes and realising their performance potential in the

long run.

24 BAFEIRRERMGEZEY

ARBEZHMBEEE (&)

Hiat -

@ RZZFE—NEXANB  KAQRET
R4 48 %8 /%160,000,000%8 2B ZH

(b)

©

BRZABKESFTELE=ZER
CREEBERAF (EREBAEE
M Hackett Enterprises Limited 717 %

KEHZ18N2BENRE  ZRQA
RRARETBEMBEEMA L Z T

ARF ERENBADNETERER
FEREERBERS BENRY -
AR R 4R 4 B 1 R A o

B % %jii;%ﬁfaﬁﬂiw_zz F
TZA=T—BETZHE FKRE
%%2&$E%BJBQ%%%(:?
Z T 129,517,000 L) © B E fh &
T U A 3% 7 5 2R T &5 156,344,000
BT (ZZE=ZFF 117,537,000 7C) °

hEBETEEASERMNESNRE
BRABRIZBESFMALZALAR
BIFTEEITIE E MR AR EE 5 2 5% & K
5%RE - ZERAZEBZEB SRR
RABEREERERNRESLEERE -
R_E-_—F+-_A=Z+—8BK=%
ZEFFTZA=t+—H BREREZ
REBEHNRTETT -

RRAZBZREVEREESE M
RIEPERBRBEAGESR - Bt - K&
NAEZCEERZSERNREAZR 2
REBERBLATEIKRREEMS
HRAKRREE RESEFRA NE
ARERZERECRBARATERD
BEAKRERABAZSRERER
ZERE RERBBNHRBETR o
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25.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

PROFIT OR LOSS

ZHMBEE

25. BAFEIRREESERER

Details of financial assets at FVTPL are set out as follows: BRAFEINERERSREEZVHE
EZFHBHINOT
2021 2020
—F=—F —T-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
Financial assets mandatorily measured at 38 #l#% A F (B 8k &
FVTPL EERDRERIEZ
Mg EE
Convertible bonds (note) AR ES (M) 8,964 8,665
Listed equity securities listed in Hong Kong W& LWz EmKRA
& 7 423,505 247,338
432,469 256,003
Analysed for reporting purpose: MmEBADHT
— Non-current assets —ERBEE - 8,665
— Current assets - RBEE 432,469 247,338

432,469

256,003
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25. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

Note:

On 20 July 2020, the Company had acquired a 3-year 7.5%,
unsecured non-redeemable convertible bonds issued by IBO
Technology Company Limited (“IBO Tech” Stock code: 2708)
issued on 3 April 2019 for a principal amount of HK$5,760,000
at a consideration of HK$6,816,000 (“IBO Tech Convertible
Bond”) from an independent third party. The initial conversion
price of the convertible bonds is HK$1.60 per share. The

transaction was completed on 20 July 2020.

The fair values of the IBO Tech Convertible Bond was
approximately HK$8,964,000 (2020: HK$8,665,000) as at 31
December 2021 the fair values were calculated using Binomial
Model by an independent professional valuer in which the

parameters were summarised as follows:

Share price of the issuer BITAZ KRB
Effective interest rate of the issuer
Risk free rate 2 [ e )
Expected volatility of the issuer

Dividend yield of the issuer BITAZREE

The effective interest rate of the issuer was determined with
reference to the average of the bond yields of the comparable
companies with similar businesses and credit rating of the issuer.
Risk free rate was determined with reference to yield of Hong
Kong government bonds over the exercise period near the
valuation dates of 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020
respectively. Expected volatility of the issuer was determined
using the historical volatility of the issuer's share price over the
exercise period as at the valuation dates of 31 December 2021

and 31 December 2020 respectively.

BTN BRI

BT AZ AR E

25 BAFEIBRRERSERER
ZHBEE (&)
wtsz -

RZEZZEFLA=+H ARAMBILE
ZHWRBENEREROBR AR (AR
B RER :2708) AT — &M A
= ABIT2IFH7.5E BEKIR N A E R A
Bk ES (K€% /57600008 T)  RIE
#6,816,00078 7T, ([ M AARH R AT AR E S ) ©
ABREF S RRERER1.608 T
FHERGER_ZE_TFLAZ+HEK -

RWERBN - E-—F+_A=+—8"
AR AR ES 2 A TFEL A8,964,000
BIL(ZEZFF 186650008 L) c 2%
AP EHBLEEGEMRA ZBAEA G
H-H28BmmT

31 December 31 December

2021 2020
ZEZ—F —ETF
+=—A=+-8 +=ZA=+—H
HK$2.497% 7T HK$2.2178 7T
15% 15%

0.13% 0.08%

51% 54%

0% 0%

BITAZBERFETD2ZERETAEBRE
B RBEE 2 ELBRAR 2 FESHB R
RETE - EERBRMNEDZEFBRNTESFN
HEBH T F+_A=+—HRZ=ZT
—EF+ A=+ —ARERITESRRZE
REBE - BT AZBBRREERAREE
AT -—F+-_A=+—HER=ZZT=%
F+ZA=Z+—BRITEARZETARE
JFE 52 ) IR TE o
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26. DERIVATIVES FINANCIAL ASSETS 26. STEMKEE
2021 2020
B —-F —T-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Call options REE - 4,735

On 1 December 2020, the Company entered into a call
option agreement (the “Call Option Agreement |") with
the Vast Sea Biotechnology, Inc. (“Vast Sea”), which
owned 49% equity interest of Successful of Success
Health Global Limited (“Success Health”). Vast Sea has
granted a call option to the Company to purchase up to
49 shares, representing 49% of the entire portfolio of
Success Health, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Group, or a certain portfolio thereof from Vast Sea at an
exercise price equivalent to 90% of the valuation of
Success Health as at the date of sale and purchase
agreement as assessed and determined by professional
valuer appointed or retained by the Company attributable

to the ascertained portfolio of the shares (“Call Option

".

The fair values of Call Options | included in the

consolidated statement of financial position as at 31

RZZE-_TF+-A—H AR HE
BSuccess Health Global Limited
([ Success Health |) 2 499%H% # 2 Vast
Sea Biotechnology, Inc.([Vast Seal) 7]
REHERZE ((REBRERZED -
Vast SeaB M ARG K HREEE - LA
BEARNEEIF2EME R AlSuccess
Health& Z498% % 17 - 15 E {ESuccess
HealthBx h 42 & 2 49% - iR H & R
Success Healthi E E sk HHI 2 (5 E
Z90% 2 1T {8 - f§ BVast Sealt &
ZETHD  BRGEHARAGEE
EZROEEZTREMZ FEGER
A REE ([REHRED -

REHER _ZE_ZEF+_A=+—
Bz AFE GIAGAMERIE) @

December 2020 are as follows: T
Fair value at measurement date (HK$'000) RitEBRHZAFE(FHET) 3,661
Exercise price TEE HK$85,504
per call option share
FRAE AR
& 1785,5047%8 7T
Expected volatility TaERR 1 59.951%
Expected dividends T8 HA iR 2 -
Risk-free interest rate (based on I B R = 0.103%

United States Treasury Notes)

(KEXBEBEZENX)
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26. DERIVATIVES FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued)

On 1 December 2020, the Company entered into a call
option agreement (the “Call Option Agreement II") with
Main Dynasty International Limited (“Main Dynasty"),
which owned 30% equity interest of Vast Sea. Main
Dynasty has granted a call option to the Company to
purchase up to 300,000 shares, representing 30% of the
entire portfolio of Vast Sea or a certain portfolio thereof
from Main Dynasty at an exercise price equivalent to
90% of the valuation of Vast Sea as at the date of sale
and purchase agreement as assessed and determined by
professional valuer appointed or retained by the
Company attributable to the ascertained portfolio of the
shares (“Call Option 1I").

On 1 December 2020, the Company entered into a call
option agreement (the “Call Option Agreement III") with
Li, Jennifer Chun Jiang (“Jennifer Li"), who acquired 30%
equity interest of Vast Sea. Jennifer Li has granted a call
option to the Company to purchase up to 300,000
shares, representing 30% of the entire portfolio of Vast
Sea or a certain portfolio thereof from Jennifer Li at an
exercise price equivalent to 90% of the valuation of Vast
Sea as at the date of sale and purchase agreement (“Call
Option 11I").

Annual Report 2021 &£}
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26. TR EE (8)

RZZTZZTF+-A—8 ARFHE
B Vast Seaz30%M% # 2 Main Dynasty
International Limited ([ Main Dynasty ]) &]
URBEBRERE ((REHERRND -
Main Dynasty 2 [A] 28 X B4 H 22 A B
PARE BVast Seas %300,000/ fxfn - 16
FE {Avast Seaflx 7 # & 230% -+ 3k 1Z 18
EMVast SeaR BEE WA A2 EEZ
90% 2 1T 1# {& + #& EMain Dynastyid &
mzETED  BEMGEBARFG®E
BEZROEEETRET 2 EEME
AT AL R 2 5E ([R B ERAEND) -

RZZ_ZTFE+_A—RH  KRFHYK
BEVast Sea30%M% # ~Z Li, Jennifer
Chun Jiang ([Jennifer Li]) 5] 37 7R 88 HA#E
ek ([REEERRE MR R11) © Jennifer LiIE
[ R A B 5 L RS B - DA B B Vast
Seam %300,000/% J& 15 + fh E {@Vast
Seallf 9 4 & 230% » =k 3% 18 & M Vast
Sead B & W+ H 8 2 {5 18.290%2 1T
£ {8 8 Slennifer LR EH 2% T
o ([REHRND -
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26. DERIVATIVES FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued)
The fair values of Call Options Il and Il included in the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31

December 2020 are as follows:

Fair value at measurement date (HK$'000) RtEHHZ A
Exercise price 1TEE
Expected volatility T8 BRR 18
Expected dividends & HA BB
Risk-free interest rate (based on 1 B B ) &

United States Treasury Notes)

For details of the terms of the call options above, please

refer to announcement dated 1 December 2020.

As at 31 December 2020, the fair value of the above call
options were derived at after taking into consideration of
the expected exercisable date, the underlying business
value of Success Health and Vast Sea and the adoption

of the binomial model with the above details.

As at 31 December 2021, the above call options were
not exercised and lapsed. The fair value of these call

options were reversed.

26. TTEMBEE (H)

REHEILABEHEIR_Z_ZF
+-A=+—B2Z22FE Gt ALLE
BHRRER)WOT

FE(TET) 674

HK$2

per call option share
BRRERERMD2ET
59.951%

0.103%

(A EEEEZ R %)

BRI BB RREZGEHFEE  B2H
BA—ZT_ZTF+_A—BZlfi-

RZZE_ZTE+_A=+—H LR
B A TFEDEEREAAITEH
HA + Success Health & Vast Sea” 4 %
BEE URAERMz —BARR (GF
BN b)) S o

R-ZF-_—F+=-A=+—8 Lt
BHRARITERRY - ZER Eﬁﬁﬂ%
ZRAFEE FRME -
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27. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Z& MR RM

27. EWBR X

2021 2020
—E--F Z—ZZT-ZTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Accounts receivable arising from the ordinary £ B % £15:B2R R #EITIA
course of business of dealing in: TR S MEE EIERK :
Securities transactions (note a): BHERG (Hita)
Clearing house HEER 14,848 22,670
Cash clients ReRP 4,017 27,342
Futures and options contracts transactions HERHAESAORS
(note a): (Hiita) :
Clearing house HEEP 16 17
18,881 50,029
Accounts receivable arising from the ordinary  7&£ B 2% B2 F
course of business of provision of RECERERHEM
corporate finance and other advisory BEERBEMEEZ
services (note a) FEWBRFR (M ita) 3,880 4,139
Less: Impairment loss R E B 18 (1,650) (1,031)
2,230 3,108
Accounts receivable arising from the ordinary # A EEK BT RETT
course of business of money lending MERBEBEMEEZ
services (note b) FEWR SR (M 7Eb) 273,274 300,263
Less: Impairment loss R E R R (70,545) (51,177)
202,729 249,086
Accounts receivable arising from the ordinary % R E £ BET RETT
course of business of dealing in (note c): AT R 5 1 E 4 2 IR
BRI (M7 atc) -
Securities transactions: BHERG
Margin clients RESEFR 165,224 155,159
Less: Impairment loss OB B8 (6,773) (23,436)
158,451 131,723
Accounts receivables arising from the ordinary 7 B ®¥#5B12F RS
business of sales and distribution of EoHBRREERM
healthcare products (note d) EAE 2 R (M itd) - 8,896
382,291 442,842
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BE—
27.

E_—Ft+_HA=1T—HLFE
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the gross amount of accounts
receivables arising from contracts with customers
amounted to approximately HK$22,761,000 (2020:
HK$63,064,000).

The Group measures the loss allowance for accounts
receivable other than accounts receivable from margin
clients and money lending clients, at an amount equal to
lifetime ECL. The ECL on these accounts receivable are
estimated using a provision matrix by reference to past
default experience of the debtor and an analysis of the
debtor's current financial position, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions of the industry in which the debtors operate
and an assessment of both the current as well as the

forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date.

Notes:

(a) The settlement terms of accounts receivable arising from
the ordinary course of business of dealing in securities
transactions are two trading days after the trade date and
accounts receivable arising from the ordinary course of
business of dealing in futures and options contracts
transactions are one trading day after the trade date.
Accounts receivable from clearing house and majority of
accounts receivable from cash clients represent trades
pending settlement arising from the business of dealing in

securities transactions.

27. BWARR (&)

RZEBEZ—F+A=+—H HEP
AINANFEEZBRERBENR
22,761,000 7T (ZF ZZF : 63,064,000
ETT) o

AEBRESHREEFTEREREES
BreBitsRRER (BERREEE
PREMEEP 2 BERGIN) 2 EiaE -
ZERWERCEREEBEBN2EE
BABT 2 ENKBREEH AL R
BHRRZ M SHABER MGG -
REBABEZSERER BHAME
EITEZERBEBERRUARRHRE B H
AT RFEARRER S M2 T EED
AR o

Wizt -

hass

(a) EH%%%@&EFI&ET‘T BHEFH3
SMESXZEWERCEEHARER
HEEmERXSH - ﬁﬁEE%"%fxi@
BPRETEEHERAREORS
MEEZERERZ #EHAEEHR
HE—EAXZ8 BUREHEMERR
RBHrERREEFCERIIERETE
BEELRGEBMEECFREERS -

:
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27. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued) 27. BWERR (&)
Notes: (continued) Hiat - (&)
(@) (continued) @ (&)
In respect of the accounts receivable arising from dealing ETEERS HERHEALOM
in securities, futures and options contracts, except for those EEZERBEFR(BRREFSETPEX
amounts due from margin clients, the aging analysis based BN 2 BREE DT R EEZ HHTE) 0
on the trade date is as follows: Ik

2021 2020
—BC-—F —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Within 30 days 30BN 16,376 49,726
31 — 90 days 31Z290H - 12
Over 90 days #Em90H 2,505 291
18,881 50,029
The settlement terms of accounts receivable arising from RECERENEMBERREmME
provision of corporate finance and other advisory services EZRBERR 2 EER —RBEEEH
are normally due immediately from date of billing but the RIS EXAEEATLATER
Group may grant a credit period of 30 days on average to FF¥H308B2EEH - ZFEKHKA

its clients. The aging analysis of these receivables based on ZEREROT(REZEEHAE)OT

the invoice date is as follows:

2021 2020

—BC-—F —E-FF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FAET

Within 30 days 30HA 538 499
31 — 90 days 31%290H 551 563
Over 90 days im0 H 1,141 2,046

2,230 3,108
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HE—Z

——Ft-A=t—RILEE

27. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(@

(b)

(continued)

Movements of the provision for impairment loss on
accounts receivable from the provision of corporate finance

and other advisory services are as follows:

27. B RN (&)
Mg (%)

(@

(#)

FRRARHOCXBERAMERRYE
B A AR 2 RE MR K R (B S 1R
HEHMT

2021 2020
—B=-—F ZEETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
As at 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020 W-_Z-_ZTHF—H—H -
and 1 January 2021 —TE-TF+ZRA=+—H
k—Z2-—%—H—H 1,031 450
Impairment losses recognised on trade MERERER ZREERE
receivables 619 581
As at 31 December 2021 R-_E-_—F+-_A=+—8H 1,650 1,031

As at 31 December 2021, accounts receivable arising from
money lending services bear fixed-rate interest of 0.667%
to 1.5% per month or 8%-18% per annum (2020: 1.25%
to 1.5% per month or 12%-18% per annum). The
accounts receivable had remaining contractual maturity
date falling within one year as at the end of each reporting
period. As at 31 December 2021, accounts receivable with
net carrying amount of approximately HK$82 million
(2020: HK$59 million) were secured by the client's listed

securities and client's properties.

(b)

RZTZZ—F+-A=+—H EKX
E MR M E 4+ 2 EWBR % § F0.667
EEISERTFIERISE(ZE=ZF
F B RAIDERISEXBFNRESR
18[F) 2 EFE M EFE - REMEH
R ZEEBERZFGENFHA
PR—F RZEZ—F+_RA=+—
H - BR M ¥ 8 482,000,000 L (=&
ZZ 4 : 59,000,000/ 7T.) Z F& WL iR 5K
UEP EMESREPYERER -
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27. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued) 27. BWERR (&)
Notes: (continued) Hiat - (&)
(b) (continued) (b) (%)
Analysis of the gross carrying amount on accounts RAEEANLEETRRFERDEY
receivable from money lending as at 31 December 2021 AmEEEMEEZBRERN-Z
and 2020 by the Group's internal credit rating and year T FERZZEZTFE+A=+—H
end classification: ZEERESWAT :
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE-ZE-—F+-A=+—HLEE
Lifetime
ECL not Lifetime
12-months credit- ECL credit-
ECL impaired impaired
Internal credit rating A B 1S B R AR (Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3) Total
[ERE -
WEEERE WEZ

T-EA Z2EEEEYE ZBEAFENY
BHEE BHEE RMEE

&8 B#E B8
(1R (B2 8R) (B3 R) et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FERT FERT FET
Performing R 41,569 - - 41,569
Doubtful E R - 204,485 - 204,485
Default EH - - 27,220 27,220

41,569 204,485 27,220 273,274
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27. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Notes: (continued)
(b) (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

27. BWARR (&)

Hrat (&)

b)) (&)

ME-F-BFT-AS+-ALEE

Lifetime

ECL not Lifetime

12-months credit- ECL credit-

ECL impaired impaired
Internal credit rating NEBEEFT R (Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3) Total

BfFE

W EEERIE WEZ

TZER ZEREFESR EBEFEH

EHEE EREE EHEE

&8 &8 Eia
(B ER) (Z2PE ) (B3EER) BEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Performing R4f 4,362 - - 4,362
Doubtful 3= - 268,681 - 268,681
Default BN - - 27,220 27,220
4,362 268,681 27,220 300,263
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27. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued) 27.

Notes: (continued)

(b) (continued)

Movements of the provision for impairment loss on

P& W B % ()
Hit (&)

(b) &

FRRRBEBMESZ BKREHRZ

accounts receivable from money lending business are as BEBEEEZSHMT
follows:
Lifetime
ECL not Lifetime
12-months credit- ECL credit-
ECL impaired impaired
(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3) Total
2FE
I &= B R E WEZ
TZEA Z2EEFEH ZBAEAEES
BHMEE BHEE BHEER
BE F ) B8
(B1RR) (2B ER) (3P ER) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET FET
At 1 January 2020 RZZE_ZEF—-H—H - 4,180 27,253 31,433
Impairment reversed during 4 A [ Z Rl {E
the year - - (33) (33)
Impairment loss recognised & A TR 2B B & 1B
during the year 22 19,755 - 19,777
At 31 December 2020 R-T-ZTF
+=—A=+—H 22 23,935 27,220 51,177
Impairment loss recognised & AR 2B B &5 1B
during the year 131 19,237 - 19,368
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ—F
+=-A=+—H 153 43,172 27,220 70,545
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HE—Z

——Ft-A=t—RILEE

27. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Notes: (continued)

©

The accounts receivable from margin clients of
approximately HK$165,224,000 (2020: HK$155,159,000)
were secured by the clients’ pledged listed securities which
carried a fair value of approximately HK$440,084,000
(2020: HK$346,109,000).

Securities are assigned with specific margin ratios for
calculating margin values. Additional funds or collateral are
required if the amount of accounts receivable from margin
clients outstanding exceeds the eligible margin value of the
securities deposited. The collateral held can be re-pledged
up to 140% of the accounts receivable from margin clients
amounts and the corresponding collateral held can be sold
at the Group's discretion to settle any outstanding amounts
owed by the margin clients. Accounts receivable from
margin clients are repayable on demand and bear interest

at commercial rates.

Accounts receivable for margin clients of HK$37,104,000
(2020: HK$31,648,000), which are not fully secured by
the respective clients’ listed securities, are considered
impaired. An impairment of HK$6,773,000 (2020:
HK$23,436,000) was made by the management after
taking into account subsequent additional cash and
securities collateral. Such accounts receivable due from
margin clients were assessed to be credit impaired and
classified as stage 3 during the year as it became default

to repay the outstanding balance for a period of time.

No ageing analysis is disclosed in the opinion of directors
of the Company as ageing analysis is not meaningful in
view of the revolving nature of the business of margin loan

financing.

27. BWARR (&)

Wit - (&)

(©) A#X1652240008T (T T4 :
155,159,000 7T) B RFEEF 2
FE U BR 5% T LA A S (B #9440,084,0007%8

7T (ZF = T4 : 346,109,000/ 7T) 2
IR E B AR o

BEHFUREFERE L EUFTER
EeEE -HMEAREESEPZAE
ERRCHRBBNEFESFZIAER
rELEE WARHKBENE LK
Hm-AHEZENRUBEN 28
BEREEBKRRESETR ZEEERRN
140% - M P #5 A 2 18 B8 K 30 dn 75 AT i
AEERBATHENFERESR
PR ZEMAREERE - ERRE
EEPZEKERANERFEEY
WEENEGE -

AEH37,104,0008 L (Z T T F ¢

31,648,000 L) EWRFE P 2 &
WIERWEABBER 2 Ehi#EHIE
2EEA - VERELREERE - B
BELTRABWE IR S RF
HFHEA @ - BE YR K E 6,773,000
B (ZZT ZZF 123,436,000/ 7T)
ZHE ZEEBRFSEP ZEW
ARERE AR EEERD G R — BRI -
HMEWANEAHREERBELERF
NEHE1RBREBREEIER -

ARREERR ENRIBFSERF
BEBZRERUEE RROMLEES
F o WHEUIT ERERE DI -
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27. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(c) (continued)

Analysis of the gross carrying amount on accounts

receivables from margin clients as at 31 December 2021

and 2020 by the Group's internal credit rating and year

end classification:

For the year ended 31 December 2021

27.

P& W B % ()
Hit (&)

(o (&)

EASEADREETIRAEFRDEY
RZEZ—FRZZTTF+=A
=+ HERRBSEFL ZEREXR

ZHREEEDTWAT

BE-_Z-_—F+=-A=+—HLFE

Lifetime Lifetime
ECL not ECL
12-months credit- credit-
ECL impaired impaired
Internal credit rating A EB1E B FEAR (Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3) Total
YEEERE SFEREZ
TR ZEEFEES EZAEAEES
BHEE BHEE BHEE
JE =] E =] BE
(1) (SE2B& ER) (%3P ER) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET FHET TERT
Performing R4f 67,660 - - 67,660
Doubtful 2+ - 60,460 - 60,460
Default B - - 37,104 37,104
67,660 60,460 37,104 165,224
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BHE_Z-_ZFE+-_A=+—HILtFE
Lifetime Lifetime
ECL not ECL
12-months credit- credit-
ECL impaired impaired
Internal credit rating W= B R AR (Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3) Total
WEEERE B EEREZ
TZER ZEREFESR EBEFEH
BEEE EEEE REEE
&8 BB &8
(1R ER) (2P ) (FE3RR) #BEr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Performing R4f 69,569 - - 69,569
Doubtful (3=4 - 53,942 - 53,942
Default B - - 31,648 31,648
69,569 53,942 31,648 155,159
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27. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Notes: (continued)

©

(d)

(continued)

27. BWARR (&)

Movements of the provision for impairment loss on

Hrat (&)

() (&)

U IRE SR P Z R RER

accounts receivable from margin clients are as follows: EEREEBEZESHOT :
Lifetime Lifetime
ECL not ECL
12-months credit- credit-
ECL impaired impaired
(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3) Total
WEEERE SRFEREZ
TR ZEEFEY ZBEFEDY
BHEE BHEE EHEE
BE BE &8
(1B ER) (2B ER) (3B ER) Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET
ECL allowances as at M _ZF
1 January 2020 —RA—RZEH
EEEEER - - 21,622 21,622
Impairment loss recognised ~ F RIER Z R EEE
for the year - 455 1,359 1,814
31 December 2020 RZE_ZF
+=A=+—H - 455 22,981 23,436
Impairment loss recognised — “F N#ER 2 FEE B
for the year - - 2,926 2,926
Impairment loss reversed FRERZRMERBRE
for the year - (446) (19,143) (19,589)
31 December 2021 R-_T——4F
+ZA=+—H - 9 6,764 6,773

The settlement terms of accounts receivable arising from

the ordinary course of business of sales and distribution of

healthcare products are normally due immediately from

date of billing but the Group may grant a credit period of

120 days on average to its client. The aging analysis of

these receivables based on the invoice date is as follows:

Within 30 days

30HA

d) RHEERSHBRERREGZERT%E
BRBRMELSZEWERZ ZEEH
R—BABRERAYEE 2 ARIE -
BEXrEEGETEFPFHERI20BZER
H-REEZAHENZRBERZ

BREE DT -
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
- 8,896
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28. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 28. A FHIE s RE N HEAAEWER
RECEIVABLES
2021 2020
—E-—F —EEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET
Other receivables arising from disposal of HERRFEIIRRE
financial assets at FVTPL (note a) BalREE s MBEE
i /2 A 2 H fth JiE U BR R
(Hteta) 37,441 93,600
Other receivables from disposal of HEMBRARIREEZ
subsidiaries E 4th e UT BR X 5,000 -
Others Hity 4,459 3,983
Gross amount of other receivables o JE M BR R 2 4R 46,900 97,583
Less: impairment allowances (note b) B R E 2 (A iED) (5,123) (4,994)
Carrying amount of other receivables Hitb IR R 2 BRENE 41,777 92,589
Deposit for business acquisition (note c) XBWERS (W itc) 11,000 11,000
Prepayments and other deposits AR RIERAEMIZS 5,886 5,089
58,663 108,678
Note: Hat -
(@ In 2020, the Company has exercised the put option (@ WZZTZFTF ARFEI7EPacific

granted by Pacific Alliance Limited (“PAL") to dispose of
the China Fortune Convertible Bonds to PAL on principal
amount of HK$76,792,500. The consideration of
HK$200,000,000 is settled by instalments according to the
settlement plan between the Company and PAL. For
details, please refer to the Company’'s announcement
dated on 24 January 2020 and 3 March 2020.

Alliance Limited ([PAL]) FT#% H 2 &0H
HiE NRAPALHE X& %A
76,792,500/ 7t 2 F Bl = 58 A] % ARk (&
# - A [/ X {8200,000,0007% 7t JY & A
NEIHEPALRE 2 B BT &l 5 HiEE -
UG BF2HARABHAE
—EF A1+ MBRZZT=TF=
A=ZBZ22ff-
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28. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 28. FEEE - REREEWERE

RECEIVABLES (continued) (£8)

Notes: (continued) M (&)

(b) For other receivables, the Group measures the loss b)) MEMEKREZME  AEET24
allowance at an amount equal to 12 — month ECL. The ERT-@AEREEBBZEEBE
Group uses past due information to assess whether credit Ho-AEBEEHBHEMUTGEEE
risk has increase significantly since initial recognition. R RSB L ERIEREELM -

The Group measures the loss allowance for other REBMBRBEEMBREERNESR
receivables under general approach in HKFRS 9. BRMEBEMEWER KT E B %ERE -

(c) During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group (0 BEZZT-_—F+ZA=+—HILF
entered into a memorandum of understanding to acquire B AEBEITLRBRESSEARES
320 equity interest in China Bloom International Limited EREBRERAR([HE]) 23200 -
(“China Bloom”). As at 31 December 2021, refundable RZEZ—F+-A=+—HEXH
deposit at approximately HK$11,000,000 had been paid. AR E R £ 4911,000,000% 7T ©
Subsequent to the year ended 31 December 2021, the HE-T-—F+=-A=+—HIEF
acquisition of 32% equity interest in China Bloom shall not Ei% KBZWmRBRESE  WEFE
proceed after a series of memorandum of understanding. 3200fXHE —F A HELT

Analysis of the gross carrying amount on other BAEBEABEETRRFRDEHR

receivables as at 31 December 2021 by the Group's —E-—F+-_A=t+—HBzHMEK

internal credit rating and year end classification: ERZEHEESITNOT

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE-Z-_—-F+-HA=+—HLFE

Lifetime Lifetime

ECL not ECL

12-months credit- credit-

ECL impaired impaired
Internal credit rating AP EEFR (Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3) Total

YEEERE CSEERME

ZBEFES 2R2EFED

t=@A BHEE EHEE

EHEEER 53 53]
(BI1PEER) (SE2MEER) ($E3EER) @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET TERT THET

Performing Rif 8,579 - - 8,579

Doubtful £ - 37,441 - 37,441

Default E L - - 880 880

8,579 37,441 880 46,900




284 VALUE CONVERGENCE HOLDINGS LIMITED ERZRERAA
Annual Report 2021 &£}

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Z& MR RM

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-_T-_—F+-A=t—HLEFE

28. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

28. ANRIE - REREMERER

(&)

HE-_ZT-Z

FT+_A=t—HILFE

Lifetime Lifetime
ECL not ECL
12-months credit- credit-
ECL impaired impaired
Internal credit rating WS B AT AR (Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3) Total
TEREERE CREERE
CJEREFED cBRETES
+=@A HHEE BHEE
BHEEER BB BB
(F1BEg) (F2BEKR) (B3ER) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHET FHET FET
Performing R4t 2,871 - - 2,871
Doubtful = - 93,600 - 93,600
Default BH - - 1,112 1,112
2,871 93,600 1,112 97,583
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28. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 28.

RECEIVABLES (continued)

Movements of the provision for impairment loss on other

receivables are as follows:

BARIE RERHEMERER
(%)

FRNHEHMBYERER REBEREEE
UM

Lifetime Lifetime
ECL not ECL
12-months credit- credit-
ECL impaired impaired
(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3) Total
YEREERE EBEFERHEZ
ZEEFEN EEFES
+=fA BEEE BEEE
REEEER B8 EE
(B1EER) (20 8R) (B3 ER) o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER
ECL allowances as at RZE-TE—-H—H
1 January 2020 ZEHEEERER - - - -
Impairment loss recognised FANHERREBE
for the year - 3,978 1,016 4,994
31 December 2020 and RZZZT§+ZH
1 January 2021 =t+—-8k
—E--f¥-A—H - 3,978 1,016 4,994
Impairment loss recognised FRERZAERE
for the year - 1,145 7,403 8,548
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 13) HEWBRA (H/i213) - - (7,403) (7,403)
Impairment loss reversed for the year FR# R 2 R ERE - - (1,016) (1,016)
31 December 2021 R-Z-_-%+-A
=t—H - 5,123 - 5,123
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29. BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances and cash comprise of cash and short- term
bank deposits held by the Group at market interest rates
ranging from 0.001% to 0.30% (2020: 0.001% to
2.00%) per annum with an original maturity of one

month.

In the course of the conduct of the regulated activities of
its ordinary business, VC Brokerage Limited and VC
Futures Limited act as trustees that result in the holding
of clients’ monies on behalf of clients and other
institutions. These assets are not assets of the Group
and, therefore, are not included in its consolidated
statement of financial position. As at 31 December 2021,
the Group maintained segregated accounts at a clearing
house of approximately HK$3,469,000 (2020:
HK$3,373,000) and at other authorised institutions of
approximately HK$116,244,000 (2020:
HK$114,737,000) in conjunction with its securities,
futures and options brokering and dealing business, and
corporate financial advisory business as a result of the
normal business transactions, which are not otherwise

dealt with in these consolidated financial statements.

Annual Report 2021 &£}

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Z& MR RM

20. |RITHB KRS

RTEHREB SR EASEMERS R
REBMBA—M@A - EWSEFFNENT
0.001EE0.30E (ZZT =4 : 0.001
EZE2.008) 5 B2 REBRITHER ©

ERREBBRTLCEIRE TN -
EREBFEBRAGILERBERERAR
EXAA REPRAMBERAEER
PRIB -ZEEEWHAEBZEE -
B ARGEMBHRARA - RZF
T—HF+ZA=1+—8 AEEREILE
BEBRIMETZHES  BHEREE
KEREEEBURCEREBMER
MR —FEEEMRLBILES €584
3,469,000 7T (=T =F 4 : 3,373,000
BIL) c SR EM R EER B R
B £%#M1162440008 L (—E-F
% :114,737,00087T) - BAKRFETE
THREMBEHRRPEE -
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30. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, ACCRUED LIABILITIES,
OTHER PAYABLES AND MARGIN LOAN PAYABLES

30. BRRF - BETEE  HtEM
RARENREEER

2021 2020
—E_—F —E-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Accounts payable arising from dealing in FETEREEMmMES
securities: Z FERTBRAK
Clearing house HEER - 4,546
Cash clients RexpP 18,122 44,201
Margin clients REZEP 1,842 302
19,964 49,049
Accounts payable arising from sales and HHE kD HBRREE
distribution of healthcare products oo T 2 A 2 FET R 3R - 1,653
Accounts payable arising from sales and FETHHEEEHE X
marketing of digital assets HERR M 4 2 FET AR 3K 1,213 -
21,177 50,702
Margin loan payables JETREE & B XK 15,321 -
Accrued liabilities and other payables: st BEREMERERK
Accrued expenses e X 2,463 3,321
Interest payable to convertible bond JE < AT R (B 55
holders B ARNE - 1,742
Contract liabilities AHEaE 2,677 55
Others H 1,558 3,274
6,698 8,392

287



288

VALUE CONVERGENCE HOLDINGS LIMITED ERZRERAA
Annual Report 2021 &£}

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Z& MR RM

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-_T-_—F+-A=t—HLEFE

30. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, ACCRUED LIABILITIES,

OTHER PAYABLES AND MARGIN LOAN PAYABLES
(continued)

Accounts payable to clearing house represent trades
pending settlement arising from dealing in securities
which are usually due within two trading days after the
trade date.

The accounts payable to cash clients and margin clients
are repayable on demand except where certain balances
represent trade pending settlement which are usually due
within two trading days after the trade date or deposits
received from clients for their securities dealing activities.
Only the excessive amounts over the required deposits

stipulated are repayable on demand.

No aging analysis on accounts payable arising from
dealing in securities is disclosed as in the opinion of the
directors of the Company, the aging analysis does not
give additional value in view of the nature of this

business.

Contract liability includes receipt in advance to provide
financial advisory services and sales and marketing of
digital assets. The Group received part of the contract
value as receipt in advance from financial advisory
services projects when service contracts are signed or
when the sale of digital assets contracts are signed. The
receipts in advance payment result in contract liabilities
and relevant revenue is recognised over the financial
advisory services project period or when the control of

the digital asset is transferred to the customer.

30. BRRF - BETEE - BN

R K EARESER(E)

JEMEEMERIEEERFELE 2 Fi
RS —MREBERABECMERS
HAEE] o

ENREMMRESEF ZERARER
BEE HETHREEXZEHR (R
REBERHRZMERS B AEH) L
WEFPEFEREAMEANNZEEEG
Sho EBZRIEEREZHBBERANE
KIFEE

ERUEB2HE  ARFAEFAR/E

IETEFEEMEEZBRNERZE
i DT BAL R RRIMEE - MABRE
EARRE DT -

ol

I=F

ERABEDERHEREERRB A RE
WEEHEREEZBWFE -A&F
?f%ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ%lﬁﬁ BRIRE AR

RETEBEEHEAHNKIKRI &
WEE  1EATEHNEIE - BRKIER K

EREE  HEAKENENEBEREREE
BHASREBEE  EHREEER
PR #R -
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30. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, ACCRUED LIABILITIES, 30. EBRRX - BB E - HAapE

OTHER PAYABLES AND MARGIN LOAN PAYABLES
(continued)

HK$55,000 was recognised as revenue during the year
ended 31 December 2021 was included in the contract
liabilities at the beginning of the year. There was no
revenue recognised in the current year that related to
performance obligations that were satisfied in a prior

year.

The settlement terms of accounts payable arising from
the ordinary course of business of sales and distribution
of healthcare products are normally due immediately
from date of billing with a credit period of 30 days on
average to its client. The aging analysis of this payable

based on the invoice date is as follows:

Within 30 days 30B W

RAREASREEZER(K)

FNEHABEFH550008 Tt ARE
EZE - F+ZA=Z+—HLFER
RZWes - NEEERAZWER EFE
BT 2 BAVEAE I ERANE -

REERDHEBERERBER I LEER
BREPAEEZEMNERRZEEIRR—
MREBHALERZARIE mEP
FHRZFHAI0BEMAE - RIBFZEZ B H
2 ZENERZEREITET

2021 2020
—E-—F —EZTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET

- 1,653
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31. DEFERRED TAX (ASSET)/LIABILITIES

The following is the major deferred tax (asset) liabilities

recognised and movements thereon during the current

and prior years.
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3.EEBE(EE) BfF

EERZIBREERA(BE) BEMN
MERANEFERBEFEZEHNT -

Unrealised gain

on financial
assets held for  Accelerated tax Convertible
Tax losses trading  depreciation bonds Total
KIFEE
BHEEL &
RHEEE  ARRUE RENE  TERES @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TEn TAn T TAn
At 1 January 2020 R-E-2E-B-H (6,066) 5,990 76 659 659
Charge to convertible bonds reserve R AT AR B A - - - 325 325
Charge (credit) to profit or loss RERENR (H4) (970) 1,046 (76) (560) (560)
At 31 December 2020 RZZ-%F
+-A=1+-H (7,036) 7,036 - 424 424
Charge to convertible bonds resene IR ES R ENR - - - (1,502) (1502)
Charge (credit) to profit or loss RERENR (B2) (10,545) 10,545 - 1,280 1,280
At 31 December 2021 R-ZF--F
+-A=+-A (17581) 17,581 - 202 20

At 31 December 2021, the Group has estimated unused
tax losses of approximately HK$590,966,000 (2020:
HK$490,729,000) available for offset against future

profits. As at 31 December 2021, deferred tax asset and

liability have been recognised in respect of tax losses of

approximately HK$106,552,000 (2020: HK$42,636,000)

and taxable temporary difference of approximately
HK$106,552,000 (2020: HK$42,636,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2021, no deferred

tax asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining

tax losses of approximately HK$484,414,000 (2020:
HK$448,093,000) due to the unpredictability of future

profit streams. The estimated unused tax losses have no

expiry date but are subject to further approval of the

Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department.

R_E-_—F+-A=+—H8 ~&5EF
flaT AR B AT IEE1849590,966,0007% 70
(= = Z4F 1 490,729,000 7T ) Al f 3K
AN N R B —F+A=+—
H - 7 & [ 5t 5% 18 B 18 £9106,552,00078
TL(ZZT =6 1 42,636,000/ 7T) M FERR
TR FG B 2 R849106,552,0008 L (ZE =%
F + 42,636,000/ 7T) RIELETRIBEE E
REfE-

BHE-_T-—F+-A=+—HItEE "
I 45 82 T B IB & 18 49484,414,000% 7T
ZZT =T 1 448,093,000/ T ) FERIE

JEFRIAE E - & FARROR N RREETE
Al e ZEMEFTARDAREBENREW
H BEKEERBRRITHE  FA]
A -
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31. DEFERRED TAX (ASSET)/LIABILITIES (continued)

32.

At the end of the 31 December 2021, the Group has
deductible temporary differences of approximately
HK$6,175,000 (2020: approximately HK$5,291,000). No
deferred tax asset (2020: deferred tax liabilities) has
been recognised in relation to such deductible temporary
difference as it is not probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary

differences can be utilised.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 8 January 2018, the Company issued convertible
bonds ("CB1") with zero coupon rate at a total principal
value of HK$360,000,000 to PAL as the balance of the
consideration of the acquisition of the China Fortune
Convertible Bonds. The convertible bonds will mature on
the third anniversary of the date of issue of the
convertible bonds. The convertible bonds are converted
into 288,000,000 conversion shares at any time between
the date of issue of the convertible bonds and the
maturity date at the bondholder's option at initial

conversion price of HK$1.25 per conversion share.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, CB1 with
principal amounts of HK$345,000,000 were converted
into 276,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company at the
conversion price of HK$1.25 per share. The amount of
approximately HK$198,397,000 (net of tax effect) was
released in convertible bonds reserve upon the

conversion of convertible bonds.

31.

32.

EZEBE(EE) &E (&)
R-_E-_—F+_A=T—HF&K -
N5 [ B AT 40 B ER B = 5E 496,175,000
BT (ZZT =4 : 495,291,000%7T) °
WERZSEUNBEER =EBRELEH
BEE(ZZ-_ZF : BEREER) -
ERT KA G 815 RRATR A A BE
BT MR ERR 5 -

AR ES

RZE-NF—HANB  KARETR
& 42 %0 5360,000,0008 TEE B X2
ARRES (AT ]RREH1]) FPAL &
WHEREERATRRES 2B TRE
AR EF R AR R ES 1T H iR
FE-FERAFAEM - T RRESFTHE
%%*ﬁ}\‘ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁaﬁﬂﬁ
BERXIHAILBHEEAA  BERiZY TR
BERBKRKRMGI. 25;%7zﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂxfaﬁ%%
H,#14288,000,0000% #2 J& f 15 o

RBEE-_ZT-N\F+_A=+—HILF
£+ A £ 345,000,000/ JT 2 0] # f%
BHRIERERI 2B T A B A
276,000,000 /& A 7] E i AR o H ] A]
mRESE ATRRESFEERRLD

198,397,000/ 7T 2 ;& (MBI =
) o



292

VALUE CONVERGENCE HOLDINGS LIMITED EZRZRER AT

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-_T-_—F+-A=t—HLEFE

32. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

On 24 January 2020, the Company has entered into an
agreement to dispose of the China Fortune Convertible
Bonds at a put option price of HK$200,000,000 to PAL.
As part of the settlement arrangement, PAL has tendered
the outstanding principal amount of CB1 in the sum of
HK$15,000,000 to the Company for cancellation as
partial settlement of the consideration. The amount of
approximately HK$8,626,000 was released in convertible

bonds reserve upon the cancellation of convertible bond.

On 8 June 2018, the Company issued convertible bonds
("CB2") with 2% coupon rate at a total principal value of
HK$160,000,000 to an independent third party, CVP
Financial Group Limited, as the consideration of the
acquisition of unlisted equity securities issued by Hackett
Enterprises Limited as disclosed in note 24. The
convertible bonds will mature on the third anniversary of
the date of issue of the convertible bonds. The convertible
bonds are converted into 123,076,923 conversion shares
at any time between the date of issue of the convertible
bonds and the maturity date at the bondholder's initial

conversion price of HK$1.3 per conversion share.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, CB2 was

expired.

On 9 July 2020, VC Global, a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company, issued convertible bonds (“CB 3") with
zero coupon rate at a principal value of US$40,000 to an
independent third party, Wu Jian. These convertible bonds
will mature on the third anniversary of the date of issue of
the convertible bonds at their principal amount or can be
converted into 40 shares of VC Global at any time
commencing from the issue date up to the maturity date
at the bondholder's initial conversion price of US1,000

equivalent to HK$7,780 per conversion share.
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32. TR E S ()

RZZEZZEF—A=+WH AR

ST 1 % DA ¥R 3Rk BA # {200,000 ooo,%
TTAPALEE B E RAIRRES 1
BEEREZ 55 PALE X [EIKE
2 N4 %8 415,000,000/ 7T 2 Al 2 A% &
FITARRBIETH - AN RE -
AR E SR - FTRRE S REER

K #8,626,00078 7T 2 5K 58 °

Z—-NEFEXANB KA _Jg’*ﬁ$
4888 /3160,000,0007% T2 [E EH 2
Z—Hﬁ’ﬂxﬁﬁ@—fﬁﬂxﬁﬁﬂ)?ﬁ_L
EZTRRemEERRLIA - ERM
FE24F7 # B8 W BEHackett Enterprises
Limited# 1T 2 F EMRAZT S 2 RE -
AMRERFER AT RRESBETEHE
E=EBFHEINEY - ATRREFATAE
FRAABENITRRESZETHHE
BEESIHBEILHREA - BERIRY) SRR
BEERBREBRBRMIIBTHAIRKRES
HI 123,076,923 XA -

JiS
T

REBEE_ZE-_—F+_A=+—8LF
& AR E 2D BIHER -

ft

RZEZZEFLANHE ARAIZEE
B /& 2 BIVC Global MBI 2 = 77 R
IR 540,000 T2 TEMHE XA
BEH ((ATBRRESRI]) - Z Al RKRE
HFERBETIRRESBBRE=ZRF
REARSREINE  KAURBETABER
FEBIEEAREREFBEEAZNS
# % {81,000 7T i # A40RRVC Global
f&tn - HHE RS REIARNT,780/4 7T °
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32. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued) 32. /AR ES (F)

On 8 November 2021, the Company entered a deed of
settlement with Wu Jian to redeem CB3 by paying back
the whole principal value of US$40,000.

On 6 November 2020, the Company issued convertible
bonds (“CB4") with zero coupon rate at a total principal
value of HK$52,000,000 to six independent third parties.
The convertible bonds will mature on the third
anniversary of the date of issue of the convertible bonds.
The convertible bonds are converted into 260,000,000
conversion shares at any time between the date of issue
of the convertible bonds and the maturity date at the
bondholder’s initial conversion price of HK$0.2 per

conversion share.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, CB4 with
principal amounts of HK$45,500,000 were converted into
227,500,000 ordinary shares of the Company at the
conversion price of HK$0.2 per share. The amount of
approximately HK$10,959,000 (net of tax effect) was
released in convertible bonds reserve upon the

conversion of convertible bonds.

The CB2 and CB4 comprise a liability component and
equity conversion component. The residual amount,
representing the value of the equity component, is
included in the convertible bonds reserve under equity

attributable to the owners of the Company.

The CB3 comprise a liability component and equity
conversion component. The residual amounts are
assigned as the equity component and are included in

the convertible bonds issued by a subsidiary.

RZZE-_—F+—ANB ' ARARHER
BEIEMNRE  NEBANER2HEAS
540,000 T 2K fE [B] Al AR & 553 ©

RZZBZZF+—AXH  AAFRAN
BB E =BT & #5852,000,000
BT EEMEEABRKRES ([FIHRK
BEHA]) - ZATRREHF BHR BT
BEHBHEE=AFENHE - ZrlRKR
EHAI R EITARARES B e E 55
HIEEAREZEESFEAZTZBRR
BEEBRBEBRBRHO2ETLLB B
260,000,0000% 32 A% f 15 °

REBEZE_Z_TF+_A=+—HILF
[+ 7N & §845,500,0005% 7T 2 A iR &
HFAaBRB\BRRH02BTH R A
227,500,00008 AN 2 A E AR o HiRn ik
BREH%E TRRESEERERL
10,959,000 /T2 K& (KRBBTE) -

A ESF2 R A REREF4BBELED
N ez ¥ IR AR o AR R 1E (BN 42 2 &6
DZEBE)FARRAER ARIGHEZR
N2 BBRES R -

AR ESFIREES D RER RS
DHEK cBEESREEES B WA
B Ra T iRES -
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The movement of liability component of the convertible

bonds is as follows:
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32. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Z& MR RM

32. TR E S ()

Issued by the Company
AAARS

AMBRESFRENS ZEBMT

Issued by a
subsidiary
il PXES

(B4 issued on

(B1issuedon (B2 issued on 6 November

(B3 issued on

8 January 2018 8 June 2018 2020 9 July 2020 Total
R-E-NF  RIE-NF RCFZRF RCBCRE
-ANB%F  ARNB®F T-AAERF  tAABES
ZURRES  UERER  2TERER  CTRRER it
HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR AR TR iR TR
Liabilty component at 1 January 2020~ H=F=FF-F-8
LREHD 13240 15,765 - - 29,005
Liabilty component on initial recogniton )5 BB 2 BB H - - 37,000 216 37216
Cancelled due to the exercise of RT3 T o 8

put options (note 24) (Wi#24) (13,520) - - - (13,520)
Effective interest expenses (note 11) ERFBRZ (M) 280 1897 250 14 2,441
Conversion into new ordinary shares 3 AH £ @k (:234)

(note 34) - - (32,540) - (32,540)
Interest payable ERME - (360) - - (360)
Liability component at 31 December R-Z-Z5+-F=1-H

2020 and 1 January 2021 RZE--£-A-R¢

EEED) - 17302 4710 230 242
Liabilty component on inital recognition A5 2 &8 EHH
Effective interest expenses EBRHERAT

(notes 116 13) (W#1kis) - 854 568 25 1,447
Setilement during the year ERER - (18,000) - - (18,000)
Redeemed during the year ENER - - - (255) (255)
Interest payable ERFHE - (156) - - (156)
Liabllity component at 31 December RZE--F+-F=1-H

201 LREHD - - 5278 - 5,278
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32. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

The convertible bonds issued at their issue dates

recognised in the consolidated statement of financial

position are as follows:

Maturity date 5HA

Remaining principal not yet ~ WZTZ—%
converted as at TZA=+-HEK
31 December 2021 ABZBTAR

Remaining principal not yet ~ WZZZTF
converted as at +ZA=+-HEk
31 December 2020 ABZBTAR

Conversion price BIRE

32. AR R E S ()
RIBRRAT B RIT 2 TR E SRR

BMBRARERDT

Issued by

Issued by the Company a subsidiary

KRARBT WEA AT

CBI issued on CB2 issued on CB4 issued on (B3 issued on

8 January 2018 8June 2018 6 November 2020 9 July 2020
RZB-NF RZB-N§ RZZ-2F R-B-2H
-BNR&fTZ ARNB#fTz T-ARBEfZ tANBETZ
TRRES TRKRES2 TRRES TRRESS

8 January 2021 8 June 2021 6 November 2023 9 July 2023
“E--F-AN\A ZEZ-F:ANA ZEZZF+-ARHZE-ZFtANA

HK$1.25 per share

HK$ 18,000,000
18,000,000/ 7T

HK$1.3 per share

HK$6,500,000
6,500,000/ 7T

HK$6,500,000
6,500,000/ 7.

HK$0.2 per share

US$40,000
40,000% 1T

US$1,000 per share

BR1.25%T BRI3ET BR02%ET k1,000

Analysis as: DT
2021 2020
—EBC-—F —EZEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
Current liabilities mEAE - 17,302
Non-current liabilities IERBEE 5,278 4,940
5,278 22,242
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32. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

The convertible bonds issued at their issue dates

recognised in the consolidated statement of financial

position are as follows: (continued)

32. AR E 3 ()
RABRE AT B BBIT 2 AR E SRR

BUBMRRERNT © (&)

Issued by the Company

ARRRS

Issued by a
subsidiary

(i PR

(B1 issued on

(B4 issued on
(B2 issued on 6 November

(B3 issued on

Annual Report 2021 &£}

8 January 2018 8 June 2018 2020 9 July 2020 Total
RZB-N§ RZB-NF R-B-BE  R-BIEE
-BNAES  ARNAES T-ARAEG  LAAAES
ZURRES  ZURREZR ZTRRER  ZTRRESS h)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thx T TR T T
Fair value of convertible bonds issued ~— EE{TAIRREFCATE 474,684 207,084 52,000 311 734,079
Equity conversion component REARHH (225,269) (85,550) (15,000) (95) (325914)
Liability component on initil recognition  RE{TREN S EREZ
at issue date E&HH 249415 121,534 37,000 216 408,165
Maturity date R 8 January 2021 8 June 2021 6 November 2023 8 July 2023
Z32-F It S = St 2 “BoCE
—-ANR ~ANE t-A5A tANA
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33. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD-FOR-SALE B OEABFEHEZEE
2020
—ETF
HK$'000
FHET
Equity share held-for-sale FEHE Z R RkD 4,926

On 20 March 2020, Initial Honour Limited (“Initial
Honour"), an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a sale and purchase agreement
with Chen Yu Zhen, an independent third party, to
dispose Initial Honour's entire holding of 30% equity
interest in Telebox Technology Holdings Limited
("Telebox"), at a cash consideration of HK$5,000,000.

Investment in Telebox was classified as ‘Assets classified
as held-for-sale’ in accordance with HKFRS 5 and are
measured at fair value less cost to sale as at 31
December 2020.

RZZE-ZZTF=ZA=+RH ARAZMH
# 2 & Iff B 2 "linitial Honour Limited
(Tnitial Honourl) BB E=FKREL
R —HEEBZE - LAH Einitial
HonourfTelebox Technology Holdings
Limited ([ Telebox ]) 2 & #B3000 /% # -
Fir% K 2 3% {8 /5,000,000 7T °

ATeleboxZ & IR E BB B 5| &
HEAUESES BRI DERBIEHEEZ
BE] YR-_E-_THF+=-A=+—
HUAAFEBEEKRARE -
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33. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD-FOR-SALE B OEABEHEZEE (HA)
(continued)
The following assets and liabilities were reclassified as NTEERBBEERLEREARMN
held-for-sale in relation to the disposal of associate as at TECREA_A=+—BEHNDER
31 December 2020: FEHE
2020
—B_FF
HK$'000
FHET
Assets classified as held-for-sale PEABEHEZEE
Interest in associate N /N 4,926
Liability directly associated with asset classified EEDEABFIEHEZEEREMN
as held-for-sale (included in accrued liabilities Bz B8& (FFAETTEER Hib
and other payables) FE 15 BR )
Deposits received Bz e 1,000
On 18 June 2021, Initial Honour entered into a second RZZTEZ—F XA+ /UH ' Initial
supplemental sale and purchase agreement, pursuant to Honourdsl Y #E — A R E & ek - B
which the long stop date was further extended to 31 bt RETKBERE-—FPERE_T
December 2021. The disposal transaction was completed —T—F+ZA=+—H -BERFRZ
on 7 September 2021, and the consideration balance ZE-—FNLALEEK  FADEBR
was fully settled during the year. BAEER ©
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34. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM MM BMETHELCABEHER
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities TRENAEERELTHELELBER
arising from financing activities, including both cash and BHE BERERIB2EH -HE
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing EHELECBBEREEH REMESNK
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future AKRRERENAEEZERERER
cash flows will be classified in the Group's consolidated FoOBEARMEERDELECREREZE
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing & -
activities.
Interest payables
on convertible Lease
Convertible bonds bonds liabilities
ARRESZ
AARES ERNME HEERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAT TET
At 1 January 2020 —EZTE—-H—H 29,005 1,382 11,050
Financing cash inflows mﬂéfiﬁﬁmu)\ 37216 - -
Financing cash outflows BERE M - - (6,993)
Non-cash changes HHEEH
New lease arrangement MHERH - - 1,948
Interest expenses accrued FERH A B F X 2,081 360 370
Liability component on s EREBRIERR
derecognition of CB1 for the AAREF K EEHS
disposal of put option (13,520) - -
Conversion into new ordinary shares %12 &%7 % @ (32,540) - -
At 31 December 2020 RZFZFF+-A=+—H 22,242 1742 6,375
At 31 December 2020 “E-TEFT-A=1-H 22,242 1,742 6375
Financing cash outflows mﬂﬁiﬁﬁmutﬂ (255) - (6,982)
Non-cash changes HHEEH
New lease arrangement MHETH - - 16,693
Interest expenses accrued FEEH A B R % 1,291 156 320
Settlement of accounts receivable £ )E EMUR R (18,000) (1,898) -
At 31 December 2021 R-F-_—%5+-A=1+-H 5278 - 16,406
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35. SHARE CAPITAL

35. R

Number of
ordinary shares

Share capital

ZERYA R 2
'000 HK$'000
T & FHET
At 1 January 2020 RZEZZTF—H—H 1,230,952 1,585,239
Issue of shares upon conversion of (A AT # { M8 25 4R AR i 3 1T
convertible bonds (note a) &t (ffita) 227,500 45,664
Issue of shares upon by top-up NreEEHANEE
placement of shares (note b) a7 (B #b) 246,000 49,200
Transaction costs attributable to issue EilE TG 2
of shares by placement (note b) RGA (K 7Eb) - 4)
Issue of shares upon exercise of share  [&17 {5 B P4 3 17
options (note c) W&t (#fztc) 600 196
At 31 December 2020 and WRZE_TF+-_H=+—H
1 January 2021 rF—ZE-—4F—H—H 1,705,052 1,680,295
Issue of shares upon by top-up E e E&F 7B E M
placement of shares (note b) BITR D (M aEb) 341,150 69,936
Transaction costs attributable to issue HELEMETRO 2R S
of shares by placement (note b) B (Bt 72b) - (1,049)
Issue of shares upon exercise of 1718 B R i 1 B AT IR 19
share options (note c) (Hiitc) 32,400 11,162
At 31 December 2021 R-ZE_—F+-_HA=+—H 2,078,602 1,760,344

Notes:

Wi -

(@) During the year ended 31 December 2020, certain @
portions of CB4 were converted into 227,500,000 ordinary
shares of the Company at the conversion price of HK$0.2
per ordinary shares. As a result of the conversion, share
capital has been increased by approximately
HK$45,664,000 and convertible bonds reserve has been
decreased by approximately HK$10,959,000. The new
shares rank pari passu with the existing shares in all

respects.

HE-Z-_ZF+-_A=+—HLHF
F RBREFIZETHDBIEER
T @ AR0.278 7T H 12 /8227,500,0000% 2
AR B BRI RAE ML
45,664,000/ 7T 1M A R & 5 R R
8158 4910,959,0008 7T ° MR &
FEABRERNERRZHAL
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35. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes: (continued)

35. IR (48)
Wizt (&)

(b) On 24 July 2020, the Company entered into a placing and b) RZBE-ZFEFLA=-+WMHE " AQFA

subscription agreement with a placing agent, pursuant to
which the Company was desirous of offering the placing
shares and use its best endeavour to procure not less than
six placees for up to 246,000,000 shares of the Company
at HK$0.2 per placing shares.

The completion of the placing took place on 25 August
2020 and a total of 246,000,000 shares of the Company
were successfully placed to not less than six placees at the
HK$0.2 per sale share. All the conditions of the
subscription as set out in the placing and subscription took
place on 17 September 2020 whereby a total of
246,000,000 shares of the Company (the “Subscription
Shares") were allotted and issued at HK$0.2 per
Subscription Share in all respects.

The net proceeds from the placing is approximately
HK$49,196,000 after deduction of commission and other
related expenses of placing from the gross proceeds of
approximately HK$49,200,000.

On 2 July 2021, the Company entered into a placing and
subscription agreement with a placing agent, pursuant to
which the Company was desirous of offering the placing
shares and use its best endeavour to procure not less than
six placees for up to 341,150,000 shares of the Company
at HK$0.205 per placing shares.

The completion of the placing took place on 27 July 2021
and a total of 341,150,000 shares of the Company were
successfully placed to not less than six placees at the
HK$0.205 per sale share. All the conditions of the
subscription as set out in the placing and subscription took
place on 27 July 2021 whereby a total of 341,150,000
shares of the Company (the “Subscription Shares”) were
allotted and issued at HK$0.205 per Subscription Share in
all respects.

The net proceeds from the placing is approximately
HK$68,887,000 after deduction of commission and other
related expenses of placing from the gross proceeds of
approximately HK$69,936,000.

il

1—ZRERBIIVEERRE DS -
Bt  ARREEREVERER D
W& & AE RS DR N EEE A
REREERMVOCETRERS
246,000,000 A& 2 & f& 15 ©

\]

BRAREE R _ZE-_TENA-+tH
HEMK - WK IR T R FE RGKH0.2E
TRALRNBERARE A HK
246,000,0000% & A &A1& 1 « BRI &
RREHRMARERIE A RN
ERZZFZTEFAA+EHREK I
ERGLESRAQFRMD (TRERMD])
0.2 Bl 8 K 3774 $£246,000,000%
RERRG -

EEZEBEBZ2MEREBEBLBOAR
49,200,000 7t - MK AELE FH 2
HekEMERARALZE BEEFEZ
Fr 1S 518 5 58 49 549,196,000/ 7T °

R-_ZTZ-_—FtA_-H AQFHE—
ERERBITURERRERZ &
I ARAREEREVERERN AL
BEARBNERERT DR ANZHRE AR
ERREERMBO205BTRERS
341,150,000/ R A & f 5 ©

BEERECR _E-_—F+A=-++
H5ThK - I KT %= 8 R £ & IR 19 0.205
BT TR ANBEREALRES &
341,150,00008 " A Al R 1 - ERERE
RRBHEMERBER B GY
ERZE_—F+EtA-+ BT
WEBENESRAR ARG ([RER
ml)o2058 t BB RETAE K
341,150,0008% ZREBAX 1D ©

RESTBEBZHABREBEBLBLOHA
69,936,000/ 7T+ M MR EE FH 2
e kEMERAXE BEREZ
FT 8 318 /F 28 4) 568,887,000/ T °
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35. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes: (continued)

©

During the year ended 31 December 2020, 600,000 share
options under the share option scheme of the Company
had been exercised by the holders at exercise price
HK$0.26 each for the issuance of shares. As a result of the
exercise of share options, bank balances and cash and
share capital have been increased by approximately
HK$156,000 and HK$196,000 respectively and share
option reserve has been decreased by approximately
HK$40,000. The new shares rank pari passu with the

existing shares in all respects.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, 32,400,000
share options under the share option scheme of the
Company had been exercised by the holders at exercise
price HK$0.26 each for the issuance of shares. As a result
of the exercise of share options, bank balances and cash
and share capital have been increased by approximately
HK$8,424,000 and HK$11,162,000 respectively and share
option reserve has been decreased by approximately
HK$2,738,000. The new shares rank pari passu with the

existing shares in all aspects.

36. SHARE OPTIONS AND SHARE AWARDS

Share option scheme

The Company offered the share option scheme under

which share options are granted to the directors,

employees and other eligible persons of the Group to

subscribe for shares of the Company in recognising their

contributions and in retaining employees who will

continue to make valuable contribution to the Group.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the annual

general meeting of the Company held on 8 June 2009,

the Company adopted a share option scheme (the “2009

Share Option Scheme").

35. R4S (&)
Biat - ()

(o BE-T-_TF+-_RA=+—HBLF
& AR AERER E T 2600,0001
R BT A AT R268 T 21T
EEITEABITRD - ERITHEER
W RITHEBRIA S BERAD R8N
#)156,0007% 7T }2196,000/% Jt + M &
B% 2 % 18 B Rl > #940,0007% JT © 37 AR
MRE AR FRDZH RS -

HE_T-_—F+_A=+—HLF
& ARAERER 2T 232,400,000
MEREBR A ARETRO26TTZ
ITEETENAEITRG - ERTERE
g BTEBRER S ERAS B E
n#)8,424,000/% 7t & 11,162,000%
JC - T AR A R s AR A 492,738,000
BT -MBOREFEREBERMNZE
BRSMAL

36. ERENRKRGER

fB IR T &

ARAHEHBRER S - BURHE AR
BARABRMD ZBRETAREES -
BERHEMEEBAL UBEREFZ
BRI @ESAKREFLERR
BlzEEHE-

RABRBR-_ZZTAFNANBET
ZERBFRAGLBBZERRASR
R —HBEREAE ((ZFTTNAEE
PetgatEll) -
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36. SHARE OPTIONS AND SHARE AWARDS 6. BRENKRODER (&)

(continued)
Share option scheme (continued)

Pursuant to an extraordinary resolution passed at the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on
14 June 2018, the Company adopted a share option
scheme (the "2018 Share Option Scheme”).

On 24 January 2018, directors and employees of the
Group and other eligible persons were granted share
options to subscribe for 66,256,000 underlying shares
under the 2009 Share Option Scheme. These share
options were immediately vested on the grant date and
have duration of 3 years from the date of grant i.e. from
24 January 2018 to 23 January 2021. Any share options
granted shall normally lapse upon the expiration of 3
months after the relevant grantee ceases to be an
employee of the Group. The Board has the discretion to

amend the terms of the 2009 Share Option Scheme.

On 27 July 2020, directors and employees of the Group
and other eligible persons were granted share options to
subscribe for 89,472,000 underlying shares under the
2018 Share Option Scheme. These share options were
immediately vested on the grant date and have duration
of 3 years from the date of grant i.e. from 27 July 2020
to 26 July 2023. Any share options granted shall
normally lapse upon the expiration of 3 months after the
relevant grantee ceases to be an employee of the Group.
The Board has the discretion to amend the terms of the
2018 Share Option Scheme.

BRESE (&)
ARARBER-_ZF—/\FRATOBEE
TZBRRFERIAE LBBZRER K
m—EFBEESE (2T - \F8
Pergst &) -

RZT—NF—AZ+WAB  KAAIR
B_ETNFREREAERNASEHES
LFEEBRHEMAERALREARE

66,256,000/% HH B A% 19 2 FE I HE © % %
BRECAREBHBERNSE  WHK
HABRABERBA=F (AN
F—AZ+WAE-_ZE=-_—%—A
“+=R) AMERBHZBERELLE
FERATEREEARATBALAER
BER=BAXRM -EFEWBEIBET
“ETNFEREE 2 HBR

\_ZE_ZEF+LAT+EH ARAR
—NEEREGFEMEAEEES
BERHMEERATELAIRE
89,472,000/ HHBARX 19 2 FE I HE « % %
BRECNREBEAREE W HK
LHBRGFAESBHA=F (I ZZE =%
FtAZt+tEtHEZZTE=-=FtA
Z+XRB) FERERBEZEREELE
EBATERBEEABRATEALEE
BER=ZMEARK EEGANBEIEE]
— N\ FE AR 82 185K -

%ﬁ%
M
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36. SHARE OPTIONS AND SHARE AWARDS

(continued)

Share option scheme (continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the number of shares in
respect of which share options had been granted and
remained outstanding under the 2009 Share Option
Scheme and 2018 Share Option Scheme was nil and
56,372,000 respectively (2020: 58,116,000 and
88,872,000 respectively), representing approximately 0%
and 2.71% respectively (2020: 3.41% and 5.2%

respectively) of the shares of the Company in issue.

The estimated fair values of the options granted under
the 2018 Share Option Scheme on 27 July 2020 is
approximately HK$7,517,000 recognised in the share
option reserve, which was calculated using the binomial
model with the key inputs into the model as disclosed

below.

36. BRERKROER (&)

R AL E ()
RZZE-_—F+RA=+—8 RE=
TEENFEREAER - —NFER
REFTEIE B M ARITEZ BRERS
Koz B An 88 5 5l 7 8 5256,372,0004%
—ZT T F : 55l %58,116,0008% K&
88,872,000/ ) * BN AR A B #ETT
R% 15 5 Bl 490% K 2.710% (=T — T4 ¢
BRI #3.419%%5.2%) °

BE_ZT-N\FEREFER_ZT_F
FLtAZtEtAREZEREZ A
$1E%@2%7,517ooo;‘%ﬁ(%ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁéﬁﬁﬁ
BR)  DERAZBEARAGE  Hh
E%EﬁZ‘IE%)\%HJ}ZE’:‘T?%&Eé°

27 July 2020

—EB-TF

+A=Z++tA8

Share Price at the date of grant REEBABZRE HK$0.26
0.26/87T

Exercise Price 1TEE HK$0.26
0.26/8 7T

Risk-free rate 0.069%
Expected volatility T8 HR 18 66%
Exercise multiples — directors TEEH-£5 2.47
- employees/other eligible persons —RBE /HMEERAL 1.60

The Group recognised total equity-settled share option
expense of approximately HK$6,866,000 and
HK$651,000 included in the staff cost and other
operating expenses respectively for the year ended 31
December 2020 in relation to the 89,472,000 share
options granted under the 2018 Share Option Scheme.

RBZE_ZT_TF+_A=+—HILF
B AEERBE - — \FBRET
E11% H 2.89,472,00017 4 A% 4 #E 72 DA A%
R A5 2 B PR A ] 2 48 %E 496,866,000
75 7T 651,000 7T - 9 B A B TR
AREMEERS -
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36. SHARE OPTIONS AND SHARE AWARDS
(continued)

36. BRERKROERR (&)

BRESE (&)

REARBE T N\FEREFEET
ARAEF AEEREREMBAER
AL ZHARITEBREZRBZSHMT

Share option scheme (continued)

Movements in the number of share options granted to
the directors of the Company, employees of the Group
and other eligible persons outstanding under the 2018
Share Option Scheme during the year are as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2021 BE-_ZE-_—F+=-A=+—HLLEFE

Number of share options
BREHE

Balance as at Granted Exercised Lapsed Balance as at

Exercise 1 January during during during 31 December

Categories of grantees Grant date Price Per share 2021 the year the year the year 2021

it R-B--f

-B-f t2AZt-H

RRAER RHERH ERRE &8 RERRH RERTE RERKH 268

Directors of the Company 27 luly 2020 HK$0.26 19,084,000 - (7,700,000) - 11,584,000
KRRES “RIRELACTLH 026%7

Substantial sharefolder 27 luly 2020 HK$0.26 1,228,000 - - - 1,228,000
TERR “RORFLACTLA 026%7

Employees 27 luly 2020 HK$0.26 60,860,000 - (24,700,000) (100,000) 36,060,000
[e8 “RORFLACTLA 026%7

Other elighle persons 27 luly 2020 HK$0.26 7,700,000 - - - 7,700,000
EHaERAL “RORELACTLH 02687

Total 88,872,000 - (52,400,000) (100,000) 56,372,000

by
Bercisable as at 31 December 2021 56,372,000

R-E--E+-f=1-H

BRieL:

The weighted average closing Share Price immediately

before the dates on which the options were exercised

was approximately HK$0.448.

REEEREITE AT 2 nEFH Uk
MR B4 /50.4488 7T °
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36. SHARE OPTIONS AND SHARE AWARDS
(continued)

36. BRERKROER (&)

8 R AT 8 (D)
BE-T-TF+-AS+-BLTE

Share option scheme (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2020

Number of share options

BREHE
Balance as at Granted  Reclassification Brercised lapsed  Balance as at
Erercise 1 January during during during duing 31 December
Categories of grantees Grent date Price Per share 2020 the year the year the year the year 2020
n-z-% e
) ) -A-H ) HER o tZAET-A
ERAR ezl ERITRE BB RERER BEAR  RERAR REAKR 158
Directors of the Company 27 July 2020 HK$0.26 - 26,784,000 (7,700,000) - - 19,084,000
KRAES Ik Sk -2 i el Rl 02657
Substantial sharefolder 27 July 2020 HK$0.26 - 1,228,000 - - - 1,228,000
IERR TECEELACTLA 02657
Employees 27 July 2020 HK$0.26 - 53,760,000 7,700,000 (600,000) - 60,860,000
8 TECEELACTLA 02657
Other elighle persons 27 July 2020 HK$0.26 - 7,700,000 - - - 7,700,000
EfpREBAL CECEELACTHR 026%7
Total - 89472000 - (600000) - 88872000
&t
Exercisable as at 88,872,000

31 December 2020

g2 gt el
i

REEERER L B8R R7E B H
ZINEEF U T R E 2 B 49 £0.20978
TT ] 0.460 7T °

The weighted average closing Share Price immediately
before the dates on which the options were granted and
exercised was approximately HK$0.209 and HK$0.460,

respectively.
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36. SHARE OPTIONS AND SHARE AWARDS
(continued)

36. BRERKROERR (&)

BRESE (&)

REARBE-_FTZNFEREFEERT
ARREF - AEEREREMBAER
AL ZHARITERBREHBZEHNT :

Share option scheme (continued)

Movements in the number of share options granted to
the directors of the Company, employees of the Group
and other eligible persons outstanding under the 2009
Share Option Scheme during the year are as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2021 BE-_Z-_—-F+-F=+—HLFE
Number of share options
BhREYE
Balance
Balance as at Granted  Reclassification Exercised Lapsed as at
Exercise 1 January during during during during 31 December
Categories of grantees Grant date Price Per share 2021 the year the year the year the year 2021
RoBz=-£ HZ8=-%
-A-8 RER RER tZA=1-H
ARAER RLRH SRORE 268 RERER £k i RERKR 268
Directors of the Company 24 January 2018 HK$1.67 16,024,000 - - - (16,024,000) -
FRAES “E-\F-A-TRE 16787
Substantial sharefolder 24 January 2018 HK$1.67 792,000 - - - (792,000) -
IERR ~E-\F-A-TRE 16787
Employees 24 January 2018 HK$1.67 8,140,000 - - - (8,140,000) -
3 “E-Nf-ACTRER 167# 7
Other elighle persons 24 January 2018 HKS1.67 33,160,000 - - - (33,160,000) -
EfbRERAL “E-\F-A-1RE 16787
Total 58,116,000 - - - (58,116000) -
@it
Exercisable as at 31 December 2021 -
RB-—F12R
St-BAPAR
Weighted average exercise price HK$0.82 - - HK$0.26 HK$1.67 HK$0.26
nEFITEE 082%7 02687 16787 026%7
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36. SHARE OPTIONS AND SHARE AWARDS
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Share option scheme (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2020
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36. BRERKROER (&)

8 R AT 8 (D)
BE-T-TF+-AS+-BLTE

Number of share options

BhEgs
Balance s at Granted  Reclassification Exercised lapsed  Balance as at
Erercise 1 January during during during duing 31 December
Categories of grantees Grant date Price Per share 2020 the year the year the year the year 2020
R-E-%% St 2
-A-A RER TZA=t-H
HRAES rulz: ERITRE bt RERRH EEif RERGRE RERKH Va1
(note 1)
(K1)
Directors of the Company 24 January 2018 HK$1.67 16,024,000 - - - - 16,024,000
KRAES “F-\&-A-t0H 1677
Substantial shareholder 24 January 2018 HK$1.67 792,000 - - - - 792,000
IERE “E-\F-A-TRE 167ET
Employees 24 January 2018 HK$1.67 8,140,000 - - - - 8,140,000
8 “E-\F-A-TRE 16TET
Other elighle persons 24 January 2018 HK$1.67 33,160,000 - - - - 33,160,000
EHaERAL “F-)\§-A-1D0H 1677
Totd 58,116,000 - - - - 58116000
&t
Fercisable as at 31 December 2020 58,116,000
RE-TF+-A=1-H
TFf
Weighted average exercise price HK$1.67 HK$0.26 - HK$0.26 - HK$0.82
MEFTRE 16757 02647 02627 0827

No share options under 2009 Share Option Scheme has

REE_Z-_ZFR_ZT-_—F+=A

been granted during the years ended 31 December =+—HRLEFE UERBE-_TTIF

2020 and 2021.

Bl EIR LR -
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36. SHARE OPTIONS AND SHARE AWARDS 6. BRENKRODER (&)

(continued)

Share option scheme (continued)

Notes:

(1) The reclassification represents the number of share options
transferred between the different categories of grantees as
a result of the resignation of two directors of the Company
and an employee during the year ended 31 December
2020.

The weighted average share price of the Company was
HK$0.26 (2020: HK$0.82).

Awarded share schemes

On 31 March 2008, the Board approved the
establishment of two share incentive award schemes,
namely the VC Share Award Scheme Trust (the “Share
Subscription Scheme”) and the VC Share Purchase
Scheme Trust (the “Share Purchase Scheme”) (the Share
Purchase Scheme and the Share Subscription Scheme
collectively are referred to as the “Share Award
Schemes"). The Share Subscription Scheme will subscribe
for new shares whereas the Share Purchase Scheme
utilises shares purchased in the market. The directors of
the Company and any subsidiaries of the Company will
be entitled to participate in the Share Purchase Scheme

but not the Share Subscription Scheme.

BT 8 ()
st -

() EFHEERREBEE T _TF+=
AZ+—BLEFEARARRAMEBES
K — %R B BHEM N AR AR AR
ZEEHEBREZHE -

RATEZNEFHRER26/E T (=
T-TF0828L) °

i 10 82 B =t &
R-ZEZENF=ZA=1+—HB EFe#
HERR S IR R ) B2 R AT 8 BVE& B
BB EERE ((RHRBEE])) ME
armBEFIAEE(RHBETS])
(B BEELBROREASGRED
Befn BEIET &) - BRI RBEEHRE
ity - Mk BEEHBENS
EREE 2B o ANA R R E AL B
REAZEFKERSERNBENE
BRI 28RBS -
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36. SHARE OPTIONS AND SHARE AWARDS

(continued)
Awarded share schemes (continued)

The purpose of each of the Share Subscription Scheme
and the Share Purchase Scheme is to encourage and
facilitate the acquisition and holding of shares in the
Company, by and for the benefit of employees of the
Company and any subsidiaries of the Company
(excluding directors of the Company and any subsidiaries
and other connected persons of the Company in respect
of the Share Subscription Scheme). The Board may
determine from time to time to award shares in order to
recognise the contribution of certain employees, to seek
to retain them for the continued operation and
development of the Group, and to attract suitable

personnel for the further development of the Group.

Share Subscription Scheme

The Share Subscription Scheme is a form of a share
incentive award scheme known as The VC Share Award
Scheme Trust. The directors of the Company and any
subsidiaries and other connected persons of the
Company will not be entitled to participate in the Share
Subscription Scheme. The number of shares to be issued
under the Share Subscription Scheme is limited to one
per cent of the ordinary issued share capital of the
Company from time to time (excluding shares which

have already been transferred to employees on vesting).

Vesting of the shares will be conditional on the selected
employee remaining as an employee of the Company or
a subsidiary until the vesting date. The Board also has the
discretion to stipulate such other conditions in respect of
a particular employee which will apply to the vesting of
the shares. No share was granted through the Share

Subscription Scheme since its establishment.
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36. BRERKROER (&)

IR R B 8 (&)

RipRBAE RRNBEAE T EER
I%D&TELZIS’ B RAEFM BB AR
BE GO ABEAETME  TEEX
REAREEAMBARZEERART
ZHMBEEAL) SEXRTNmmEA
RFBEARRRZBD - EF G A THIR
ERHBERRD  EUSEETEEZ
BB RERSEBRAEEZLER
BRWD  ARBEABEABNAKRSE
B E-SHPHAREZER

R 17 R 2

R E R —ERRERRKRD ZE
FEEFE 2 R RENET &l - RA B RE
AIME AR 2EERARD A 2 HMEEE
ATHEEE2ERGREE - BIBR
MARBEHE BT ZRHEB TIREEAR
AT ZEETERRA(TEEER
BEREZETEEZRMD)ZANZ— -
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36. SHARE OPTIONS AND SHARE AWARDS 6. BRENKRODER (&)

(continued)
Awarded share schemes (continued)
Share Purchase Scheme

The Share Purchase Scheme is a form of a share
incentive award scheme known as The VC Share
Purchase Scheme Trust. The directors and employees of
the Company and any subsidiaries of the Company will
be entitled to participate in the Share Purchase Scheme.
The number of shares to be issued under the Share
Purchase Scheme is limited to two per cent of the
ordinary issued share capital of the Company from time
to time (excluding shares which have already been

transferred to employees on vesting).

Vesting of the shares will be conditional on the selected
employee remaining as the Director or an employee of
the Company or a subsidiary until the vesting date. The
Board also has the discretion to stipulate such other
conditions in respect of a particular Director or an

employee which will apply to the vesting of the shares.

For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020,
there was no movement or outstanding awarded shares

under the Share Purchase Scheme.
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37. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group's
commitments contracted but not provided for in respect

of capital contribution to a joint venture are as follows:

37. EAKE
RBEHEK  AEBRAALDEITE
DET4E R B 2 AEWT -

2021 2020
—E-—F ZE-EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Capital contribution to a joint venture mMEERETFE
(note a) (Htita) 545,348 524,299
Acquisition of a private equity (note b) W BE AL AR W (BT 73Db) 8,600 8,600
553,948 532,899
Note: /}ﬁﬂgf .
(a) In July 2016, VC Brokerage entered into a joint venture ‘
@ RZE—XREFLtA EREFEFE=F

agreement (the “Joint Venture Agreement”) with three
independent third parties to establish a joint venture, in
which the principal activity is securities broking in Guangxi,
the PRC (the “JV Company”). Pursuant to the Joint Venture
Agreement, VC Brokerage will contribute RMB445 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$545 million (2020:
equivalent to approximately HK$524 million)), representing
44.5% equity interest of the JV Company. Meanwhile, the
Company entered into a placing agreement (the “Placing
Agreement”) with a placing agent to procure on a best
effort basis, to not less than six independent parties, to
subscribe for the convertible bonds in the aggregate
principal amount of up to HK$850 million during the
placing period, to finance the investment of the JV
Company.

BAE=FIMN—DEERE (A%
Wl  ARPEEREKT —HEE
EREFSFELTHZAERE(A
Enall) cREGLEHE ERES
# H & A R#445,000,0007T (18 & 7
#7545,000,0008 7T (Z T =T F : 48
B R #)524,000,00070)) F 1HEAE A
AIARAE 2 44.500 © AN - ANQ F EELE
REFTZ—EEHE (REHED -
IR B BT XN A& SRR E T
PRAEBIALTRBRACEES
#850,000,0008 L 2 AT R E S - A
BARENRIZEREARMES -
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37. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(@

(®)

(continued)

The Joint Venture Agreement and the Placing Agreement
will become effective upon (i) the Company having
obtained the approval and authorisation from its
shareholders and the relevant regulatory authorities about
the Joint Venture Agreement and the Placing Agreement;
and (ii) VC Brokerage having obtained the approval and
authorisation from the relevant regulatory authorities for
establishment of the JV Company. On 26 October 2016,
the approval and authorisation from the shareholders of
the Company in relation to the Joint Venture Agreement
and the Placing Agreement had been obtained. As at the
date of this report, the application of the formation of the
JV Company is still under China Securities Regulatory

Commission’s review.

On 7 May 2020, VC Capital Management Limited, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
memorandum of understanding with Mr. Chan Leung, an
independent third party, to acquire 16% equity interest in
China Bloom at a consideration of approximately
HK$9,800,000. A deposit of HK$7,000,000 was paid.

On 26 August 2020, VC Capital Management Limited
entered into another memorandum of understanding with
Mr. Chan Leung to acquire further 16% equity interest in
China Bloom at a cash consideration of HK$9,800,000. A
deposit of HK$4,000,000 was paid.

On 30 November 2020, VC Capital Management Limited
entered into the third memorandum of understanding to
extend the long stop date of the completion of acquisition
of the aggregate 32% equity interest in China Bloom from
30 November 2020 to 31 May 2021.

37. EAREIE (F)
WEE ()

©)

(b)

(#)

SBEBALREEHABROARAE
A L& RIS BRREARFR
REABEEEE R AR - R(i)
EREFEARILAEARNGTER
EEERMHERRERAM N _F
—RFTAZ+TRB &8 HaELE
EHHCES AR RERIERKE -
RAREEH PHEFEEERE
ERNEEHKIAERAZHE -

R-ZE_ZTFRALA ARQRRAZE
ENBARIEREAREEAR AR A
BB = H MRS R SRR ST
NKERE 2160 #E  Fis k2R
{8 49 /39,800,000 7T ° gt It B 2 1%
7,000,000 T °

R-ZZE_ZFFN\A=-+H ' AQF
ZEEMBRAREREAEEBRA
AR AR B — DR E =
A — S B B 216004 - fT s
K 2z 3 & {8 59,800,000 7t ° # It
B % 442 44,000,000/ 7T °

RZZ_ZTFE+—-RA=+TH ERE
AEBBERAANVUE=ZOHRBES
8§ DIERIKES E S #3200 E 2
REEKRESH BT -_TE+— A
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37. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS (continued) 37. EAREIE (F)
Notes: (continued) Hist - (%)
(b) (continued) (b) (%)
On 31 May 2021, VC Capital Management Limited entered RZEZ—FRHA=Z+—H ERE
into the fourth memorandum of understanding to extend AEBBERARBGLENDREE
the long stop date of the completion of acquisition of the o RIERIWE S E S #3200 2
aggregate 32% equity interest in China Bloom from 31 5RTKBEBH BZT=Z—FAA
May 2021 to 31 December 2021. =t+-—BERE-ZZ=-_—F+=A
=+—B8-
On 31 December 2021, VC Capital Management Limited R-ZZE-_—F+_-_A=+—H E&
entered into the fifth memorandum of understanding to BEREBBERDBFZLERNDRERE
extend the long stop date of the completion of acquisition T UMERWEHR 2 & H320% 1
of the aggregate 329% equity interest in China Bloom from ZEHETKABH BT —F+=
31 December to 30 June 2022. A=Z+—HERZE-_ZT=__FXA
=+B8-
The principal asset of China Bloom consisted of a FEZIEZEEERRES —EAEY
residential property in Hong Kong with market value of ¥ W{E#55,000000F L (ZE=F

approximately HK$55,000,000 (2020: HK$68,000,000). F : 68,000,000 7T) °



VALUE CONVERGENCE HOLDINGS LIMITED ERZRERA A 31 5
Annual Report 2021 &£}

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Z &M iRRM =

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-_T-_—F+-A=+—HLEFE

38. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 38. EXEARERE

The Group manages its capital to ensure each group
entity will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's

overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt and
equity attributable to owners of the Company (comprising

issued share capital and reserves).

The management reviews the capital structure by
considering the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. In view of this, the Group
manages its overall capital structure through payment of

dividends and issuance of new shares.

Several subsidiaries of the Group (the “Regulated
Subsidiaries”) are registered with the Hong Kong
Securities and Futures Commission (the "SFC") for the
business they operate in. The Regulated Subsidiaries are
subject to liquid capital requirements under the Hong
Kong Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules
(the "SF(FR)R") adopted by the SFC. Under the SF(FR)R,
the Regulated Subsidiaries must maintain their liquid
capital (assets and liabilities adjusted as determined by
the SF(FR)R) in excess of HK$3 million or 5% of their
total adjusted liabilities, whichever is higher. The required
information is filed with the SFC on a monthly basis. The
Regulated Subsidiaries have no non-compliance with the
liquid capital requirements imposed by the SF(FR)R
during the year.

One of the subsidiaries is a member of Insurance
Authority during the years ended 31 December 2021
and 2020 is required to maintain a minimum net asset
value and share capital of HK$100,000 at all times. There
is no non-compliance of the capital requirements
imposed by the Insurance Authority the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020.

AEBNERAERNEERAREERE
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 39. R EE
Categories of financial instruments SR EEER
2021 2020
—EB-—F —ETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FAT
Financial assets MBEE
Financial assets at amortised costs RHHN AT R M BEE 500,720 613,321
Financial asset at FVTOC] BATFEIEREAEMEE
WARBIEZHMBEE 23,173 29,517
Financial asset at FVTPL BATEVEREERER
REMBEE
— Derivatives financial assets —TEMBEE - 4,735
— Held-for-trading —HEEE 423,505 247,338
— Designated at FVTPL —EBERRITEIIEK
REBRRERE 8,964 8,665
Financial liabilities SR
Amortised cost EE KA 45,797 81,281

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include rental
and utility deposits, financial assets at FVTPL, financial
assets at FVTOCI, accounts receivable, deposits and other
receivables, bank balances and cash, accounts payable,
accrued liabilities and other payables and convertible
bonds issued. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in their respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments include market risk, credit
risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective

manner.

MBERREREZREREE

AEEZIECHEREEEE MKE
BE BAVFEIIRAREBSREEZ
MBEE BRAVEINRREEMEE
WAKRBREZVHEE - BYRTRR - %
& MEA YRR - RITEHREIRE
FETBRIR - ERT BB R EL A FE A BR X %
BERTABEES ZFEBMERZF
BRAEBMETRE EZFSRFER
HEzRBRERET SRR  EERR R
MENE SRR o AR B F R 2 K
REHWMT - EEREHAFRARETE
BRER  WREKNBERETHEHERERE -
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 30. M EE (8)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk
Currency risk

It is the Group's policy for each group entity to operate in
local currencies as far as possible to minimise currency
risks. Almost all of the Group's principal businesses are
conducted in Hong Kong dollars which is also the
functional currency of the respective entities of the
Group, with small amounts of bank deposits
denominated in foreign currency. Since the impact of
foreign exchange exposure is minimal, no hedging against
foreign currency exposure has been carried out by the
Group for the year. Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis on

currency risk was presented.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to convertible bonds included in financial assets
at FVTPL (see note 25), fixed-rate accounts receivable
from money lending business (see note 27). The
management considered that the risk associated within

these balances are insignificant.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
in relation to variable-rate accounts receivable from
brokerage and financing business such as cash clients
and margin clients (see note 27). Bank balances are
excluded from the interest rate sensitivity analysis as they

are not sensitive to the change in market interest rates.

The Group currently does not have any interest rate
hedging policy. It is the Group's policy to keep accounts
receivable from brokerage and financing business and
short-term bank borrowing at floating rate as to minimise

the cash flow interest rate risk.

MEERERZREREEK (&)
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)
Interest rate risk (continued)

The Group's exposures to interest rates on financial
liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management
section of this note. The Group cash flow interest rate
risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of the
variable-rate accounts receivable from brokerage and

financing business and variable-rate bank borrowings.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for non-derivative
instruments. The analysis is prepared assuming the
financial instruments outstanding were outstanding for
the whole year. A 10 basis point increase or decrease is
used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management's
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest

rates.

If interest rates had been 10 basis points (2020: 10
basis points) higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group's profit before tax would
increase/decrease by approximately HK$158,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: loss before tax
would decrease/increase by approximately HK$156,000).
This is mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure to
interest rates on its variable-rate accounts receivable from
brokerage and financing business and variable-rate bank

borrowings.

39. EERE (&)

MEEREEREZRERBEK (B

5 (&)
=@ (&)
AEEEE 2 0B E &R R R RN
ARPECERER Sl AKH
ZHReRENERBREEEPRIZEMRE
Wis e RS R R BRITER
L E o

BRRE D

AT BRED M IRIBIEITE T AR X
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 30. M EE (8)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)
Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through the
Group's investment in listed equity securities and
convertible bonds which are classified as financial assets
at FVTPL (see note 25) as at 31 December 2021. If the
market price of the listed equity securities is 10% higher/
lower as at 31 December 2021 (2020: 10% higher/
lower), the Group’s profit before tax would have
increased/decreased by approximately HK$42,350,000
for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: loss
before tax would decreased/increased by approximately
HK$24,734,000) as a result of the change in fair value of

the listed equity securities.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to
the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in the

consolidated statement of financial position.

The credit risk of our Group mainly arises from accounts
receivable, deposits and other receivables, pledged bank
deposits and bank balances. The carrying amounts of
these balances represent our Group's maximum exposure

to credit risk in relation to financial assets.
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of
the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts and receivables from
margin clients with shortfalls in relation to the business of
VC Brokerage, the indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual receivable at the end of the
reporting period to ensure that adequate loss allowance
are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group's credit

risk is significantly reduced.

For money lending business of VC Finance Limited (“VC
Finance”) and corporate finance business of VC Capital
Limited (“VC Capital”), both are the indirect wholly-
owned subsidiaries of the Company, the Group closely
evaluates the borrowers’ credit rating, financial
background and repayment abilities so as to minimise
the Group's exposure to credit risk. The assessment is
based on a close monitoring and evaluation of the
collectability of individual account and on the
management’'s judgement, including the current
creditworthiness of the borrowers, collateral value and the
past collection history of each individual borrower within
the Group. The Group will take necessary action to follow
up the overdue loans and ensure that adequate loss
allowances are made for individual loans. As at 31
December 2021, the Group recognised a loss allowance
of approximately HK$70,545,000 (2020:
HK$51,177,000) for the loans with ECL.
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 30. M EE (8)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group has applied the simplified approach in HKFRS
9 for accounts receivable other than money lending and
margin clients to measure the loss allowance at lifetime
ECL for accounts receivable. The Group determines the
ECL on an individual basis for customer with significant
balances and collectively by using a provision matrix with
reference to past default experience of the accounts
receivable, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
accounts receivable, latest collateral valuation general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at
the reporting date. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group's credit risk is

significantly reduced.

The accounts receivable from margin clients and money
lending services are pledged by listed securities. The
maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of the
accounts receivable at the end of the reporting period,
without taking into account the collateral is disclosed in
note 27. The management considers that the credit risk
arising from the accounts receivable is significantly
mitigated by the listed equity securities held as collateral,
with reference to the market value of the listed equity

securities at 31 December 2021.

Management considered deposits and other receivables
to be low credit risk and thus the impairment provision
recognised during the year was limited to 12-month ECL,
expect for deposits and other receivables are considered
that the credit risk is significantly increased or defaulted

will be measure at lifetime ECL.
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the

counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned

by international credit-rating agencies.

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial
recognition of asset and whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis
throughout the reporting period. To assess whether there
is a significant increase in credit risk the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the asset as at the
reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of
initial recognition. It considers available reasonable and
supportive forwarding-looking information. Especially the

following indicators are incorporated:

« internal credit rating

«  external credit rating

« actual or expected significant adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant change to the

borrower's ability to meet its obligations

« actual or expected significant changes in the

operating results of the borrower

+ significant changes in the value of the collateral
supporting the obligation or in the quality of third-

party guarantees or credit enhancements

«  significant increase in credit risk on other financial

instruments of the borrower
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 39. SRR (&)
Financial risk management objectives and BEREBERZRE RBEK (&)
policies (continued)
Credit risk (continued) EEmLE (&)
+  significant changes in the expected performance and s BRAZEHRBHITRALLEEX
behaviour of the borrower, including changes in the i BREEBANEBRAZARIE
payment status of borrowers in the Group and B RERAREREZ R

changes in the operating results of the borrower

The Group's exposure to credit risk rEEEH EER

In order to minimise credit risk, the Group has tasked its REEREEERR XEEEZRE
credit committee to develop and maintain the Group's FEZEeRFI REFAEEEZERR
credit risk grading to categorise exposures according to E&UBRBERHARREE SRR
their degree of risk of default. The credit rating B EENRER BB LT REERMH
information is supplied by independent rating agencies (e f5) - TAMEEISPIFEREM AR
where available and, if not available, the credit ASUBENMAEREER HLtrE
department uses other publicly available financial HFXrZEFPRAMEBATR - ~AEE
information and the Group's own trading records to rate SEERARBLERZEHF 2 EEHF
its major customers and other debtors. The Group's B WHKPTEKRZ R D EBEELZER
exposure and the credit ratings of its counterparties are SEFEED -

continuously monitored and the aggregate value of
transactions concluded is spread amongst approved

counterparties.
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group's current credit risk grading framework

comprises the following categories: -
Category Description

5l i ut

Performing For financial assets where there has low risk of default

Ruf

Doubtful

]
T
At

Default

G

Write-off

1 58

or has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition and that are not credit
impaired (refer to as Stage 1)

BRRERIES BT HRARGEE R Mg -
BEEEEREZHBEE (REIER)

For financial assets where there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition but that
are not credit impaired (refer to as Stage 2)

BYSHERAREERRBEZENEBETEEEREL
MBEE(RB22ER)

Financial assets are assessed as credit impaired when
one or more events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of that asset have
occurred (refer to as Stage 3)

E-HESZHEUVBEEARARKRRERERE TANE
BrEMBAER ZEENRATREERE (RS
3MEER)

There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and the Group has no realistic
prospect of recovery

EEBRBRTEBARARENKERE A AKEK
BI5KIE 2 7 B

39. R ERE (&)
MEEREEREZRERBEK (B

EEREE (&)

AEBRITEERRFEERBIEAT

Basis for recognising ECL

BABABEEBRZMKE

12-month ECL

T EAEHEEEBR

Lifetime ECL — not credit

impaired

EEFEMBAREES
B-YHEESRE

Lifetime ECL — credit

impaired

BEEFERERAESES
B—EERIE

Amount is written off

IR M
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 39. SRR (&)
Financial risk management objectives and BEREBERZRE RBEK (&)
policies (continued)
Credit risk (continued) EEmLE (&)
The tables below detail the credit quality of the Group's TERBIEEERR RS AERE
financial assets as well as the Group’s maximum EEZEEHENASEEMESERZAZ
exposure to credit risk by credit risk rating grades. FERR -
31 December 2021 31 December 2020
ZEC-E+ZB=1-8 ZEIEETZAZT-H
External Internal 12-month Gross Net (ross Net
credit credit or lfetime carying Loss aarrying canying Loss anying
rating rating ECL amount allowance amount amount allowance amount
+2fERg
BEEER

PEIRETR ABREFE REGEER BEAE  EREE  BEFE  FESE  BREE FESE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$1000

TERL TERL Tén TEx THL T
Rental and utiity deposits N/A Performing 12-month ECL 2116 - 2116 M - M
BeRkEks iR Rif TZRARE
FEER
Accounts receivable (other than N/A N/A Lifetime ECL 22,761 (1,650) 21,111 63,064 (1,031) 62,033
money lending and margn clients) AER TR (Simplified
EUES (MER approach)
RESEPRI SERENES
FEBE
(Hlait)
Accounts receivable from money — N/A Performing 12-month ECL 109,229 (13) 109,076 73,931 (22) 73,909
lending and margin clients TER R TR
ElHERREEEPL EERE
S
Accounts receivable from money — N/A Doubtful Lifetime ECL 264,945 (43,181) 221,764 322,623 (24.390) 298,233
lending and margin dlients N ] - not credit
EUHERFRESEFZ impaired
EWES EE i
FEBE
-1EEE

e
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 30. SR EE (F)
Financial risk management objectives and BERERMERZRERBXK (&)
policies (continued)
Credit risk (continued) EEEE (&)
31 December 2021 31 December 2020
CRC-FAZT-H CRIRETIAZT-R
External Internal 12-month Gross Net Gross Net
credit credit or lifetime carying Loss carying canying Loss carying
rating rating ECL amount allowance amount amount allowance amount
+2fERg
BREEY

HBREFR  ABREFRA  EAREER REAE FRER REFE BHLE BRER BASE
HK§'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn TEn Tin TERL TkR TERL

Accounts receivable from money — N/A Default Lifetime 64,324 (33,984) 30,340 58,868 (50,201) 8,667
lending and margin dlents TR ] ECL - credit
EUHERFEREFZ impaired
Bl BEGEHRS
Hi7
-EHE
Deposits and other receivables N/A Performing 12-month ECL 8,579 - 8,579 2871 - 2871
ke RAMENER @R R TZRARE
[EEFE
Deposits and other receivables N/A Doubtful Lifetime ECL 37441 (5123) 32,318 93,600 (3978) 89,622
ke RAENER @R R - not credt
impaired
BErENES
EEFE
-T8ER
HE
Deposits and other receivebles N/A Doubtful Lifetime ECL 880 - 880 1112 (1,016) 9%
e REBENER @R s - credi
impaired
BEREHEY
[EEFE

—EEEE
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 30. M EE (8)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The carrying amount of the Group's financial assets at
FVTPL as disclosed in note 25 represents their respective
maximum exposure to credit risk. The Group holds no

collateral over any of these balances.

The Group's concentration of credit risk by geographical
location is mainly in Hong Kong as at 31 December
2021 and 2020. As at 31 December 2021, the Group
has concentration of credit risk on the accounts
receivable as the aggregate balances with the five largest
clients represent approximately 30% (2020: 28%) of
total accounts receivable. However, the fair values of the
securities collateral held by the Group for these balances
are either in excess to the relevant carrying amounts or
have no overdue amounts as at the end of each
reporting period. Accordingly, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group's credit risk is closely
monitored. The Group has no other significant

concentration of credit risk.

Liquidity risk

Internally generated cash flows is the source of fund to
finance the operations of the Group. The Group's liquidity
risk management includes diversifying the funding
sources. The Group regularly reviews the major funding
positions to ensure adequate financial resources are

available to meet their respective financial obligations.

MHEERERZREREEK (&)

FEEE (&)

ff 25T B A R B IR 2 FE 5 R &
HEEGREECVBEEZRAERR
HEEESAEY Z2&EREERR - &
5 B30 8 BT A % F B RIS A (T IR

g °

BiE s R B —FER-_B-TFE
TZA=+—H FrEEZEERBEE
E¢W%% R-E_—F+=-A=+—
AEBERKERZEFEER
“'ﬁﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁzmﬁﬁﬁﬁW$ﬂ
BEELRZ0% (Z T F :28%) °
i - $%I%M#ﬁ%hﬁ2ﬁﬁﬁ%
ZAFERREEREEINEREB
MUy mafRE Al AAFEER
RAEEZEERRBEBIBEYER -
AEBUVEHMSEEREERR

B E TR
AEBEEMAESKEABELEZR
ERE - AKEZRDERRERERS
BEOoMESRR AEBEHRASE
EEMRR - WHEREMEEIRE LD
BEHMBAEEMRS -
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Liquidity table

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for their non-derivative financial
liabilities based on the agreed repayment terms. The
tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities with the earliest date on
which the Group are required to settle. The tables include
both principal and interest cash flows. To the extent that
the interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted
amount is derived from interest rate curves at the end of

the reporting period.

39. R ERE (&)
MEEREEREZRERBEK (B

///L

Bz /mp (&)

TRENASBETEMBEBEZHE
BFRPFIZFAENNGBRE
TERBERAEENREATHEER

Hz B aEZ RARR

HIHABR o
Z&=FH

NN =W
_:E//\LE/

B

TRERBASEMNERGRE - EHE
BFBNENBERT  RBERESFTIH
WEARMEAARITAE ©

Weighted
average  On demand Total Total
interest rate ~ or less than 3 months undiscounted carying
(pa) 1 month  1-3 months toyear  1-5years  cash flows amount
ETH & RERRE
M -@EAUA -EZER ZERE-%F -FE2RfF  RESE  KELE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tén Thn Tén Téx ThT Tén
At 31 December 2021 RzBz-§
tZA=t-H
Non-derivative financial iabities £ K&
Accounts payable ERES 20,177 - - - 2,177 21,177
Margin loan payable ERRESERN 15321 - - - 15321 15,321
Other payables HpEFER 2,868 900 253 - 4,021 4,021
Convertible bonds issued (note 32) BETTHRER (##32) - - - 6,500 6,500 5278
39,366 900 253 6,500 47,019 45,197
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Liquidity table (continued)

In addition, the Group’s maturity profile of its lease

liabilities is as follow:

Weighted
average

interest rate

(pa)

ik 337
S

Y%

Lease liabilities fgag 5.25

On demand
or less than
1 month
£
-BANR
HK$'000
THR

39. R ERE (&)
MEERERZREREEK (&)

RBEZEE (E)
nBEEX (&)

SN

1-3 months

-EZfER
HK$ 000
TER

1,960

3 months

to year

fiRE-£
HK$'000
THx

5334

Total

undiscounted

1-5years  cash flows
FERRE

-EZ1f HEAE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn Tin
8,859 16,153

AEEHERBEZHMBERMAT

Total
carrying

amount

RE4E
HK$'000
TR

16,406

329
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

39. EERE (&)

MEEREEREZRERBEK (B

RBEZEE (E)

Liquidity table (continued) nEBEeR (&)
Weighted
average  On demand Total Total
interest rate  or less than 3 months undiscounted caring
(pa) T month 13 months o year 1-5years  cash flows amount
REXE
mE¥s E&a RERRE
Mz -BEAMR  -EZZ@R ZERE-f -£2RfF NEME  BALE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tin FiEn T T TiEn T
At 31 December 2020 igmt Juk 2
tZRZt-H
Non-derivative financil izbiliies 3174 &1 & (8
Accounts payable &N 50,702 - - - 50702 50,702
Other payables AR 6,584 1383 370 - 8,337 8337
Convertible bonds issued (note 32) 2R TR ES (H#52) 2 18,180 - - 6,811 24991 224
15,466 1383 370 6,811 84,030 81,281

In addition, the Group's maturity profile of its lease
liabilities is as follow:

Weighted
average  On demand
interest rate o less than
(pa) 1 month
REXE

MYy LEE]
EHE -EANR
% HK$'000
Thn

Lease liabilties fEak 5375 -

AN AEBEHERBZEIMBERAT

Total

3 months undiscounted

1-3 months toyear  15years  cash flows
AUERS

-3zff zfEAZ-% -%E1F TERE

HKS000  HKS000  HKSOOO  HKS000
TAR TR T TAR

1,663 5,832 880 6,375

Total
carrying
amount

FELE
HK$000
TR

6,375
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 30. S RIERE (F)
Fair value measurement recognised in the REEMBMRRREREZARE
consolidated statement of financial position =1
The following table provides an analysis of financial TREJINZEHRENRAFEAEZS
instruments that are measured at fair value at the end of MERERALSEMERIELENRFEZS
each reporting period for recurring and non-recurring - DERBEASESTBRZAT
measurement, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the BEZABRREMED AFEIEIR K
degree to which the fair value is observable in NEEERBNEEE B RKRIRE A
accordance to the Group's accounting policy. The RINEZHMBEERTEEEZEBRE
directors of the Company consider that the carrying HENFEES -
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values.
31 December 2021
—E2--%+-A=+-—H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EAE 2R IR met
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT THERT TERT FHERT
Financial assets at FVTPL BRAFEIRRE
BHEREEZ
MBEE
Convertible bonds AR E 5 - - 8,964 8,964
Listed equity securities ERAES 423,505 - - 423,505
Financial assets at FVTOCl & AFEIERE
Ht2EKRA XK
REZHMBEE
Unlisted equity securities IE AR AN E 55 - - 23,173 23,173
Total et 423,505 - 32,137 455,642
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 39. R EE (&)
Fair value measurement recognised in the REEHMBMRRERERZARER
consolidated statement of financial position £ (&)

(continued)

31 December 2020
—EZEF+A=+—H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B sk B3R @Et

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TAET TAET TAET

Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEINERRE

BHEEEEZ

MBEE
Convertible bonds Al 2 % (E 5 - - 8,665 8,665
Listed equity securities FHRAFS 247,338 - - 247,338
Call options RS A - - 4,735 4,755

Financial assets at FVTOCI B AFEIERE
His 2 EB A K
REZHBEE
Unlisted equity securities FELETIRAE H - - 29,517 29,517

Total et 247,338 - 42,917 290,255
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 39. M EE (&)
Fair value measurement recognised in the REEMBMRRREREZARE
consolidated statement of financial position 2 (&)
(continued)
The valuation techniques and inputs used in the fair EeREBRECEEELE NFEFE
value measurements of each financial instrument on a P A 2z B H i e A BUR BT -

recurring basis are set out below:

Relationship of key inputs

Fair value Valuation technique Significant and significant unobservable
Financial instruments hierarchy Fair values as at 31 December ~ and key inputs unobservable inputs ~ inputs to fair value
IZRARBREATIEE
tHES AVEER RTZBZt-B2ATE  HERKRIEGAHE EXTURZGANE B HBHAVEZRE
2021 2020
ZEZ-F CZCF%E
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
THR T TER TEn
Financial assets at FVTPL
RAVENERERER
REZMBEE
Convertble bonds Level 3 8,964 8665  Binomial model: 2021 The higher the volatilty,
By reference to the Volatilty of 2708 the higher of the fair value
risk free rate of 0.13% (B: 35% of the CBs
(2020:0.08%) and 2020
effective interest Volatility of 2708
rate of 0.15% (B: 54%
(2020 15%)
ThkES 234 ZEARS S RiE#E TARERZ
SEEARNE0I3N  RESD ATERS
(ZZZFF:008%) —F-TE:
RERHZ0.15% RIE54%
(ZBZ2E: 15%)
Listed equity securities Level 1 423,505 247338 Quoted bid pricesinan ~ N/A N/A

active market

ERAESR 18 EENEAAEAR HER FER
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 3. SRERE (&)

RESUBRRKRER 2 DX FER

Fair value measurement recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial position £ (&)
(continued)
Relationship of key inputs
Fair value Valuation technique Significant and significant unobservable
Financial instruments hierarchy Fair values as at 31 December  and key inputs unobservable inputs ~ inputs to fair value
IZRAMBREATIEE
tHES AVEER RTZA=+-A2ATE  HERARIZRARE EXTUBERARE BARBEAVEZRE
2021 2020
ZEZ-F ZCFE
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
THR Thr  TER TER
Financial assets at FYTOCI
RATESIGREALEE
BAREBZHBEE
Unlisted equity securities ~ Level 3 3,173 29517 2021: Market approach ~ 2021: Marketability 2021: By reference to
discount of 20.6% price-to-book value
ratio of 0.5
2020: Market approach ~ 2020: Marketability 2020: By reference to
discount of 15.8% price-to-book value ratio
of 047
FEMRAES £34 ik S R KV Z5-F: ZFI-F:
ZEIRE Tk [kt lid BEMEE0S(E
f71120.6%
“E-%E: _FoRE:
[k i3 BEMEE047HE
f71115.8%
Derivative financial assets
fiebBeE
Call options Level 3 - 4735 2020: Binomial model:  2020: The higher volatilty, the
By reference to the Volatilty of 56.2%/60%  higher of the fair value
risk fee rate of 0.103% of the options.
REHE 230 CRORECEABRR . RO REME BEZATELS
2ZEERAE0103%  R1E56.2%//60%
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value measurement recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial position

(continued)

39. T ERE (&)

RESUBRRRER 2D FER

£ (&)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of BEEEEENBIRAFEFEZY
financial assets on recurring basis are as follows: HEEHE:
Financial Financial Derivative
assets at assets at financial
FVTPL FVTOCI assets Total
RAVE RAVEIEK
SIERE REHMZE
BEREE BMAREE &
ZHBEE ZHBEE HBEE Bt
Unlisted
Convertible equity Call
bonds securities options Total
kLm
TRRES R 3% 5 REHE Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FET AT TET
As 1 January 2020 RZE-_ZF—F—H 297,087 47,054 - 344,141
Purchases EE 6,816 - - 6,816
Gain on acquisition REmESkE 3,979 - - 3,979
Loss on redemption REL M EER (3,358) - - (3,358)
Redemption BE (10,000) - - (10,000)
Fair value (loss) gain through ~ EBHEEBERZ AFE (BE)

profit or loss Wz (2,130) - 4,735 2,605
Fair value loss through other TEM2ZERARERZA

comprehensive income TEBR - (17,537) - (17,537)
Disposal HE 